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About XBRL Taxonomy Designer Help

Oracle Hyperion Disclosure Management XBRL Taxonomy Designer Online Help is an
interactive help system that answers questions about XBRL Taxonomy Designer, helps
troubleshoot problems, and provides general tips and advice.

To get started with XBRL Taxonomy Designer and XBRL, Oracle recommends working through
the tutorials in Appendix A, “Tutorials.”

Using XBRL Taxonomy Designer Help, you can:
e Search using the Contents view in the left pane
e Search the Index

e Find information using key word queries

XBRL Taxonomy Designer Features

XBRL Taxonomy Designer is the industry’s most full-featured taxonomy and instance creator.

XBRL Taxonomy Designer includes a suite of robust creation, editing, mapping, validation,
analysis and reporting tools, for managing complex taxonomies, with single and in-reference
taxonomy usage patterns and validation capabilities.

The XBRL Taxonomy Designer provides the fundamental and comprehensive functionality
required to create, exchange, consume, and manage large numbers of XBRL instance documents
and taxonomies. Core features include:

e Support for XBRL 2.1 and XBRL legacy versions (2.0, 2.0a, and 1.0)

About XBRL Taxonomy Designer Help



A fully-conforming XBRL processor, as defined by the XBRL 2.1 specification, passing the
275 tests within the XBRL International Specification 2.1 conformance suite

Support for Financial Reporting Taxonomies Architecture 1.0 (FRTA Candidate
Recommendation 0f2003-12-31) best practices for building financial reporting taxonomies,
and any taxonomy that follows this architecture recommendation

Creating and editing sophisticated taxonomies, such as the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and United States Financial Reporting (USFR) frameworks

Integrated instance document creation, taxonomy creation and extension, and validation
environments, enabling the creation and management of robust extension taxonomies and
leveraging the full power of XBRL extensibility

Creating, editing, and reading XBRL instance documents and taxonomies
Editing taxonomies and instance documents simultaneously

Validating XML Schema 2.1, XBRL, and best practices to ensure the documents and data
you read are valid XBRL, follow the business rules of your organization or domain, and
comply with XBRL best practices

Creating and executing business rules (including semantic validation) to ensure the data
you are creating or using are valid.

Robust mapping, import, and export functionality for migrating source data into XBRL,
and then back into your applications’ data format

Productivity features and tools to navigate through, and effectively manage and edit large
element taxonomies of 4000 or more elements

GUI and API interfaces that enable developers and semi-technical users comfortable
building Microsoft -Excel-like macros using VBA to leverage XBRL Taxonomy Designer
functionality directly from within their applications

System Requirements

Microsoft Windows Server System 2003

Microsoft Windows 2000 Professional, Server Edition with Service Pack 4

Microsoft Windows XP Home or Professional Edition with Service Pack 2

128 MB of RAM (256 MB of RAM recommended)

Microsoft™ .Net Framework Version 1.1 with the latest NET updates

Microsoft™ Visual J# .NET Version 1.1 Redistributable Package with the latest .NET updates
Microsoft™ Internet Explorer 6.0, 6.0 with Service Pack 2 or later release

Windows 2000 and later

Internet Explorer 7 or later

Total download package 44 MB:

9 MB - XBRL Taxonomy Designer

10
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e 35 MB - Microsoft required components

To use the Import/Export features with Microsoft Excel, Word, Access, and SQL Server, install
and register the software listed below:

e Microsoft Excel 2002 or later, Word 2000 or later, Access 2000 or later, or OLE DB
e Provider Databases if needed (for example, SQL Server, Oracle, MySQL)

e Internet Access (for downloading software and access to online help documentation and
tutorials.)

e CD-ROM or DVD-ROM drive for CD installation

Required Components

These components must be installed to use XBRL Taxonomy Designer. Failure to do so may
interrupt the installation process and prompt you to install these components before continuing.

These English language required components are supplied on the installation CD and download
package:

e Microsoft. NET Framework Version 1.1 with latest .NET updates
e Microsoft Visual J#NET Version 1.1 Redistributable Package

e Microsoft Internet Explorer 6 or later release

These required components are not supplied on the installation CD:

e Microsoft Office 2003/2002 with Word, Excel, and Access required for import/export of
taxonomy and/or instance data.

Note: Microsoft MDAC 2.8 can be installed in place of Microsoft Access.

e An OLE DB Provider (for example, SQL Server, Oracle) must be installed and configured
for database imports/exports

Troubleshooting FAQ's

1. Q: When I export, XBRL Taxonomy Designer displays an exception or does not respond.

A: Ensure that the required Microsoft Office product is installed, and registered. If the
problem persists, contact: support@oracle.com.

2. Q: Occasionally, XBRL Taxonomy Designer does not respond when I use the "Export - tree
view" option.
A: If the product does not respond after using this option, Oracle recommends that you use

the other export options to export relationship trees.

3. Q: When I launch XBRL Taxonomy Designer, an exception error is displayed. What do I
do?

Required Components
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A: An error can occur if the required components are installed, but the machine has not
been rebooted yet. Reboot the computer and launch the application. If the problem persists,
contact: support@oracle.com.

4. Q: Where can I find the product version and creation date?

A: The product version and creation date is displayed on the XBRL Taxonomy Designer
startup screen. Also, you can display the product version and date by selecting About
Disclosure Management XBRL Taxonomy Designer from the Help menu.

XBRL Taxonomy Designer Online Tutorials

The tutorials familiarize you with XBRL Taxonomy Designer and the basics of XBRL. Oracle
recommends that you work through these lessons in the order presented. Lessons include
practical exercises that alter the test data files. Each successive lesson includes exercises that build
on the previous exercises. The files referenced in the exercises are included with your XBRL
Taxonomy Designer installation.

12  About XBRL Taxonomy Designer



Using XBRL Taxonomy Designer

In This Chapter

Using Keyboard EQUIVAIENTS .......uinie i
MOVING EleMENTS ..ottt
Understanding Errors and Warmings...........coooviiiiii e
SYNCArONIZING VIEWS ... e
Searching for Elements. ..o
Searching USING CHteria. ... ....vuereii e
Using Editing ComMMANAS .....uiririiieiiiee e
About Taxonomy COIOMNG .......veeeee e e
UsSing INStance COlOMNG .....vieeie it
SyNChroNIZING INSTANCES ... v vttt
Enabling Editing........oooei
Printing Instance DOCUMENTS ... ..vivi e
Configuring Color OPtiONS ... .. vt

About Native Document Format Files .........oovviiiiiiiiiiiii e

Using Keyboard Equivalents

Table 1 lists the general XBRL Taxonomy Designer keyboard equivalents.

Table 1 Shortcut Keys

Keyboard Equivalents | Description

F1 Opens the XBRL Taxonomy Designer Online Help menu
Ctri+Z Undoes the last XBRL Taxonomy Designer action

Ctrl+ Inserts a sibling element

Ctrl+N Inserts a child element

Ctrl+L Opens editing of the selected cell

Ctrl+X Cuts the selected element and its relationships

Ctrl+D Deletes the selected element and its relationships

Using Keyboard Equivalents
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Keyboard Equivalents | Description

Ctrl+P Opens the print dialog box
Ctrl+S Saves the document

Ctrl+0 Displays the Options menu
Alt+F4 Exits XBRL Taxonomy Designer

Moving Elements

There are several operations that can occur when moving elements within the relationship views.

For each drag and drop operation, color highlighting indicates whether the operation is an
allowed edit. Any relationship with the current focus is displayed in blue.

See “Using the Relations Collection Editor” on page 64 and “Creating a Business Rule Using
the Properties Grid” on page 232.

Figure 1 Insert Concept into a Tree

=] Presentation Yiew
-+ Extended Liggalance Sheet, Classified Format)
- Balance @qet (Presentation)
-~ Asseks (Presentation)
+- fAssets, Mon Current (Presentakion)
+- Asseks, Current (Presentation)
+- Liabilities and Equity (Presentation)

(The new location for the inserted element is displayed in purple.)

Figure 2 Insert Concept Above

= Presentation View
=+ Extended Link (Balance Sheet, Classified Formak)
—|- Balance Sheet (Presentation)
[=}- Assets (Presentation)
+-Assets, Mon Current (Presentation)

+| | Aszets, Current [Presentation] |

Assets, Total
[+]- Liabilities and Equity {Presentation)
+- Extended Link (Balance Sheet, Order of Liquidity Format)

14  Using XBRL Taxonomy Designer



Figure 3  Insert Concept Below

=|- Presentation Yiew
- Extended Link (Balance Sheet, Classified Format)
-+ Balance Sheet (Presentation)
- Assets (Presentation)
+- Assets, Mon Current (Presentation)
+- Assets, Current (Presentation)

Assets, Total
+|JLiabilities and Equity [Presentation] |

When working with reference taxonomies, if the references are set to read-only, then the color
of the selected element reflects that the action results in a prohibit or overriding arc operation.

Figure 4 Prohibit and/or Override Relationship Arcs

=1 Presentation Yiew
‘- Extended Link (Default Link)
=l Extended Link (Balance Sheet, Classified Format)
[=- Balance Sheet (Presentation)
[=]- Asseks (Presentation)
+ - Assets, Mon Current (Presentation)
+ | Assets, Current (F‘resentat.icur])

Assets, Tokal
[+]- Liabilities and Equity (Presentation)

= Presentation Yiew
Extended Link (Default Link)
= Extended Link (Balance Shest, Classified Format)
-| Balance Sheet (Presentation)
-|- Assets (Presentation)
+ #ssets, Non Current (Presenkation)
Assets, Tokal
+ Assets, Current (Presentation)

BssetsTokal

+| Liabilities and Equity (Presentation)

(The color orange indicates an operation that results in a prohibited relationship. The result of
dragging to create a prohibit is that the original arc is prohibited, and an arc is created where
the relationship is dropped. Strikethrough indicates an arc which has a prohibit. )

Understanding Errors and Warnings

Whenever an error occurs during validation, you can double-click the error and the application
highlights (using the color yellow) the offending concept and/or relationship causing the error.

Understanding Errors and Warnings
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atlantis {Presentation) 4 b X |

i#- Extended Link {Accounting Policies, Financial Institutions) |l
[=I- Extended Link {Explanatory Disclosures) N
[=I- Explanatory Disclosures (Presentation)
[+ Assets Disclosures (Presentation)
=1 Liabilities and Equity Disclosures {Presentation)
=+ Equity Disclosures
= Issued Capital Disclosures
= rdinary Share Capital Disclosures
(= Detail of Classes of Ordinary Share Capital
+-Class of QOrdinary Share Capital
[+ Dividends Paid on Ordinary Shares Disclosures
= Preference Share Capital Disclosures
[=} Detail of Classes of Preference Share Capital
+- Class of Preference Share Capital

[+ Dividends Paid on Preference Shares Disclosures e
I

% = |F'.II elements j] Count: 3,797
Prefix | Label & | Marne b
ifrs-aop Class of Ordinary Share Capital ClassOfOrdinaryShareCapit:
ifrs-agp Class of Preference Share Capital ClassOfPreferenceshareCa, | |
ifrs-gp Class of Property, Plant and Equipm...  ClassOfPropertyPlantandE. .
ifrs-gp Class of Revalued Identifiable Intan...  ClassOfRevaluedIdentifiabl.
ifrs-aop Class of Service Concession Arrange,.,  ClassOfServiceConcession,
ifrs-agp Classes of Accrued Liabilities (Presen..,  ClassesOfAccruedliabilities. , s
£ | >

Line | Tvpe Message ID Message ™
31 Errar FxTupMold Tuple element ifrs-gp: ChangeInfccountingEs
3z Errar kxTupMold Tuple element ifrs-gp: ChangeInAccountingPo
33 Error kxTuphlold Tuple element ifrs-gp: ChangeInPlansToSelk: ™ l
34 Errar ExTupMold Tuple element ifrs-gpiClassOfAssetWikharrar
35 Errar kFxTuphold Tuple element ifrs-gp: ClassOfFinancialfssets
Errar ExTuphold el red
a7 Error kxTuphlold Tuple element ifrs-gp: ClassOfPreferenceShal
38 Errar ExTupMold Tuple element ifrs-gpiClassOfPropertyPlankd
39 Errar FxTupMold Tuple element ifrs-gp: ClassOfRevaluedldent
dn Frrmr P TomblATA Tiimla alarmank iFeeoar T lacemPSaruicra™ Ameae: - =
£ | >

Synchronizing Views

The Sync-to-View feature locates instances of a concept or relationship in the relationship views.

Use Sync to Element List to select concepts from the element list view. The selected concepts are
highlighted in the tree view.

If you set Sync to Other Panes in relationship views, selecting a concept in one of these views
selects that concept in all currently open tree views with this option set.

When you select an element in the list view (select View, then Sync to Element List) the concept
is highlighted in grey for every instance in the tree views, as shown below.

16  Using XBRL Taxonomy Designer



File Edit View Took  Window Help

D -@-[ad il 3§ X - [Paminnionsm.]

ifrs-ap (Calculation) | 4 b x | [ Taxonomy - Frs-gp 3
= Extended Link (Balsnce Sheet, Classifi & | (= Caloudation View a| B ranmmiiy information E=l
= Balanoe Shest {Presentatson) [= Extterdged (Balance Sheet, Classf | iNams
= Mggats (Prasenkation) + s l Description
+ Bggats, Mom Current (Pres NamaspacePrafic ifrs-gp
® Rasels, Curren, (Fresents Mamespaceldentifier  hittp://xbrliasb.org/int/
A o . ’ Schemal ocation ify 2004-06-15.xsd
+! Liabiities and Equity (Fresent: + Liabilties and Equity, Total E Frofile % Etn!fu.u:
1 Ewtemsded Link (Balarce Shest, Order = Exttarded Link (Balanoe Sheet, Nat Az Sbriversion Yersion 2.1
i Extended Link (Balance: Sheet, Net As # Equity Plus Minorty Intorest and - R s o (CabarBon =15
i+ Extended Unk (Income Stabement, By = Met Assets, Total Lirbase: {Collection - T)
# Extended Link (Incoms Statement, By + KX Ref
4 Extended Lk (Cash Flows, Direct Mel 41 {-1) Liabdkies, Total Sl D (ol oy
i Extended Link (Cash Flows, Indrect ¥ ¥ Extendsd Link (Income Statement, By & || EtratiL
£ > £ $ | ExtradMiippinfo
F El by
a 5 f”m _:_“ Count: 3,223 | |B. Taxanomy Saviog
Prefix I Label & | 1Ma & SaveSkral II:l:rmd i o
ifrs-ap Asgeks, Current (Prasentation) AsgetsCurrentPracentation  Shring R =~
iFrs-gp Assets, Current, Total AssersCurrent Total Hone | [ SaveReherencedTaxonon False
ifrs-gp Assets, Non Curnent (Presentation) AssetsionCumentPresenta.., Sty B L Bl
ifrz-ap Aseebs, Mon Currant, Tobal cetehianurent Total Mo Shucsil g (] Enlish
r |- Accaks Toka otal — Hor= Shiowl abelR ol standard Label
M o > Doafaudt Type Strimg
—— Notes (Collection - empty)
Messeges 5] [ cnsta o .o
Lo | Tios ]“ o I”, B LRty Lid ot som
i Info kel dFinbloErr Taxonoamy (frs-gp) bading completed, no srrors or warnk |5 °F Folse
z Irées txldFirioEnr Rieferenced Taxoromy (ref), resd-only, loading complste | WiteExtendeddppinfo  False
bim e timen '}
B xnpi ~ctadata ;l
HamespacePrelic

The namespace prefix used in instance documents and
Fully quaified references bo names defined inthist ...

£ * -Ma Element - frs-go |

INS: CALE VIEW: CALC

4

When you select a relationship in the tree view (select View, then Show, and then Sync to Other
Panes), the concept is selected in the other synchronized relationship view panes currently open
within the same extended link. The links highlighted in the other panes are displayed in gray.

Synchronizing Views
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File Edit 'I.I'IEW Tools Window  Help

O-F - Tl =7 2 3 %5 - [FaenttoChid Tl

ifrs-gp {Presentation) | d %

=~ Extended Link (Balance Sheet, Classifi~ | | = Calculatlnn Wiew o
[=]- Balance Sheet (Presentation) _ Extended Link, { slance Sheet, Classif
= Assets [Presentation) : |
{ [+ fssets, Mon Current (Pres i W Lial:uilities and Equity, Total
+- Assets, Current (Presents [+ Extended Link (Balance Sheet, Order
; [+ Extended Link (Balance Sheet, Met As
¢ Extended Link (Income Skatement, By
[+ Extended Link {Income Statement, By

- Liahilties and Equity {Present:
¥ Extended Link (Balance Sheet, Order

[+ Extended Link (Ealance Sheet, Mek A= [+~ Extended Link (Cash Flows, Direct Me —

) Extended Link (Income Skatement, By ) Extended Link (Cash Flows, Indirect &

- Extended Link (Income Skatement, By # Extended Link (Skatement of Changes

[+ Extended Link (Cash Flows, Direct Mel [#- Extended Link (Accounting Policies)

[+ Extended Link (Cash Flows, Indireck ¢ % [+ Extended Link {Explanatary Disclosure
4 I > % | >

You can also synchronize a property from the collection editor with the tree and element list
view. Selecting the property highlights it in yellow. In the example below, a relationship between

the parent and a selected child is highlighted in yellow.

Class of Drdinary Share Capital

Tuple

(Tuple Definition}
False

sbrliztuple

{Collection - 1)

{Collection - 1)
(Collection - 18)

P ifts-gp False
P ilts-gp False
P ifizgp False
F ihsgp Falze
F irsgp False
P ifts-gp Falze
P ifts-gp Falss
F ifizgp False
F ihsgp Falze
F iksgp False

Fz

nll&ﬁs{me:utum” i b 3 || Ebement - atlantis
= Clags of Ordinary Share Capital A || |B) Element Information
Dreseription of Class af Crdinary Share Capital t
Type of Class of Ordinary Share Capital
Mumber of Ordinary Shares Authorised for Class B Labeis
Par Valos for Class of Ordinary Shares E pataType
Rights, Preferences and Restrictions, Ordinory Shares for Class || TypleDiefinition
Hhumber of Crdinary Shares Jssued and Fully Paid For Class ey
Humber of Crdinary Shares Issued and Partislly Paid For Class HonGroup
Mumber of Crdinary Shares Issued for Class, Total AT
+ Movements in Ordinary Shares, Number of Issued and Fully Paid Ficed
& Ordnary Shares Reserved For Issuance Under Options and Sale @ e
Mumber of Crdinary Shares, Treasury Shares, Held Directly by E
Number of Ordinary Shares, Treasury Shares, Held by Parent £r | B References
Bamber nF Circlinare Shares. Treas e Sharss. Hedd b Sdheican T Formula
< > Parents
8~ A slomorts =l Sl
Prefix | Labei & | name
ifrs-gp Rewversal of Impairiment, Investirent...  ReversalOf | Tor edements [children)
frs-gp Rewversal of Unused Non Restructuni...  ReversalOf |ifrs-gpeDescription of Class of Ordinary Share Ca
ifrs-gp Revarcal of Linused Provisions, Total Raveras 1 ifiz-op: Twpe of Class of Oidinany Shae Captal
-0 Reversal of Unused Restructuring Pr....  Reversaloy ifrs-grxMumber of Didinay Shaes Authorised fo
ro-ap Rights Isgues Policy Rightsl<sud t :
ffre-gp Rights, Preferences and Restrictions.,.  RightsPref fre-gpiPa Value for Clazs of Ordinary Shates
pt = N L His-gpiFights. Preferences and Restrictions. Oid
- - - |frz-gpiNumber of Ordinaty Shates Issusd snd F
Mescages frz-gp:Hurmber of Drdinaty Shaes lssued and P
S —— e dones e
31 Emror txTuphiold Tuple element. ifrs-gpiCha it g w
32 Erer bxTuptiald Tuple elemnent ifrs-gpiCha +gpDrdinary Shares Reserved lor |ssuance U
I Error tx Tupdiold Tuple element frs-gp:Cha i = i = =
34 Eror b Tupbiald Tuple eerent ifre-gp:Clasd
= Errox b Tupiold Tupds elarment frs-gpiClassOfFfinancialAssets
35 Error bxTuphiold Tuple element fre-gp:ClassOfOrdinaryShared Children
37 Error b Tuptdold Tuple edarnant ifrs-gpiClassOfPraferenceSha Child links For this slsment.
) Error bxTupiold Tuple edemert: ifrs-gp:ClassOfPropertyPlants
&) Error b Tupdald Tuple elsment ifrs-gpiClassOfRevassdident
i.n Wi For T bl Tl L T T T I T PR T
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Searching for Elements

The Elements List view has several filter and search options to help locate elements.

Click the drop-down arrow associated with the Find and Show Elements icon to display the list
of choices. You can choose criteria to Filter the dictionary view of the taxonomy elements. The
Search choice examines element labels or names within the current selection of shown language

and label role (as selected on the taxonomy property grid).

ilrs-gp (Present akion )

| Exteried Link (Balatee Sheet, (ladollnd Format) A
+) Extified Link (Balatie Sheet, Onder of Lipalty Forfal)
w Exterhed Link (Balarae Sheet, Mol Asosts Format)
] Exteraied Link (Iroome Satement, By Funiseh Formal)
] Exteraid Link (Income Shatement, By Matuns Format)
#] Extendied Link [Cash Flows, D et Methed)
) Exherefied Link (Tash Flisws, Irecfinesit Methedd)
#) Extended Link (Sabement of Changes in Equiy)
Exkernied Link (Scooumiing Poloes)
et ariing Pokoes (Presentation)
Crwer-all Coresdr phicate | Present st
+1 [Enkity Bed orsstion
Going Conecern Infermation
Statement About Doubl Upen Entity's Abilty bo Continue & Gong Condenm
= Sutement that Firancal Stabarenis harve Hod Been Prepansd on Going Conosim Bass and Faasons Why

=| Presentation of Firantal Staterents =
| € s ¥
X T
28 = [ et | st Capal Courk: 400
Prafe | abed | harrm | Cuta Typs | Balawce | Poricd Tygm | o
s Canoellation of Subscrbed Captal, B, Cancell bsoribedCap. ¥ Dbk Curation T
ream Cancellation of Subscrbed Caplal, ConpelstionSbsorbedCap, ., Monsbay =2 Carstion T
s Lty Pios Minariby Inberest and S [autyPeMnortyinierest..,  Monstary Cradk rstant T
| Friege Lol of Sbscrbed Coptal, Equty, P... SelfobisrbedCaptallou... Monetary Cradk Camation T
| i Zale of Sbacrbed Caplal, thar Re... SeSubicrbedCaptalinbe... Monelary Cradt Cariticn T
i Subrgoribed Capital SbrorbedCapital Perstary et Trcitard T
| P Sibrsoribed Caplal [edosunss SbgorbedCaptalltdeaures Sing Do ation T
| #rean el Fscsd Tl At e B, dernodisosdsnd il | Mnnaksns awsbion T

L4

Table 2 Find and Show Options

Option Description

Filter Filters the element list based on the selected criteria. It shows only the elements that meet the criteria. Search can
then be applied to the filtered results.

Search Searches incrementally through the element list to find the selected criteria. It shows all elements in the list. Each click
of the Search button moves the cursor to the next element that meets the criteria.

Any part of field | Selects an element if it contains the specified text in any part of its label. For example, specifying “Cash” selects any
element with “Cash” somewhere in the label, including “Cash”, “Cash and Cash Equivalents”, or “Cash and Marketable
Securities”.

Start of Field Selects an element if it contains specified text at the beginning of the label. For example, specifying “Cash” selects

any element beginning with the word “Cash”, including “Cash”, “Cash and Cash Equivalents”, or “Cash and Marketable
Securities”. Note that using this option, “Balance of Cash” is not selected.

Compare Labels

Determines whether the label field participates in the action currently selected (language and label role).

Compare Names

Determines whether the name field participates in the action.

Fuzzy match

Attempts to match terms that are similar to the text specified, or follow a specified pattern.
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Searching Using Criteria

[ lrs-gp (Presend sk i) ] x.

4] Extified Link (Balate Sheet, (ladollind Format) A
o Extended Link (Balarwe Sheet, Order of Lipuadey Formal)
] Exterid Link (Balange Sheet, Met Asssts Format)
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) Exhered Link (Cash Flows, nclirect Methed)
#) Exhended Link (Sabemant of Changes in Equiy)
= [Exheried Link (Bt oamiing Poloes)
= At onaniiesg Poleour {Presend sbian]
Crweral Corsider st (Present slion)
) (Enkity B orsastion
=1 {Going Concern Information
Statement Aboit Doubt Upen Entity's Ability b0 Continus &5 Going Condem
u| Statement thal Financial Stabaents harve ot Been Prepansd on Going Conosim Bacs afd Reasons Wy
= [Presentation of Franasl Salerments

"

€ o, ¥
T
8 = i semants | [ubseribes Captal Courk: 400
| Profic [Labed [ turve [cataType |Batwce [ PoricdTypn [ho
Frean Cancwllation of Subscrbed Caplal, | CanelstionSbeorbedCa,.,  Monsbyy [ Cawstion T
e ity Pius Mincrity Inberest and Sz, [autyPeMnortyinierest..,  Monstary Cracit Tretant T
g Sale of Subacrbad Capltal, Equity, P...  SalfuburbedCaptalfqut...  Monstary Cradk Curation T
g ol of Subacribed Capltal, Othar Re...  SefubicrbedCaptalinhe...  Morelary Cradk Churibicn T
i Subsgeribed Capital SubrerbedCapital Perslary Crade Frctard T
g Subseribed Capdtal [edecunss SubderbedCaptallcdecures Sing Curation T
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i >

Search criteria are entered into the search field. The count displays the count of all taxonomy
concepts or the count of the filtered list of concepts. XBRL Taxonomy Designer supports these

search codes designed to assist with large queries (see Table 3 on page 20).

Table 3 Supported Search Codes

Search Operand Description Example

+ Results must include this term + Cash + Total
- Result must exclude the term +Cash - Total
Search specifically for a string “Cash Total”

Using Editing Commands

In the relationship views, you can add, remove, and change taxonomy relationships. You can
also edit the schema and tuple definitions using the Cut, Copy, Delete, Remove, and Paste menu

options.

See Table 4, “Cut, Copy, Delete, Remove, and Paste Actions and Results,” on page 21.

Delete »
Cuk k
Copy »

Every cutand paste operation that includes the term element in the menu item affects the schema,
and relationship. If the operation involves a concept within a tuple, then this operation also

changes the tuple declaration.
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+|- Extended Link (Balance 2
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+ Extended Link {Type En I
Extended Lirk (Default L P Temciste...
I
ﬁ i I.ﬁldﬁrm ' Count:
Prefic [Label & Expand [osaType | Ba
fre-gp P e baTr... Monetary Deb
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Every cut and paste operation that includes the term Relationship in the menu item, affects only
arcs (relationship links) and not the schema declaration of the concept.

= Present aticon Yiew

= Exkended Link (Balaroe Sheet, Classified Format)

= Fresentakion)

View

Edit Labed

QtrkE

+ Extended Link (Balance She.  a4d chid ChrkeN

+ Exbended Link (Balance She fid Sibling Chrkel

+ Extended Link (Income Stat

+ Extended Link (Income Stat £

+ Extended Link (Cash Flows,  Delets 4

+ Exkended Link (Cash Flows, b

* Extended ik (Satemer. o TS cinort i

* Extended Link (Accounting | Copry v

+ Extended Link (Explanatory | Sublres ]

# ExtendedLink (Classes) | Paste ey

# Extended Link (Cumentfbor,  Peste Special...

# Fetercled | ink (MetGroes B senice-Alias

Paste Template...
E,..g. = |nlda-mmt; Courk: 3,
Prefix [ Label & " | Tostatype | Balarx
Expand [Swing T
ifrs-go Assets Disdosures  Collapse ... String
ifra-gp Aasets Dipasad o Refresh ]
f_riw Assets for Primary Iricinetary Cbat
Table 4 Cut, Copy, Delete, Remove, and Paste Actions and Results
Situation Action Result

Concept with three label roles:
standard, verbose and custom

Copy element from the tree view and
paste into a taxonomy.

Message is displayed in the message window indicating that

the custom label was created in the taxonomy.

Concept with documentation

Copy element from the tree view and
paste into a taxonomy.

Element is copied to a taxonomy with the documentation
intact.

Using Editing Commands
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Situation

Action

Result

Concept with reference part

Copy element from the tree view and
paste into a taxonomy.

If the reference part is not in the taxonomy, a warning message
is displayed. To solve the problem, define or remove the data
in the reference part before copying the data.

Concept with AppIinfoXML

Copy element from the tree view and
paste into a taxonomy.

Element copies with a name space prefix. AppInfoXML is also
copied.

Concept with custom data type

Copy element from the tree view and
paste into a taxonomy.

Warning message is displayed in the message collection
window if the taxonomy does not contain the custom data type.
The message indicates that a data type was created, but not
with the same name as in the original taxonomy.

Concept with formula that refers
to a different concept in original
taxonomy

Copy element from the tree view and
paste into a taxonomy.

Error message is displayed indicating that there is a missing
element in the taxonomy.

Concept with a child and three
label roles-standard, verbose
and custom

Copy parent element with a child from
the tree view and paste into a
taxonomy.

Element is copied and labeled. This is a valid action.

Concept with a child and three
label roles-standard, verbose
and custom

Copy parent element relationship with
a child from the tree view and paste
into a taxonomy.

Element is copied with relationship intact. The child element
is copied also. This is a valid action.

Concept with a child that has
custom label role

Copy parent element with a child from
the tree view and paste into a
taxonomy.

Parent and child are copied. The child's custom label role
changes to the URI.

Concept with a custom
reference part and a child
element

Copy parent element with a child from
the tree view and paste into a
taxonomy.

If ReferencePartDefinition does not contain a value, then
concept is copied without the ReferencePartDefinition. If it
contains a value, the action is invalid and an error message is
displayed.

Concept with a child that has a
custom Reference Part

Copy parent element relationship with
a child from the tree view and paste
into a taxonomy.

If ReferencePartDefinition does not contain a value, the
concept is copied without the ReferencePartDefinition. If it
contains a value, the action is invalid and an error message is
displayed.

Concept with documentation
and a child element

Copy element that has a child element
from the tree view and paste into a
taxonomy.

Element is copied to the taxonomy with the documentation.

Concept with a child that has
documentation

Copy element relationship that has a
child element from the tree view and
paste into a taxonomy.

Element is copied to a taxonomy with the documentation.

Concept with a child that has a
custom data type.

Copy element with a child element
from the tree view and paste it into a
taxonomy.

A message is displayed in the message collection window
indicating that the taxonomy does not contain the custom data
type, and that a data type was created using a different name.

Base concept with child element
from referenced taxonomy.

Copy element into a taxonomy.

Element is copied into a taxonomy.

Base concept with child element
from referenced taxonomy.

Copy element with a relationship and
child elements.

The element, its relationship, and the child elements are
copied and the namespace prefix changes to the taxonomy
name.

22  Using XBRL Taxonomy Designer



Situation

Action Result

Base concept with child element | Copy element with the child element | A message is displayed in the message collection window

from referenced taxonomy. The | and the child element's relationship indicating that the taxonomy does not contain the custom data

child element has a reference that includes a reference part type, and that a data type was created using a different name.
part definition. definition.

Elements with a relationship that | Paste relationship into a taxonomy Although this is a valid operation, a message is displayed
does not exist in another that does not contain the element indicating that the element does not exist in a taxonomy.
taxonomy. relationship.

About Taxonomy Coloring

For every concept displayed in the tree view, the schema color determines the concept color. In
the example below, this color schema is used:

e Concepts from an extension taxonomy is displayed in black

e A base or referenced taxonomy is displayed in blue

To change the color settings, select Tools, then Options, and then Taxonomy Coloring. See
“Using the Referenced Taxonomy Collection Editor” on page 58.

= Presentation View
= Extended Link {Zlasses)
—I- Balance Sheet (Presentation)
= Assets (Presentation)

+

O 0 O O O ) O O o O O O O O

Classes of Property, Plant and Equipment, Met (Presentation)
Classes of Property, Plant and Equipment, Gross (Presentation)
Classes of Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment, Property, Plant and Equipment {Presentation)
Classes of Intangible Assets, ket {Presentation)
Classes of Intangible Assets, Gross (Presentation)
Classes of Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment, Intangible Assets (Presentation)
Classes of Inventories (Presentation)
Classes of Hedging Instruments [Asset] (Presentation)
Classes of Trade and Other Receivables, Met (Presentation)
Classes of Trade and Other Receivables, Gross (Presentation)
Classes of Allowances for Trade and Other Receivables (Presentation)
Zurrent and Mon Current Portion of Prepayments {Presentation)
Classes of Cash and Cash Equivalents {Presentation)
Classes of Other Assets (Presentation)
Additional - Company Extension Assets
COkher company assets

+|- Liabilities and Equity {Presentation)
+I- Income Stakement {Presentation)
+- Extended Link (Balance Sheet, Classified Formak)
+- Extended Link (Balance Sheet, Order of Liquidity Formak)

1. Fuwbarndad linl fRalancra Shaak Mak ficcabe Earrnakh

About Taxonomy Coloring
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Using Instance Coloring

When reporting facts while building an instance document, it can be difficult to determine which
facts are grouped together by a tuple and which facts are reported within tuples. Using instance
coloring to indicate fact levels helps identify fact groupings.

You can also use color to indicate grouping control, helping to navigate an instance document
more effectively. You can also change the instance grid color to adapt to different media such
as projectors, or laptop LCD screens.

Sequence Element Context Lindk. Walue

1 |T_| ci:Director % {tuple) Ho Ching
11 | ciiName Conke:dt-String Ha Chirg
1.z | ciiSalary Conkext-2003 Units-Monetary a
1.3 ci:Bonus Conte:xt-2003 Uinits-Monetary o
1.4 | | ci:DirectorFees Conkexdt=2003 Uréts-Monetary BO000
1.5 L ciiFairysiusOptionsGranted Context-2003 Uniks-Monetary o
| 345 ckDirector {buple) Boon Swan Fo
2.1 | ci:fame Conkexdt=Skring Boon Swan Fo
2.2 | ci:Salary Context-2003 Urits-Monetary 879633
2.3 | citBonus Conkexdt-2003 Units-Monetary 1213486
24 | ciiDirectorFees Context-2003 Urits-Monetary ]
26 L ciiP airvabueOptionsisr anted Conkest-2003 Urdts-Monetary S50000

3F cizDirector {tuple) Tan Guong Ching

4= ci:Director {tupls) Ng Kee Chos
3

In the example above, the tuple is colored in one color, and the tuple facts contained within are
displayed in a different color. The grouping control on the side of the grid control assists you in
expanding and collapsing tuple facts.

Synchronizing Instances

To assist users navigating an instance or editing a taxonomy within an instance, select a fact in
the instance tree view or instance grid and it is synchronized with the tree view property display.

If the instance window does not synchronize with the taxonomy window, ensure that the correct
view is selected (Presentation, Calculation, Definition), and that Sync to Panes is set for the
correct view.
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Enabling Editing
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Type Item
Elemertame ciDisposalsFurnitureFodu
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= Exterded Link {Dafault Link)
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+ Land and Buldings (Presentaton)
=i Furribure and Fistures {Presentstion)

£
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= Furniture and Fictures, Changes (Present
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Total Change, Furniture and Fidtures
Furndture and Fixtures, Ending Balance

+ Char (Presankation)

! Tokal Property, Plart and Equipment (Present:

iZ
@ Rar ||

VIEW: FRES

INS: PRES

If you open locked or restricted taxonomies or instance documents, XBRL Taxonomy Designer
prevents the application from modifying them.

Utility Informaktion

ReadOnly True
CheckedOut |False
Encoding futf-8
Wi :‘:E;‘tegr'-dedﬂ;-pinr'c False

MestingDepth 0

» To enable a taxonomy or instance document for editing:

1  Select Open.
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2 Select Enable Edting.

Printing Instance Documents

The print functionality provided helps debug instance documents as you create them. A key
print function is the ability to provide an audit trail of source information imported under
mapping control.

The first time in any session that you select Page Setup, Print, or Print Preview, Windows
management functions search for a printer. It is not possible to use these options unless a printer
driver is installed and usable.

Note: A newly installed system with no printer or a laptop computer with a networked printer
operated from an airplane cannot use the print options. To solve the laptop problem,
install a phantom local printer on the laptop local printer port.

Configuring Color Options

» To change the instance coloring:
1  Select Tools, and then Options.

2  Double-click InstanceColors.
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4 Alter the sequence in the Properties page, and then click OK.

About Native Document Format Files

Whenever a taxonomy is saved, XBRL Taxonomy Designer saves it in both native document
format and the document's XBRL format.

The native document format is an XML format that contains taxonomy information for a DTS.
The file has _native.xml appended to the file name and is saved in the same directory as the
taxonomy .xsd file. For example, a file named MyTaxonomy_native.xml exists in the same
subdirectory as MyTaxonomy . xsd.

The native document file contains information used within the application that is not stored in
XBRL files. The native document saves application and metadata settings that are lost when
saving taxonomies to XBRL. This file also aggregates the base edited taxonomy with referenced
taxonomies.

The XBRL specification does not include the types of information stored in the native document
file. For example, notes, taxonomy-specific metadata such as data types, roles, arc roles; and
other options specific to the taxonomy are saved in this file.
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About Taxonomies

An XBRL taxonomy is a collection of elements, linkbases, role definitions, reference part
definitions, and data type definitions. Linkbases contain extended links and, depending on
linkbase type relationships, labels, formulas, or references.

e Relation-type links include presentation, calculation, and definition. Definition relations
are further specified by several role types, such as general-special and essence-alias.

e There are three kinds of documentation-type links: labels, references, and formulas.

e The collection of all taxonomies and linkbases is called a DTS. XBRL allows discovery by
encounter of an undeclared reference, such as by relationship end, to a taxonomy not
identified by importing reference.

An XBRL taxonomy incorporates referenced taxonomies, which contain all taxonomy parts, as
well as reference XML schemas (for example, type definitions and other definitions). The
referencing user of a standard taxonomy cannot edit standard referenced taxonomies, but can
prohibit the traversal of relationship-type links created in those taxonomies and override labels
and references.
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When you create a group of taxonomies, you can edit them all. You also can modify the
referenced taxonomies directly if you create the referencing taxonomies.

Using Extended Links

A taxonomy is a collection of extended links that contains arcs (relationships) between elements
or a resource . Each relationship view has one or more extended links. These extended links
contain relationships between elements. Extended links are independent networks of
relationships.

Taxonomy creators can create Extended Link Roles that help describe and organize their
extended links.

Differentiating Between Elements and Links

The Relationships View pane shows a tree view of the links or relationships between elements.
The Elements List pane shows elements in a dictionary style.

You can add, delete, copy or move:

e FElements

e Relationships

e Elements and their child elements

e Relationships and their child relationships

About Multiple Taxonomy DTS

A loaded taxonomy may reference other taxonomies explicitly through import constructs in
its .xsd file, or implicitly by finding references to roles, linkbase arcs, or reference part
definitions. Referenced taxonomies are loaded as identified and discovered and form a DTS.
The DTS is represented as a tree. You can view and edit the tree as the Referenced Taxonomies
Collection of the opened (base) taxonomy.

Taxonomies other than the open taxonomy may be read-only (for example, when you use
standard taxonomies through an extension taxonomy). You can edit these taxonomies if you
own the referenced taxonomies. You can specify whether the Open Taxonomy window and the
referenced taxonomy (after loading its DTS tree) can be edited or are read-only.

About Tuples

A tuple is a structure of items in an instance document. It is defined in XBRL 2.1 as complex
data types (definition links in XBRL 2.0). For XBRL 2.1, one XML schema element is saved in
the taxonomy .xsd file specifying the tuple structure. Tuples can contain items or other tuples,
and can be nested to any depth required.
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V2 tuples (they do not exist in V1) are usually defined in the definition linkbase. However, many
V2 taxonomies do not provide such definition links, and use presentation links to identify tuple
item collections. The taxonomy loader recognizes definition or presentation links from tuple-
to-tuple items as a tuple structure.

The conversion process maintains the tuple composition as loaded by the V2 taxonomy loader,
only changing the schema compositional element to all or sequence as indicated.

Using the Taxonomy Editor

These topics describe the Taxonomy Editor components:
e “Taxonomy Document Editor Menu Options” on page 31
e “Taxonomy Editor Toolbar Buttons” on page 35

e “Taxonomy Editor Messages Pane” on page 36

Taxonomy Document Editor Menu Options

The menu options and toolbars change between the instance document and the taxonomy. Select
the taxonomy of the instance document controls (for example, Taxonomy Relationship View
or Taxonomy Elements List) to view the taxonomy editing toolbar and menus. Select any
instance control (for example, Instance Relationship View, Instance Fact Values Grid, Instance
Dockable Controls or Property Grids) to view the instance editing menu and toolbar.

Table 5 Taxonomy Editor File Menu Options

Taxonomy Editor File

Menu Options Descriptions

New Creates an instance document or taxonomy.

Open Opens a taxonomy or instance document.

Close Closes an open taxonomy or instance document.

Save Saves the selected taxonomy.

Save as File Saves the selected taxonomy to the location you specify.
Save to Server Saves the selected taxonomy to the Web location you specify.

Load reference taxonomy | Loads a referenced taxonomy into the instance document's namespaces collection.

Import Imports a taxonomy or portion of a taxonomy from Microsoft Excel, Access, OLE DB Provider databases,
Microsoft Word, CSV files, or XML.

Export Exports a taxonomy or portion of a taxonomy to Microsoft Excel, Access, OLE DB Provider databases, CSV
files, or XML.
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Taxonomy Editor File

Menu Options

Descriptions

Page Setup

Displays the page setup window for specifying print options.

Print

Enables you to print a report of instance document data, contexts, and the source data mapping audit trail.

Print Preview

Displays a report of instance document data, contexts, and the source data mapping audit trail for you to
check before printing,.

Exit

Exits XBRL Taxonomy Designer.

Table 6 Taxonomy Editor Edit Menu Options

Taxonomy
Editor Edit
Menu Options

Descriptions

Undo Reverses one or more changes made to the taxonomy. After exiting XBRL Taxonomy Designer, Undo is not available.
However, if the log file option is enabled, you can manually reverse changes using the logged steps.

Edit Label Edits the label of the taxonomy element using the current relationship tree view. Note that you can also edit the element
by selecting and clicking the element again (do not double-click because this expands or collapses the tree) from
within the relationship tree view.

Add Child Adds an element as a child of the current relationship view selection.

See “Adding

Child Elements”

on page 78.

Add Sibling Adds an element as a sibling of the current relationship view selection.

“Adding Sibling Elements” on page 79

Remove Removes an element with no parent or child relationships from its immediate parent extended link of the relationship
tree view. This element is not deleted, or removed from the element list view or from any other extended link. Removed
elements are displayed in gray.

Delete Select Delete and then Element to delete the currently selected element.

Select Delete, and then Relationship to delete the relationship of the currently selected element. The element remains
in the elements list. If no other relationships in this extended link exists, the element becomes a root element to the
current extended link.

Select Delete and then Sub tree to delete elements and relationships of the subtree.

Select Delete, then Sub tree, and then Relationships to delete the relationships of the selected subtree. The elements
and all other relationships of elements in the subtree remain.

Cut Removes elements, relationships, subtree elements and subtree relationships, and makes them available to paste in
a different location from the clipboard. You can paste a cut object using the clipboard to Automator’s taxonomy editor
or other tools compatible with clipboard-contained XBRL.

Copy Copies elements, relationships, subtree elements and subtree relationships, and makes them available to paste in a

different location from the clipboard. You can paste a copied object using the clipboard to Automator’s taxonomy editor
or other tools compatible with clipboard-contained XBRL.
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Taxonomy
Editor Edit
Menu Options

Descriptions

Paste

Adds previously cut or copied elements, relationships, or subtrees of elements and relationships at the selected position
in the taxonomy tree. The shape of cursor at emplacement determines whether the paste results are as child, sibling
before, or sibling after the emplacement.

If the names of pasted objects are the same as the names of similar objects in the receiving taxonomy, the pasted
elements' names are appended with Copy, Copy2, etc., to prevent duplicate names.

Paste Special

Provides explicit control of pasting into multiple relationship tree views, including choice of language and role of labels
controlled, and other options discussed.

Paste Essence-
Alias Link

For version 2.0 taxonomies, pastes a same-as (Essence-Alias definition link) between the element selected, using
copy, that becomes the essence part of the relationship, and the paste which becomes the alias side of the relationship.
For version 2.1, the definition tree view, essence-alias role, is used instead.

Paste Template

Displays the Patterns Taxonomy dialog box. The template you select is inserted as a child of the current tree view
extended link or element. This option helps build complex taxonomy sections. The templates act as a guide to creating
types of taxonomy components.

Table 7 Taxonomy Editor View Menu Options

Taxonomy Editor View

Menu Options

Descriptions

Presentation Displays Presentation links relationships in the tree view.

Calculation Displays Calculation links relationships in the tree view.

Definition Displays in the tree view Definition links relationships for the arc role (relation type) indicated in the toolbar
(general-special, essence-alias, etc.).

Labels Displays labels of the default language and default label role in the taxonomy tree view, instead of element

names.

Element Names

Displays element names in the taxonomy tree view rather than the label for the selected language and label
role.

Namespace Prefixes Prepends the namespace prefix before the label or tree view element name.

Prohibited Relationships | Displays prohibited links in the tree view, which are displayed in strikethrough font.

Show Displays the Elements List pane, changes the orientation of window panes and controls, and enables you to
add Relationships View panes.

Expand Expands elements of the selected subtree.

Collapse Collapses elements of the selected subtree.

Refresh Refreshes the Relationships tree view display.
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Table 8 Taxonomy Editor Tools Menu Options

Taxonomy Editor Tools
Menu Options

Descriptions

Validate Taxonomy

Validate the current taxonomy, for XML or XBRL checks, and to specify saving a report file.

See “Validating Taxonomies” on page 51

Renaming Wizard

Displays the element renaming wizard to rename elements of a taxonomy.

Flatten Taxonomy

Elements, labels, references, formulas, and relationships of referenced taxonomies are copied into the base
taxonomy, and the referenced taxonomies are removed from the top taxonomy referenced taxonomies collection.
(At this time, Flatten does not copy referenced custom data types, reference part definitions, or other taxonomy
metadata.)

Rebuild Tuple For a selected tuple element, this option uses the presentation subtree of relationships to rebuild a tuple
Definition definition (for example, the complex type structure of the tuple content items). This structure can be viewed
graphically from the element property grid, Tuple Definition property.
XBRL Mapper Initiates the XBRL mapper setup dialog, and subsequent mapping control.
See “XBRL Mapper” on page 170.
Options Opens the Options form where you can set XBRL Taxonomy Designer options.

Element Label Spell
Checker (Plug-In)

Spell checks specified labels by language and role. Dictionaries are derived from http://lingucomponent.
openoffice.org/spell_dic.html dictionaries and are user-modifiable. (For more on this, see the Plug-In Tools
chapter in this guide.)

Element Label
Renamer (Plug-In)

This plug-in replaces substrings of characters in selected taxonomy labels. Selected elements, subtrees, or all
taxonomy labels substrings can be replaced. Options are available to change the element name when the default
role/language label is changed.

Linkbase Tidier (Plug-
In)

This plug-in cleans up linkbases. Current options are to clear titles and reorder.

See “Linkbase Tidier” on page 98.

XBRLV2 To V2.1
Taxonomy Converter
(Plug-In)

Converts V2 taxonomies to V2.1 taxonomies, allowing specified options for linkbase and element changes for
V2.1. Can also be applied to taxonomies in V2.1 format that require the same conversion actions.

See “V2 to V2.1 Conversion” on page 98.

Table 9 Taxonomy Editor Windows Menu Options

Taxonomy Editor Windows

Menu Options

Descriptions

Show All Dockable Controls

Shows all hidden dockable controls including docked controls displayed on the right side of the XBRL
Taxonomy Designer window, and free-floating controls (for example, those users drag to a second
monitor).

Hide All Dockable Controls

Hides all dockable controls.

Taxonomy Properties

Enables you to select the taxonomy properties form to display for all taxonomies loaded into the
application.

View Taxonomy Tab

Enables you to navigate to the tabbed window of a taxonomy or instance document. Select a numbered
tab to which to navigate.
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Table 10 Taxonomy Editor Help Menu Options

Taxonomy Editor Help Menu Options | Descriptions

Contents Select this option or press F1 to access XBRL Taxonomy Designer online help.
License agreement Displays the XBRL Taxonomy Designer End-User License Agreement (EULA).
About Displays the product and license information for XBRL Taxonomy Designer.

Taxonomy Editor Toolbar Buttons

This section explains the Taxonomy Editor toolbar.

O~ - g g= T ¥ <5 -

Table 11 Taxonomy Editor Toolbar Buttons

Button Description
Creates a new file
[ -
,, Opens a file
= - "
h Saves a file
@ Closes a file
B Adds a sibling
(=]
= Adds a child
=
= Moves an element up in the editable taxonomies
E’ Moves an element down in the editable taxonomies
3 Same functionality as selecting Edit, and then Delete.
B Undoes the last actions. You can specify how actions to undo. Entries in the undo list are also saved in the log file if the option
= is enabled (select Tools, and then Options).

Using the Taxonomy Editor 35



Taxonomy Editor Messages Pane

The Messages List pane displays error messages, warnings, and other informational messages
generated when loading and validating a taxonomy, or importing information. Double-click a
message to navigate to the element associated with the message.

tne [ Typs [ Message D [ Message ~
1 Infr Instance TeskData-AcpountingPobckes was laded, 3L, XBRL and taxonomsy vabdated with erors

Fa bl dFinMcErr Taonony (Frs-op) loadineg completed, no eroers o l.u.wrlh:.-:.

E] Info ol FindicErr Referenced Taxoromy (ref) loading completed, no errors of weemings.

4 Infa Validsting Taxorsesy (ifrs-gp)...

5 Info ¥ML schema-level validation of Laconomy ref-2003-12-31 5d suoceaded

[ Infon XML schesma-el validation of taxonomy frs-gp:2004-06-15, x5d succesded

7 Infor Walidlating brébase: Frs-gp-2004-06-15-label,xml

] Info ¥ML-level valdation of bnkbase Fre-gp-2004-06-15-label. ol sucoeeded

] Info Validsting nkbase frs-gp-2004-06-15-reference. xml W
4 *

As a process proceeds, you can quit if errors occur, and then allow the application to correct the
errors, or correct them manually.

Opening a Taxonomy

A taxonomy can be opened from a:
e local file system

e local or remote directory listing
e Web-based XBRL Taxonomy

e remote server location

e a manifest

Open an XBRL Taxonomy from the Local File System

» To open a taxonomy from your local system using the XBRL Taxonomy Designer main
screen:

1  Select File, then Open, and then Taxonomy.
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There are several methods of loading taxonomies, and the file types listed within the browse
dialog. Each file type discovers the taxonomy using a different method.

Table 12 Taxonomy File Types

File Type Discovery Result

XBRL Taxonomy (.xsd) Selects an XBRL .xsd schema

Native file format (_native.xml) | Opens the taxonomy native file format file

XBRL Linkbase (.xm1) Opens the linkbase and discovers the taxonomy

DTS Manifest (.xmf) Opens the manifest and discovers the taxonomy

Three icons at the top right of the window open taxonomies. At the bottom of the window
several load taxonomy options are displayed.

=515

° Browse to any accessible location on your computer and select a taxonomy file.

° Access taxonomies stored in a Taxonomy Directory on a user-defined Web
location.

=] . j
° Access taxonomies stored in a local Taxonomy Directory.

Click to select Select an XBRL Taxonomy, and then navigate to a taxonomy file.

2
3 Browse to the taxonomy.
[

Select an XBRL Taxonomy

Look ir: I . ihe-gp-2004-0015 3
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4 Double-click the .xsd taxonomy file, and then click Open.

Linkbase and Referenced Taxonomy information for the taxonomy is displayed in the Open
Taxonomy window.
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5 Select the appropriate check box to complete XML validation.
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I~ ML vabdate [~ FRTA vabdate ¥ Ere: [T Warnings ™ Foonload.
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Status

Erar:

6  Select load options, and then click OK to load the selected taxonomy.
See “Using Taxonomy Load Options” on page 43.

The Taxonomy Editor screen is displayed with the selected taxonomy loaded and ready for
editing.
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Opening an XBRL Taxonomy from a Local or Remote Directory Listing

Local and Remote directory lists enable you to define a set of common files you open regularly.
Selecting a file from these lists, accesses the selected file without typing the Web URL or
navigating to the directory.

The local directory XML file is installed in this location:

Oracle\Disclosure Management\XBRL Taxonomy Designer\templates

This is a sample entry:

<TaxonomyDirectoryEntry>
<ID>20</ID>
<NamespaceIdentifier>http://www.Oracle.com/Patterns/BasicCalculation</
NamespaceIdentifier>
<Category>Financial Pattern Samples</Category>
<Title>Basic Calculation</Title>
<PreferredNamespacePrefix>ci</PreferredNamespacePrefix>
<Description>Very basic calculation.</Description>
<DateReleased>2005-02-01</DateReleased>
<XBRLVersion>XBRL 2.1l</XBRLVersion>
<Location>BasicCalculation.xsd</Location>
<Status>Draft</Status>
<SortOrder>20</SortOrder>
<PrintOut>None</PrintOut>
<Contact>someone@someemail .net</Contact>
<HasLabels>True</HasLabels>
<HasPresentation>True</HasPresentation>
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<HasCalculation>True</HasCalculation>
<HasDefinition>False</HasDefinition>
</TaxonomyDirectoryEntry>

» To open the taxonomy:

1 Configure the directoryxiL file.

2  Select File, then Open, then Taxonomy, and then select the taxonomy.

Opening a Web-based XBRL Taxonomy

» To open a Web-based taxonomy:
1  Select File, then Open, and then Taxonomy.
2  Enter the taxonomy's Web address in the Taxonomy schema field.
For example:
http://xbrl.iasb.org/int/fr/ifrs/gp/2005-05-15/ifrs-gp-2005-05-15.xsd
3 Click Enter.
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Taxonomies opened from a Web-based location are cached automatically within the \cache

install directory. See “Caching XBRL Taxonomies” on page 51.

Select ﬂl to end the loading before it completes. Oracle recommends that you clear
your local cache after stopping the load operation because the file may have been partially loaded.
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If you open particular Web-based taxonomies regularly, you can create a Web-based directory
listing for them.

Opening an XBRL Taxonomy from a Remote Server Location

Taxonomy Management Server (TMS) users maintain taxonomies in a remote taxonomy
document repository.

» To open an XBRL taxonomy from a remote repository:

1 Select File, then Open, and then Taxonomy.
2
3
4

Select an XBRL Taxonomy

Select the remote server.
Select Server, and then log on to the TMS server.

Navigate to the repository folder, and then select the taxonomy to load.
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See “Creating DTS Manifest Files” on page 45.

5 Browse to and select the taxonomy.
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6  Select Open or open a version of the taxonomy.
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Opening an XBRL Taxonomy Using a Manifest

Manifest (. xmf) files contain an inventory of the schemas and linkbases included in a Taxonomy
DTS. Parsing the taxonomy to discover the DTS during loading can be time consuming with
larger taxonomies. Manifests shorten the discovery process because they includes the paths of
all files that are loaded. You can create manifests when you save taxonomies. By default, this
option is not eanbled.

» To open a manifest:

1  Select File, then Open, then Taxonomy, and then Manifest.
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2  Browse to the manifest.

See “Creating DTS Manifest Files” on page 45.
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Using Taxonomy Load Options

There are several Taxonomy load options in the Open Taxonomy window.

Open an XBRL taxonomy

Taxonomy schema [Local File Path, ‘Web Address, or Remole Served):

] =519

[~ Check fior native file foimat

Linkbases that are checked will be loaded, those fiefs] not found will be highlighted in red:
Rale | Linkbase Fie | Role Namespace Identilier | Full Path / Name

5

bl b

4 ¥
FReleranced laxonomies and schemas {those checked wil be loaded, fie{s) nat found will be highlighted in red}
Prefin | N e |dentifier | Fite 7 Path | Composition
4 >

T axonomy Validation: Sheowe Vabdation Messages: Fis Taxonaeny On Load:

I~ ML valbdste [~ FRTA validate F I Wamings [~ Freonload..,

| cancel |
Table 13 Taxonomy Load Options
Taxonomy Load
Options Description
Check for native Filters for taxonomies saved in the Oracle Hyperion Disclosure Management proprietary native format. See “About
Native Document Format Files” on page 28.

Fix on load XBRL Taxonomy Designer attempts to fix minor errors in the taxonomies (for example, duplicate arcs).
XML validate Validates the Instance Document during load.

Using the Taxonomy Editor
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Taxonomy Load
Options

Description

FRTA validate

Performs FRTA Validation of the Instance Document during load.

XBRL.org publishes Financial Reporting Taxonomies Architecture (FRTA) taxonomy design and implementation
guidelines. The FRTA document is available at: http://www.xbrl.org/TaxonomyGuidance/.

FRTA establishes rules and conventions that make taxonomies more usable and efficient. Financial reporting
taxonomies must comply with FRTA to obtain formal XBRL approval.

Show Messages:
Errors

Specifies the level of errors that are displayed in the messages dialog. Select this option to display nonfatal errors
in Instance or Taxonomy validation.

Show Messages:
Warnings

Specifies the level of warnings that are displayed in the messages dialog. Select this option to see nonfatal errors
in Instance or Taxonomy validation.

Enable Editing

Unlocks read only taxonomies. Set this option to a taxonomy extension (for example, the US-GAAP).

Adding and Removing References When Loading a Taxonomy

When you open a taxonomy you can add reference taxonomies.

>
1

To add or remove reference taxonomies:
Select File, then Open, and then Taxonomy.

Select the taxonomy.
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The reference taxonomies that were discovered with the selected schema are displayed.

3 Select the reference taxonomy schema.

Adding and Removing Linkbases When Loading a Taxonomy

After opening a taxonomy, you can add linkbase resource files (for example, a linkbase that
contains translated labels for the taxonomy).

» To add or remove linkbases:

1  Select File, then Open, and then Taxonomy.
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http://www.xbrl.org/TaxonomyGuidance/

2 Browse to and select the taxonomy.

3 Select and browse to the linkbase to add, and then select Open.
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4 Select the linkbase, and then select Open.
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Note the added linkbase is appended to the linkbase list.
See “Detached and Linked Linkbases” on page 141.

5 Select or clear the checkbox associated with each linkbase, as appropriate, or select el to
remove all linkbases.

Creating DTS Manifest Files

Manifest files maintain an inventory or record of all schemas, and linkbase versions that are part
of the DTS of the taxonomy.
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» To create a manifest (. xmf) file:
1  Select Tools, and then Options.

2  Select Save Manifest, and then True.

When you save the taxonomy, an additional file is saved with the extension .xmf.
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TaeomomyColors [Collection - 10)
InztarceCobos [Collection - 7]
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» To save an XBRL taxonomy and create a manifest:
1  Select File, then Open, and then Taxonomy.
2 Select from the server the taxonomy to load.
3 Select File, and then Save to Server.

An xF file is created.

» To open an XBRL taxonomy using the manifest file:

1  Select File, then Open, and then Taxonomy.
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2  Select the Manifest check box, or select DTS manifest from the file type list using Browse.
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3 Browse to the manifest (. xmf) file and select it to load the manifest and the DTS tree.
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Creating a Taxonomy

You can create a taxonomy that is not based on another one.

» To create a taxonomy from the Taxonomy Editor, select File, then New, and then

Taxonomy.

Using the taxonomy editor, you can add elements and relationships to this taxonomy (see

“Adding Child Elements” on page 78).
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Saving a Taxono

» To save a taxonomy:

1 Select File, and then Save.
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Save an XBRl. Taxonomy

Save in; |-:_=“.l Moviesales :J EF -
iy &t genre
5 5 i} hypercube
My Recent 8 movie_sales
Documents &} rating
?‘E s xbridi-2005

<& xbrldt-2005
Desklop el hyldka-2005

iy Documents

=

ty Computer

My Metwark File: name: r|'||:|'-.-'iE= zales ﬂ Save |
Places

Save as type: |><BF|L Taxonaormy [ xsd] _:] Cancel

In the File Name field, enter the taxonomy name.

In the Save In field, browse to the appropriate location.

Click Save.

o H W N

Select File, and then Close to close the taxonomy.

Saving a Taxonomy to a Server

» To save a taxonomy to a server:

1  Select File, and then Save To Server.

2 Enter the Server URI in the Server field.
3 Enter the User, Password, and Domain.
4

Click Log in.
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Save an XBRl Taxonomy |E”g|
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Documents &} rating
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©

iy Documents

&

ty Computer
My Metwark File: name: r|'||:|'-.-'iE' 3 _ﬂ Save I

Places
Save as type: ]XBHL Taxonaormy [ xsd] '] Cancel ]
|

5 Browse to the folder, and then click Save.

Printing Taxonomies

» To print taxonomies:
1 Select File, and then Print or Print Preview.

The Taxonomy Print Options window is displayed.
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The XBRL Taxonomy Designer Taxonomy Print Options window enables you to select
which reports, elements, notes, and other taxonomy aspects to print.

2 Select print and output options.
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3
4

To preview the information, click Print Preview.

Click Print.

Validating Taxonomies

Validating taxonomies ensures consistency with XBRL specifications and basic business rules.
For accounting taxonomies, basic accounting rules apply.

>
1

To validate taxonomies:

Select Tools, and then Validate Taxonomy.

XML Schema Validation, XBRL Validation, and FRTA Validation are selected by default.

You can change the settings.

Click Start.

When complete, the status and details of the validation are displayed in the Messages pane.

Caching XBRL Taxonomies

Loading XBRL taxonomies such as IFRS, US GAAP, or references to these taxonomies from an

HTTP location can take a significant amount of time due to connection speed or taxonomy size.

If you enter an HTTP address to an XBRL taxonomy, its respective schemas and linkbases are

cached locally. Cached taxonomies are loaded from your local cache of taxonomies rather than
from the Web.

>
1

To cache XBRL taxonomies;
Select File, then Open, and then Taxonomy.

Enter the HTTP address and press Return.

(Open an XBRL basconony
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Linkbases thal ace checked wil be laaded, those flafz) not found will be hghighted n ed
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» To load Web-based taxonomies using an alternative approach:

1  Select File, then Load, then Taxonomy, and then select the remote or Web-based location ;&J button.
2  Select the Web tab.

3 Enter the Web-based address, and then press Enter or select Open.
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The status of each file downloaded from the HTTP address is displayed in the application
status bar. The download can be cancelled at any stage.

[Opening fnkbase ifts-go-lab-2005-05-15.ami received 377 kB of 2.748 kB [51.3kBps) [INS: PRES VIEW: FRES
The default local cache directory is:

C:\Program Files\Oracle\Disclosure Management\XBRL Taxonomy Designer\cache

Caution!  If the download of the taxonomy is interrupted for any reason, the files may be
partially cached. Oracle recommends removing these cached files.

When you enter a Web address, the local cache is checked for a taxonomy file with the same
name, date and time. If a matching cached file exists, the cached file is loaded instead of the Web
file. If the cached file is older than the current Web file, the cached file is replaced with the Web
file. Delete the cache files to load the files from the Web location.

To preserve the full HTTP filename within the local cache, these conventions are used:
e "'changedto ;'

e '/'changedto'!'

e '?changedto '@

e " <>| changedto'~".

For example, suppose the Web-based file name is:
http://xbrl.iasb.org/int/fr/ifrs/gp/2005-05-15/ifrs-gp-2005-05-15.xsd
Using the conventions, the local cache file name is:

http; ! !'xbrl.iasb.org!int!fr!ifrs!gp!2004-11-15!ifrs-gp-2004-11-15.xsd

Taxonomies can also contain referenced taxonomies imported from a Web-based address. These
files are also cached.
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ifrz-ap
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Taxonomy

False

ifrz-gp

If you regularly load taxonomies from a Web location, you can create a Web-based directory
listing for them.

About the Properties Grid

This section includes information about:
e Using the Properties Grid
e the Properties Grid pane

e Using the Elements Properties Grid

Using the Properties Grid

You can edit taxonomy and element concept properties using the XBRL Taxonomy Designer
Professional Properties Grid.

The Properties Grid is a dockable pane located by default on the right side of the main screen.
Use the tabs at the bottom of the Properties Grid to switch between taxonomy and element
properties. See “Adding a Referenced Taxonomy Using the Properties Grid” on page 92 and
“Creating a Business Rule Using the Properties Grid” on page 232.

The Properties Grid Pane

You can edit the taxonomy and element concept properties using the Properties Grid pane of
the Taxonomy Editor screen.

Use the tabs at the bottom of the Properties Grid to select which properties are displayed—
taxonomy or element.

i E Taxonormy - Ci |@ Elernent - ci |

To view element properties, an element must be selected in the Relationships View tree or within
the Elements List.

Taxonomy properties are displayed for the opened base taxonomy. Element properties are
displayed for the selected object selected in the Relationships View tree or the Elements List.
Element properties for element concepts are those of the concept, and when an extended link is
selected, those of the extended link.

Property choices are displayed on a drop-down list.

About the Properties Grid
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Yersion 2.1

ReferencedTaxonamies

Linkbases Version 2
ReferencePartDefinitions | Yersion 1

b m VORI

Properties with a dialog entry display an ellipsis button _-I . Click the ellipsis button to display
the associated dialog (for example, a referenced taxonomies editor, a linkbases editor, or file
selector).

| PFeferencedTaxonomies  (Collection - empty)

Each property that is a collection or complex object has an editor. These are described in
“Collection Editors” on page 126.

Using the collection editor for the Referenced Taxonomies property, you can:

e Edit referenced taxonomies, reference parts definitions, auxiliary schemas, and import files
e Edit the status of the referenced taxonomies.

e Access referenced taxonomy properties, including collections and linkbases

e Change the status of referenced taxonomies to editable or read-only

The Linkbase collection editor organizes the taxonomy labels, references, formulas, and relations
into extended links, and allocates them to linkbases for storage in files or the .xsd file.

You can edit metadata collections for data types and role collections. Role collections include
label, reference, linkbase, extended link, arc, and formula roles. Schema properties specify
namespace and schema locations for XBRL and formula definitions.

In the Element Properties Grid, you can change the namespace prefix only for referenced
taxonomies that are editable. The name, balance type, period type, and nillable properties are
supplemented by collection editors for labels, references, documentation, and parent and child
relations.

Using the Element Properties Grid

The figure shows the Element Properties Grid.
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Table 14 Elements Properties Grid Fields

Property Description

Namespace Prefix | The namespace prefix of the taxonomy that contains this element. For example, “ci” as an abbreviation for USGAAP
Commercial and Industrial taxonomy.

If the DTS contains multiple editable taxonomies, then this property includes a drop-down list of editable taxonomies
to which this element can be moved. Moving an element to another taxonomy moves its labels, references, formulas,
and relationships to that taxonomy.

If there is only an editable taxonomy, this is a read only field. Using the referenced taxonomies (DTS) collection editor
tree view, you can change the edit status of any taxonomy in the DTS.

Name Element name (for example, CashAndCashEquivalents). See Auto-Naming of Elements, for information about
automatically assigning element names based on labels, see .

Although this property can be edited, if automatic naming options are active for the taxonomy of the element, any
changes to the default label of the element (for the taxonomy’s shown language and shown role) are reflected by
automatic name generation.

Labels Collection of the element's labels. For example, Cash and Cash Equivalents for the English label and the Standard
label role.

Selecting the associated ellipsis button activates the Labels collection editor (see “Collection Editors” on page
126).

You can also click the plus box to expand the labels collection in the property grid, and then edit or enter labels.
After entering a label’s text and choosing its role, to add a label, double-click the plus or minus expansion box of the
Add new property.
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Property

Description

Data Type

The selected element's data type (for example, Monetary). Changing the data type redisplays the property grid with
the new data type's properties.

Tuple Definition

The Tuple Definition property, which is displayed only for tuple elements. Click the ellipsis button to activate the Tuple
Definition collection editor (see “Collection Editors” on page 126).

Balance Type

A monetary element property that can be: Unspecified (blank), Debit, or Credit.

Period Type A required value for all V2.1 taxonomy elements except tuples. Its value can be Instant or Duration.

Nillable An optional attribute that you can assign to non-abstract elements. The default value for nillable is False. Change
the value to True to indicate that in instance documents, the element can have an attribute of nil="true” and no
content.

Documentation The selected element's documentation collection.

The behavior of this property (in terms of collection editor and expandable subproperties) matches that of the Labels
property.

For XBRL 2.0 and 1.0, each element’s documentation (one per element only) is the documentation supplement of
the taxonomy concept element included in the .xsd file.

For XBRL 2.1, each element can contain any number of documentation items, each a label with a role of
documentation (instead of label), and specified language and resource role. Roles that are identified as
documentation include documentation, guidance, and user-defined roles.

An XBRL 2.1 element can contain any number of documentation entries.

References Citations of standard and literature references for the taxonomy concept. An element can contain any number of
references. Each reference has multiple reference parts, based on the linkbase’s taxonomy reference parts collection.
The behavior of this property in terms of collection editor and expandable subproperties is similar to the Labels
property (see “Collection Editors” on page 126).

Formula Formula assigned to the selected taxonomy element. Note that the formula implementation is an extension to XBRL

2.1, and is one that the consortium is specifying. It is currently one entry, though it may be replaced with a formulas
collection in the future as the standard evolves (see “Collection Editors” on page 126).

Selected Parent

The element name of the selected element's parent.

Expands to list the editable properties of the relationship to the selected parent.

Substitution This property is defined for every element. By default, it must be an item or a tuple. It can also contain the value of
Group other elements that are derived from items or tuples.
An item is the default substitution group for a concept that is reported in an instance document with a value.
A tuple groups instance document items.
Parents Collection of relationships to parent elements assigned to the selected taxonomy element. You can display all
relationships, or only the relationships to the selected relationships' view relationships (see “Collection Editors” on
page 126).
Children Collection of relationships to child elements assigned to the selected taxonomy element. You can display all

relationships, or only the relationships to the selected relationships' view relationships (see “Collection Editors” on
page 126).
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Table 15 Elements Properties Grid Fields

Property Description

Flag Arbitrary flag you can assign to a taxonomy element. You can search on all flagged elements. When editing a
taxonomy, you can use flags to indicate, for example, that an element requires additional work.

Read Only Indicates whether the selected taxonomy element is read only or can be edited. This property is the same as the
taxonomy’s read-only setting, which can be changed using the Referenced Taxonomies (DTS) collection editor.

Date Last Indicates the date and time the element was last changed.

Changed

Element ID Shows the selected element's ID. You cannot change this property.

Appinfo XML Enables you to paste or read any XML fragment that is added to the AppInfo element as a taxonomy element child.

About Collection Editors

This section includes information about using the:

Labels Collection Editor

Referenced Taxonomy Collection Editor

Formulas Collection Editor

Documentation Collection Editor

Tuple Definition Collection Editor

Relations Collection Editor

Reference Part Definitions Collection Editor

Notes Collection Editor

Display Colors Collection Editor
XBRL Metadata Collection Editors

Data Types Collection Editors
Label Roles Collection Editor

Reference Roles Collection Editor

Linkbase Roles Collection Editor

Extended Linkbase Roles Collection Editor

Arc Roles Collection Editor

Language Codes Collection Editor

Word Substitution Collection Editor

Word Removal Collection Editor
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Using the Labels Collection Editor

An element can have labels associated with it. Labels can be grouped by language code or by

label role.

For XBRL Version 2.1, labels and documentation are stored in, and loaded from, label linkbases.
However the Labels collection editor only displays roles with type set to label. Labels with type
set to documentation are displayed in the documentation collections.
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Table 16 Labels Collection Editor Fields

Column Description
Label Value The element's label value, which is also displayed in the text box below or to the right of the data grid.
Role Assigned label role, which is based on the collection of label roles available within this taxonomy (for example, Standard

or Verbose).

Language Code

Language code assigned to this label, based on the list of language codes available to this taxonomy (for example,
“en” for English).

Prefix The label taxonomy prefix, which is not the same as the taxonomy of the element being labeled. This field is only
displayed when the DTS has multiple taxonomies.

Title Optional title that you can assign to a label.

Entry text box A text box for entering label names that are longer than the space provided in the table cell version of the label.

Using the Referenced Taxonomy Collection Editor

The Referenced Taxonomies collection editor shows the base taxonomy’s DTS in a tree view.
Use this editor to view and edit the taxonomy properties form of each referenced taxonomy.
When the Taxonomy Properties Grid displays an ellipsis button for this editor, select the ellipsis
button to activate the editor.
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Right-click the taxonomies within the tree view to display the shortcut menu (see Table 17,

“Shortcut Menu Options ,” on page 59).

Table 17  Shortcut Menu Options

Menu

Option Description

Save Saves the selected referenced taxonomy. This option is useful for nested referenced taxonomies.

Save as Saves the referenced taxonomy's . xsd file, using the name you enter. This option is useful for nested referenced
taxonomies. This option also renames the linkbases of the selected referenced taxonomy that contain the taxonomy name
within the linkbase name.

Set Read Change the taxonomy from read only to editable, or editable to read-only. Note that the . xsd file or save-as location must

Only / have local disk drive write permission to change the setting. If a taxonomy is set to editable, relationship tree view editing

Enable changes are also made in the taxonomy's relationship linkbases, If a taxonomy is set to read-only, relationship changes

Editing to the referenced taxonomy insert prohibit arcs in the base taxonomy.

Add For referenced taxonomies, adds a referenced taxonomy to the selected taxonomy on the DTS tree. The Open Taxonomy
dialog is displayed. This dialog includes a check box for enabling editing of the added subreferenced taxonomy. This check
box is not available when you open the base taxonomy.

For reference parts definitions, adds a taxonomy containing only reference part definitions to the selected taxonomy. The
reference part definitions are merged into the collection of the selected taxonomy, and can be used in the selected
taxonomy’s reference linkbase.

For referenced schemas, adds a non-XBRL .xsd file as an imported schema of the selected taxonomy.

Remove Removes the selected taxonomy from the DTS.

Do not remove taxonomies that have relationships with other DTS taxonomies’ elements (tuples, reference parts, for
example), or their linkbases (label, formula, reference, or relationships).

The Referenced Taxonomies collection editor includes a properties grid. After selecting the base
taxonomy in the DTS tree, the properties grid displays the taxonomy properties as they are

displayed in the Taxonomy Editor. After a referenced taxonomy is selected in the DTS tree, the
properties grid displays the referenced taxonomy's properties, including a property that controls
the display of the complete set of the referenced taxonomy properties.
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Table 18 Referenced Taxonomies Properties Displayed in the DTS Tree

Property Description

Namespace The namespace prefix of the referenced taxonomy within the <schema> (xmins of the referencing taxonomy). Often,
Prefix but not necessarily, this is the same prefix as that of the referenced taxonomy.

Namespace The namespace identifier that uniquely identifies the referenced taxonomy. Always the same as that of the referenced
Identifier taxonomy.

Schema The file name for the referenced taxonomy's .xsd file, which is generally relative to the referencing taxonomy.
Location

File full path

The full path on the local disk drive to the referenced taxonomy, or the referenced taxonomy's URL. The path used in
this DTS is not necessarily the standard location of the published version of the referenced taxonomy.

Type

For taxonomies, this is the usual taxonomy of elements, linkbases, and so on.

For part and type definitions, this is a taxonomy of only part or type definitions. Part definitions are merged with the
referencing taxonomy's part definitions collection. Contains no elements, relationships or other linkbases, or
subreferenced taxonomies.

For schema namespaces this is a definition only for xmins purposes in the referencing taxonomy.
For schema imports, this is a non-XBRL .xsd file that has an import in the referencing taxonomy.

For schema include: (Deferred feature) A non-XBRL .xsd which has an include in the referencing taxonomy.

Taxonomy

Expands to display the selected referenced taxonomy's complete taxonomy properties grid.

From this referenced taxonomy’s properties, you can access the referenced taxonomy’s linkbase collection, type
definitions, and so on.

Using the Formulas Collection Editor

Formulas use a proprietary, Disclosure Management format because there is currently no XBRL
International specification for defining business rules. Formulas are implemented as a resource
within a dedicated linkbase that is similar to the XBRL label or references linkbases.

You can enter formulas for taxonomy elements, and enable users to run calculations (for

example, a calculation might test the validity of data for an element, or for an element relative
to another element).

Select the formulas from the Elements Properties Grid, to enter a formula.
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Table 19  Formula Entry Controls

Control

Description

i:,&i

Checks the syntax of the formula, displaying any parser messages in the message collection, and displaying the decompiled
formula as it would be saved in a formula linkbase.

[:3

Enter a named relative context

#

Enter a named absolute context

#

Select standard functions from a menu

Formula

Type the formula into the text box. You can drag element names from the relationships tree or elements list view to the text box,
or you can enter values into the text box.

For example, “ci:TotalAssets = ci:TotalLiabilitiesAndEquity™ indicates that total assets must equal total
liabilities plus equity in instance documents.

The formula syntax is similar to Microsoft Excel syntax for formulas. Table 20 lists examples of

formula expressions.

Table 20 Formula Expression Examples

Formula Description

ci:ElementA = ci:ElementB A Boolean result that is true if ElementA equals ElementB.

ci:ElementA > ci:ElementA[- A Boolean result that is true if ElementA is greater than the corresponding element of the previous
P1Y] year's context.

ci:ElementA < 100000 A Boolean result that is true if ElementA is less than 100000.

ci:ElementA + ci:ElementB An addition result of the same type as the two terms, using the same units and context as the terms

Using the Documentation Collection Editor

Element documentation explains the selected element. For XBRL V2 taxonomies, the
documentation is stored in the <appInfo><documentation> element of the XML Schema file
of the taxonomy. For XBRL Version 2.1, this documentation is stored in the label linkbase with
arole that you specified. Roles with type set to “documentation” are shown in the documentation
collections; roles with type set to “label” are shown in label collections. Label and documentation
types are stored in, and loaded from, label linkbases.

e X/
| Documentation | Role Mame | Lang | Prefix | Title
P EHOEEGILTHARTIEEDS  Documentation & ip-bs
*
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Table 21 Fields in the Documentation Collection Editor

Column Description
Name The element to which the comment applies
Role Label role assigned to this documentation based on the collection of label roles available to this taxonomy (for example,

Documentation or Guidance)

Language Code | Language code assigned to this documentation based on the list of language codes available to this taxonomy (for
example, “en” for English)

Prefix The prefix of the taxonomy for which the documentation is defined. This taxonomy may differ from that of the concept
element documented. This field is displayed only when the DTS has multiple taxonomies

Title An optional title assigned to the label. A label title is not required by XBRL

Entry text box The documentation entry field

Using the Tuple Definition Collection Editor

Tuples are a structure of items in an instance document, defined in XBRL 2.1 as complex data
types (definition links in XBRL 2.0). For XBRL 2.1, one XML Schema element is saved in the
taxonomy .xsd file specifying the tuple structure. Tuples can contain items or other tuples, and
can be nested to any depth required.

Tuple Definition - PreferredStock L
=
Prefened Stock, - Tiee Tuple
T
IL El Element usfr-pt: PreferredStock
:
. [Preferred Stock Descriptior Labels Freferred Stock --
String DataType Tuple
Prefemed Stock Value Document: Part of capital stock of an entity
Gl References [Collection - empty]
Preterred Stock, Par Walue Per Sharg Forrnula
hdanatany Parentz [Collection - 1]
[ Preferred Stack, Share Subscriptionk Childier; | iLollection: -7
| o Flag Falze
ares proa
Preferred Stock, Shares suthorized ;
Sharesz : I
Preferred Stock, Shares |szued Appinfart
Sharesz
Preterred Stock, Shares Outstanding
Shares
4] | 2l

Use the ellipsis button associated with the Tuple Definition property in the Taxonomy Property
Grid to activate the Tuple Definition collection editor. In XBRL 2.0, the tuple is defined by the
definition relations view. For XBRL 2.1, it is synchronized with the presentation relations view.
When you change an element to data type tuple, its presentation relationship children are

interpreted to be the tuple elements, and not the child elements. When editing the presentation
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relations tree or the tuple definition tree, the changes are synchronized. Each selection in the
taxonomy definition tree has appurtenant properties displayed in the right property grid. (See
“Adding a Referenced Taxonomy Using the Properties Grid” on page 92.)

A shortcut menu is available in the tuple definition tree view.

Table 22 Tuple Definition Tree View Shortcut Menu

Menu Option Description

Add Child For sequences, a sequence construct is added as a child of the selected tree element.
For choices, a choice construct is added as the child of the selected tree element.

For taxonomies, a taxonomy element is created and added as the child of the selected tree element.

Add Sibling Same as Add Child, but the element is added as a sibling of selected tree element.

Move Node Moves the selected node up or down in the taxonomy definition tree.

Delete Relationship | The parent relationship is deleted, and the selected element is no longer a member of the tuple’s element collection.

Paste The copied element is added as a child of the selected tuple section.

Refresh The tuple tree view is redrawn.

When you select the sequence type within a tuple definition tree view, the property types for
tuples are:

o Sequence—FElements must appear in order. A sequence construct can contain taxonomy
elements, sequence, or choice constructs.

e Choice—One element or group of elements are used within a tuple, or a different element
or group of elements are used within a tuple. A choice construct can contain taxonomy
elements, sequence, or choice constructs.

e All—Theorder of the elements in the tuple is unconstrained. You can specify the All property
for tuples only (for example, there is no add-child All option). An all construct can only
contain taxonomy elements.

When you select an item that is a taxonomy element within a tuple definition tree view, the
options in Table 23 are available:

Table 23 Tuple Definition Tree View Taxonomy Element Item Options

Property Description
Type Indicates a tuple child's type. Available types are element and tuple.
Min Occurs Indicates the minimum number of times the child element or tuple must appear within a tuple when the tuple is used

in an instance document. A value of zero indicates the element is optional. A value of one, the default indicates that
the element must appear within the tuple.

Max Occurs Indicates the maximum number of times the child element or tuple can appear within a tuple when the tuple is used in
an instance document, or “unbounded”

Element Name | Indicates the element name of the item within a tuple.
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Using the Relations Collection Editor

Taxonomy elements contain links to elements within the base taxonomy, or within a referenced
taxonomy. The Parent Elements and Child Elements form displays a comprehensive list of all

arc-type links. The links displayed depend on the current Relationships View mode. These links
can be filtered and expanded to show all links or other types of links, depending on your needs.

Note that resource type links such as labels and references are not displayed on this list, but can
be viewed in other ways. The links displayed include: Presentation, Calculation, and the various
types of Definition links.

There are properties for relations. The Parents Collection Editor shows a list of elements
(parents) from which the selected element is related.
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The Children Collection Editor shows a list of elements (children) to which the element is related.
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Table 24 Collection Editor Fields

Menu Option

Description

To or From Label of the element linked To (parents) or From (children) the selected element

Element

Relation Type Indicates whether the relationship is a presentation arc role (P), a calculation arc role (C), or a definition arc role
(D). Definition links also display the type of definition arc role. Note that this field has no column heading.

Prohibited Indicates whether the relation is a prohibiting relation, basically overriding a relation that exists in another taxonomy.
Note: Relations between elements in one taxonomy cannot be prohibited within that taxonomy.

Required Indicates whether the relation is required, as defined by the XBRL Specification. False, the default value, indicates
the relation is not required.

Order Indicates the order of the link relative to other links of the parent. The application maintains the value of this option,
and it is not editable.

Priority Indicates the priority of the link, as defined by the XBRL Specification. For example, 0, 1, 2, and so on. The default
value is 0.

Weight Weight is only available for calculation links and indicates the weight assigned to the link. It is used as defined in

the XBRL Specification (for example, 1 indicates add, and -1 indicates subtract).

Preferred Label
Role

The role used if no role is defined explicitly.

Title

An optional title assigned to the link (for example, “This is my title”).
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Using the Reference Part Definitions Collection Editor

The Reference Part Definitions collection editor manages taxonomy reference part definitions.
Using this editor, you can edit or reference from other taxonomies, and reference part definitions
used in element references.

The Reference Part Definitions collection editor defines the possible citation fields of each
reference instance in the taxonomy's references extended link. Reference part definitions
identified in this collection are the fields provided for editing the taxonomy's extended link
reference. It does not matter which taxonomy contains the element.

These are the fields that are column headings when editing references for the pertinent element:

Figure 5 Reference Part Definitions Collection Editor

ReferencePartDefinition Collection Editor
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Table 25 Collection Editor Members

Option Description

Name The reference part name displayed in combo boxes throughout the application (for example, Name or
Subparagraph).

XML Tag The reference part's XML element name (for example, Name or Subparagraph).

Note: XML element names cannot contain spaces.

Externally Defined True when the part definition is from a referenced .xsd taxonomy of reference part definitions, and not saved in
the taxonomy's .xsd schema file.

Taxonomy Prefix The prefix of the referenced taxonomy providing the part definition. The prefix is displayed in reference part
collection editor column headers to distinguish ambiguous use of reference part definition local names.

Taxonomy The namespace identifier of the referenced taxonomy providing the part definition.
Namespace Identifier
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Using the Notes Collection Editor

Notes provide a method of assigning arbitrary text to an element within a taxonomy. The notes
collection is a list of tasks for taxonomy elements. Notes are saved in the native document format
taxonomy file.

Figure 6 Notes Collection Editor
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Table 26 Notes Collection Editor Fields

Menu Option Description
Note An arbitrary note a user can assign to a taxonomy element.
Element Name The element name of the taxonomy element to which the note is assigned.

Date Last Changed | The date and time the note was last changed.

» To use notes:
1 Open the Notes Collection Editor, and then enter a note in the Notes field.

2  Drag an element from the Relationships View or Elements List to the Element Name field within the
collection editor.

Note: Date Last Changed is assigned automatically.

While viewing the note collection, double-click a note to locate its element in the Relationships
View and Elements List. The element is made visible (tree and list view panes scroll as needed)
and the element is highlighted in yellow.

Using the Display Colors Collection Editor

The Display Colors collection editor (accessed by selecting Tools, then Options, then Taxonomy
Colors property, and then ) provides the sequence of colors to assign to each reference
taxonomy. The colors are assigned in sequence, with each DTS-encountered reference taxonomy
assigned the next available color.
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Color Collection Editor
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Table 27 Color Collection Editor Fields

Property | Description

Value Drop-down list that enables you to select a color for the highlighted color sequence number.

Using the XBRL Metadata Collection Editors

The XBRL Metadata collection editors include the Data Types collection editor and the Roles
collections editors.

The Data Types collection editor defines built-in and taxonomy extensions to data types usable
for taxonomy concept definitions, and in limited cases, for general XML constructs.

Roles collection editors are available for extended links' roles, relationship arcs, labels and
documentation, references, and formulas.

Using the Data Types Collection Editor

DataType Collection Editor
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Table 28 Data Types Collection Editor Fields

Property Description

Name The date type name (for example, “Decimal”) displayed throughout the application in combo boxes and other places
the data type is used.

XBRL Item Type XBRL International data type name (for example, decimalItemType), used in the XBRL core schema files).
Note: All XBRL data types must be defined by the XBRL core schemas, or derived from a data type defined by the
XBRL core schemas used.

Base Type XML Schema base type from which the XBRL data type is derived (for example, “Decimal”).

Substitution Group

XBRL substitution group to which this data type belongs (for example, xbrli:item).

Documentation Decimal numbers of arbitrary precision. See XML Schema Part 2, Section 3.2.3
Sample Data Sample data for this data type.
Enabled Indicates whether this data type is enabled for the current taxonomy.

Numeric Context

Indicates whether this data type is numeric context, which requires a unitref for instance document fact values.

Derived Indicates whether the data type is a derived data type or a base data type. For example, monetaryltemType is a
base data type. A data type based on monetaryltemType that limits the values using XML Schema restrictions is a
derived data type.

Restriction The custom XML restriction for this data type.

Enumeration Restricted value choices for this data type.

Using the Label Roles Collection Editor

Members:

M0 Standsrd Label
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Table 29 Label Role Collection Editor Fields

Option Description
Type Indicates the type of label role. In this case, all label roles have the value “label”.
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Option Description

Name Internal name of the label role (for example, Standard Label).

Description | The label description.

URI21 XBRL International assigned label role for XBRL version 2.1 for this label (for example: http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/
label, the identifier for the standard label role).

URI20 XBRL International assigned label role for XBRL version 2.0.
Note: Many of these label roles did not exist in XBRL 2.0.

Built In Indicates whether this is a built in label role.

Using the Reference Roles Collection Editor

[Roke Coloction Gt
Mesmbers: Standard reference Properties:
[il] Standard reference + | ype reference |
1] Definition of concept Hame Standard reference
2] Disclosure requarement. general ll Description Standard reference '
3] Disclosure manditory URI21 hittp-//werw xbil org
4] Disclogure recommended URIZ0 f
5] Disclscure unspecified Builtin True
6] Presentation reference
[ 7] Measurement reference
8] Commentary
3] Example
1] |+ [ :
The dizplay name for this role.
oK | Cancel | Hep
L 4
Table 30 Reference Role Collection Editor Fields
Option Description
Type Type of role. In this case, the value is always “references” for references.
Name The reference role name (for example “Standard reference”)
Description | Reference role description.
URI21 XBRL International assigned reference role for XBRL v2.1 for this type of reference (for example, www.xbrl.org/2003/role/
reference, the identifier for the standard reference role
URI20 XBRL International assigned reference role for XBRL version 2.0
Note: Many of these reference roles do not exist in XBRL 2.0.
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Option Description

Built In Indicates whether this is a built in reference role

Using the Linkbase Roles Collection Editor

Caiculalion Liks Properkes;

+ Heemea Caleaudation Links
Definition Links Type calculationLink Rel
Label Links :] Documentation MUST contain only calculationLink elements
Fresentation Links URI21 hittp:/fwww xbi org 2003 /rele/caladationLinkbase Rel.
Reference Links URIZ0 hitp-/fwww b orgAinkprops/ink Rel /calculation
Formuls Links i
Unspecified : '

Schems File Links

i. Name

= e | The display name for this role.
[ ok ]| Concal 1&

Table 31 Linkbase Role Collection Editor Fields

Option Description

Name The internal linkbase type name

Type The internal linkbase role type

Documentation | Linkbase role description

URI21 XBRL International assigned linkbaseRef XLink:role for XBRL v2.1 for this linkbase type: www.xbrl.org/2003/role/

calculationLinkbaseRef (the calculation linkbase identifier)
URI20 XBRL International assigned linkbaseRef role for XBRL version 2.0
Built In Indicates whether this is a built in linkbase role (read only)
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Using the Extended Link Roles Collection Editor

Membars: Defzult Link Properties:

MName Defanit Link

Type extendedLink

Documentation Defauht extended link for purposes of extended link par

URI21 hittp -/ fererw xbrl _org/ 2003/ moleAink

URIZ0

UsedOnTypes (Collection - B)

Name
The dizplay neme for this role.
Add Remave
[ ok | caxe L‘g
Table 32 Extended Link Roles Collection Editor Fields
Option Description
Name Internal extended link role name (for example “Default Link”)
Type Internal extended link role type (for example, “extendedLink”)
Documentation | Extended link role description
URI21 URI assigned to XBRL 2.1 taxonomies for this extended link role for XBRL v2.1 for this type of extended link, which is
the standard extended link: www.xbrl.org/2003/role/link

URI20 XBRL 2.0 taxonomy URI
UsedOn Lists the linkbaseRef XLink:role types that you can select for this extended link
Built In Indicates whether this is a built in extended link role (read only)

Using the Arc Roles Collection Editor
The figure below shows the Arc Roles Collection Editor.

[arcnoke cobeatmatamer
s Concept o Lebel Pmpu'!u -
ll | Hame Corcegt b Ll
HemeFlecerns Lokl 't Concept
2 Pacers ta Child +| Tipe ket A
Comeange 15 hed Suirered Crocumentaton
-;.:icmzl pS_m-r.-nJ URI il e il e 0 aerode foonoepd dabel
_umcfrsaul-l:- \JRIZ0 hitg:errse bl cogfinkprope.farc fekemant labal
E| Seritar Tuples Balheectonal True
7 feo.-les Elemant DitmcieiCyeden Falae
_;:;?peﬁi'___“ UndwrectesCyches Faise
Carracial
Sarabs Bz
T dhagday parme for s ke
o | e |
i
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Table 33 Arc Roles Collection Editor Fields

Property

Description

Name

Internal arc role name (for example “Concept to Label”)

Name Reverse

Internal arc role reverse name (for example “Label to Concept”)

Type Internal arc role type (for example “labelArc”)

Documentation Arc role description

URI21 URI assigned to XBRL 2.1 taxonomies for this arc role for XBRL v2.1 for this type of arc, which is the standard extended
link: www.xbrl.org/2003/role/arcrole/concept-label

URI20 URI assigned to XBRL 2.0 taxonomies

BiDirectional

Indicates whether the arc is bidirectional (for example “True” indicates the arc is bidirectional)

Directed Cycles

Indicates whether directed cycles are allowed for this arc type (for example, “True” indicates that directed cycles are
allowed)

Undirected Cycles

Indicates whether undirected cycles are allowed for this arc type (for example, “True” indicates that undirected cycles
are allowed)

Connector Internally used connector between the arc role parts
Same as Indicates whether the arc is a “same as” type arc
Built In Indicates if this is a built in extended link role (read only)

Using the Language Codes Collection Editor

The following figure shows the Language Codes Collection Editor (Standard ISO 639 language
codes used by XML).
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LanguageCode Collection Editor

Members:
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Afar Properties:
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False
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Cancel

Help

N

Table 34 Language Code Collection Editor Fields

Property | Description

Code ISO 639 language code value

Enabled | Indicates whether this language code is enabled for this taxonomy
Name Language code name

Using the Word Substitution Collection Editor

The figure below shows the Word Substitution Collection Editor.

About the Properties Grid
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=

WordSubstitution Collection

Members: accounting policy= Properties:
] -Ell::l::l:ll.lr'ltir'lg |:u:l|il::_','= = . -
1| accumulated amortization= T

2| accumulated depreciation= + Suhshtute

3| Property, Plant and Equipment= whord accounting policy

|

Remove ‘

| (] 4 | Cancel

Table 35 Word Substitution Collection Editor Fields

Property Description

Text The current taxonomy label text entered in the taxonomy label field (for example, “accounting policy”)

Replace With | Text replacing the current text used in the generated element name. For example, if the current text is “accounting policy”,
specify “apy” in this field to replace the current text with the shorter version. In this example, the label “Accounting Policy”
changes to “apy” if this option is enabled.

Word Removal Collection Editor

The following figure shows the Word Removal Collection Editor.
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String Collection Editor

Enter the strings in the collection (one per line):

and -
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ok | cancel | Hep
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Table 36 Word Removal Collection Editor Fields

Property Description

WordToRemove | The specified word is removed if found when generating an element name if this option is enabled.

For example, entering “and” in this field removes the word from the element label even if users enter “and” as part of
the element name (“Property and Equipment” changes to “PropertyEquipment” in the label).

About Elements

This section explains how to work with elements.

Working with Elements

An element is the most basic concept in taxonomy building. XBRL elements are facts or pieces
of information described by an XBRL taxonomy. For example, an element with the name Total
NonlnterestIncome is the USFR-FST taxonomy’s XBRL element name for the financial
statement disclosure fact for Total Noninterest Income.

XBRL Taxonomy Designer provides an easy-to-use interface for working with taxonomy
elements. The basics of taxonomy building are:

e Adding an element (see “Adding an Element” on page 76)
e Adding child elements (see “Adding Child Elements” on page 78)
Adding sibling elements (see “Adding Sibling Elements” on page 79)

e Editing taxonomy elements (see “Editing Taxonomy Elements” on page 86)
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e Moving elements within a taxonomy (see “Moving Elements Within a Taxonomy” on page
86)

About The Elements List View

The Elements List view is a list of all elements within the base taxonomy and all referenced
taxonomies (referred to as the Discovered Taxonomy Set or DTS). An element is listed in the
Elements List view only once. Even those elements that do not participate in a relationship are
in the element list view. Note the current Count is displayed above the list.

I Frpre— || Count: 3,223
Prefix [ Labei | Hame | DataType | Balarce [ Pericd Type [ ha
fre-gp Shstesmerit that Financal Statemants,..  StatementFinarcisiStateme..,  Strirg Curstion T
rs-gp Shateerent that Imestrment Pr b StatementineestmantProp...  Stirg Do ation 1]
frs-gp Stateenarit Vhether Fmrma!mm . StabementwhetherFinanca..,  String Douration T
Frs=gp Shtatubory Tae Fate Statubory TaxRate Decimal Duration T
iFrs-gp Sublease Payments Under Operating...  SublessePaymentsUrderCs...  Monetary Curation T
ifrs-gp Subgcribed Capital SubsoribedCapt s Maonetary Credit Irestant T
ifre-gp Subscribead Capitsl Disclosures SubsoribedCapt allesclonres  String [T T
driem St Ms ramert | bira o, 5 ks wenk M warsn | Shrirea Tn walting T
4 »

Elements (concepts) are connected by links or relationships. The Relationships View pane shows
atree view of the links or relationships between elements. The Elements List pane shows elements
in a dictionary style.

You can add, delete, copy or move:

e Anelement

e A relationship

e An element and all of its child elements

e A relationship and all of its child relationships

Adding an Element

You add elements using the menu options and toolbar buttons.

» To add elements:
1 In the Relationships pane, select Child Element A.
2  From Taxonomy Editor, select Edit, and then Add Child.

File | Edit Wiew Tools Window  Help

[ IIndo Chrl+2

e Edit Label Chrl+E

H
Aduorgibling Chrl+1
Remoye
Malata »

3 Name the child element.
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.

In the Relationships pane, select Sibling Element 1.

In the Taxonomy Editor toolbar, click the

=
ot
(=]

Add Sibling icon.

File Edit Yew Tools ‘Window Help

D-@-|5ad|f ® 3 X

new {Presentation) |

)
[Insert sibling elemert|

=l Presentation Yiew
=1 Extended Link (Default Link)
EI My Elerment
. - Child Element &
. Grandchild ¥

ement 1

Name the sibling element.

To use shortcut keys to create elements:

Select any element, and then press Ctrl+N to create a child element.

Select another element, and then press Ctrl+l to create a sibling element.

Press Ctrl+N several times to create multiple children.

To add an element directly to the Elements List, which is just below the Relationships pane:

From anywhere within the Elements List, right-click and select New Element.

<

Blmai Elmrnme bk 2

Shia

4

% * |.ﬁ.II elements jl Count: 10
Prefix I Label I Marne | Dakta Tvpe | B, -
et hild Element & ChildElement: Skring
: | String ||
e Child Element 2E Edit Cell Chri+L skring
e Garandchild ¥ Skring
et My Elernent 07 i Skring b
new Mew Element w Skring
new Mew Element 2 Ceelete Element Skring

Cheirmm

S
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|
H Element Information -
M amespacePrefix new
TestElementCopy
Labels Mew Element 5
DataType String |
PeriodT ype Instant
Millable True
Documentation
Feferences [Collection - empty]
Formula -
Mame
The name far thiz element whick iz unigue within thiz tasonomy
Namespace.
Mew element Cloze ,}J Dizcard J//
If‘l.' '

2  Optional: Enter an element name.
3 When finished, click Close.

4 To form a relationship for the element, hold the left-click button and drag the element from the Elements
List to the appropriate location on the relationship tree.

Adding Child Elements

Relationships between elements are important. XBRL allows the creation of parent-child
elements. The value of a parent element is the sum total of all its child elements.

To add an child element:
Open the taxonomy in the Taxonomy Editor.

In the Relationships pane, right-click My Element and then select Add Child.

OJMI—\V

Enter an element name, and then click Enter.
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Adding Sibling Elements

» To add a sibling element:
1 Open the taxonomy in the Taxonomy Editor.

2 In the Relationships pane, right-click My Element, and then select Add Sibling.
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Paste Spedal. ..

Paste Templste. ..

Expare]

| Collapse

8 - (a1 elements | Pefresh Court: 0
Frefix [LatelD [ Hame [DataType [Bolance [ Pericd Type [ ralat
£ | >

3 Enter an element name, and then click Enter.
_I'lmli‘rltlﬂi Ml q kX

= Presertaticd Yiew

= MME.‘W
b

8 - [t cterveres = Court: 1
Frafi Lat=d O Hare Cuts Balsoe Period Pallst
few MemBlemet 000 HNewfeesst 000 S0 betet Trm

i *

4 Right-click My Element, and then select Add Sibling.

The new element is created at the same level as My Element within the tree view.
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Name this element Sibling Element 1.

To add elements using the menu options and toolbar buttons:
In the Relationships pane, select Child Element A.

From the Taxonomy Editor, select Edit, and then Add Child.
File | Edit Wiew Tools ‘Window Help
IIndo

Chrl+Z

D i

ney

Edit Label Chrl+E

Adergibling Chrl+1

Remove
Melata *

Name the child element.
In the Relationships pane, select Sibling Element 1.

On the Taxonomy Editor toolbar, click the Add Sibling icon.
File Edit Window  Help

D md 3= 2 3 X

new {(Presentation) |

Wiew  Tools

1
[Insert sibling elemert |

[l Presentation Yiew
=1 Extended Link (Default Link)
EI My Elerment
. = Child Element &
‘- Grandchild ¥
i ement 1

Enter a name for the sibling element.

To add elements using the shortcut keys:
Select any element, and then type Ctrl+N to add a child element.
Select another element, and then type Ctrl+l to add a sibling element.

Press Ctrl+N, several times to add multiple children.

To add an element directly to the Elements List (located just below the Relationships pane):

From anywhere within the Elements List, right-click, and then select New Element.
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CrataT ype String | |
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References [Collection - empty]
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Hew element Cloze Digcard J//
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2 Optional: Add a name.

3 Click Close to add the element to the Elements list.

4  To form a relationship for the element, drag the element from the Elements List to the appropriate
location on the relationship tree.
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Editing Element Properties Within the Elements List

You can edit element properties in the Elements List view (as well as in the Element Properties
Grid). Right-click the element to edit in the Elements List, and then select Edit Cell to begin
editing element properties.
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If you right-click a cell in the Elements List, a shortcut menu is displayed. The following table
explains the shortcut menu options.

Table 37 Shortcut Menu Options

Option Description

Edit Cell (Ctrl+L) | Edit element information directly from within the element list view.

Copy Element Select an element from the element list view, and subsequently paste a link to that element in the relationship view.

New Element Creates an element without any relations.

Delete Element Deletes an element from the dictionary and the relations view.

Show Same as View, and then Show.

Dragging Elements from the Elements List

Elements can be dragged from the Elements List pane to the Relationships tree, or copied and
pasted. The purple line in the screenshot indicates where you are dragging the element within
the taxonomy.
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As you drag the element, information is displayed in the status bar indicating where the element
is placed if you stop dragging it.

Moving Elements Between Taxonomies

You can move elements between editable taxonomies by changing the element’s
NamespacePrefix.

Hement - us-gasprbas g
B Elermnrd lidarrnatis

ParresntaPrfi uifr-fet -

Selecting a different prefix moves the element from the original taxonomy’s collection of
elements to the elements of the newly-selected taxonomy. This also moves any element linkbase
entries that were in the original taxonomy’s linkbase to the nearest equivalent linkbases of the
new taxonomy. Each linkbase entry moved retains its extended link role in the parent taxonomy
linkbases.

Selecting new prefixes for elements that are members of a tuple is problematic. Tuples are
complex constructs of the owning taxonomy. In general, move all tuple contents to the
taxonomy, then select Tools, and then Rebuild Tuple Definition to be sure the tuple definitions
are correctly reconstituted in the new taxonomy.
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Editing Taxonomy Elements

» To edit the name and label of an element in the Relationships pane:
1  Select any element in the Relationships pane or in the Elements List.
2  Press Ctrl+E to edit the element name and label in the Relationships pane.

3 Change the element label, and then press Enter to update the element.

To edit other element aspects:

From within the Elements List, right-click any cell and select Edit Cell.
Make any necessary changes, and then click Enter.

Select another cell within the Elements List.

Press Ctrl+L to begin editing the cell.

m-buom.—xy

Make the necessary changes, and then click Enter.

Moving Elements Within a Taxonomy

» To move elements within the Relationships pane:
1 Select an element in the taxonomy tree view.
2 Press and hold the left mouse button.

Note how the cursor changes as you move over elements of the taxonomy tree. Also note
that the status bar at the bottom of the screen describes the action that would occur if you
released the left mouse button at that time.

3 Release the left-click button when done.

Relationship Views

This section explains how to work with relationship views.

Understanding Relationship Views

Using XBRL Taxonomy Designer, you can add and change relationship views and perspectives
using the Relationships pane. This capability enables you to view two portions of a taxonomy
simultaneously, or view taxonomy elements using different perspectives, for example,
Presentation and Calculation.

Taxonomies can be viewed from three perspectives or views: Presentation, Calculation, and
Definition. In the Taxonomy Editor Relationships pane, the view perspective is displayed on the
taxonomy tab at the top of the pane.
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= F‘resentatiu:un View

= Extended Link (Default Link)
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- Dacument and Entity Information

- Incame Staktement

- Balance Sheet

- Statement of Stockholder's Equity

The following sections about using the relationship views use the US GAAP CI taxonomy as an
example. To follow these procedures, open the US GAAP CI taxonomy in the Taxonomy Editor.

>

1
2
3

To open the US GAAP CI taxonomy:
Select File, then Open, and then Taxonomy.
From the Open Taxonomy window, click the icon.

Select the us-gaap-ci-2004-06-15.xsd file from the Open XBRL Taxonomy window, and then
click Open.

Click OK to load the taxonomy and close the Open Taxonomy window.

Changing the Relationships View

>
1

To change the taxonomy view:

With the us-gaap-ci taxonomy file open in the Taxonomy Editor screen, right-click in the
Relationships pane.

Select View.
Shia r Calculakion

Definition

Three perspectives are listed in the submenu. A checkmark indicates the views currently
displayed.

Select a view that is not selected.

For this example, select Calculation. Note how the perspective of the taxonomy changes in
the Relationships pane.

Click to expand the Extended Link for the Calculation view of the taxonomy.

Adding a View to the Relationships Pane

>
1
2

To view the taxonomy from two perspectives simultaneously:
Right-click in the Relationships pane.

From the shortcut menu, select Show, and then Add Another Relationships Pane.

Relationship Views
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Note that in this submenu, no check marks are associated with the displayed perspectives.

For this example, select Presentation.

igw -
v| Add Another Relationships Pane m
Edit Label CHIAE Remove Relationships Pane Calculation
e L br+E
S s v Svnc to Other Panes DieFinition
Add Child Chrl+M :
fidd ciblire T v Element Lisk

A second pane is displayed in Presentation view.

» To add another view using the View menu:

1 Select View, and then Show.
File  Edit | Yiew Tools Window  Help
[ + & v Presentation . 3% «E - |Parent to Child |
————  Calculation
us-gaap-  Definition 11
[=- C;al-:ula LeheE = Pfesentatiun Wig _ :
EI Exct Bl St s al Position - Fd Extended Link {Statement of Financial Posit
[+~ Ext I} E- Extended Link {Income Statement - CI)
EI Ext  Mamespace Prefixes Flows - Ind Fd Extended Link {Statement of Cash Flows - 1
[#-Ext w Prohibited Relationships ows - Direc [+ Extended Link {Statement of Cash Flows - [
E Ext Ll e =t Eomiik I_:l Cockmmdemd Limle FCE—bmrmm b ~F Skl - 1
EI Ext Shiow add another Relationships Pane k Presentation
__ Ext e 4 Remove Relationships Pane Calculation
Sk v Svnc ko Other Panes Definikion
Collapse
Refresh v Element List
1 I I Change Relationships Crientation I
e Change Element List Crientation —
i I.ﬁ.ll elements Counk: 1,¢
: I additional Tabbed YWindow
Prefix Label Additional Dockable/Floating Windaw ELCHE ]
usfr-pk Accounting Policies Maote Skring
usfr-pt Advertising Cost Policy o Messages Shring
The menu options are similar to those in the shortcut menu.
2  Select Add Another Relationships Pane, and then Definition.
There are multiple independent roles for Definition view, including alias-essence and
general-special. You can select roles from the toolbar drop-down menu.
Three views are displayed in the Relationships pane.
e Calculation
e Presentation
e Definition
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Using the Sync Feature

When working with a taxonomy, you can examine elements of that taxonomy from multiple
perspectives (multiple views) simultaneously. Instead of scrolling through each view to find the
element, use the XBRL Taxonomy Designer sync feature to automate the process.

To begin have at least two views of the taxonomy in the Relationships pane.

The Relationships View

The relationship view shows relationships (or links) within a taxonomy. In XBRL Taxonomy
Designer, you can navigate through taxonomy elements using these relationships. The
relationships view can show the presentation, calculation, or definition relations between
elements.

The word relationship is the instance of a relation; a relation is a class of such relationships as
described by an arc role (such as parent-child, essence-alias).

Each relationship is shown in the relationships view once, but elements may participate in
multiple relationships. Elements in multiple relationships can be listed in more than one place
within the relationships view (see Figure 7).

Relationship Views
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Figure 7 Relationships Tree View Pane
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The default view is the Presentation view. From the Presentation view, you can switch to a
Calculation or Definition relation for the currently selected element. For the definition relation,
the default arc role shown is general-special. For example, when Property, Plant and Equipment
is selected in the Presentation view, right-clicking and selecting the appropriate relation view
enables you to see Calculation links or Definition links in which Property, Plant and Equipment
participates.

XBRL Taxonomy Designer opens with the view displayed when it is closed. For example, if you
exit the application with a Calculation view displayed, when you restart the application,
calculation relationships are displayed.

Referenced Taxonomies

This section explains how to work with referenced taxonomies.

Working with Referenced Taxonomies

A taxonomy can reference a number of other taxonomies. The base taxonomy combined with
its referenced taxonomies is referred to as the DTS. After you select a base taxonomy, referenced
taxonomies are listed in the Open Taxonomy window and are loaded into the Taxonomy Editor
with the base taxonomy. XBRL Taxonomy Designer provides full support for working with an
unlimited depth of referenced taxonomies.

In the previous tutorial, a referenced taxonomy was added to demonstrate editing taxonomy
properties using the properties grid. See “Adding a Referenced Taxonomy Using the Properties
Grid” on page 92.

This section covers these topics:
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e “Viewing Referenced Taxonomies” on page 91
e “Editing Referenced Taxonomies” on page 91

e “Removing Referenced Taxonomies” on page 96

Load Referenced Taxonomy

» To load a referenced taxonomy:
1 Select Open, then File, then Load, and then Referenced Taxonomy.

2 Open the Taxonomy in the same fashion as you would any other taxonomy.

Viewing Referenced Taxonomies

To see a large taxonomy with multiple reference taxonomies, use the US-GAAP taxonomy.

Editing Referenced Taxonomies

To edit elements or referenced taxonomy structures of the base taxonomy you are editing, select
one of the following methods:

e Ifa user is an extender (consumer) of the referenced (standard) taxonomy, but does not
have editing rights for that taxonomy, the editor of the base taxonomy can change the
referenced taxonomies' structures by prohibiting relationships between their elements in
the referenced taxonomies and patch them with relations that are defined as part of the
namespace of the top-level taxonomy.

e Ifauseris the producer (author) of the referencing and referenced taxonomies, then
checking the Enable editing check box to the right of the referenced taxonomies within the
Open Taxonomy window enables direct editing of referenced taxonomies.

If a user is the consumer of a standard taxonomy by an extending taxonomy, prohibit arcs block
the referenced taxonomy’s relationship arcs to prohibit the traversal of a relationship in
referenced (standard) taxonomies. Prohibition conceptually puts a “do not traverse” sign on
prohibited relationship arcs. The author is free to define a relationship between the elements in
the edited top level taxonomy. Prohibited arcs are displayed on the tree view with their labels in
a strike-out font. This type of prohibited arc is automatically created when a user moves an
element of one of the referenced taxonomies to another place on the relationship tree. You
cannot move the element to any relationship view tree.

For example, assume that the author wants to move a subtree in the Document and Entity
Information section. The Web site entry needs to be moved under the entity contact information.
Because this is not the top-level taxonomy, XBRL Taxonomy Designer cannot change anything
in this taxonomy, but can prohibit the old link and create a new link.

Referenced Taxonomies
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Figure 8 Moving Sub Trees
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The displayed structure indicates that the Entity Web Site element is now a child of the Entity
Contact element. The strikethrough on the Entity Web Site element indicates that this
relationship is prohibited and not traversed. XBRL Taxonomy Designer generates XBRL
relationship arcs for prohibition of the original and traversal of the new relationship.

Adding a Referenced Taxonomy Using the Properties Grid

» To add a referenced taxonomy using the Properties Grid:

1 With My Taxonomy loaded in the Taxonomy Editor, ensure that the Taxonomy - new tab is selected at
the bottom of the Properties Grid pane.

-

I E Taxonormy fEw |@ Element - new |

|ﬁql'§; PRES

VIEW: PRES

2  Select Referenced Taxonomies.

An ellipsis button is displayed in the associated field.

Prafile
whrlversion

Reference E AXOMNOMmies
Linkbases

ExkraxML

P M T

Yersion 2.1

{Collection - EITI[III‘J';_I
{Collection - 7}
ReferencePartDefinitior {Collection - 7)

3 Click the ellipsis button to add a References Taxonomies window.

.-’-'u:lu:lh Femoyve
o

Referenced Taxonomies - new N

B Taxonomy Informabon

Mame

Dezcription

MamezpacePrefiz  new

Mamezpaceldentifie http: £/ vwww_example. com/new
Schemalocation My Taxonomy xsd

Profile General

Hhbrlersion Yerzion 2.1
ReferencedT axono [Collection - empty]
Linkbases [Collection - 7]
ReferencePartDefir [Collection - 7]
ExtraxhdL

I» 1
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4  Click Add.
5 Select Referenced Taxonomies.

Use what you learned to select and load a referenced taxonomy.

Referenced Taxonomies - new N #

B Using taxonomy

RENER = usfr-namda

Mamespacelder hitp: / fvww_xbil orgStaxonomyfus /¥
Schemalocation usfr-namda-2002-10-15.xsd
FileFullPath C:\Program Files

Type T axonomy

T axanormy usfr-namda

= hew
i usf-namda

S Femove

6  Click the X to close the window.

In the Taxonomy Properties grid, the Referenced Taxonomy property indicates that there
is one referenced taxonomy in the collection.

Taxonany - new

B Taxonomy Information ]
Marne
Description
MamespacePrefix new
Mamespaceldentifier  hetp:/ Swww.example.c
Schemalocation My Taxonomy.xsd
Profile General
xhrlversion Yersion 2.1 =
ReferencedTaxonamizs e | Sl T b _,I
Linkbases {Collection - 7)

7  Select File, and then Save.

8 Click the X in the Relationships View pane to close the taxonomy.

Editing Referenced Taxonomy Element Properties

Use the Elements Property Grid to edit element properties for a set of taxonomies. You can also
edit some properties from the tree view (for example, the default label), and the elements list
view when shown. Using the Elements Property Grid, however, gives you control of element
property editing, including changing the taxonomy to which an element belongs.

An element belongs to the taxonomy from which it was loaded, or if newly added, it belongs to
the base taxonomy.

You cannot change the element properties for members of a read-only taxonomy. However, you
can add the element labels and relationships of the referenced taxonomy by default in the base
taxonomy. Other element attributes, such as data type, cannot be changed.

Referenced Taxonomies
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You can change the element properties in an editable taxonomy. Even if the element belongs to
a referenced or DTS discovered taxonomy lower in the DTS tree, its properties can be edited.
Changing a label or relationship in an element of an editable, but lower-level, taxonomy changes
that element in the lower level schema file and linkbases directly. If the lower level taxonomy is
read-only, however, the label and other linkbase changes are made, by default, to the open base
taxonomy.

Editing Referenced Taxonomy Properties

DTS Properties are edited using the Referenced Taxonomies Collection Editor. The opened
taxonomy properties are displayed in the taxonomy property panel. Click the ellipsis button to
activate the Referenced Taxonomies Collection Editor.

Figure 9 Referenced Taxonomies Collection Editor
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The Referenced Taxonomies Collection Editor displays a tree that lists all referenced taxonomies
in the DTS. The top entry is the base taxonomy. When highlighted in the left panel tree, the
opened taxonomy’s properties are shown in the right panel. The right panel properties for DTS
subtree entries display namespace prefix, identifier, file path, and type, reflecting referencing
taxonomy usage.

Though the base taxonomy is an element and linkbase bearing taxonomy, DTS subtree entries
may be more limited in usage (for example, schema files containing only reference parts
definitions, or schema files containing only non-taxonomy schema definitions). The following
table defines the five entry types in this subtree.

Table 38 Current Entries in the Sub Tree

Type Content

Taxonomy XBRL taxonomy
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Type Content

Reference Part Definitions | An XBRL taxonomy containing only reference part definitions

Schema Namespace An xmins entry in the opened taxonomy schema element
Schema Import An import (and xmins) of a non-taxonomy schema
Schema Include An include (and xmIns) of a non-taxonomy schema

Expand the referenced taxonomies in the DTS subtree to display the internal properties of the
taxonomy. These properties are not disabled even if it is a read-only taxonomy, permitting the
use of the Linkbases Collection Editor in the taxonomy properties. Edits to areferenced expanded
properties of a taxonomy cannot be saved if the taxonomy is read-only.

There are two places where Namespace prefix and filename are defined for subtree taxonomies:
in the referenced taxonomy properties, and within the taxonomy. The referenced taxonomy
properties such as namespace prefix are those of the referring taxonomy (the xmlns prefix of
the higher level taxonomy). The expanded internal taxonomy properties are those stored internal
to the referenced taxonomy.

To view linkbase contents and specifications of referenced taxonomies, click the plus-box to
expand the internal taxonomy properties, and then select the ellipsis button on the Linkbases
Collection Editor.

The DTS tree view includes a shortcut menu for the Referenced Taxonomies. Shortcut menu
options enable you to:

e Change an editable taxonomy. .
e Save a referenced taxonomy.

e Add referenced taxonomies, reference part definition taxonomies, or referenced schema
files.

e Remove a referenced taxonomy.

Figure 10  Shortcut Menu
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Removing Referenced Taxonomies

» To remove a referenced taxonomy from the base taxonomy:

1 With the US GAAP CI Taxonomy loaded in the Taxonomy Editor, select the Taxonomy tab at the bottom

of the Properties Grid pane.

_'ﬂ Taxonomy, - us-gasp-ci |@ Extended Link - us-ga... |
|

" ||r~.|s: PRES |v|Ew: PRES

2 Select the Referenced Taxonomies property.

An ellipsis button is displayed in the associated field.

Profile General

®brlYersion ¥ersion 2
ReferencedTaxonomies a0 T Tk )] J
Linkbases {Collection - 7)
ReferencePartDefinitions | {Collection - 5)

3 Click the E] button.

The Referenced Taxonomies window is displayed.

£
- Lis-gaspci E Uzing taxonamy |
shised MamespacePrel  usfi-me
= ushr-sec-cet Mamespaceldentiic hitp:/fwerw. zbil. org/taxonomy/us/fifcon
whitenl Schemalocation  wsfr-me-2002-10-15.xsd
Bt ush-pt FileFullPath http:/ feewew. xbil org/taxonomy/us/fi/con
wirnl Type Taxonomy
B usfige (B Tavoncery usft-mr
xhitml
= uzh-namda
il
il
B ushi-ge
whilrnd
A Remaove N

4 In the left tree view pane, select the referenced taxonomy to remove.

5 Click Remove.

The referenced taxonomy is removed from the base taxonomy . The left tree view pane in
the Referenced Taxonomy window refreshes to display the following list.
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= us-gaap-ci
shibrl
= usfr-gec-cer
whiml
& ushr-pl
whikmnl
= usfrge
whiml
B ush-namda
whitml
= ush-go
whiml

6 Click the X in the upper right of the window to close it.

In the Taxonomy Properties Grid, note that the number of referenced taxonomies in the
collection is reduced by one.

Profile General

ZbrlVer sion Yersion 2
e v = (Collection - 7) __I
Lirkbases {Collection - 7) ]
ReferencePartDefinitions (Collection - 5)

7  Select File, and then Close to close the US GAAP CI Taxonomy.

Do not save the changes for the purposes of this tutorial.

Taxonomy Close Warning i ﬂ

Taxonomy has unsaved changes, save before closing?

Yes Mo [}J Cancel |

8 Click No to complete this lesson.

Saving Changes to Edited Referenced Taxonomies

When an opened taxonomy is saved, the default behavior is to save changes to the opened
taxonomy. If there are editable referenced taxonomies, each of the editable referenced and DTS
discovered taxonomies are also saved.

=]
FilePath NewTanonomy sxsd
SaveStrabegy Normal
SaveReferencedTaronomies  True =

The base taxonomy SaveReferencedTaxonomies property specifies whether changes to
referenced taxonomies are saved. The SaveReferencedTaxonomies setting is useful when you
copy a full set of loaded referenced taxonomies (including those that are read-only) into another
directory tree, or when downloading a taxonomy set from a Web accessed (http://) source.

Referenced Taxonomies
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Plug-ins

This section explains how to you use the Linkbase Tidier and V2 to V2.1 Conversion plug-ins.

Linkbase Tidier

The Linkbase Tidier plug-in window is shown below.

@chase Tidier =
—what
| Clear titles
| Rearder
Start Claze
A

This tool edits linkbases according to the options described in the following table.

Table 39 Linkbase Tidier Tool Options

Option Description

Clear titles | Remove titles from linkbase arcs (as editable on the labels, references, formulas, and relationships collection editors).
Frequent exchange of linkbases between various external tools can result in excessive use of arc titles.

Reorder Reorder the relationship order numbers of child collections for linkbase elements. Takes into consideration prohibit
relationships below the top level (editable) taxonomy.

V2 to V2.1 Conversion

The following screenshot shows the V2 to V2.1 Conversion plug-in options window.
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Figure 11 V2 to V2.1 Conversion Options window
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Table 40 V2 to V2.1 Conversion Options

Option Description

Taxonomy Indicates the source of the taxonomy that is converted. This option is displayed in gray because the file was
read into memory using the taxonomy loading process.

Save As Indicates the path and file name that replaces the original taxonomy file name after conversion. This options
enables you to save the converted taxonomy with another name, or in another directory structure. Changing
the file name also changes linkbase file names if any linkbase name contains the same initial characters as
the initial characters of the taxonomy file name. Linkbases with names that differ from the file name must be
renamed manually. Changing their directory structure must be done manually also.

Period Type For all elements other than tuples, selects the V2.1 period type to assign during conversion.

Tuple Type Selects the schema structure type assigned to converted tuples. After conversion, you can edit tuple definitions

manually to make structure changes.

Remove 0 weight
calculation relations

Zero weight calculation relations are a feature of pre-V2.1 standards, but are not permitted in V2.1. Check this
option to remove these relations automatically.

Remove calculation
relations from duple
elements

V2.0 standard taxonomies often duplicate presentation linkbase structure in calculation linkbases, including
tuple compositional links (tuple to tuple item links). This is not necessary in V2.1. Check this option to remove
the duplicate structures automatically.

Set calculation order
based on presentation
order

V2.0 taxonomies only provided order for presentation linkbases. This option copies ordering to calculation
links if corresponding parent to child relationships exist in presentation and calculation relationships.

Convert referenced
taxonomies

Referenced taxonomies that are pre-V2.1 are converted in addition to the base taxonomy.
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Option

Description

Freshen element ID
attributes

Element ID attributes can be composed of any character strings, such as random numbers or arbitrary naming.
This option provides standard format IDs for all elements.

Remove definition
relations

Removes definition relations. When selected, this option erases old-style definitions, which in some cases
were arbitrary copies of presentation relationships and no longer apply to V2.1 standard taxonomies.

Save converted
taxonomies

Performs a “Save-as”, using the new taxonomy names for the top level and converted referenced taxonomies.

Validate after
conversion

Invokes validation after conversion (same as selecting Tools, and then Validation).

Element List Filter

You can narrow the area of the taxonomy that is searched.

. ilrs-gp (Presentation) 1 b =-c.

=1 Prasentation Vies
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Table 41 Taxonomy Filter Options
Option Description

All elements The default, which displays all elements of the DTS in the Elements List pane.

Element not in the
relation view

Displays all elements not in the current Relationships view in the Elements List pane. This is helpful when
adding elements to the relationships tree view.

Elements in selected This option displays all elements that are in the selected subtree in the current Relationships view. This option
subtree helps you browse the tree view. The element list is sorted in the order of the selected tree view, which is
similar to the printout of the taxonomy in a Relationships view.

100 Using Taxonomies



Option Description

Elements not in the Displays all elements not in the selected subtree (refer to “Elements in selected subtree” for details).

selected subtree

Taxonomy Properties Grid

The Taxonomy Properties Grid is the grid to the right of the main window. This grid contains

a series of fields and collections that enable you to refine-the taxonomy specification.

=
Tarne
Descripkion
MamespacePrefis ci
Mamespaceldentifier http:/ f'www.example.con
Profile General
ReferencedTaxonomies  {(Collection - emply)
Linkbases {Collection - 7)
ReferencePartDefinitions  {Collection - 7)
ExtrasmL
ExtraxMLappInfo

=
FilePath C:Program Files' UBmatr
Savestrategy Mormal
SaveReferencedTaxonomi False

= ..
ShowLanguage en English
ShowLabelR.ole Standard Label
DefaultType String
Motes (Collection - empty)

|

=
Encoding utf-8
W'rikeExkendedAppinfo False

=

MNataTwnes fCnllarkinn - 42%

F

il
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Taxonomy Information

Table 42 Taxonomy Properties Grid Properties—Taxonomy Information

Property Description

Name An optional user-readable taxonomy name (for example “US GAAP Core Standard Taxonomy”). If specified, the name
is stored in the local taxonomy directory.

Description An optional user-readable taxonomy description (for example “US GAAP Taxonomy for Commercial and Industrial
Companies to be used by this and that and so on...."). If specified, the description is stored in the taxonomy native
file and local taxonomy directory.

Namespace Namespace prefix of this taxonomy (for example, “ci”. The prefix is used within the taxonomy “.xsd” file constructs. It

Prefix does not have to be the same in other places where this taxonomy is referenced (by other taxonomies in a DTS) or
used in an instance document. References to this taxonomy and instance documents may choose different prefixes
for this taxonomy. Required.

Namespace Uniquely identifies this taxonomy (also known as the “target namespace”). By convention this is a phantom URL (no

Identifier Web location need exist, only the character string must be the same wherever this taxonomy is referenced.) (Required)
For example, http://www.example.com/Taxonomy/2003-01-01.

Schema Physical location of the taxonomy’s .xsd file, usually a URL of a Web page, a file name if the reference to the file is

Location relative, or a path and file name to a local file. (Required) For example, you might enter “NewTaxonomy.xsd” to indicate
a relative reference to a file.

Profile [NOT CURRENTLY IMPLEMENTED] Indicates the profile used by this taxonomy. The profile sets allowed edit parameters.
For example, you could allow or disallow the addition of arc roles which is allowed under the “General” profile, but
not under the “FRTA” profile. See the discussion of “Profiles” below. For example, “General” for the general XBRL
profile or “FRTA” for the Financial Reporting Taxonomy Architecture profile.

XBRL Version XBRL Version of this taxonomy. (Required) For example, “Version 2.1”, “Version 2.0”, “Version 1.0”

Referenced Tree and properties view of the DTS, the collection of taxonomies referenced by this taxonomy. Selecting this property

Taxonomies causes an ellipsis button to appear, which activates the Referenced Taxonomies Collection Editor (see “Collection

(DTS) Editors” on page 126)

Linkbases Collection of linkbases contained in this taxonomy. The ellipsis button activates the “Linkbases Collection Editor” (see

“Collection Editors” on page 126s).

Reference Part

Collection of reference parts defined in, or for use by, this taxonomy. The ellipsis button activates the “Reference Part

Definitions Definitions Collection Editor” (see “Collection Editors” on page 126)

Extra XML XML fragment which is inserted within the <schema> element of the XML Schema file containing this taxonomy. For
example, “<attribute name=’id’ />". On loading a taxonomy, any unrecognized <schema> constructs are displayed
in this field; likewise, on saving, they are added to the <schema> of the .xsd file. The drop-down button provides a
multi-line text box for editing and cut/paste of text for this field.

Extra XML Same as Extra XML, but for the Appinfo construct.

Appinfo

Number of Indicates the number of elements in the taxonomy. For elements in other taxonomies of the DTS use the Referenced

Elements Taxonomies (DTS) Collection Editor.
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Taxonomy Saving

Table 43 Taxonomy Properties Grid Properties—Taxonomy Saving

Property Description

File Path Full path of the taxonomy .xsd file, as a local disk drive file, or URL (http://...). (Required) For example, c: \My
Documents\NewTaxonomy . xsd. Reset by a Save as operation. The ellipsis button activates a file chooser window,
to enter an URL, type the HTTP location directly into the property field. Changing this property may affect the linkbase
file path, and any referenced taxonomies and their linkbases when the taxonomy is saved.

Save Strategy Indicates how the taxonomy information is saved. Options are:
o Normal: The .xsd file and each linkbase is a file with linkbaseRef’s in the .xsd identifying each linkbase file.
o Window Taxonomy: The .xsd file imports a .xsd file that contains its taxonomy elements, and linkbase files

identified by linkbaseRef..

o Linkbases in XSD: The .xsd file contains elements and appinfo-located linkbases.

Save Indicates if non-edited reference taxonomies are saved. Useful when renaming taxonomies and referenced taxonomies

Referenced as a group. If false, only those taxonomies of the DTS which are editable (not read only) are saved.

Taxonomies

User Environment

Table 44 Taxonomy Properties Grid Properties—User Environment

Property

Description

Show Language

Selects the label shown in the tree views and elements list view. The selection list includes the current default language
code (tools, then options property), and any other language codes for which labels exist in this DTS.

Show Label Role

Selects the resource role of the label which is being displayed in the tree views and elements list view. For example,
use “Standard” if the default labels are isplayed or “Terse” if the terse labels are displayed. The selection list includes
the default role and any other roles currently in use by labels of this DTS.

Default Type The default data type for the next element to be created in this taxonomy, for example, “String”, or “Monetary”.

Notes A collection of notes contained in this taxonomy. The ellipsis button activates the “Notes Collection Editor” (see
“Collection Editors” on page 126)

Display Color Indicates the color of this taxonomy in the tree views and elements list view (see “Collection Editors” on page 126).

Utility Information

Table 45 Taxonomy Properties Grid Properties—Utility Information

Property

Description

Read Only

Indicates if this taxonomy is read only. “False” indicates that the taxonomy is editable. Changeable in the “Referenced
Taxonomies Collection Editor” (by shortcut menu of its DTS tree view).
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Property Description

Write Extended | Indicates that supplemental information normally stored in the taxonomy native file is saved within the appinfo section

Appinfo of the ta

xonomy “.xsd” file, and saved as needed in the appinfo of taxonomy elements.

Nesting Depth Indicates the nesting depth of this taxonomy in the DTS tree. For example, if this taxonomy is not referenced by other

taxonomies, the value is 0. If this is referenced by the “top level” taxonomy, the value is 1. If this is a referenced
taxonomy of a referenced taxonomy, the nesting depth is 2 or more.

XBRL Metadata

Table 46 Taxonomy Properties Grid Properties—XBRL Metadata

Property Description

Data Types Collection of data types defined by this taxonomy (see “Collection Editors” on page 126). User-defined types
is used by other DTS taxonomies by their prefixed name.

Label Roles Collection of label roles defined by this taxonomy (see “Collection Editors” on page 126).

Reference Roles

Collection of reference roles defined by this taxonomy (see “Collection Editors” on page 126).

Linkbase Roles

Collection of linkbase roles defined for this taxonomy (see “Collection Editors” on page 126).

Extended Link Roles

Collection of extended links in the taxonomy (see “Collection Editors” on page 126).

Arc Roles

Collection of arc roles defined by this taxonomy (see “Collection Editors” on page 126).

XBRL Instance Schema

Indicates the schema location of the XBRL Instance document schema which is referred to in import statements
of this taxonomy.

XBRL Linkbase Schema

Indicates the schema location of the XBRL Linkbase document schema which is referred to in import statements
of this taxonomy.

XBRL Taxonomy Designer Metadata

Table 47 Taxonomy Properties Grid Properties—XBRL Taxonomy Designer Metadata

Property

Description

Formula Roles

A collection editor for formula roles (see “Collection Editors” on page 126).

Formula Linkbase Schema

Indicates the schema location of the XBRL Taxonomy Designer formula linkbase schema which is referred
to by formula linkbases.

Formula Linkbase
Namespace

Indicates the namespace identifier of the formula linkbase schema for formula linkbases.
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Label to Name Conversion Options

These options are loaded with a taxonomy native file, or copied from Tools, then Options for
taxonomies or for loading taxonomies from .xsd files.

When a user enters or modifies a default label (shown language, shown role) for an element in
the relations view or in the property grid, the name of the element is generated automatically,
if appropriate, (this is the default setting) based on the label entered. You may set several name

generation preferences for the application asa whole, or for each taxonomy. These settings enable
you to customize the name generation to, for example, capitalize the first letter of the name,

«w_»

drop connector words from the name such as “the” and “a”, etc.

In case of languages without space characters between words (such as Kanji) the name generation
algorithms may be inapplicable. In these cases it may be best to turn off the feature. This can be
done using Tools, then Options, which copies into a newly-created Taxonomy Properties tab.

Table 48 Taxonomy Properties Grid Properties—Label to Name Conversion Options

Property

Description

Auto Update from Label

Specifies automated generation of names of elements when their default language, default role, labels are
entered or edited.

Use Camel Case

Specifies that the first letter of each word of the label is capitalized when generating an element name from a
label in this taxonomy.

Capitalize First Letter

Specifies that the first letter of an element name is to be capitalized in this taxonomy when generating an
element name from a label.

Word Removal

Specifies that the “Word removal list” is used when generating element names from labels.

Word Removal List

Specifies words to be removed from element names generated from labels (see “Collection Editors” on page
126).

Word Substitution

Specifies that the “Word Substitution List” is used when generating element names from labels

Word Substitution List

Specifies text strings and replacement values to be substituted for them in generating names from labels (see
“Collection Editors” on page 126).
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Instance Documents
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Understanding Instance Documents

XBRL instance documents are collections of fact values for concepts defined in XBRL
taxonomies. There is a tight relationship between taxonomies and instance documents, and the
instance document functionality leverages the robust taxonomy functionality of the application.

When creating instance documents, ensuring data accuracy of the information expressed is also
important. XBRL Taxonomy Designer offers validation features to help ensure data accuracy
including XML validation and XBRL validation of calculation linkbases, formulas, and business
rules.

Basic terms and definitions of associated with the XBRL Taxonomy Designer Instance Document
Editor:

e Instance Documents—A XBRL Instance document is a collection of Facts defined by the
referenced taxonomy organized by Context and Units.

e Contexts—Context contains information about the entity being described, the reporting
period and the reporting scenario. Collectively, these give the appropriate context for
understanding the reported facts.

e Fact Values—A fact value is an individual value for a concept defined in a taxonomy. For
example if a taxonomy defines a concept called “Name,” its fact value may be “Steve.”
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e Business Rules—Business rules are Excel-like formulas which can be used to build complex
validation rules or calculate ratios for business analysis.

e Tuples—A tuple is a structure of items in an instance document, defined in XBRL 2.1 as
complex data types (definition links in XBRL 2.0). For XBRL 2.1 one XML Schema element
is saved in the taxonomy .xsd file specifying the tuple structure. Tuples can contain items
or other tuples, and can be nested to any depth required.

V2 tuples (they do not exist in V1) are usually defined in the definition linkbase. However,
many V2 taxonomies did not provide such definition links, and instead used presentation
links to identify tuple item collections. The taxonomy loader recognizes definition or
presentation links from tuple-to-tuple items as composing a tuple structure.

The conversion process maintains the tuple composition as loaded by the V2 taxonomy
loader, only changing the schema compositional element to all or sequence as indicated.

Instance Editor Components

These topics discuss the components of the Instance Document Edit:
e “Instance Editor Menu Options” on page 108

e “Instance Editor Toolbar Buttons” on page 110

e “Understanding Instance Documents” on page 107

e “Instance Show View Menu” on page 113

Instance Editor Menu Options

The menu options and toolbars change between the Instance Document editor and the
Taxonomy Editor, depending on which screen control is activated.

Following usual windows behavior, activating (by clicking to select) an instance document’s
controls for taxonomy (Taxonomy Relationship View, Taxonomy Elements List, and so on),
switch the toolbar and menus to that of taxonomy editing. Clicking to select any instance control
(Instance Relationship View, Instance Fact Values Grid, Instance Dockable Controls and
Property Grids), switches the menu and toolbar to that of the editing the instance.

Table 49 Instance Document Editor Options

Option Description
New Creates a taxonomy document or instance document.
Open Opens another taxonomy document or instance document.

Note: When an instance document is opened, a taxonomy must be discoverable from the instance document, or
else specified in the Open Instance Document window.

Close Closes an open taxonomy document or instance document. If the instance document has not been saved and
changes are made, you are prompted to save the instance document.
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Option

Description

Save Saves the selected instance document. If the instance document has not been saved previously, you are prompted
to indicate where to save the instance document.
Save as File Saves directly to a location you select.

Save to Server

Saves directly to a Web location you select.

Load taxonomy

Loads a taxonomy into the namespaces collection of this instance document. Allows instance document to contain
fact values described by elements of the specified taxonomy.

Load mapping

Loads a mapping specification replacing a mapping specification that was previously loaded.

Load instance
data

Appends instance data to the current instance document. XBRL 2.1 and XBRL 2.0 instance documents can be
loaded.

Contexts, Units, and Fact Values may be selected for loading from the Open Instance Document window.

Import Import instance document fact values, contexts, and units, from Microsoft Excel, Access, or Word, or OLE DB Provider
databases, CSV, or XML files. If a mapping specification is loaded, mapped source data may be imported, and an
audit trail of mappings captured for reporting.

Page Setup Displays the page setup window where print orientation and other print options can be set.

Print Preview

Preview a report of instance document data, contexts, and source data mapping audit trail.

Print

Print a report of instance document data, contexts, and source data mapping audit trail.

Exit

Exits XBRL Taxonomy Designer.

Table 50 Instance View Menu Options

Option Description

Tree Order | Select how you want to view the instance document. See “Instance View Pane” on page 111.

Show Use a non-tree view for the Instance View pane. There are several options. See “Instance Show View Menu” on page 113.

Table 51 Instance Tool Menu Options

Instance Tools Menu

Options

Description

Analyze Business

Rules

Validate the instance document validation with a set of business rules, usually provided as a set of formulas in
an extension taxonomy to the instance data’s taxonomy. Defaults to saving fact values produced by business
rules formulas in an instance document.

Validate Instance

Validate the instance document for selected XML and XBRL options. Performs calculation linkbase validation.

Document Formulas for elements related in calculation linkbase attempt to “fire” during calculation linkbase checking, those
of elements unrelated by calculation linkbase attempt to “fire” at end. Options to compute missing fact values,
to save them, and various reporting features.

Options Opens the application Options form to set XBRL Taxonomy Designer options.

Plug-ins Plug-in tools dynamically loaded from plug-in directory are provided here. Includes XBRL Taxonomy Designer

provided and end user provided plug-ins.
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Instance Tools Menu
Options Description

XBRL GL Importer Performs a conversion to a financial reporting taxonomy instance document for a loaded and selected XBRL GL
instance document,

XBRL Stylist Allows interactive editing and preview of formatted instance document display using XSLT style sheets.

Table 52 Instance Windows Menu Options

Option Description
Show All Dockable Controls Show all dockable controls which are hidden for some reason.
Hide All Dockable Controls Hide all dockable controls.

Taxonomy Properties

Instance Document Properties

Table 53 Instance Help Menu Options

Option Description

Disclosure Management Online Help | Opens the online help that is the most up to date help for XBRL Taxonomy Designer .

License agreement Displays the XBRL Taxonomy Designer license agreement.
Application registration Enter application registration codes into the application.
About Displays the XBRL Taxonomy Designer About box.

Instance Editor Toolbar Buttons

This section explains the Instance Editor toolbar.

O-&- gl & & B X | B

Table 54 Instance Editor Toolbar Buttons

Option Description

B Same functionality as File, then New.

~u Same functionality as File, then Open.
= - d P

gﬁ Same functionality as File, then Save.
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Option Description

[ﬂ Same functionality as File, then Close.

Same functionality as File, then Print, then Print.

Same functionality as File, then Print Preview, and then Print Preview.

o P

Same functionality as Tools, then Validate Instance Document, and then Validate Instance Document.

3
-

&

a]

Same functionality as Tools, then Validate Business Rules, and then Validate Business Rules.

Instance View Pane

The Instance View pane provides a relationship tree view of the instance. You can select the
hierarchical order in which the instance is displayed by clicking View, then Tree Order.
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Table 55 Instance Document Tree Order Views

Tree Order View Description
Category - Entry - This view represents a presentation of linkbase-oriented grouping of fact values organizing by:
Period

1. The presentation linkbase position of the fact’s element.
2. The context period.
3. The fact entry order.

This usually organizes most along the presentation intentions of the taxonomy authors and is the default tree
order.

Entity - Element - This view sorts by:
Period 1. The business entity of context, where fact values aggregate data for multiple reporting entities.
2. Presentation linkbase position of fact’s element.

3. Context period.

4. Fact entry order.

Entity - Period - Entry This view sorts by:

1. Business entity of context.

2. Context period

3. Presentation linkbase position of fact’s element

4., Fact entry order.

Period - Entity - This view sorts by:
Element 1. Context period

2. Business entity of context

3. Presentation linkbase position of fact’s element

4. Entry order.

Footnote - Period - This view is used as a special case where the footnotes are used as the major ordering of the tree. Footnotes
Entity form a means of organizing related fact values by instance linkbase.

Within each footnote, the view is sorted by:

1. Context period

2. Business entity of context

3. Presentation linkbase position of fact’s element

4. Fact entry order.

Source Document Order | This view shows the order of facts in the source instance document file.

112 Instance Documents



Instance Show View Menu

» To use a view other than Tree Order, select View, then Show, and then select options.
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Table 56 Instance Show View Menu Options

Instance Show View Menu Option

Description

All Instance Details

Shows all of the Instance Details.

By selected Instance Columns

Show all of the details of the select columns.

By context labels

Categorizes the view by context labels.

Labels

Categorizes the view by the labels.

Element Names

Categorizes the view by the element names.

Tuple Contents as root choices

Ccategorizes the view by the tuple contents.

Cut, Copy and Paste (Fill Down, Up, and Across)

When editing (filling down/up/across) multiple cells, you may wish to multi-select and fill
multiple cells. Select these cells, and then selecting Ctrl+X / Ctrl+C deactivates the controls when
selecting individual cells, and enable you to cut/copy and paste into multiple cells.
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Note: The use of these functions bypass the XBRL Taxonomy Designer normal functions and
work directly on the data grid. This is not recommend for normal use and may lead to
errors.

Selecting the Ctrl key when selecting a cell with the mouse left button down and dragging down
cell copies the value in the first cell to the other cells when the mouse button is released.

Example:

Seqguence

Elerment

Context IIhit

Yalue

[ 1

ciland

Context-2003 Euros

ci: building

cifurniturefistures

ci: ComputerEquipment

ci: Other

[nyll R =SY N J L]

ci: TotalPropertyPlantEquipment

2
3
4
5
5]
7
3

1. Select a range of cells and enter Ctrl + C to copy the cells.

Seguence

Element

Context LInit

“alue

1

cizland

Context-2003 Euros

citbuilding

ci:furniturefixtures

ci:ComputerEguipment

ci: Other

O | P | e | DO B2

ci: TotalPropertyPlantEquipment

2. Select a range of cells to paste (fill with a value) and then enter Ctrl + P to paste the cells.

Sequence [Elerment Context LInit Walue
1 ci:land Context-2003  [EBuros
2 ci:building Context-2003  |Euros
3 ci:furniturefixtures Context-2003  [Euros
4 ci.CamputerEquipment Context-2003  |Euros
5 ci: Other Context-2003  |Euros
3] ci: TotalPropentyPlantEquipment Context-2003  |Euros
Note: Pasting invalid values into cells causes the error shown below.
seguence |Element Context  [Unit “alue
1 ci:land Context-2003  [Euros
2 ci:building Context-2003  |Euros
3 cifurniturefixtures Context-2003  |Euros
4 ci: ComputerEguipment Context-2003  |Euros
5 ci: Other Context-2003  [Euros
5 ci:TotalPropertyPlantEquipment Context-2003  |Euros

¥alue entry error

Cannot paste to cell, invalid value for davyatype.
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Table 57 Data Grid Shortcut Keys

Shortcut | Description

Ctrl+C De-activates the drop-down and sets focus on cells for a copy operation.

Ctrl+X De-activates a cell dropdown, and sets focus on cells for a cut operation.

Ctrl+D Deletes the row (vertical row-by-row view).

Delete Deletes what is in the selected field.

Creating an Instance Document

» To use XBRL Taxonomy Designer to create an instance, from within the Instance Editor,

select File then New, and then Instance.

From the instance editor, you can add to this instance document by creating contexts, entities,

periods, and fact values.
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Related Topics

“Using the Context Collection Editor” on page 127
“Using Entities” on page 131
“Using the Period Collection Editor” on page 134

“Fact Values Pane” on page 128
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Opening an Instance Document

This section explains how to open an instance document using a:
e local machine

e the web

Opening an Instance Document Using a Local Machine

» To open an instance document from your local system from the XBRL Taxonomy Designer
main screen:

1  Select File, then Open, and then Instance.

Instance Dociment fle o wieb addoess

J = & g
Busnes: Fues of Inslance Document bonomy. B8 name of web

r =) & g
anings I WML vaidsie
Eorbed 1D | Date | Eniy I ¥ERL vaidsle

vabdahe
S ek g
F

™ ‘wWiamirg:

I% Chesck 2

| _conca |

Three icons in the top right of the window allow you to open instance documents.

2 Click to open the Select an Instance Document browse window and navigate to the location of
an Instance document file.

3 Browse to the instance document.
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Select an XBRL Instance Document

Look i [ depp-2004-06-15 x| + Bk E-
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4 Double-click the appropriate instance document file or select it and click Open.

Labels links, Presentation links, and Calculation links information for the instance
document displays in the Open Instance Document window as shown below.

Irnstance Document e of web addiess:
[E\Pragram Fies\UBmatis LI Bmatios Atomator, HEFL Profezsional - Evahuson v 401 sampleshdrs-ger 2004-06-1545 ampleCompa M L
Busness RBues o Instance Document tasonomy: fle name o web
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Priofrice_as0f 20123 S ample Compary ™ Wamngs
[F Cuert_Shares 2003-01-12003..  Sample Compary
[¥] Prior_Shaves 20020002002 . Sample Company Clear &1
o | Comeol |
|

5 Select the appropriate load options and click OK at the bottom of the window to load the selected
instance document.

The Instance Document Editor screen is displayed with the selected instance document
loaded and ready for edit as seen below. If you selected any of the validation options from
the Instance Document Load section, XBRL Taxonomy Designer automatically validates
the instance document and reports all errors and warnings in the message section at the
bottom of the screen.
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Opening an Instance Document Using the Web

» To open an instance document from your local system from the XBRL Taxonomy Designer
main screen:

1 Select File, then Open, and then Instance.

Instance Dociment fle o web addoes

I
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2 Click @ to open the Select an Instance Document using the Web browse window.

3 Select the appropriate file and click Open.

Select an XBRL Instance Document

Look i [ 2 ilre-gp-2004-0615 = + BckEE-
b 5] ifrs-0p-2004-06-15-cakoulation 2] TestData-IncomeStatement -ByMabure
n_.b 2 ifrs-gp-Z004-06- 1 5-1abel 2 TestData-StatementofEguicy
MyRecerd |9 ifirs-gp-2004-06-15-presenkation
D“'_:‘f"'i* 2 ifrs-gp-2004-06-15-reference [%
[a ) MewTaxenoy_nstine
ﬂhlew‘.l’axm-labd
Deshlop 33 s ampleCompany-2004-06-15
: "2 TestDuta-AccountingPolicies
.‘J 3] TestDuata-Balance Sheet-Classified
“#] TestData-Balonce Shoot -betassots
St Decment %] TestDuata-Balance Shest-Cr derOf Ligusdity
"] TestData-CashFlows-Diract
i_! 3] TestData-CashFlows-Tndirect
c 2] TestDuata-ExplanstoryDistos res
= = ] TestData-TncomeStasbement By Fundtion
- ( ’
H}IPI‘\L?M File e |i|5—w-m-tﬁ-15-:d:ddm ;J I Open I
.23
Fibers of npe: |>'CEF|L Instance D ocuments [ bl ] ﬂ ﬂ

4  Double-click the appropriate instance document file or select it and click Open.

Labels links, Presentation links, and Calculation links information for the instance

document displays in the Open Instance Document.

5 Select the appropriate load options and click OK at the bottom of the window to load the selected

instance document.

The Instance Document Editor screen is displayed with the selected instance document
loaded and ready for edit. If you select any of the validation options from the Instance
Document Load section, XBRL Taxonomy Designer automatically validates the instance
document and reports all errors and warnings in the message section at the bottom of the

screen.
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Instance Document Load Options

There are several Instance Document load options in the Open Instance Document window.
Each of the taxonomy load options are detailed in the table below.

Table 58 Instance Document Load Options

Instance Document Load

Options Description

XML validate Activates the XBRL Taxonomy Designer XML Validation of the Instance Document during load.

XBRL validate Validates the instance according to standard XBRL practices.

Taxonomy validate Validates the taxonomy associated with this instance document.

Show Messages: Errors Sets the level of errors which appear in the messages dialog. Check this button to see non-fatal errors in

Instance or Instance Document validation.

Show Messages: Warnings | Sets the level of warnings which appear in the messages dialog. Check this button to see non-fatal errors
in Instance or Taxonomy validation.

Enable Editing Unlocks read only instance documents. Use this function to make an extension of a taxonomy or instance,
such as the US-GAAP.
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Properties Grid

This section explains how to use the instance document properties grid.

Instance Document Properties Grid

You can edit the properties of the instance document or of individual contexts using the Instance
Document Properties Grid pane. The tabs at the bottom of the grid allow you to select which
set of properties you are viewing. The options include Instance, Context, Period, or Fact Value.

The figure below shows the properties that display when the Instance tab is selected.

fstance 03
(New)
Description
FilePath E:" My Documents', My Project Files' Professional Sery
Base
rbrlversion Unknown
ShowLanguage en English
Mamespaces {Collection - 2)
Contexts {Collection - 2}
Factvalues {Collection - 12)
Inits {Collection - 1)
Enkities {Collection - 1)
Periods {Collection - 2}
Srcenarios {Collection - 1)
Footnotes {Collection - emply)
Zateqories {Collection - emply)
Mappings {Collection - empty)
Presentations (Collection - empty)
_Name
ﬁ Instance Conkexts |ﬁ Factvalues |

The table below gives descriptions of the properties listed in the Instance Properties Grid.

Table 59  Descriptions of Instance Properties

Property Description
Name Instance document name (for example, “Balance Sheet - 2003-12-31")
Description Instance document description (for example, “Balance sheet for the year ended December 31, 2003, released version,

approved by the CFO”

File Path Physical location of the instance document, usually a local drive path or URL

Base Supports XML:Base attributes
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Property

Description

XBRL Version

Instance document XBRL version, for example, “XBRL Version 2.1”

Show Language

Indicates the user preference of thelanguage to use within this instance document. Useful when multiple label linkbases
exist for the instance document.

Note: The instance document language is distinct from the taxonomy language.

Read Only

Indicates that the instance document is read only. You may change this option to make the instance document read
only. For example, False which indicates the instance document is read/write.

Namespaces

Collection of all namespaces included in this instance document. Ellipsis button activates Namespaces Collection
Editor. Expansion button allows in-place editing.

Taxonomies are loaded in course of loading instance documents and by File, then Load, then Taxonomy. Namespaces
that refer to .xsd files which are not taxonomies can be explicitly specified here.

Contexts

Collection of contexts for this instance document. Ellipsis button activates the Contexts Collection Editor. Expansion
button allows in-place editing.

Contexts are automatically loaded with instance documents; they can be imported by the import facility; they can be
manually entered by the Contexts Collection Editor, by in-place editing, and from the Fact Values Data List Contexts
column Add/Choose option.

Fact Values

Collection of fact values for this instance document. Fact values are shown in the Fact Values Data List of the Instance
Document Editor. The ellipsis button activates an additional pop up Fact Values Data List control. Expansion button
allows in-place editing. The Fact Values dockable control allows expansion of individual fact values.

Fact Values are automatically loaded with instance documents; they can be imported by the import facility; they can
be manually entered by the Fact Values Collection Editor, and by in-place editing.

Units

Collection of units for this instance document. Ellipsis button activates the Units Collection Editor.

Units are automatically loaded with instance documents; they can be imported by the import facility; they can be
manually entered by the Units Collection Editor, and from the Fact Values Data List Units column Add/Choose option.

Entities

Collection of entities for this instance document. An XBRL Entity is a reporting organization such as Universal Business
Matrix, LLC. Ellipsis button activates the Entities Collection Editor.

Entities are automatically loaded with instance documents; they can be imported by the import facility; they can be
manually entered by the Context Add/Choose window or Contexts Collection Editor, Entity property, and from the Fact
Values Data List using the contexts column, Add/Choose, context’s entity property.

Substitution
group

The substitution group attribute is defined on every element. By default, it must be an item or a tuple. It can also hold
the value of other elements, which are derived from items or tuples.

An item is the default substitution group for a concept that is reported in an instance document with a value.

A tuple is used to group of items in an instance document.

Periods

Collection of periods for this instance document. Ellipsis button activates the Periods Collection Editor.

Scenarios

Collection of scenarios for this instance document. Ellipsis button activates the Scenarios Collection Editor.

Categories

Collection of categories for this instance document Ellipsis button activates the Category Collection Editor.

Note: A category is an arbitrary piece of an instance document. Categories are used to help organize the instance
document and to partition the instance document into physical files, if appropriate.
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Property Description

Mappinginfo Collection of mappings for this instance document including.
Property

Description

FilePath

The file path of the mappings specification

Type

Type of mapping (see Taxonomy Mapping)

Key Column

Columns mapped in source data

Group Key Start Pattern

For repeating groups (as in cash flow statements)

Group Repeat Period

The time period for the import group. For example, 1 Year
Mappings

Collection of mapping specifications (from Taxonomy Mapping design)

Instance Grid Views

This section explains how to work with instance grid views.

Element, Property, or Value

Depending on which cell you select, a list of concepts, properties, or a value control is displayed
to enable you to build an instance. Examples are shown below.

Figure 12 Elements

;I Conbex-2003

ci-MamaR elatedParty
cizNaturaPalationship
cizRedatedParty

i Trarsactior@ricngPolicy
gi:TransactionWithRelatedP ety
¢i: TypeRelationship

ci: TypeTrancaction

PP e — i THOED | i
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Figure 13  Properties

ifrz-gp
hittp: £ bl iazh. org/fint A difis/ gpd2005-05-15

ifrz-gp-2005-05-15. xsd

hittp: £ bl iazb. ong St AvS i gpd 2005-05-15Fifrz-gp- 20006-05-15, ksd
Tawonomy

False

ifrz-gp

Figure 15 Tuple Name

= Tionsusiney dit3 J
£ Shesny Fibe (o 2005-05-15 )
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1
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&5 Drebraton oo 0505 15-defindion ol Enabls aclking
v Fresantsfod [n-goe 20050051 S poeterd shor srd]
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] | e ) |

The string which is displayed in the value field for a tuple header row "(tuple)" is the first concept
within the tuple definition which happens to be a string. If the tuple has an id (IDREF), then
you may display the (tuple) annotation. (This feature has not been implemented.) You can also
edit/change this string.

Figure 16  Excel Grouped Concepts

12| A B C D E
1 |Element Context Units F D
[ - | 2 |Directar
3 | MName Context-String

4 Salary Context 2003 Euros INF

5 | Bonus Context 2003 Euros IMF

B Directar Fees Context 2003 Euros IMF

« | ¥ | Fair“alue of Options Granted  |Context 2003 Euros IMF
= [ &
0

Tuple contained concepts are grouped using a colored line as listed per the tuple definition.
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Item concepts are listed individually.

Instance Grid Field Display

When you open an instance document, by default all instance details are shown. These titles and
values are justified within the fact value grid below. The grid control acts are similar to Excel in
that you can edit cells values directly, or enter values from available value lists. You can also use
the fill, cut, copy, or paste features between cells. Where these operations should be prohibited,
then error handling is defined. When grid cells are displaying non-editable data this is reflected
by graying out the item (or another similar color.)
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Collection Editors

This section explains how to work with the following editors:

e Namespace Collection Editor

e Context Collection Editor

e Fact Value Collection Editor

Namespace Col

lection Editor

This Editor can be found in the Instance Property Grid.

amespace Collcton tator

Members:

CE | L
|

.::i Properties:

Description

MamespacePreft o

Mamespaceldent hittp S www, orade com
MamespaceSche FiniteNumberOf Value

FilePath C:A\CurrentVersions\
| XbriTaxonomy | True
(B Taxonomy d
Label

oK | Cancel Help

—

Table 60 Namespace Collection Editor Fields

Property Description
Label Namespace label (for example, US GAAAP Cl). The namespace label is derived from the taxonomy, if it exists.
Description Namespace description.

Namespace Prefix

Taxonomy namespace prefix, which is the same as the namespace's xmins entry in the instance document. It
represents the instance document’s prefix for the taxonomy (or schema file), which can differ from the one the
taxonomy (schema file) uses or the ones other referencing taxonomies (schema files) use.

Namespace Namespace identifier for the taxonomy or schema file. A unique identifier must be the same everywhere.
Identifier
Namespace Schema location the instance document specifies. This is not the same as the file path if a local cache or resolver

Schema Location

is involved.
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Property Description

File Path Physical location of the taxonomy on local disk or URL (for example, C: \ Temp \MyTaxonomy . xsd).

XBRL Taxonomy Boolean value that indicates whether the taxonomy is an XBRL taxonomy or other schema (for example, True indicates
that the taxonomy is an XBRL taxonomy).

Taxonomy If the schema file is an XBRL taxonomy, then expand this property to access the taxonomy properties, including
referenced taxonomy and linkbase collections. If you have read and write permissions for the taxonomy, you can
edit these taxonomy properties.

Using the Context Collection Editor

This Editor is located in the Instance Property Grid.

=

Context¥ 21 Collection Editor

Memnbeiz Cionbesd- 2003 Propesties
O +| | Lad
1| Contest-2002 Drescaiption
:J o Context- 2003
E ity SAMP
Penod al 20HK3-12-31
Scenano Scenaio 1
Label
Ideniifysrg babeel lof the conbesd
Add | Remove |
Ok | Cancel | Hewo |
i |

This is the Contexts Add/Choose window for adding, choosing, and editing contexts from within
the Fact Values Data List:
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Description
I

Entity
Feriod
Scenanio

Label

| dentifying label far the contest.

Context-2003
SAMP

at 2003-12-31
Scenario 1

ﬂ_}ﬂﬂnntextiﬂm jﬂﬂﬂ

The Contexts Add/Choose window displays a property grid of the current context, and a browser
bar at the bottom. The browser bar lets you add (B) contexts to the collection, delete (&), scroll,

or accept (b)) a context choice, or cancel (&) context changes for the selected property.

Table 61 Fields in the Context Collection Editor

Property Description

Label Associate a label with a context. This label must be unique for each context, and is used in dialog boxes when referring to
contexts within the application (for example, “Current Period”).

Description | Context description (for example, “Current reporting period for the company”).

Context ID | XBRL context ID assigned to the context. This must be an XML ID (for example, “CurrentPeriod”).

Entity The Entity label, a unique entity ID from the entity collection within this instance document (for example, “Sample Company”.
The drop-down button activates the Entity Add/Choose window.

Period The Period label, a unique period ID from the period collection within this instance document (for example, “2003”). The
drop-down button activates the Period Add/Choose window.

Scenario The Scenario label, a unique scenario ID from the scenarios collection within this instance document (for example,” -
Actual-". The drop-down button activates the Scenario Add/Choose window.

Fact Values Pane

The figure below shows the Fact Values pane window.
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Instance - SampleCompany-2004-06-15 1 b X

= SampleCompary-2004-06-15
= Element: ifrs-gp:PropertyPlantEquipment et
= Period: at 2002-12-31
Item 13 Frs-gp:PropertyPantEquipmentiet Prior_AsOF
+ Periad: at 2003-12-31
+ Elament: ifrs-gp:InvestmentProperty
+ [Elament: ifrs-gp:Intangblsfssetshiat
+ Element: ifrs-gp:Investments JointYenturesCost
+ Ebament: ifrs-gp:fssetsonCurrent Tokal
+ [Element: ifrs-gp:Inventories
+ Element: ifrs-gp:TradeCtherReceivablestetCurrent
+ Element: ifrs-gp:PrepayirentsCurrent
s
+
*
+
+

-
>

Element: ifrs-gp:CashCashEquivalents

Element: ifrs-gp:dsseksCurrent Tokal

Element: ifrs-gp:deseksTatal

Elamenit: ifrs-gp:IssusdCapital

Element: ifrs-gp:Reserves |
Elament: ifrs-gp:RetasinedProfitsaccumulstedl osses e

Sequence D | Sou
4

e - R R TR

Elzrrenit Context PlD Linit. JET Valus Effective Yalue Co |Foot i_l
12 Frs-gp:PropertyPla... Current_A.. |
13 ifrs-gpeProperty®la.. Prior_fsOF
14 Fre-gpilnvestment ., Current_A...
15  Frs-gpilnvestment .. Prior_asOf
16  Frs-gp:Intangbled... Current 4.
17 ifrs-gp:Intangibled, .. Prior_AsOFf

18 FeenriTnaarkmand Ciswank A

U-Euros Fa.. 540000 540,000 Fa. (n
U-Euros Fa.. 400000 400,000 Fa.. (n
U-Euros Fa... 150000 Fa

U-Euros Fa.. 150000 150 Fa.. (n
U-Euros Fa.. 140000 140,000 Fa.. (n
U-Euros Fa.. 150000 150,000 Fa.. (n

1 LFi i Fa ANNY A0 I Fa in ﬂ__

2000 0 00O

Note: Fact values which are tuples have no context, unit, decimal, precision value, or value
associated with them.

Table 62 Fact Values Collection Editor Fields

Option

Description

Sequence

Shows the physical order of the fact value in the instance document. The sequence provides outlining to expand/
hide tuple contents where tuples are available. Tuple elements are distinctly colored, and when the tuple is expanded,
the shading of internal tuple items distinguishes tuple contents from others.

Element name

Taxonomy element name for the fact value.
When selected, an incremental-searching taxonomy element name finder is displayed as a drop-down combo box.

When the element names combo box is dropped down, as you type the letter of a prefix, the closest is highlighted.
Typing more letters selects between several which begin with same pattern. If the right prefix is highlighted, the right
arrow button moves the cursor past the prefix highlight, and you can type the element name. Names are scrolled
into view to correspond to incremental search by the letters typed, to make finding names in long lists very fast.

Context

The context reference from a context within the contexts collection within this instance document. For example, -
Context-2003-.

The drop-down button activates list of available contexts with bottom entry -...Add/Choose...-, which activates
Context Add/Choose window (q.v., above). Must be blank for tuples.

Precision (Detail
Column,
abbreviated -P-)

A value for precision. For example, -7-.

Note: Afactvalue may have a decimal value, or a precision value, but not both. The application default is decimals,
but the default can be changed in instance document options.

Must be blank for non-numeric and tuple elements, or if decimals are specified.
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Option

Description

Decimals (Detail
Column,
abbreviated -D-)

A value for decimals. For example, --3- to mean accurate to thousands.

Note: Afactvalue may have a decimal value, or a precision value, but not both. The application default is decimals,
but the default can be changed in instance document options.

Must be blank for non-numeric and tuple elements, or if precision is specified.

Unit

The unit reference from a unit within the units collection within this instance document. For example, -Units-
Monetary-.

Drop-down button activates list of available units with bottom entry -...Add/Choose...-, which activates the Unit
Add/Choose window (q.v., above).

Must be blank for non-numeric and tuple elements.

Is Nil

Indicates a nill value for the item fact value. Must be blank for tuple elements

Value

The value of the item. For example, -930000-.

(For tuple elements, the first string value of the tuple is shown grayed out on the tuple line, to provide a name or
account field hint of what an unexpanded tuple contains in its item fields.)

Effective Value
(Detail Column,
read only)

The computed effective value, for numeric fields, taking into account decimals and precision. Shows the effective
value for calculation validation and formula processing.

Blank for non-numeric fields and tuple elements.

Computed Value
(Detail column,
read only,
abbreviated -
Comp-)

Set to true if the value was computed (and saved) by XBRL validation from calculation roll-up or formula execution.

Footnotes

Provides access to the footnote collection editor.
Footnotes represent a way of providing data-centric associations between fact values.

The drop-down button activates a check list of available footnotes with bottom entry -...Add/Choose...-, which if
clicked on the name or check box, activates the footnote add/choose.

Fact Values Data List

A collection editor used to create, update, or delete facts in the instance document. In addition,
you can set or modify the facts’ Context or Units.
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Instance - SampleCompany-2004-06-15

= SampleCompary-2004-06-15
= Element: ifrs-gp:PropertyPlantEquipmentiet
= Period: at 2002-12-31
Item 13 Frs-gp:PropertyPantEquipmentiet Prior_AsOF

+ Periad: at 2003-12-31
El=ment: ifrs-gp:InvestmentProperty
El=menit: ifrs-gp:Intangblafssetshiat
Elsrment: ifrs-gp:Investments JointYenturesCost
Elament: ifrs-gp:dssstsbonCurrent Tokal
Eb=ment: ifrs-gp:Invenkories
Element: ifrs-gp:TradeCtherReceivableshetCurrent
Element: ifrs-gp:PrepayrentsCurrent
Element: ifrs-gp:CashCashEquivalents
Element: ifrs-gp:dsseksCurrent Tokal
Element: ifrs-gp:deseksTatal
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The Fact Values Grid provides a shortcut menu of operations. This menu can be accessed from
within the Fact Values Grid or from the factValues window accessed by clicking the ellipsis
button in the Instance Properties Grid. These menu options are described in the table below.

Table 63 Fact Value Grid Shortcut Menu Options

I5mil Values
Fa..
Fa..
Fa...
Fa..
Fa..
Fa..

Fa

Effectiva Yalue  Co

S40000 540,000
400000 400,000
150000 50,000
150000 150,000
140000 140,000
150000 150,000

AANNN &N nnn

Fa
Fa
Fa
Fa
Fa
Fa

Fa

Option | Description

Insert Rows above: Inserts rows above selected row.

Rows below: Inserts rows below selected row.

(Rows can also be appended to the end of the collection by tabbing or entering -past- the last extant row of the data grid.)

Delete Deletes the currently selected row.

Copy Copies the current data grid, as visible, to the clipboard, for pasting into Excel or a text editor.

Paste Pastes data values copied from Excel into the Fact Values Data List.

Show Enables you to choose to display fact values using labels or element names. Also allows toggling between displaying or hiding

additional table columns..

Refresh | Reloads the fact values collection.

Fill Center the appropriate result in the first cell. Highlight that cell and click the column of that cell. Right-click and select Fill. This

fills the rest of that cell when the same result as the highlighted cell.

Using Entities

The figure below shows the Entity Collection Editor window. This editor islocated in the Instance

Property Grid.
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Members: SAMP Properfies:
#| [ Lebe
Segment{ML
+ | Identifier SAMP
Scheme http-//www _Samplel
Label
Identifying label for the entity.
0K | Cancel Help |
Y
» To add a member to the Entity Collection:
1 Select Add (*).
Entities x
L abel
|dentifier SAMP
Scheme http://www_ S ampleCompany_.com
Segmentz=iL
Label
|dentifying label for the entity.
| x| 4 anP ~ v x|
2 Use the following table to specify member properties.
Table 64 Entity Collection Editor Fields
Property Description
Label Label for entities used within this instance document (for example, “~-Sample company-"). The label must be unique
within the instance document.
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Property Description

Identifier Identifier associated with the entity as defined by the XBRL specification (for example, “~-SAMP-").

Scheme Scheme associated with the entity as defined by the XBRL specification (for example, “-http://www.sampleCompany.
com-").

Segment XML fragment, as defined by the XBRL specification, that can be used within the segment element within the entity

XML portion of a context (for example, “~<my:Region>Europe<my:Region>-")

Note: If the segment XML uses entities not defined in the taxonomy (as data types), then you must add an
appropriate namespace to the namespace segment entity definitions collection (for example, to generate an “-
xmlns:my-" construct).

Using Categories

Categories help organize instance document fact values and partition instance document fact
values into documents. Use the Collection Editor to edit categories.

The figure below shows the Category Collection Editor window. This Editor is located in the

Instance Property Grid.

Category Collection Editor '

Members: UBHEﬂudlo.C.ategq}' Properties:
] UBMStudio Category Label ;
Elementhlame '
Order 0 |

Identifying label for the category.

Add | Remove |
oK | Cencel Help |
s

Table 65 Fields in the Category Collection Editor

Option

Description

Label

The category label, which must be unique within the instance document (for example, “~-Balance Sheet-" for all fact
values in the balance sheet document)

Element name

Category description

Order

Fact value collection for the category
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Using the Period Collection Editor

The figure below shows the Period Collection Editor window. This Editor can be found in the
Instance Property Grid.
Period Collection Editor
at 2003-12-31 Propesties:
[ at 20031231 Type Instant
1] at 200212-21 Label at 2003-12-31
A 124312003

Type
Select the type of interval or instant of time

» To add a member to the Period Collection:click Add (*).
1 Select Add (*).

ﬁ'eriua‘: E|
Tope Instant _:_g
Label at 2002-12-1
At 1243152002
_'I:ype =
Select the type af interval or instant of time
| x| (pramze <1 »] v x]

2 Use the following table to specify the period fields.

Table 66 Fields in the Period Collection Editor

Option Description

Label Human readable label for each period which is used in combo boxes. Must be unique within an
instance document. For example, -As of January 31, 2004-.
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Option

Description

Type

Indicates the type of period, values are -Instant-, -Duration- or -Forever-.

Note: If-Instant- is selected, then the property grid displays a property -Instant- to enter an instant
value. If -Duration- is selected, then -StartDate- and -EndDate- is displayed. If -Forever- is selected,
no other properties are displayed.

Instant (Only displays if type
of -Instant-.)

Instant per the XBRL specification. For example, -2003-12-31-. The drop-down button activates a
date-chooser control.

Start Date (Only displayed if
type of -Duration- is
selected.)

Date and time per the XBRL specification. For example, -2003-01-01-. The drop-down button
activates a date-chooser control.

End Date (Only displayed if
type of -Duration- is
selected.)

Date and time per the XBRL specification. Must be greater than the value for Start Date. For example,
-2003-12-31-. The drop-down button activates a date-chooser control.

Using the Mapping Collection Editor

See “Mapping Collection Editor” on page 173.

Scenarios Collection Editor

The figure below shows the Scenarios Collection Editor window. This Editor can be found in

the Instance Property Grid.

Members:

1] Scenano 1

Scenario Collection Editor

e, | Exousiisn.
ﬂ Label Scenario 1
_l ScenanoxXML <god actual xmins o
+

[abal
Identifying label for the circumstances of
I associated fact values.

oK Cancel Help |
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» To add a member to the Scenario Collection, click Add (*).

Scenariu D
Label Scenario 1
Scenanoitl  <gcd-actual /> _l
Scenarnia*ML
Inproceszed ML used to document the circumstances
surrounding the measurement of a zet of factz, and like ..
#| x| «Bemnaiat BN

Table 67 Fields in the Scenario Collection Editor

Property Description

Label Human readable label for units which is used in combo boxes in the application. Each scenario label is unique to the
instance document. For example, -Actual-.

Scenario Well-formed XML fragment, as defined by the XBRL specification, which can be used within the scenario element of a

XML context. For example, -<my:Scenario>Actual<my:Scenario>-

Note: If the scenario XML utilizes entities not defined in a taxonomy (as data types), then an appropriate namespace
must be added to the collection of namespaces for any scenario definitions, for example, to generate an -xmins:my-

construct..

Units Collection Editor

The figure below shows the Units Collection Editor window. This Editor can be found in the

Instance Property Grid.
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r

Unit Collection Editor

Members:

Unritz-Morwelany Propeities:
+|
Dexcription
ﬂ D Units-Monetary
Tupe SimpleUnit

MessmeSimpleTerm 1204217 eur

Label
| dentiying label for the urat,
Remove |

I 1] 4 I Cancel

£

» To add a member to the Unit Collection, click Add (*).

Unit =
Label
Dezcrption
10 Urnitz-Monetary
Type SimpleUmt
MeazureSimpleTerm  i204217:USD _:_ﬂl
MeazureSimpleT erm
A zingle meazure OMame, comprized of an optional
namespace prefi< and alocal part zeparated by a colon
_‘_aﬂj‘_]_jjJnits-MDnetary :_J_}Jﬂj_j

Table 68 Fields in the Units Collection Editor

Property Description

Label Human readable label for units which is used in combo boxes in the application. Each units label is unique to the instance
document. For example, -Monetary-.

Description | Readable optional description which can be associated with each unit to make understanding the units easier. For example,
-Monetary units in US dollars which should be used for all values.-

Units ID XBRL Unit ID which is written in the instance document. Must be an XML ID. For example, -Units-Monetary-.

Type Indicates if it is it single valued unit, a multiplication of terms, or division of multiplied terms.

Measure Measure value. For example of single-valued unit, -iso04217:USD-, -shares-, -pure-. For multiplied or divided terms, an
ellipsis button activates a collection editor of the multiplied, or divisor/dividend term collections.
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Linkbases Collection Editor

The Linkbases collection editor shows the detached and linked linkbases, extended links, and
extended link contents for each taxonomy in the DTS. This Editor can be found in the Instance
Property Grid.

Extended link contents are relationship collections (presentation, collection, definition, and
custom linkbases), and otherwise resource collections (labels, documentation, references, and
formulas).

Open the linkbase collection editor from the taxonomy properties window or from reference
taxonomies, select a schema from the DTS and then select Linkbases.

When the Linkbases collection editor is activated from the linkbases property of an opened base
taxonomy, then the top taxonomy’s linkbases are those shown.

When activated from a Referenced Taxonomies (DTS) Collection editor, any of the DTS
taxonomies may be selected and their linkbases edited.

The linkbases collection editor manages a taxonomy’s linkbases and, within each linkbase,
extended links which contain labels, formulas, references, or relationship arcs.
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The tree view of linkbases is opened from a selected taxonomy’s properties; that taxonomy is
the root of the linkbase collection tree. Below the taxonomy in the linkbase collection tree are
linkbases containing at the next levels extended links, each containing at the next levels the
respective extended links’ contents (collections of labels, formulas, references, and
relationships).

With the tree root taxonomy selected, its taxonomy property grid is shown in the right pane.
(For convenience, you can click the taxonomy’s reference parts collection to bring up any of the
referenced taxonomies’ linkbase collection editors while the subject taxonomy linkbase
collection editor is also displayed.)

The first linkbase of each taxonomy is that which, when populated, is physically within the .xsd
file in the appinfo section. In the default and most common situation, this linkbase is not utilized.

The usual and default linkbases are labels, references, relationships of presentation, calculation,
and definition, and the formulas linkbase.

Linkbases can be linked or detached. When they are linked using a linkbaseRef from the schema,
they are discovered during the loading process and are considered part of the DTS. When the
linkbase are not linked, you can add them from the open dialog. See the Detached / Linked
Linkbase section.
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You can also Linkbases can also be editable (read/write) or read-only, from within the linkbase
collection editor you can choose to make the linkbase editable or read-only. Note you can choose
to make the schema, linkbases, and reference taxonomies editable or read-only from the load
dialog or from the reference taxonomies dialog.

When a linkbase node selected on the linkbases tree view, the property grid contains the linkbase
properties described in the table below.

Table 69 Linkbase Properties

Property Description

Documentation Contains documentation explaining the linkbase (for example, “Label links, English, standard role”. The
documentation is saved in the linkbaseRef title attribute.

File Name The filepath of the linkbase. For default linkbases, this is the taxonomy .xsd file name appended by the linkbase
name. The file name may be a relative file (no c:\ or http:// prefix), a local disk path (for example, c:\something),
or a URL http://something). If the taxonomy name changes, then that part of the file name which starts with the
taxonomy file name is replaced. If the file name is a full path, when saved, the saver attempts to make it relative
to the taxonomy full path.

ConnectionLink Linkbases can be linked to the taxonomy schema, or detached and added manually during load. You can choose
Count to attach or detach a linkbase to a taxonomy schema using this option. The number of labels, references, formulas,
or relationships in the extended links of this linkbase.

ReadOnly Linkbases can be editable (read/write) or read-only. You can set any linkbase to read-only, preventing any changes.

Link Count The number of labels, references, formulas, or relationships in the extended links of this linkbase.

When an extended link of a linkbase is selected on the linkbase tree view, the property grid
contains the extended linkbase properties described in the table below.

Table 70 Extended Linkbase Properties

Property Description

Extended link Role | The extended link role is a selection from the taxonomy’s Extended Link Roles collection. Pressing the ellipsis button
on this property activates the Role chooser/editor, described below.

Title The extended link title attribute value. A title attribute is shown on the relationships tree, but is not unique to a role
of extended link, as there may be multiple of the same extended links in other linkbases and in referenced or higher
level taxonomies, with inconsistent titles.

Selection Formula | The formula that determines which links are allocated to the extended link. An absent formula means this is a default
extended link which collects otherwise unallocated contents.

Documentation Describes the purpose of the extended link.
ID The extended link ID value. Generally not used.
Base Feature currently not implemented

The Extended Link Role Chooser/Editor contains a property grid of the current extended link
role, and a browser bar on the bottom. The browser bar allows adding (*) roles to the collection,
deleting (X), scrolling, accepting (4) a choice, or canceling (X) for the extended link which
activated the chooser/editor.
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When an extended link is expanded (by clicking on the plus box) the contents of the extended
link are shown — collection count of labels, references, formulas, or relationships.

Selecting the collection of the extended link provides a tabular view of the collection. This is a
convenient way to review the collection.

The screenshot above shows a label collection for the default extended link of the label linkbase.
The collection shown has columns which correspond to the type of collection. For example,
labels provide the label or documentation text, including longer strings in a text box below the
data grid.

Instance Document Messages Pane

The Messages List pane shows error messages, warnings, and other informational messages from
loading an instance document, validating an instance document, importing information, and
other features where XBRL Taxonomy Designer needs to communicate to you.

ne [ Type [ Message 1D [ essage -
1 Info Instarce TestDatar AocountingPokches was laded, 2L, XBRL and taonomy vakdabed with eroes

F bl dFindoErr Taoniony (Fre-op) keeding completed, no eroes or l.u.\.rruh-:.

3 Info o dFinbcErr Referenced Taxonceny (ref) loading completed, no errors of warmings.

4 Irfa Validsting Taxonomy (ifrs-gpl...

5 Info XML schema-level validation of taxonoey ref-2003-12-31, x8d succesded

] Info XML schoema-beevel validation of taxonoomy frs-gp-2004-06-15, x5d succesded

7 Info Walichatting bnkbace Frs-gp-2004-06-15-label, xml

a Info ¥ML-level vabdation of inkbase Fre-gp-2004-06-15-label.xml succesded

] Info Validating linkbase irs-gp-2004-06-15-reference.xmi L
£ *>

As a process occurs, you can abort the process if errors are generated, allow the application to
correct the errors, or enable you to correct the errors manually.

In the example below, an element was deleted and then the instance document was validated.
The errors as a result of this can be seen in the message pane. By double clicking on one of the
errors, you can highlight the source of the error in yellow in the Taxonomy Element Finder.
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Detached and Linked Linkbases

Linkbases (Presentation, Label, Calculation, Definition, Formula) may be linked or not to an
XBRL taxonomy schema using a linkbaseRef. When linkbases are physically linked or attached
to a taxonomy schema, they are discovered during the loading process of that taxonomy and are
considered part of the DTS. Linkbases that are not linked are referred to as detached.

» To add detached linkbases from the open dialog:

1 Select Ll and browse to select the detached linkbases added when loading the XBRL
document.

Detached linkbases that are added during load do not have their Role Namespace Identifier
filled out.

Referenced Tasonomies - mycompany
= mucompany |8 Using taxomomey
iy ane-pocorioi — PORY

[Fr—— Namespaceldertfier  hittp:/fxbrl iaeb. orgfint e fifes/ gpd 2005-05-15 I

B Schemalocation ifrs-gp-2005-05-15. wed |

wl FiefulPath hittp: /i xbrl. iazb. org//nt fv/ifrsd gpd 2005-05-1 5/ 5-gp-2006-05-15. xsd I

Ty Taxonomy |

Iinchaded Falze |

B Taworomy ifrs-gp |

Add 1 Femove I

2 From the Taxonomy property window, select linkbases to open the Linkbase Collection Editor.
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Select the added linkbase, and note that its Connection property is Detached.

3 To attach this linkbase to the taxonomy set as LinkbaseRef, and then save the taxonomy.

If a taxonomy or linkbase file is read-only, before saving the taxonomy change the file to editable.
After the file is set to editable, saving the taxonomy attaches the linked linkbase files to the
schemas.
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Screenshot of linkbase collection editor where you can set the editable and read-only flag on a
linkbase. Setting the editable flag enables you to edit linkbase properties. To attach a linkbase to
a read-only schema, set the editable flag for both the linkbase and the schema so that the
appropriate linkbaseRef is added to the schema.
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Use the Referenced Taxonomies dialog to make the taxonomy editable in the DTS view.

References Collection Editor

Taxonomy elements contain collections of references associated with that element. References
can be edited from this list view. The reference parts defined for the taxonomy are the columns,
or fields, which have potential entries for a reference. Examples of reference columns, or fields,
are Name, Number, Paragraph.

Referenoes - Balance Sheet {Classiled)
Fole Name Tia

¢ (rrr—]

+

Note that the reference parts are taxonomy defined. References and the concepts they apply to
need not be in the same taxonomy. Several references for the same element could be in separate
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taxonomies from each other. The selection of reference parts depends on the taxonomy owning
the reference. Thus, it is possible that going down the lines of references, even for the same
element, if they belong to separate taxonomies, the column headings change from line to line
to reflect the reference’s owning taxonomy.

References can be edited in the References Collection Editor, activated by the ellipsis button of
a taxonomy element, and additionally within the Element Properties Grid by expanding the
plus-box of the References collection property. Selecting the (+) sign next to each reference
exposes additional property fields which may be edited.

Table 71  Property Fields for References

Option Description

Role Reference role assigned to this reference, based on the collection of reference roles available to this
taxonomy. For example, “Reference” or “Definition” or “Example”.

Title Title which may be assigned to the reference. This value is not required by XBRL, it is optional.

Reference Parts: See “reference parts” which defines the fields which appear in the references list view.

Name, Number, Paragraph,
Subparagraph, Clause,
Subclause

Saving Instance Documents

This section explains the available options for saving an instance document.

Save/Save As (Local File System)

The Save as function enables you to save the instance document to the local file system. When
File, then Save as is selected, the standard Windows save dialog screen is displayed:

Save an XBRL Instance Document k

Save it |13 ilis-gp-2004-0615 x| +~ @B E-
3 2] ifrs=-gp-Z004=06-15-caloulation (2] TestData-[ncomeStatemant -ByFunction
.d..) 2 ifirs-gp-Z004-06-15-1abel 7] TestData-IncoeneStatemeant -Byhabune
Ig"ls.' Recerd |2 ifrs-gp-2004-06-15-pressntation 2 TestData-Statemant of Egulty
el H

] ifrs-gp-2004-05-15-referance
B ] MewTaxconoty_Rative

: _'-..ﬂhlm‘l'dxmﬂy-labd
Desklop o campleCompany-2004-06-15
2] SampleCompany-2004-06-15_caktrace
] TestDuta-AccountingPolicies
2] TestData-Sakano Shet -Classified
"] TastOuka-Balanon Shast-AlstAssats
2] TestData-Bakanos Shest-Or derOf Liguidity
3 TastData-Cashlows Diract
by Ceerpnse ] TastData-CashFlows-Indirect

] TastData-ExplanstoeyDeclonies

<

My Doscumants

My Metwork  Fils name: ie:ll'.‘-'..-l-:ﬂ.-:::i.l'ﬂ gl
Placa:

ﬂl&ml
| Cancel

Save ap hype: |)-CBF|L Irstance: Document [ xbil;” xmi]
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Table 72  Save As Dialog Box Fields

Option Description

Save in Indicates the subdirectory into which the file is saved.

File name Indicates the name of the file to be saved.

Save as type | Indicates the file type to be saved. For saving instance documents, the file type is XBRL Instance Document (* .xm1).

Save/Save As (Server)

The Save as

function enables you to save the instance document to a server. When File, then

Save to Server is selected, the standard Windows save dialog screen is displayed.

Table 73  Save As Server Dialog Box Fields

Option Description

File name | This field indicates the location and the name of the saved file. If you are saving this file to a Web server, the URI of the file
must be entered.

Save Indicates the file type to be saved. For saving instance documents, the file type is XBRL Instance Document (* . xm1)

Generating Instance Documents

This section explains the options available for generating an instance document.

Sample

Instance Document Generator

An instance document sample can be generated from a taxonomy or part of a taxonomy.

For a simple taxonomy one can simply generate instance facts for the whole taxonomy by
selecting the All option and checking all extended links.

For a subset of a complex taxonomy, selected subtrees or selected extended links can be chosen

(such as to generate for some small subtree of a balance sheet), or a full set of chosen extended

links can be selected.

For example, for IFRS, one could check the all button, and check off one each of balance sheet,

income statement, and cash flow extended links (as in the screen shot). A monetary unit can be
chosen, such as thousands of euros, or hundred-thousands of yen.

For a detailed example of the use of the Sample Instance Document Generator, go to “Generating

a Sample Instance Document” on page 146 .
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» Toaccess the Sample Instance Document Generator, select Tools, and then Sample Instance

Generator.
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When started, you specify an instance document file to which the sample is saved. The What
section identifies what was selected on the relation tree, and how to proceed with generation.

Table 74 Save As Options

Option Description

Save as File path to save instance document upon completion of generation.

What Section | - All elements: Generate instance fact values for all applicable elements in the taxonomy
- Selected element: Generate instance fact values for only the selected element (of the active relation view)

- Selected subtree: Generate instance fact values for all applicable elements of the selected subtree (as noted in the
accompanying text)

Start causes the identified elements (all, selected element, selected subtree) to be considered for
generating instance document facts. If a selected element is a tuple, then a sample tuple and all
of its items (sequence, all) are generated. If the selected element is an abstract element, it is
skipped. Otherwise, if the selected element is an element outside of a tuple, a fact value is
generated. Users are encouraged to modify the source code of this example for their own needs.
An arbitrary string (“abc”) is generated for string facts. Decimal facts are given the value 1, and
unit measure pure, monetary value 1, unit measure USD, and stock value 1, unit measure stock.

A numeric fact which participates in a calculation relation is adjusted to be the sum of the
numeric facts which are generated in the instance and roll up to it.

The resulting instance document can be viewed and XML / XBRL validated by opening as an
instance document. Use of element types other than the ones mentioned above may require
modification of the plug-in source code. The plug-in can be re-compiled without any need for
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XBRL Taxonomy Designer source code, and is simply put into the plug-in directory to be seen
on startup.

Generating a Sample Instance Document

A taxonomy becomes fruitful when it yields an instance document. XBRL Taxonomy Designer
sample instance generator automatically generates a template of an instance document, which

can then be loaded into the instance document editor, and then validated, printed, formatted,

and used to explain how your taxonomy works.

» To generate a sample instance document:

1 Load the ifrs-gp taxonomy file into the Taxonomy Editor.

Note: This file is saved in the Samples folder that was automatically installed when you first
installed XBRL Taxonomy Designer . The default location for this folder is C:
\Program Files\Oracle\Disclosure Management\XBRL Taxonomy
Designer\samples, but it may be in another location if you installed XBRL
Taxonomy Designer into another folder. See “Open an XBRL Taxonomy from the
Local File System” on page 36.

2 Select a part of the taxonomy from which to generate a sample instance document.

This could be a balance sheet subtree, or an Extended Link. For this example, choose this
Balance Sheet subtree.

. ilrs-gp (Presentation) 1 b :.

=1 Prassntation Visw A |
Exterded Link (Balance Shaet, Cassifed Format)

+ Balance Sheet (Fresentation)
Extended Link (Ealance Sheet, Order of Liquidity Fremat)
Extended Lirk ( & Sheat, Met Atsets Formst)
Exterded Lirk (1 Statement, By Function Fonmat)
Extended Link (Income Statement, By Mature Format)
Extended Link (Cash Flows, Direct Method)
Exstenided Link (Cash Flows, Indiract Mathod)
Exterided Lirk (Statement of Changss in Equity)
Extended Link (Accounting Policies)
Extended Link (Explanatory Disclosunes)
Exstenided Link (Classas)
Exterded Lirk (CurrentfHonCurrent Braskdown)
Extended Link (HetGross Breskdown)
Extended Link (Type Erumerations)

W b W e W] W e

Exhended Link (Default Link) =
f - [ sleeneris =l Count: 3,223
Prefix [Latetm [ Hame DataType | Balarce Pericd Type | hA |
ifre-gp Absndorment or Withdrawsl from FL..  AbandonmentWithdrawalFr...  String Durstion T— |
ifrs-gp Aeeounting for Aseocistes in Conscli...  AccountinglesocistesCons..,  Strng Courstion T
ifrs-gp Roounting for Associates in Parent’...  AccountingiasocistesPans,,,  Strng Do ation T
frs-gp Acounting fior Foreign Currency Tra,,.  ACoountingFonssordurenc,,.  Strng Dourathon T
Frs-gp Acoounting For Joink Yertures in Con,..  AccountinglointenturesC,,,  String Curation T
iFrs-gp Accountineg For Joink Yertures in Par...  Accountingloirtventuresfa...  String Curation T
ifre-gp Accounting for Subsidiaries in Parert...  AccountingSubsidiariesPare...  String Durstion T
ire-nn direvanlinn Prbiciee (Bracsnlating) Bre i rtinoPelcisePracants, . Srion T wstine O
¥

3 Select Tools, and then Sample instance generator.

The Sample XBRL Instance Document Generator window is displayed.
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Specify a Save as file to receive the instance document.

For this example, use temp . xml.

In the What section choose Selected subtree.

Click Start to generate an instance document.
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7  After the generation has completed, click Close to close the window.
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Now we can take a view our newly-created instance document using the XBRL Taxonomy
Designer Instance Document Editor screen.

» To do this, open the temp . xml file into your Instance Document Editor.

See “Opening an Instance Document” on page 116. The result should like the example below.
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Validating Instance Documents

After you create an instance document, receive a file containing an instance document, or import
instance data from another application, you can make sure there are no errors in the documents
you create or receive by performing a validation.

The data in the instance document is validated to ensure it “foots and cross-castes” relative to
the calculation links expressed in a taxonomy. For example, if Total Property and Equipment
must equal Land plus Building plus Fixtures within a context, then the instance document is
tested to ensure these values are accurate.

This is a sample validation to show the validation process. This is sample data represented in an
instance document.
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Figure 19 Validation Sample

2003 2002

€000 €000
Land 5.347 1,147
Buildings 244 508 266,375
Furniture and Fixtures 34,457 34,457
Computer Equipment 4,169 5313
Other 6,702 6,149
Total 295,183 413,441

Figure 20 Qutput Report
Context/Item 'Value Source Message |

Context [at 2003-12-31 for SAMP Scenario 1]

Total Commitments Under Non Cancelable Leases

!

{0} Mot Later than One Year

||

ttt!"urt::

{1} Lerer than One Year and Less than Five Yesrs

c|1,420.000 [inst

{1} Later than Five Years

c| 692.000inst

Context [at 2002-12-31 for SAMP Scenario 1]

Total Commitments Under Non Cancelable Leases

{0) Not Later than One Yesr

"’"E'rnr.*;;

c| 257,000(inst

(1) Later than One Year and Less than Five Years

c|1,439,000|inst

{1} Later than Five Years

c| 230,000]inst

Note that the output presents a “trace” of the calculations in the instance documents. Errors are
highlighted in red. The weights and balance types are presented on the report. Messages are
provided to indicate errors encountered. The source of the values is provided, whether they come
from the instance document, are computed, or come from the calculation of a formula.

» To validate an instance document, with the instance document loaded in the Instance

Document Editor:

1 Select Tools, and then Validate Instance Document.

The Instance Validator window is displayed. Take a moment to look over the possible
options. For this example, however, accept the default settings.

Click Start.

Validation is performed by the system and the validation output is presented in another

window.
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Context JItem
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3 Click the X on the header bar to close the window.

Analyzing Business Rules

Business rules analysis produces an instance document of fact values resulting from formula

execution of the business rule extension taxonomy.

» To perform this validation, select Tools, and then Analyze Business Rules.

The Business Rules Analyzer window is displayed.

Table 75 Fields and components of the Business Rules Analyzer Window

Option Description
XML Schema Performs XML Schema level validation on the instance document, using the Xerces validating parser (apache.org).
Validation Validates correctness of values, units, measures, scenarios, segments, and tuple structure.

XBRL Validation

Performs XBRL validation on the instance document. Performs context checks, calculation roll up checks, and
executes formulas.

Compute missing
values

During calculation linkbase roll up computation, if a sum of items is not present in the source data fact values,
compute and use the computed sum. Identified by -comp- in the trace reports.

Keep computed
values

Indicates if the computed values should be retained if the instance document did not provide them. For example,
if the instance provides only leaf-node values the sum element values can be retained. Retained fact values differ
from those of business rule execution, as they are merged to the instance document of source data and may be
saved with the source data instance document (as well as used in subsequent processing, such as export or further
import and subsequent further validation).

Show full audit trail

Results dialog, or trace file, provides a full audit trail of the calculation linkbase roll up processing.

Show formula trace

Results dialog, or trace file, provides full trace of execution of formulas, including steps to bind terms to source
data, units matching, and exceptions raised if any.

Show results dialog

Outputs the validation results into a screen dialog (in addition to, or in lieu of, saving report file).

Save report in

Enables you to specify the path and name of a text file to which validation results are written.

Save trace in

Enables you to specify a file for the requested trace reports.
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Option Description

Instance document | Forbusiness rules, the result of the business rules are fact values which are written into an XBRL instance document,
corresponding to the business rules extension taxonomy.

Validating Instances

XBRL Taxonomy Designer offers business rule validation and XML and XBRL level validation.

» To perform this validation, select Tools, and then Validate Instance Document.

The Instance Validator window is displayed. The Instance Validator window is similar to the
Business Analyzer window described above.

See Table 75 for descriptions of the fields and components of this window.

Reading a Calculation Trace

A calculation trace organizes the results of all of the calculations of an XBRL document into the
same tree view. It sorts the data by extended links and units hyperlinked to extended links and
units (at bottom) and noting discrepancies where the addition differs from instance values
representing sums.

For dimensions, a calculation trace organizes data by the tree of dimensional aggregation roll
ups, following the aggregation trees. It creates aggregation trees for each of the cross-products
of dimensions, varying one dimension at a time.

Each Calculation roll-up in the calculation trace is grouped by a network (Extended link role
uri). Information is nested by context and unit.

Arcs are referred to as “summation-item” arcs. Summation-item arcs must represent
relationships only between concepts that are in the item substitution group and whose type is
numeric They represent aggregation relationships between concepts. Each of these relationships
is between one concept, referred to as the summation concept, and another concept, referred to
as the contributing concept.

A complete summation-item arc set for a given summation concept is defined in the context of
the DTS supporting an XBRL instance. It is the set of all summation-item arcs, defined in
calculationLink extended links with the same XLink:role attribute value that associate
contributing concepts to the given summation concept. A summation item is an occurrence of
a summation concept in an XBRL instance.

Calculation checks work exclusively on the information thatis explicitly provided in the instance;
items and values that can be inferred through essence-alias relationships are not considered.
Several items (all corresponding to the one concept) can bind to a summation item if they are
not duplicates because they are not period equal. This is relevant in the context of calculation
scoping through tuples and means that detection of duplicates is not a sufficient test for double
counting problems in XBRL instances.
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The total of a binding calculation is defined to be the sum of the rounded values of the
contributing numeric items in the binding, each multiplied by the value of the weight attribute
on the item's associated calculationArc. This multiplication takes place after any necessary
rounding is performed. The rounded value of a numeric item results from rounding the value
of the numeric item to its precision or inferred precision (see Section 4.6.6 and 4.6.7). A binding
calculation is consistent if the rounded value of the summation item equals the total rounded
to the precision or inferred precision of the summation item.

152 Instance Documents



Importing and Exporting
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Taxonomy Import Overview

To supplement interactive entry, taxonomy information can be directly imported into the
application. Import formats include Microsoft Excel, Access, Word, an OLE DB Provider
database, and CSV and XML files.

Importing taxonomy information is done by selecting File, and then Import. The Taxonomy
Import window is displayed.

Figure 21  Figure 51 Taxonomy Import Window

In this case the importing saurce document is an Excsl spreadshest, and a workshest should be selectad.

The import "Type” field allow vou to specify which of taxenomy import will aceur,
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Inventory Asset 23522 64 Suﬁ::nffh';:’\flaff
Retalisge Gl values for the XERL
[ Undeposited Fun 26362.34 | _'LI instance report,
4 »

Some source docurment

have column headers
R M e Source Data within grid preview interface | R Statt || Close: |/ it ton
2l during import then you

\ set the Row Header
You can store and reload impart configurations o When completing multiple import(s) you can select "Apply” and then configure 3 different raw valus ta that row.
ko it e import type. By selecting “Start” the current configuration will be used and the impart will

aceur, and then the dialog will clese,
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Table 76  Options in the Taxonomy Import Window

Option

Description

Import Source

Indicates the source of the import. Options include: Excel, Access, Word, Database, XML, and CSV. For CSV the field
separator is provided under Tools, then Options.

File Name

Indicates the path and file name of the file which contains the import information. For database this is the database
source (generated by the Browse button to the right).

Import Type

Indicates the type of import that is performed:

o General import—Enables you to import general information about a taxonomy, including elements, labels,
references and relationships

Labels—Taxonomy element labels
Presentation relations
Calculation relations

Definition relations

References

Formulas

Tuple

Sheet (or table,
bookmark,
element)

Indicates the Excel workbook which contains the data, or the Access/Database table name, Word-book-marked
table, or XML top element name.

Correct errors on
import

Indicates that errors should be detected and corrected. Alternatively, if errors are encountered the export is
terminated.

Row header

The row of data (in a spreadsheet or CSV file) is the column headers. The adjacent spinner control is the line number
of the header row to ignore any titling rows above that line. Not applicable for other import formats.

Save design

Enables you to save an import template so the import can be repeated. Saves the import type, sheet/bookmark/
table name, row header information, key field, and input field to taxonomy field mappings in an xml file. A Save as
file name Browse button is presented when the Apply or Start buttons are pressed so multiple import mappings can
be saved.

Load design

Enables you to load an import design that was created previously by the Save design feature, or by the external tool
environment. The Load Design button presents a file chooser, and then sets the control information of import type,
sheet/bookmark/table name, row header information, key field, and input field to taxonomy field mappings from
the selected xml file.

Key field

The key field to used to determine which taxonomy element with which to associate the updated information. Not
applicable when importing into an empty taxonomy.

Source Data Grid

The source data grid in the lower left corner of the form shows the source data and allows selection of header rows
and mapping information visually.

Import Field

Column or field name of each import data source.

Taxonomy Field

The taxonomy field into which the import field data is placed. Allows for dynamic mapping of the import source to
the element.

The import functionality applies reasonable data checks to determine allowed data and
operations. Disallowed data is not imported.
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Ifa receiving taxonomy is empty, all records attempt to create entries. If a receiving is not empty,
import data is used to update items, and add items, based on the records in the import. If import
items do not match elements, labels, and so on, then you are asked whether to add such items
from the import data to the application. Error messages inform you of detected errors.

The import types correspond to the spreadsheets, database tables, CSV and XML outputs of
export; however, there is an input field to the taxonomy field mapping process. This allows
importing from sources with column names which differ from those which are output by export.

For the supported columns by input type, see “Exporting Taxonomy Overview” on page 157
for general, elements, labels, relations, references, formulas and tuples.

The mapping grid is automatically populated by an automap feature that looks for recognizable
input columns or field names. The mappings should be reviewed and corrected as needed before
starting import.

General format can contain multiple label and parent columns (Taxonomy Builder 5 format),
or multiple rows with additional columns specifying language and role (XBRL Taxonomy
Designer export format). Automap identifies multi-column input by the word label (case and
spacing insignificant), “-%, and the role name. Automap identifies multi-column language by
“(en)” or “(fr)” patterns after label or label-terse (en). The property grid can override automap
discovery.

On general and label import, the label import field is a special field with a number of items
(clicking the plus box expands the list on a label import).

A label field might be indented over several columns. In some cases the indent implies parent-
child tree relationships (General input type).

A language can be associated with a label in three ways:

e Name input field—Another column or field has the name of the language, for example
English. Choose the column/field containing the language name under Language Value.

e Code input field—Another column or field has the code of the language, for example en.
Choose the column containing the code of the language under Language Value.

e Value selection—No columns contain the language, but specify the language by choice of
languages for this column/field in Language Value. For example, select English or French
for this column.

A role can be associated with a label in three ways:

e Name input field—Another column or field contains the name of the role, for example
Terse. Choose the column/field containing the role name under Role Value.

e URIinput field—Another column or field has the URI of the role, for example http://
www.xbrl.org/2003/role/terseLabel. Choose the column containing the URI of the language
under Role Value.

e Value selection—No columns contain the role but they specify the role by choice of role
names for this column/field in Role Value. For example, select Terse for this column from
the Role Value drop-down selection list.
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Parent relation is similar to label, in that it expands to specify arc role and extended link role.
These can be taken from a column or selected from a list for the column. There can be multiple
parent relation columns, just as for multiple label columns, where different columns have a
different role or extended link role. For example, multiple columns could be used for
presentation and calculation relationships.

An arc role can be associated with a label in three ways:

e Name input field—Another column or field contains the name of the arc role, for example,
Child to Parent, or Item Summed to Summation. Choose the column/field containing the
role name under Arc Role Value. Note that this is a child to parent role.

e URIinput field—Another column or field has the URI of the arc role, for example, http://
www.xbrl.org/2003/arcrole/child-parent. Choose the column containing the URI of the
language under Arc Role Value.

e Value selection—No columns contain the arc role, but specify the arc role by choice of arc
role names for this column/field in Role Value. For example, select Item Summed to
Summation for this column from the Role Value drop-down selection list.

Extended link role can be associated with a label as follows:

e Name input field—Another column or field contains the name of the extended link role,
for example, Default Link. Choose the column/field containing the role name under Ext
Link Value.

e URIinput field—Another column or field has the URI of the extended link role, for example
http://www.xbrl.org/2003/role/link. Choose the column containing the URI of the language
under Ext Link Value.

e Value selection—No columns contain the arc role, but specify the arc role by choice of
extended link role names for this column/field in Ext Link Value. For example, select Default
Link for this column from the Ext Link Value drop-down selection list.

Extended Link Title input field—Select an extended link title column/field name from the
selection list, if any (else leave blank).

Key field specifies how to identify elements in a taxonomy when imported data is intended to
update elements. In this case the key field specifies whether to match on Name, Label, and so
on. Furthermore, there are key field matching options of exact match or comma-separated
options matching. With comma-separated options, only one of the comma separated keys in
the input data for the key field column need match the element to locate it.

In some cases, import field to taxonomy field mapping is automatic, such as when exported
XBRL Taxonomy Designer or Taxonomy Builder 5 tables/files are re-imported and column
headers are as expected by XBRL Taxonomy Designer. In other cases considerable design can
go into setting up the mapping. For these cases, the mapping design can be saved. Check Save
design to capture the import settings to an XML file. When this is checked, Apply or Start
provides a Save As window for the design settings XML file.
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» To reload design settings, click Load Design.

These design settings can also be used on importing by external program, such as a VB batch

processing program or Web service.

Exporting Taxonomy Overview

To interface with external tools and products, taxonomy information can be exported to a variety
of formats such as Microsoft Excel or Access, OLE DB provider Databases, and to CSV or XML
files. This feature might be used to transfer data to other applications, export data for bulk update
in another application and subsequent import into the XBRL Taxonomy Designer application,

etc.

Exporting taxonomy information is done by selecting File, and then Export.

See “Formats for Exporting” on page 161.
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Table 77  Options in the Taxonomy Export window

Option Description

Export format Indicates the export format. Supported formats include:
o Excel

® Access (Existing or new database)

o OLE DB Provider database

e XML

e CSV

File name Indicates the export file path and name, or the database source name. Use the file directory icon to specify or

select the Excel file to which the information is saved. Click Start to begin the export.

Exporting Taxonomy Overview 157



Option

Description

Export type

Indicates the export type. Export types include:

e Taxonomy—General Export—an inclusive format containing element information, the currently selected label,
relationships and references (unless taxonomy information only is checked). Multiple rows are displayed for an
entity with multiple labels, relations, or references

e Taxonomy—Tree View—Tree view export of taxonomy information. For Excel this includes exporting VBA code to
automatically synchronize dictionary and tree views of elements.

Elements—Taxonomy concept elements

Labels—Export taxonomy labels, including multiple labels and documentation elements for each concept
element

Presentation relations
Calculation relations
Definition relations
References

Formulas

Tuple structure

All—Exports multiple worksheets, tables, CSV, or XML elements for element, labels, relationships, references,
formulas, and tuples. For CSV, multiple files are output.

Taxonomy Editor—Edit list contents are a re-importable format for Excel.

Sheet (or Table or
Top Element Name)

Specifies the Excel worksheet name, the table name if Access or Database is selected, or the top element name
if XML is selected. This option is not used with CSV.

Export order

Indicates the export order. The order of exported elements can be:
Presentation link

Calculation link

Definition link

Dictionary order by label

Dictionary order by name

Element Options

Element options include:

e Element information only—Exports only element information and no information of relationships

e Currentlanguage and role only—Exports only the currently selected based on the language and label role settings
e Documentation—Exports taxonomy documentation in the export

Export elements
and relationships

Specifies the export scope as one of the following:
All elements, all taxonomies
All elements, edited taxonomy

Selected elements and subtrees

Selected elements only

Preview

Displays the information that will be exported to the external file.

Start

Starts the export. The status bar indicates the progress of the export.

Cancel

Cancels the export.
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Importing Instance Documents

Import functionality enables you to import instance document information from common data
formats such as Excel, XML, Access, OLE DB Provider Databases, CSV, and Word table data.

In the batch processing import mode. data can be obtained from multiple sources, imported,
validated, and then used to generate an instance document.

» To import instance document information, select File, and then Import.
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XBRL Taxonomy Designer comes with standard import templates and automatically maps an
import format to the appropriate instance field. The data field names in the import format are
used to help determine the import field to which the data value is to be applied; or users can
create their own import formats and simply map their data field names to the instance fields.
These mappings can be saved and rerun in the future.

Exporting Instance Documents

You can export instance document information to common data formats such as Excel, XML,
Access, OLE DB Provider Databases, and CSV tables.

The three output tables an export generates are Context, Unit, and Fact Values. Exported
information is sufficient to import and reestablish the same instance document if the same
taxonomy and supporting schema files are available.

» To export instance document information, select File, and then Export.

The Export Data window specifies export format and type, and provides an preview option that
lists what information will be exported.
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Table 78 Export Data Window Fields

Option Description
Export format Indicates the export format. Supported formats include:
e Excel
® Access (Existing or new database)
e OLE DB Provider database
e XML
e C(CSV
File Name Indicates the path and file name of the export file. Or, if this is an OLE DB Provider Database, indicates the Database
source name. You must use the file directory icon to specify or select the Excel file to which the information is saved.
Simply typing in the Excel file name in the text box does not enable the Start button.
Export Type Indicates the type of export that is performed:
e Contexts: entity, period, scenario—exports instance document context information
@ Units: measure—exports instance document units information
o Fact values: items, tuple—exports instance document fact values and tuples
All: outputs multiple worksheets, tables, CSV, or XML elements for Contexts, Units, and Fact Values. For CSV, multiple
files are output.
Sheet (or Table | Indicates the name of the worksheet if Excel is selected. Indicates the name of the table if Access or Database is

or Top Element
Name)

selected. Indicates the top element name if XML is selected. Not used for CSV.

For the -All- option, tables are named automatically and this feature is disabled.

Preview Provides a pop-up table preview of the information that is exported to the external file.
For the -All- option this feature is disabled.

Start Starts the export process. The status bar indicates the progress of the export.

Cancel Cancels the export.
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Export formats are as follows:

o Contexts—Columns or fields are context ID, context label, context description, entity ID,
entity scheme, entity segment, period type (instant, duration, forever), instant date, period
start and end dates.

e Units—Column or fields are unit ID, unit label, unit description, and unit measure. For
single valued measures, the measure is output as a simple term, for example, is04217:USD
or shares. For multiplication and division terms, this field is an XML expression.

e FactValues—Column or fields are fact ID, tuple name (QName, if in a tuple), element name
(QName), context Ref (context’s ID), unit Ref (unit’s ID), decimals or precision, and value.

e All—provides the tree outputs of Contexts, Units, and Fact Values. For Excel, multiple
worksheets are output. For databases, multiple tables are output. For XML, multiple
sections. If CSV is selected, multiple files are output.

Formats for Exporting

There are several types of export formats:

e General—provides maximal information in one table, including elements in taxonomy,
relationships to parent elements, multiple labels, and multiple references. This format is
intended for compatibility to Taxonomy Builder 5, and other tools. This view can be re-
imported, but becomes tricky to edit when there are multiple references and relationships
per element. (The taxonomy contents tables are generally easier to edit and process externally
than this “all-in-one” format.)

e Tree view—provides a taxonomy tree view (Excel or XML). The Excel tree includes active
VBA programming to allow expanding/contracting tree levels and synchronized worksheets
displaying dictionary and tree view. Double-clicking Excel dictionary worksheet entries
expands and make tree elements visible. The Excel tree view expands and contracts similar
to the Taxonomy Editor’s Relationship View.

o Taxonomy contents tables—selectable tables, worksheets, or files of elements, labels,
presentation, calculation, definition, reference, and formulas.

o Elements list view—provides the Taxonomy Editor table contents of the Elements List
view

Columns in Export Formats

This section describes how to work with columns in export formats.

General Export Types

e Sequence—An element sequence number (may repeat on multiple rows, where there are
multiple associated rows, such as multiple relationships, labels, or references for the same
element)

e Prefix—Element’s taxonomy prefix
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Namespace Identifier—Element’s taxonomy namespace identifier

Name—Element name (auto-generated or manually entered)

Data type name—From taxonomy metadata, prefixed only when from referenced taxonomy
Balance type

Period type

Weight—Provided only when calculation linkbase is checked

Label—Three columns with repeating rows for possibly multiple labels

o Label—the label character string

o Label Language—language code, for example, EN or JA

o Label Role—the role, for example, Terse

Level—The level in tree if presentation, calculation, or definition relationship checked

Relationship (to parents, if calculation, or definition relationship checked, else if element
information only not checked, to children), with repeating rows if needed

o Order (in parent’s children list, for parents only)
o Name (of parent or child)

o ArcRole

o Whether prohibited (role to children only)

o Extended link role

o Extended link title

Reference parts, with repeating rows if needed, one reference part column per reference part
in element’s taxonomy reference parts collection

Tree View Export for XML Format

The tree view type for Excel export format: includes two worksheets with special purpose VBA
coding for tree worksheet expand/synchronized to dictionary worksheet

Elements

Sequence—Element sequence number (may repeat on multiple rows, where there are
multiple associated rows, such as multiple relationships, labels, or references for the same
element).

Namespace Prefix—Element’s taxonomy prefix

Namespace Identifier—Element’s taxonomy namespace identifier

Name—Element name (auto-generated or manually entered)

Data type name—From taxonomy metadata, prefixed only when from referenced taxonomy
Balance type

Period type
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e Nillable

Labels

e Sequence—Element sequence number (may repeat on multiple rows, where there are
multiple labels for the same element).

e Namespace Prefix—Element’s taxonomy prefix

e Namespace Identifier—Flement’s taxonomy namespace identifier

e Name—FElement name (auto-generated or manually entered)

e Label—Label character string

e Label Language—Language code, for example, EN or JA

e Label Role—Role, for example, Terse

Presentation Relation

Sequence—Relation sequence number
Parent element—QName of the parent
Child element—QName of the child
Extended link role of the relation
Extended link title of the relation

Preferred label role if any, of the relation

Calculation Relation

Sequence—Relation sequence number

Sum element—QName of the summation

Item element—QName of the term
Weight—Multiplier of the term when summing
Extended link role of the relation

Extended link title of the relation

Definition Relation

Sequence—Relation sequence number

From element—QName of the arc source
Child element—QName of the arc destination
Arc Role—Arc role for this definition relation
Extended link role of the relation

Extended link title of the relation
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References

e Sequence—Element sequence number (may repeat on multiple rows, where there are
multiple references for the same element).

e Namespace Prefix—Element’s taxonomy prefix

e Namespace Identifier—Flement’s taxonomy namespace identifier

e Name—Flement name (auto-generated or manually entered)

e Reference role

e Reference parts, with repeating rows if needed, one reference part column per reference part
in element’s taxonomy reference parts collection

Formulas

e Sequence—an element sequence number (may repeat on multiple rows, where there are
multiple formulas for the same element).

e Namespace Prefix—the element’s taxonomy prefix

e Namespace Identifier—the element’s taxonomy namespace identifier

o Name—the element name (auto-generated or manually entered)

e Formula role

e Formula expression

Tuples

e Sequence—Sequence number

e Tuple element—QName of the tuple

e Itemelement—QName of an item in the tuple (nested elements are noted by having an item
which is a tuple itself, and subsequently items of the nested tuple

e Min occurs

e Max occurs

All

Not a format or type, but a request to output all of these worksheets, tables, XML sections, or
CSV files: Flements, Labels, Presentation, Calculation, Definition, References, Formulas, and
Tuples.

Taxonomy Editor

Elements List Contents: this has the columns in the control indicated, in whatever order they
are (rearranged to) in the data grid.
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Troubleshooting Import Errors

When an import does not succeed, XBRL Taxonomy Designer displays messages indicating the

cause of the problem.

This example is from “Mapping Lesson One” on page 285.

Line | Tvpe | Message ID | Message

1 Info Import to SAMP completed: 1 errors, O warnings

Z Info Rows read: 57, skipped: 1, imported: 56

3 Info Check for duplicates will be based on: Label

4 Info Mo elements in taxonomy, all elements will be newly added From Excel
g Etrar ExImpEltMoLabel Riow 58 indented label nok Found, row ignored

The message pane reports that 57 rows were read and 56 were imported. In this example, the
Row Header is set to 1, which specifies that XBRL Taxonomy Designer reads each row starting
with row two. XBRL Taxonomy Designer stops on row 57, because that is the last row with

information.

XBRL Taxonomy Designer also reports duplicates, if found. If no duplicates are found, XBRL
Taxonomy Designer scans through the source document until it no longer finds anything to
import. Note in the example that XBRL Taxonomy Designer indicates when it reads the final

element.
When the import is finished, XBRL Taxonomy Designer displays the number of elements
imported. If XBRL Taxonomy Designer does not detect any elements to import, the number of

elements is zero.
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Mapping
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Mapping Overview

XBRL Taxonomy Designer supports importing and mapping of data from external sources, such
asaccounting, survey, tax, and credit reporting systems. Importingis a general function for direct
entry of labeled external data facts. Mapping adds matching criteria to associated and aggregate
external data with taxonomy concept facts.

Much data that can be expressed using an XBRL instance document is contained in external
systems. Using XBRL Taxonomy Designer import and mapping functions, you can design
import and mapping interfaces, extract data from these systems, convert the data into XBRL,
and then validate the data to ensure its accuracy.

Import brings in facts of data from non-XBRL data media, such as Excel worksheets, Word
tables, Access tables and queries, CSV files, OLE provider databases (Oracle SQL queries, etc.),
and generalized XML. Each fact of data imported must be identified with a taxonomy concept
by coding in source media with the name or label of its taxonomy concept. Import also can
associate an XBRL context by coding its identifier or date in the source media and optionally
coding units (such as currency) in the source media.

External systems often categorize data with their own table keys or XML attributes (such as
account codes), labeling systems, or multi-dimensional fields. Data may need re-aggregation or
allocation to fit the data model of a taxonomy.

Mapping means identifying which taxonomy concepts correspond to a datum of information
in the imported source based on patterns of source fields, such as account codes, or other text,
such as account titles or labels, or based on its position in the media. XML data source field
patterns are xPath expressions, allowing specification of key matching of sibling fields and xPath
expressions identifying context. Mapping of numeric data provides a many-to-many association
of imported data-to-taxonomy concept facts, with scaled posting to facts by taxonomy concept,
possible application of context, unit, and decimals based on matching criteria. An audit trail
reports the details of this activity.

After information is in an XBRL instance document, it has the data model of the associated
taxonomy. To transfer to other organizations or to consolidate with other information, the
source XBRL instance document may need to be converted into an XBRL instance document
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of another taxonomy, data model, and accounting standard. AUTOMATOR’s mapping and
import functions likewise support XBRL instance mapping from a source to target taxonomy,
with associated many-to-many mapping.

GUI or API

Mapping can be achieved through the GUI interface by users, but also through the
AUTOMATOR DLL API for scripted and repeatable import mapping operations. In addition,
plug-in functionality can be used to enhance application mapping features.

Design and Use

There are two phases of mapping:
1. Design of XBRL mapping with taxonomies, and

2. Production import of data to instance documents and validation.

For a case where source data is mapped to taxonomy concepts, there is this general process:
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1. The taxonomy of the instance document must begin mapping.

2. Next, a sample of source data or queries, or the instance document in a company chart of
accounts is provided to the AUTOMATOR mapping designer.
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The mapping designer provides a number of features to generate a mapping specification.
The mapping specification can then be used in production importing.

Production importing by a scripted API program (or Web service) then uses the XBRL
Taxonomy Designer import functions to read the accounting source data (or instance
document under company chart of accounts) and, by using the mapping specification, to
identify target taxonomy concepts to post scaled data into (or apportion by scaling to
multiple concepts), as well as assign units, context, entity, scenario, and perform validation.

Some applications use only mapping as a design tool for other systems, without producing
instance. For example one may design the interface between non-XBRL systems using
mapping specifications to direct software interfaces without instances or validation. Other
applications may import data to instance documents and may not need mapping design if
the data is labeled for taxonomies, units, and contexts.

A general case involves both phases where data that comes from source systems requires
XBRL mapping design, and production data are imported by the XBRL Taxonomy Designer
Instance Importer into instance documents and validated.

If the data were a trial balance according to a company-unique chart of accounts, it could
be imported to an instance document. If the company chart of accounts were identical to
the taxonomy concepts, mapping may not be needed if there were a one-to-one association.
Otherwise, mapping associates company chart of accounts codes to taxonomy concepts.
Possible many-to-one mappings may occur if multiple sub-accounts in the trial balance
aggregate to one taxonomy concept. After it is in the instance document based on the
company chart of accounts, it could be left alone in that data model or possibly mapped
from the company chart of accounts into IFRS or Jurisdiction GAAP by mapping the
company-oriented instance document to the other taxonomies (taxonomy-to-taxonomy
mapping).

Another approach would be to prepare mapping specifications for the accounting data to
be imported with mapping into an instance document not based on the company chart of
accounts, but instead mapped to another taxonomy (perhaps Jurisdiction GAAP). Mapping
would associate company account codes with taxonomy concepts, providing scale factors,
aggregating multiple source facts to taxonomy data model facts, and/or allocating by scale
factor to multiple concept facts.

When mapping is used to convert a source taxonomy instance document to another target
taxonomy, there is this process:
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Multiple taxonomies can thus be handled by these use cases:

e First case—Source data is imported to appertaining taxonomy (by concept labeled source
data or with mapping). For example, trial balance imports to taxonomy based on company
chart of accounts. Subsequently, to provide an instance document to a jurisdictional
taxonomy, this instance document is mapped from the appertaining to jurisdictional
taxonomy.

e Second case—Source data is imported with mapping to jurisdictional-based or reporting
taxonomy. For example, trail balance imports with mapping, by allocation and aggregation,
to a company-tailored extension of jurisdictional financial reporting taxonomy or to a credit
reporting taxonomy. No instance document is produced in company chart-of-accounts
taxonomy.

XBRL Mapper

This section explains the XBRL Mapper.

XBRL Mapping Design

XBRL mapping expresses the relationship between an XBRL taxonomy concept, optional
context and unit information, and a pattern of source data. An interactive design process enables
you to inspect source data, determine basic mapping options (rows, cells, keys or key columns,
and row groupings—for tables, xPath—for XML), and then relate taxonomy elements to rows,
cells, or XML objects. In the process for tabular data it may be possible to specify contextRef,
unitRef, and scale information, or contextRef and unitRef may be left for import field mapping.
In the case of mapped XML objects, one can specify constants or xPath expressions to identify
contextRef and unitRef for each datum.
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There are three ways to associate a taxonomy element with source information:
e By drag-and-drop of a taxonomy element into the source document element.

e Byautomatic generation of best-matched taxonomy choices for each mapping and selecting
from the best-fit choices.

e By manual entry.

Each mapping entry specifies the taxonomy concept, the filter expression for selecting source
input, optional label and documentation (such as source system query and annotation), and
instance document context, unit, decimals and scale factors.

Mapping supports source data mapping and taxonomy conversion of source instance document
taxonomy to appropriate target taxonomy.

XBRL Mapper Design Operation

The basic XBRL Mapper design operation is to drag from the taxonomy tree or list of elements
to an input source data table or input source XML tree.

If one is mapping tabular rows by key or by ordinal, then a dragged taxonomy element may be
dropped into any column of the row. The input source table row is colored to indicate it has a
mapping specification in the lower mapping grid. To map one taxonomy element to a group of
rows, first multi-select the group of rows in the source table data grid, then drop the appropriate
element on any highlighted row. All selected rows are mapped to the same taxonomy element.
Conversely, though less common, one may multi-select a group of taxonomy elements to map
to one (or more) data table rows, such as when allocating a source data row value to multiple
taxonomy accounts by fractional split values.

If one is mapping tabular cells by key and column header or by cell reference, then a dragged
taxonomy element must be dropped onto the cell to be mapped. The mapped source table cell
is then colored to indicate that it has a mapping specification in the lower mapping grid. There
is no facility to multi-select cells for group mapping in this case.

If one is mapping XML tree objects then a dragged taxonomy element may be dropped onto the
datum tree element. This automatically generates a filter xPath expression. Corresponding XML
objects are then highlighted. If such a filter is not specific enough, you can edit the expression,
such as by specifying a predicate expression of sibling element with an account code for a general
ledger entry. Then the highlighted tree elements reflect only those matching the predicate
expression (for example the same datum but for three years). You can also enter contextRef and
unitRef xPath expressions (such as generating context-2004 by appending “context-“ with 4 year
digits from some sibling element of the value datum.

XBRL Mapping Design File

This screen shot shows the mapping file data grid for tabular source input
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XBRL Mapping - AowbyKey
Elamant Filte Ststur | Labal Comment | Contaa Dhci Urt | Scale

4 iri-gp:CashCashEquivalents  (00.11020 Losded Cash in Bank - Ausiralia CureraPasiod 0 UEwo 1
ire-gp:CarhCashEquvslants  000.1100.0 Losded Cash in Bark - New Zealand CumerdPasiod 0 UEwo 1
irs-gp CathCachEquvalaras  000.11040 Losded Cashin Bank - Gumany CumeraPasiod 0 U-Ewro 1
irs-gp:CathCoshEquuslants  000.11050 Losded Cash in Bark - United Kingdo CumeraPasiod 0 U-Fwo 1
iri-gp:CashCashEquivalents  (00.11050 Losded Cash in Bark - South Afica CureraPaiod 0 UEwo 1
irs-gp:CarhCashEquvslantt  000.11070 Losded Cash in Bark - Singapode CumeraPasiod 0 UFwo 1

The map file contains the mapping information and is stored as an XML file with the elements

listed in Table 79:
Table 79 Map File Elements

Option Explanation

Element The XBRL concept element of the taxonomy being mapped to. For example, ifrs-ci:CashCashEquivents.

On the display, for automatic mapping suggestions, “pending” choices are indicated by a combo box of suggested element
names matched.

Filter ‘The value from the key fields filled in automatically by dragging an element name onto the data source grid. For example:
- Row by key. “001-1103-00" which is the general ledger account number
- Row by row number. “4”.

- Cell by row key and column name. “001-1103-00[2];Deferred”. See below.
- Cell by cell reference. “C3”
This field can contain * and ? wild-card expressions to generalize filters. For example for an account expression matching
several keys, such as “00?-1103-*", or several cell-row-groupings, such as “001-1103-00[*];Deferred”.
Multiple filter column patterns are separated by a plus “+” character.
Status An indication of the source of the mapping in the GUI data grid, not stored in the mapping file. The selections are:
- Loaded—mapping loaded from file
- Dropped—mapping dropped from taxonomy window drag operation
- Pending—combo box of mapping concepts, user to make choice (line is highlighted in yellow pastel when pending)
- Chosen—use has selected a choice from automatic choices
After saved in a file, status becomes Loaded on the next taxonomy editing mapping design viewing session.

Label An arbitrary label which can be contained in the mapping file to help you understand the mapping file and optionally serve
as the label for the instance document. For example, “Cash - Operating”.

Comment | An arbitrary comment which can be contained in the mapping file to help you understand the mapping. This could be a
database query, for example, if the source system obtained the data by query.

Context If provided, a context of this mapping. If a context is provide in import data, such as columns for periods, then this field is
left empty. If both are provided, this context overrides that provided in import data. Required for each entry when using cell
mapping.

Decimals | The decimal value of the mapping to be used instead of an import data decimals field. This field can be left empty if decimals
are specified in import data columns.

Unit The unit reference. (Empty if provided in import data columns.)
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Option Explanation

Scale The scale Enables you to “flip” the sign of the value or scale the value. For example, if the accounting system stores credit
values as negative numbers, but the taxonomy requires the value to be positive in instance documents, assigning a scale of
“-1” turns a positive value into a negative value. If an Excel spreadsheet contains values in millions, but the instance document

(Ifon
exam

requires the actual value, assigning 1000000 to the scale converts “15” in the Excel spreadsheet to “15000000” in the
instance document.

e is allocating one source table entry to multiple taxonomy elements, then fractional scale factors can be used, for
ple a scrip purchase for entertainment might be allocated “0.1” to charity and “0.9” to entertainment.)

Mapping Collection Editor

The figure below shows the Mapping Collection Editor window. This Editor can be found in the
Instance Property Grid.
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Table 80 Fields in

the Mapping Collection Editor

Property Description

Element Name | If the Mapping Filter is found in tabular data, the element name of the taxonomy to be mapped to. For example, -
ci:PropertyPlantAndEquipment-. For XML Tree mapping to tuples, the path to the element name in the taxonomy tuple
structure.

Mapping Filter | String, wildcard, or regular expression to match to tabular source data field for this element; for XML tree mapping, an
xPath match expression to identify matching source data fields for this element.

Label Descriptive entry of this mapping

Context Ref If provided for tabular input, overrides import-determination of fact value’s contextRef. If provided for XML object input,
provides an xPath expression producing a contextRef.

Unit Ref If provided, for tabular input, overrides import-determination of fact value’s unitRef. If provided for XML object input,
provides an xPath expression producing a unitRef.

Decimals Decimals precision

Scale Multiplier before adding (posting) to element fact value for this context (usually +1 or-1, but could be 0.6667 or anything
else).
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Mapping Cells by Row Key, Rows Group, And Column Name

This option, for tabular input source data, allows handling source data, such as consolidated
statements of stockholders’ equity, with columns that map individually to different elements
across the worksheet, and repeating groups of rows where usually each group of rows covers one
reporting period.

If no repeating rows period groups are defined, then you can simply drag an element name to
the source data grid. The mapping entry generated consists of the key column contents, [1] for
group 1 (in this case the only repeating rows group), a ; and the column header, such as Deferred
Compensation.

When there are repeating groups, you must first define where the repeating group starts. A typical
example is: the first line is Balance at starting date, then some lines of gain or loss, then a Balance
at the year end date, then more lines of gain or loss, etc., until a Balance at last year end date.

The group repeats at each Balance at date row.

Right-click any Balance at line, and choose Select Group Repeat. An XBRL Mapping Group
Specification form shows the key field of that line (for example Balance at December 31, 1776)
and any previously-selected repeat period. Change this to a repeating pattern, such as Balance
at *. (Standard wild card characters * and ? are supported.)

14 Dradenied Sock-based compenabs
15  ASmochization of defenied stock bas
16 Bulerce st Decembse 31, 1353

[hitabid Repeat parpd [Increasing by year: +P1Y -

e 0K | Cancel |

Trus T “r -'l v

y

The Repeat period determines how the context period of the first repeating group is changed in
each subsequent repeating group.

By using this feature only the first repeat period need be mapped. Subsequent groups can use
the first as a template, offsetting their context in each period group. On the other hand, each
and every cell in each and every group can be uniquely mapped, and then this feature is unused.

Many equity statements contain groups that increase by year in successive groupings of rows.
The combo-box has period specifications for increasing and decreasing year, quarter, and
month. A custom period can be entered as an XML duration expression, for example +P14D
for two weeks (14 days) increasing periods, or —P7D for one week decreasing periods.

A red line is drawn between each repeating group.
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The match key generated is then in the form key column, [group number]; column header.

If a matching table entry is needed to match the same row of all repeating groups — in the case
where context is not specified in the mapping table — then wild cards can be used in the “[group
number]” expression, for example “[*]” means to match the given entry in all groups while

importing. In this case the context period identifies the context of the initial repeating group

and is increased (decreased) by the repeating period duration amount for each group.

Mapping By Transposing Cells and Rows

When each element of a tuple is the heading of a vertical column, there is no need to transpose
rows or columns:

In Taxonomy | In Data Source (Excel)

Tuple: Associate Accounted for using Equity Method

Element #1: | Name of Investment in Associate Column D

Element #2: | Percentage of Ownership Interest in Associate Column E

Element #3: | Amount of Total Assets of Associate Equity-Accounted Column F, and so on
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=1 Summarized Financial I ion of Assodiates (Presentation) z AHNUALLY
- Assotiate Accounted for using Equity Method 3 Table & Code & 5
Name of Investment in Associate 4 Fair walue of inve 28372 100 s
Percentage of Ownershi 5
Amoy 3l L] Table B : Summar
A 7 Asgociates Accumulated Equity inte Assets Labilities Rewvenue
]
of Associate Equit ounted £ Code B 10 25 n % 40
» Amaount Not Recognised For Pe 10 Apsounted for by using the equity
, Curnulative Amount 1 101 NBBAT 025 50 a0 12
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12 Hot accounted for by using the equi
+ wkation) 14 Fal NBBAZ 0.3 50 « 12
+ sentation) 15 202 NBBA3 0.28 50 4% 12
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¥ Extended Link ts) 18 Table C : Summar
+|- Extended Link { it Assets and Disposal Groups Classified a: 18 Subsidiaries Accumulated equity inte Assets Liabilities Rewvenus
+- Extended Link ( abilities Measured at Fair Yalue Through Pr 20
+)- Extended Lind Credit Institutions) 21 Code C 15 25 30 5 40
+|- Extended Lin Other than Credit Institutions) 22 Bscounted for by using the equity
+)- Extended Lind rtificates Including Bonds) 2 n NEES1 05 50 40 12
+- Extended Lind ed Liabiities) o 24 02 MBESZ 05 ] 40 12
When the Tuple Elements are the headers of horizontal rows, XBRL Taxonomy Designer
requires you to transpose rows/columns. In the example below: Current Account, Term Loans,
Finance leases, etc.
- w 5
i g g 2 52 | %
& TE E 3| 5585 EEE =,
w g EEE @ g cb=5 LT 5L
= Lo E ] En=f| =CLo 2
Table A 4 | FE3 7 4] se5s| TEFe2| S
Balance sheet 24 17(b) =2 E 228 |z | =] z=® oo = O 5
Cogle & 0gs 10 015 020 23 030 [}
Assets @ loans anl advances 24 170k 100 a0 i S0 a0 50 a0 S0
Current accourts 24 17(k) 110 10 10 0 10 10 10 0
Term loans 24 170kl 120 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
Finance lesses 24 170kl 130 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
Consumer Credit 24 170k 140 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
Mortgace |oans 24 170k 150 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
[Equity instruments 24 177k 160 i) 20 20 20 20 20 20
Trading s=curities 24 17(k) 170 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
Irvestment securities 24 170kl 180 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
(Other receivables 24 170k 190 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
Total assets 24 1 7(k 19 1] 50 ] [H] g0 a0 ]
Liabilities: deposits 24 1 7(k) 200 A 20 20 20 20 20 20
Deposits 24 171k 0 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
Crthier borrowings 24 170kl ;) 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
[Oiher inancial iabilites 24 17(k) =30 a0 40 ] ] ] 40 40
Dekt certificates 24 171k 240 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
Subordinated lishilities 24 17k 250 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
Share based payments 24 171k =5 20 20 20 20 20 20 20
Granted 24 170kl 270 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
Exercized 24 170kl 280 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
(Other liabilities 24 171 200 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
Total liabilities 24 171 e e) 70 70 70 70 70 70 70
(Guarantees issued by the group 24 17 ki 300 10 10 0 10 10 10 0
(Guarantees received by the group 24 17 ki 310 10 10 0 10 10 10 0
Provisions for doubtiul delis 24 17(C 3] 10 10 10 10 10 10 10

The Elements of the Tuple Related Parties Disclosure by Type of Related Parties

e Current Account
e Term Loans
e Finance leases

e Consumer Credit, and so on
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All of these are posted in Column C in the example above. To use this type of mapping, you
must click the Transpose rows/columns in the XBRL mapper. The rest of the steps are the same

as in “Mapping Lesson One” on page 285 .

D@

fisset balances with Related Party, Total

[ - | e coun |

S ¥ fsnvIPaienlde _vJ
be-ifrs-fi {Presentation) | 41 x || Element - bedfrs-fi
=~ Extended Link (Section 4 Table 42: Related Party Disclosures) -~ i Bl Element Information
= Related Party Disclosures (Presentation) p pacePrefi be-ifts-fi
= Marne RelatedPartiesDisclosuresBy TypeOfRelatedParty
Type of Relsted Party (B Labels Related Parties Disclosures by Type of Related Pa
= Detail of Related Parties Transactions DataType Tuple
= Detail of Balance Sheet Balances with Related Party TupleDefirition (Tuple Definition)
= Asset balances with Related Party Abekract False
= Loans and Advances with Ralated Party ubrlituple
Loans and Advances with Related Party, Current accounts Frie
Loans and Advances with Related Party, Term Loans :
Loans and Advances with Related Party, Finance leases g -
Loans and Advances with Related Party, Consumer Credit & Documentation
Loans and Advances with Related Party, Mortgages Loans B References (Collection - 1)
= Equity instruments with Related Party
Equity Instruments with Related Party, Trading Securities - Mapper Setup
Equify Instruments with Related Party, Investments Securitis Import saurce IExcaI ___I Map fle rame =]
Equity Instruments with Related Party, Total i
Pt i e d ::K name |D:AData-DEMOWUB-LIC-Demo-2008-01-10-T E{ Mapping type |Fiow by key |

-

bf Subscriptions,

Troubleshooting Mapping Errors

If not executed properly, mapping can cause errors. The quickly method to discover where these
errors are located is to validate the instance document. The example below is a calculation trace

for an instance document.

@ Liability balances with Related Party Flow Header E I Transpose rows/ IT i eeaimre il A
Guarantess Issued by the group with Related Party = i
Guarantees Received by the group with Related Party AB c o E F G-
Provisions for doubtful debts with Related Party » 16420 3 Rt pany disch <. ANNUALLY i i j
& Detall of Income Stakement Transactions with Related Party 5 > 18430
+ Key Management Personnel Compensation by Category - T 16440 Table & \ASAFRS ref. Paiaid P
< ! | » 4 teaso
5 16480 Balance sheet 24.17p) 24.18 [a) 24
8 - [all elements || Count: 6,941 & Code & 5 10
; i Tonal|| [ o0 fimeee . —
bf Subscriptions, Reserves Including Retained Ear,,,  RefundOfSubscriptionsRes...  Monetary ¥ | 1ede0 ERere -"‘1701 120 10 10
F Subscriptions, Revaluation Reserves RefundOfSubscriptionsRev...  Monetary | -
F Subscriptions, Revahation Reserves, Cash Flo.,,  RefundOfSubseriptionsRey... Monetary L M Shealin 24170) 1 o 30
f Subscriptions, Revaluation Reserves, Fair Valu,,,  RefundOFSubscriptionsRev... Monetary " 16510 Consumer Credit 24.170) 140 10 10+
bf Subscriptions, Revaluation Reserves, Foreign ... RefundOfSubscriptionsRev...  Monetary « | »
f Subscriptions, Revaluation Reserves, Hedge of,,,  RefundOfSubscriptionsRev... Monstary |
bf Subscriptions, Revaluation Reserves, Intangibl..,  RefundOfSubscriptionsRev... Monetary =
F Subscriptions, Revaluation Reserves, Other Re..,  RefundOFfSubscriptionsRev... Monetary Cancel | a
f Subscriptions, Revakuation Reserves, Relating ...  RefundOfSubscriptionsRev... Monetary
pf Subscriptions, Revaluation Reserves, Tangible ... RefundOfSubscriptionsRev...  Monetary
F Subscriptions, Share Premium RefundOfSubscriptionssha...  Monstary
bf Subscriptions, Subscribed Capital ReefundCfSubscriptionsSub...  Monetary
of Subscriptions, Total RefundOfSubscriptionsTotal  Monetary
easury Shares RefundOfSubscript .

usfr-pt Assets and usfr-pt:TotalCurrentAssets each have an error, as marked by tagging their

values in red. Each of them has the same error. The reported value does not match the computed
value. This is an inconsistence as noted in the message column. As the computed value is higher,
it is likely that an extra value was mapped to this concept.
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|Line | Label W B D-P Yalue Source| Message
| 1 jS‘tatementFinanda!Pos: won [hitp:/wererxb.org/us/ fr/lr/role/StatementFinancialPosition] )
2 iContellt Peets—Zl]Ol]—IZ—.}I[‘a.t 2000-12‘-31 il:nr PEET Scel‘lél‘io-l]. ; . - )
% @
4 usfr-ptiAssets .D e n-inst Inconsistency
Co m:comp |
5| usfr-pti TotalCurrenthssets 1D DD “ gt Inconsistency
=N} n comp
[ usfr-pti CashCashEquivalentsShortTermInvestments i oo 1,598 comp
7 us-fr-pt:CashCasthuiuaIents 1000 1,598 |inst
2 usfr—p;::ReceiLllabIesl;Iet“ T 1. D'DlDl 95‘4 inst
9.: us‘f‘r-pt:Ir‘wentorie‘sNet P ilD DD 8,940 inst
10 usfr-ptiCeferredIncomeTanesCurrentPartion 1 0o 1,597 inst
11‘. usfr-p;t:PrepaidExpenses icico -833_comp
12: usfr—pt:Otherﬁrepéid!—:‘upenses 1. o oDo 883“'inst
12| usfr-pt:i\loncurrent.\'-\ssets 1loloo 125,641 .comp I
14 usfr-pti PropertyPlantEquiprentMet 1 0|0 22595 |inst %
15| usfr-p;t:Int‘angibleAssetsN‘et 1000 3‘,046 linst
i .Slhliclkholderséqlllity .l: D.l]l .39.613 I;oﬂ| (114
:Liabilities 1lelpa é‘D,‘i.‘{S baoth OK
18| usfr-pti CurrentLiabilities 1/ C|D0 | 15,320 both E=le
lé' us-fr-pt:AccountspayahIeAccruedEHpenses 1|c|DO 9‘,03? lcomp
20 usfr—ptl:Accoun;:sDal,la.blle ; o 1. (8 lD o é,l?D linzt
21 us‘f‘r-pt:Accrueci‘EHpenses ! 1|C DD 6,86?.ill|st
2z usfr-ptiCebtCapitalLeaseObligationsCurrent 1CiDo 6,283 comp
23] us-fr-pt:CurrentPortionLon‘g‘T‘ermDebt 1jcoo 2‘,03? linst )
: 24 usf‘r—pt: OtherSI‘l\on:lTlermB.orrowl\lings 1. (8 lD‘D‘ ; 4,24‘6 'ilnst
25| usfr-pt:Noncurrenti‘.iai)ilities tleloo i5,126 |comp
26| usfr-ptiCebtCapitalleaseCbligationsLongTerm 1 C|D0 | 14,544 |comp
270 uzfr-ot: LonaTermDebt o 1lcioo 14.544 como

Printing the Audit Report

» To print a mapping audit report, select File, then Print Preview.

A mapping audit report looks like this:

tnstance Print Options x
Faport Yiew Shows
Wieww Lo print [Meoping: = ||F
& Albems W AudtTral
™ Sebected bem: and ther sub ree

" Selected dema/nks only

Inchude

& Piint option 1

" Piint option 2

FAapcet option: Dutpats

I Show gray bar across: elemntnk. ¢ Pt Prenviesy
[ Shew ine separating sbsemantfink [~ ML Fie

_ Fm | Freview Cancel |

This screen shot shows the mapping audit report preview:
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This report shows the XBRL element (in bold on the left side), the source data table items
(underneath the bold XBRL elements), the XBRL context assigned, the Decimals value assigned,
the XBRL Unit Ref assigned, the scale applied to the source data, and the value actually placed
in the instance document which is the sum of all values mapped to an instance document element
name.

For row-mapped source data there is one report line when the source row has one context or
multiple report lines when multiple contexts are processed (such as multiple year columns). For
cell-mapped source data, there is one report line per mapped cell.

» To print the mapping audit report, after importing data into an instance, select Output Print
Preview, View to Print Mappings, and select the Show checkbox for Audit trail.

Utilizing Mapping to Create Instance Documents

An instance document is created by importing and mapping source data to taxonomy concepts,
XBRL context, and—for numeric entries—to unit, decimals/precision and scaled numeric
values.

Importsources can be Excel, CSV, Word tables, Access tables and queries, OLE Provider database
tables and queries, and instance documents produced under source taxonomies (to map to a
taxonomy).

Imported data fields, such as columns of tables, are identified by their column headers or column
position. A flexible process expresses these column relationships to instance data fields
(including how to identify context and unit of each import field/column).

Import data field columns which match expected instance fields may in some cases be
automatically recognized and automatically identified. Import field column headers which are
not automatically recognized can be manually related to an instance import field in the import
design process and that specification saved for later reuse manually and by scripted API
programs.

Instance fact values might be (a) grouped by period into columns identified by import mapping,
(b) specifically designated by context in the XBRL mapping, or (c) associated with a context in
the import (such asby having pairs or triples of context and unit columns for each value column).
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Instance fact values might also be individually designated cell by cell for mapping, optionally
grouped by row sections (such as on equity statements). In this case, the XBRL mapping provides
a template for the top (first) repeating group and each subsequent repeating group is a
subsequent (or preceding) context period.

XML files issue from design of each of these (taxonomy and import column header) mappings.

Batch processing of the import process by API is achievable after the taxonomy mapping (row
or cell mapping) and import field/column identification (column header mapping) are specified.

Instance Document Context Import Mapping
This screen shot shows an Instance Import field mapping screen for context import:

Irespecet Olpiones
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[ Ky | = 3
Sheet | Cantexts =
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| Contwt D Esdity I EnsityScharma | PaticdTyse Contesxtili Context 1D
K| CumertPeiod  Sumpls Compan NIp Sy sargl inee Erihill Entity 1D
3| Puastion Sumple Compan BitpRenny sampl Durstion ErbilyfSchosres Entity Schome
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Load Design dooy | sua | o |
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The Import Type Contexts selects a worksheet or database table called Contexts by default. A
user can specify a worksheet or table of any other name.

For Excel or CSV, the first row is assumed to contain header names, but the row header can be
advanced (for example, past rows of merged cells containing sheet names and dates). If no header
row exists, select zero or uncheck row header. (For database the schema provides column names;
for XML input this is determined from the XML tag names.)

The import field to instance field property grid attempts to automatically select best matches
between columns as they are named in the import data and the corresponding instance field.

If user entries were made to associate import to instance fields, these selections can be saved
(select the Save Design checkbox; it is saved at the next Apply or Start action).

If user entries are to be loaded from a previously saved association of import to instance fields,
click the load design button and select a file.
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Table 81 Instance Fields
Field Explanation
Context ID An XML identifier for this context (for example, CurrentPeriod).

Context Label

A context label.

Context Description

Description of the context.

Entity ID An identifier for the business entity (for example, a NASDAQ ticker moniker).

Entity Scheme The namespace within which the business entity identifier is known (for example, http://www.nasdag.com).
Entity Segment A business segment within the business (for example, discontinuing operations).

Period Type Instant, duration, or forever.

Date Start A start date or instant date.

Date End An end date, or instant date if not provided in the start date column.

Scenario A business scenario.

In general, a minimal number of fields are needed to establish a workable context. It is feasible
to have only a context ID, period type, and dates, but for valid XBRL instances an entity ID and
scheme is also recommended. The context label and description are XBRL Taxonomy Designer

extensions and completely optional. The Entity Segment and Scenario are XBRL fields and

completely optional.

Instance Document Fact Value Import Mapping

This screen shot shows an Instance Import field mapping screen for Fact Value import (for
tabular input source data).
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See “Instance Document Context Import Mapping” on page 180 for a column header and design
saving and loading discussion.
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Instance fact value import can be tabular or XML tree object mapped. For tabular input sources
input can be:

e Direct, by using an element label or name in each input row or record to identify the
taxonomy element of the source fact

e XBRL Mapped, where the XBRL mapping (described previously) specifies a taxonomy
element for each row or cell imported value, by using one of these:

o A row mapping by key (such as GL Account number)
o A row mapping by row number
o A cell mapping by key and column header

o A cell mapping by cell reference

For XML tree input sources, mapping can be XML tree object mapped by xPath expressions.

When tabular import is direct by element label or name, it is necessary also provide numeric
values imported with unit identification and precision, and to provide all (numeric and non-
numeric) values with context information.

Direct import of tabular values allows each value column to provide a period (date selection) or
context (identifier selection), or refer to a companion column which contains that period or
context identifier. When a period is specified by date selection, the element type determines
whether an instant or duration period is needed, which is determined by context lookup. When
a companion column is provided with a context identifier, then that specifies the value field’s
context. Direct import requires one input row or record per fact value. Multiple fact values for
the same concept and context are entered using XBRL mapped import.

XBRL mapped import allows sophisticated mapping for accounting data, merging of multiple
mapped input source values into one fact value with full audit trail, and dynamic determination
of unit, context and scale.

Units can be specified on the XBRL mapped import, or if absent there they can be specified in
the import field to instance field property grid.

Context likewise can be specified on the XBRL mapped import, or if absent it can be specified
in the import field to instance field property grid.

Context for repeating rows of cell mapped data are advanced, group by group, by the repeat
period property of the repeating row groups specification.

Table 82 Fact Value Fields

Field Explanation
Fact ID An optional identifier for this fact (for example, 29).
Tuple Name The element name of the tuple containing the current fact. Must be input in tree nesting sequence.
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Field Explanation

Element Name, | Specifies how the import is matched to a taxonomy element. Element name or label implies by matching of the
Element Label, | corresponding input field to a taxonomy element’s name or label. Mapping key means that the XBRL Mapping

or Mapping Key | specification loaded in the current instance is to be used to select the element.

entered in the expanded selection, or specified in a companion column.

For label, this field can be expanded (plus box) for specification of label language and role. Each of these can be

Unit Ref Specifies that this input field contains a Unit ID for numeric input fields (which do not specify unit within XBRL Mapping
specifications).
Decimals Specifies that this input field contains a Decimals precision number for numeric input fields (which do not specify

decimals within XBRL Mapping specifications).

Precision Alternate to use of Decimals, specifies precision.

Value Specifies that this input field contains a value. When selected this field can be expanded to specify period or context

a period or context ID.

field.

to instance field association is necessary.

selection. A period or context can be specified in the expanded selection, or by a companion column which contains

For direct and XBRL Row mapping, every column which can contain a Value must have this selection for the import

For XBRL cell mapping, import fields are identified only by the XBRL mapping specification and no Value import field

Generally only the Element Name/Label, Unit, Decimals/Precision, and Value fields are
necessary. The specification of a tuple name is for situations where tuple-contained facts are

provided. The specification of Mapping Key is for when an XBRL mapping specification provides

a row or cell mapped specification for the value.

Using Instance Document Unit Import Mapping

This is the Instance Import field mapping screen for Unit import:

instance mport xy
Impoet iptions
Imgeat souce (el -] W Consctemcezonimpont [ Save design
& Valdate before mport

Fis rueres [ ekt ﬂ  Fiwhesdes EEWM f—"
ircacdt e e e -
Shesl E::lm j el =l B

= | -

Benport Fedd hn!mﬁd‘l

Ui UestiD Linat 1D

217 EUR Lirst Lnit Measure =l
Load Desgn docy | s | o | 4

The Import Type Units selects a worksheet or database table called Units by default. However,
you can specify a different worksheet or table name.
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Table 83 Unit Fields

Field Explanation
Unit ID An XML unit identifier (for example, Monetary)
Unit Label Unit label

Unit Description | Unit description

Unit Measure One measure (for example, iso4217:EUR, iso4217:ISD., shares, or pure), or an XBRL expression of multiplication or
division of measures (as a complete XML fragment)

Generally only the Unit ID and Unit Measure fields are required. The Unit Label and Unit
Description are optional D extensions.

Mapping Control Window

The Mapping Control suggests mappings for row-by-key mappings.

This screen shot shows the mapping control for automatic label/name-based mapping
suggestions:

Mapping Control
Key Cobmnfs] || sbel [Optional)

Match Colurrniz) |Labe| [Diptianal]

L L] L

Match lo |Elements in selected sublres
[ Elementname [ Beginning only

lgnote matching [ I I i
Status
[Humbser sousce roles mapped: 154 M
Humiber unmapped: 77
Ty all
Cleas &l
Close

e Key columns indicates the source data grid columns which are the key columns. These
columns form the filter pattern provided by the automatic mapping suggestion.

e Match columnsindicates the source data grid columns which are matched against taxonomy
labels or names, to find suggested alternative taxonomy concepts for each mapping
suggestion.

Key and match columns can contain multiple column names combined. Press the Ctrl key
when selecting (or removing) multiple columns from the columns selection.

e Match to indicates what is to be matched in the taxonomy. The matching is based on the
actively-selected taxonomy tree view (such as the presentation tree). For large and complete
taxonomies, it may be suitable to narrow the part of the taxonomy being matched, such as
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by highlighting a balance sheet subtree, and selecting to match to elements in the selected
taxonomy view subtree.

Element name is checked when name, instead of label, is to be matched. Beginning only is
checked when the match columns are to match only the beginning of the label or word,
instead of also looking for later words in a label or name.

Try new uses the specified entries to suggest mappings of yet-unmapped source data rows.
Try all clears mappings and try all rows. Clear all clears all current mappings.

The Mapping Properties Control suggests entry mapping properties for use as defaults when
drag and drop or automatically mapping and for replacement of mapping properties (if entered

or still blank).

Mapping Control L3
Key Cobamnfs) |Label [Diptional) &}
Match Cohumnls) |L;b.g| (Opticnal) ﬂ
Match to [Elements in selected sublice =l

[ Elementname | Beginning only
lgnote matching [~ F - i
Status
[Murbes souece roles mapped: 154 M
Murmnbes unmapped: 77 Trw all
Iy
Clear al
Close

Context entries specify contextRef names to provide for duration and instant concept
elements, for tabular input source. For XML tree input source an xPath expression resulting
in contextRef names may be specified instead.

Unit entries specify unitRef’s to provide as default mapping properties for monetary, pure,
and stock entries. For XML tree input source, an xPath expression resulting in unitRef names
may be specified instead.

Decimal entries specify default properties for monetary and other numeric entries. For
example, monetary may be 2 (for dollars and cents), or -3 (for thousands rounding), but
pure is usually 1.

Scale is the multiplier on accumulating debit (usually scale 1) and credit (often -1) entries.
Scale may be less than one to apportion to multiple concepts (such as .40 and .60). A scale
of 0 or blank means the input value is multiplied as zero and thus entered as zero to the
resulting instance document.
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Dimensions

In This Chapter

Guide to Dimensions and Dimension Aggregation..............
Dimensions OVEIVIEW ..........vviviiiiiiiiiiie e
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This section explains how to work with XBRL dimensions.

Guide to Dimensions and Dimension Aggregation

Welcome to the XBRL Taxonomy Designer tutorial about Dimensions and Aggregation.

XBRL Taxonomy Designer and the XBRL Taxonomy Designer Dimensions tutorials currently

support these versions of Dimensions and Aggregation:

e Dimensions 1.0, candidate release 3

e Aggregation 1.0 is currently in working draft format by the XBRL Consortium. XBRL
Taxonomy Designer has implemented the schema xbrldta-2005.xsd for Aggregation.

However, this has not yet been approved by the XBRL Consortium as a release.

Dimensions 1.0 is supplemental specification that enables you to apply dimensional concepts

to XBRL documents. Aggregation 1.0 is an additional supplemental specification that enables

you to sum values across dimensional concepts.

This tutorial is divided into incremental lessons to enable you to get a full understanding of

dimensions and their use in XBRL:

e “Dimensions Overview” on page 188 explains the basic concepts of XBRL Dimensions.

e “Dimension Breakdown” on page 189examines the use of one dimension and provides an

example.
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e “Hypercube Breakdown” on page 190walks you through putting together a basic hypercube,
identifies all of the parts of a hypercube, and explains how a dimension fits into a hypercube.

e “Dimensions and XBRL Overview” on page 191 discusses how XBRL and Dimensions work
together. This lesson ties together all of the concepts from the previous three lessons.

e “Intermediate Hypercube” on page 192 adds complexity to the previous hypercube model
and walks you through creating more difficult hypercubes.

e “Advanced Dimensions” on page 193covers the difference between implicit and explicit
dimensions.

e “Aggregation Overview” on page 194 discusses the difference between Aggregation and
Dimensions and how Aggregation can be applied to a hypercube.

e “Advanced Hypercube Example” on page 195 walks you through creating an advanced
complex hypercube model using Aggregation.

Dimensions Overview

When business or financial reports are created, their purpose is to communicate a measurement
of something—for example, Sales, Salaries, or Risk Values.

The item measured is often divided into categories, for example Sales by Geographical Region.
XBRL Dimensions uses these categories as a way of describing how you got to that measured
value.

In this example, we use the term “category” to express different “dimensions” to categorize a
movie inventory. If you were creating a movie inventory, you might come up with a movie list
that looks like this.

Goals for Movie Inventory:
1. Should be easy for customers to find the movies they want.

2. Should also be easy for employees to shelve the movies when customers return them.

One way to organize the inventory is alphabetical order. Customers can find what they are
looking for if they know the name of the movie. However, this method is inefficient if customers
don't know the name of the movie or even what movie they want to buy.

Data Modeling for Dimensions
Another way to organize the inventory is to group the movies according to category.

Two categories could be genre and rating.

Movie Inventory

Rating
Movie Genre G PG R
Science Fiction The Black Hole Star Wars The Terminator

188 Dimensions



Movie Inventory

Western

True Grit

Young Guns

On a Pale Horse

Classic

Bambi

Casablanca

Psycho

The purpose of the above chart is to catalog the movie inventory. By breaking down the inventory
by movie genre and by rating, customers are able to find the movies they want easily and find

similar titles that might interest them. A real inventory of a video store would contain thousands
oftitles, more genres, and more ratings, but this examine is perfect for our purposes. For example,

you might have a hundred movies under the science fiction genre and G rating category.

However, for the purpose of this example, the inventory is suitable.

A human can review the movie inventory report above and determine how the information is

being broken down and categorized. A computer on the other hand that processes this movie
inventory data requires a system for expressing and understanding this breakdown of data.

In Microsoft Excel, users can define a set of columns to report and categorize information:

Movie Genre

Rating

Movie Inventory

Science fiction

G

The Black Hole

To report only the Movie Genre “Science fiction”, Rated “G”, Movie inventory titles, users can
pivot the columns to express a dimensional view of this information, breaking the information

down into "Science Fiction" movies rated "G."

Title Genre Rating Number of Copies
The Black Hole Science Fiction G 1
The Day the Earth Stood Still Science Fiction G 1
Star Wars Science Fiction PG 2
The Matrix Science Fiction R 2
The Terminator Science Fiction R 2

Dimension Breakdown

A dimension is a way of adding context to a measure value, and can be thought of as a category.
In the example below, rather than view all movie releases, we add the concept of "Movie Genre"

where the movies can be viewed by grouping them under the same genre.

Movie Inventory

Rating

Movie Genre

PG
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Movie Inventory

Science Fiction The Black Hole Star Wars The Terminator
Western True Grit Young Guns On a Pale Horse
Classic Bambi Casablanca Psycho

If we looked at just the Movie Genre dimension, it would look like this. The information remains
the same, but the method in which it is displayed changes. The domain-members for the Movie

Genre are "Science Fiction", "Western," and "Classic." It is very easy to determine which movies
belong to the "Science Fiction" Movie Genre.

Movie Inventory

Movie Genre

Science Fiction The Black Hole, Star Wars, The Terminator

Western True Grit, Young Gun, On a Pale Horse

Classic Bambi, Casablanca, Psycho

Hypercube Breakdown

The example below is a fairly generic chart analyzing the breakdown of the Movie Inventory, by
genre, by rating. Each of these breakdowns can be considered a way to view the same information.
We could think of these individual breakdowns as views, slices, or dimensions. Collectively, these
dimensions form a hypercube.

The human brain can examine this data and determine what the report is conveying where as a
computer would not be able to determine without some knowledge and language to express the
dimensions, the data, and the connection between them. People can make assumptions and
connections based on past experiences and education. For example, review the chart below and
know that Psycho should not be rented to a child because it is rated R. A computer knows the
rating of a movie only as a value unless we provide it with context.

Movie Inventory

Rating
Movie Genre G PG R
Science Fiction The Black Hole Star Wars The Terminator
Western True Grit Young Guns On a Pale Horse
Classic Bambi Casablanca Psycho
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Hypercube

A hypercube is a construct designed to express a collection of dimensions. The example above
could be expressed as a simple hypercube. The axis of the cube below is a graphical representation
to aid your understanding of dimensions. Each dimension has its own axis. The human brain
can view a spreadsheet and intuitively understand these details, but a computer needs a way of
expressing dimensions.
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Primary ltem

The first step to modeling data using dimensions is to determine what it is we are measuring. In
the above example, we are examining different views of the Movie Inventory with the filters of
Genre and Rating. We are measuring the Movie Inventory; therefore we state that the Movie
Inventory is the primary item.

Dimension

In the Movie Inventory example we decided to divide Sales by Products and Regions. These
categories are considered to be dimensions, or categories by which we are going to analyze the
information.

Domain and Domain Members

A domain is all of the domain members which are used to express a dimension. In the example
above, Genre is a dimension. The domain members for Genre are Science Fiction, Western, and
Classic. Collectively, these domain members form the Genre Domain.

Dimensions and XBRL Overview

The XBRL Dimensions 1.0 specification provides an optional incremental syntax to the XBRL
2.1 specification to express Dimensions in a global standardized manner.

XBRL 2.1 calculations are limited in that calculations that are expressed can only be can only be
executed under the same content, and not across different contexts. Dimension aggregation
calculations enable you to complete calculations across different contents. If you have a
requirement to complete calculations across contexts, then it is necessary to create a business
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rule (formula) to complete a calculation across different contexts, or make use of the dimensional
specification. The authors of the XBRL Dimensions specification leveraged the XBRL syntax or
architecture which allows dimensions to be expressed in a standardized manner; and the
dimensions to be extended or restricted as necessary.

The XBRL Dimensions specification provides the context needed for financial reporting software
to effectively analyze this information. To read more about this specification which is currently
published as a public working draft go to: http://www.xbrl.org/SpecPWDs/

From an XBRL perspective, dimensions are the ability to express relationships between XBRL
contexts. XBRL calculations are limited in that calculations can only be expressed and therefore
performed within the same context. Using XBRL dimensions, relationships can be expressed
across contexts.

Dimensions are expressed using an XBRL taxonomy which also supports features of the XBRL
dimensions specification. Within the XBRL taxonomy, information is expressed which provides
continuity between:

e Primary items
e Hypercubes

e Dimensions

e Domains

e Domain members

An XBRL processor that supports dimensions can then use this additional information to
perform additional processing expressed by the dimensions.

Intermediate Hypercube

Most Dimensional Taxonomies contain one or more hypercubes with one or more dimensions
and therefore are considered more complex than our current example. In this section we add
additional dimensions into the movie inventory and therefore additional complexity.

Goals for Movie Inventory include:
e Cost per Movie Title
e Number of Copies of a Movie Title

e Barcode of Movie Title

A basic hypercube created from these goals might look like the example below.

Movie Inventory

Movie Title Cost per Movie Number of Copies Barcode
The Black Hole 20.00 2 2144124
Star Wars 15.00 3 4436346
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Movie Inventory

The Terminator

13.99

3463463

Adding in the information from the Hypercube Breakdown creates a Hypercube that looks like

the example below.

Movie Inventory

Movie Title Genre Rating Cost per Movie Number of Copies Barcode
The Black Hole Science Fiction G 20.00 2 2144124
Star Wars Science Fiction PG 15.00 3 4436346
The Terminator Science Fiction R 13.99 1 3463463

This hypercube enables you to examine the movie inventory by a variety of dimensions.

Advanced Dimensions

Dimensions can be divided into explicit and implicit dimensions.

Note: These features are demonstrated in“Lesson Two: Creating a Dimension Taxonomy” on

page 331.

e Explicit Dimensions—Explicit dimensions are dimensions whose domain-members are
explicitly defined. In the Hypercube Breakdown example, the Movie Genre is an example
of an Explicit Dimension because all of the domain-members are strictly defined.

Movie Inventory

Movie Genre

Science Fiction

The Black Hole, Star Wars, The Terminator

Western

True Grit, Young Gun, On a Pale Horse

Classic

Bambi, Casablanca, Psycho

e Implicit Dimensions—There are occasions where the number of domain members is

known, but so large that it would be impractical to list all domain members. For example,

o Each ZIP code in the US.

o Longitudes, which span from 180 to -180.

The XBRL Dimensions specification provides a mechanism to express these types of
dimensions. The XBRL Dimensions specification calls implicit dimensions "typed"

dimensions.

Advanced Dimensions
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In the Intermediate Hypercube example, Cost is a good example of an Implicit
Dimension. It would be impossible to define all of the possible costs as it changes based
on market forces. Instead, we create an Implicit Dimension with a domain-member of
all-possible-costs.

Movie Inventory

Movie Title Genre Rating Cost Per Movie Number of Copies Barcode

The Black Hope Science Fiction G 20.00 2 2144124
Star Wars Science Fiction PG 15.00 3 4436346
The Terminator Science Fiction R 13.99 1 3463463

Aggregation Overview

XBRL Dimensions 1.0 was designed to express the relationships between dimensions. The XBRL
Aggregation 1.0 specification enables users to create summable values across dimensions.

Note: These features are demonstrated in “Lesson Four: Creating a Hypercube Taxonomy” on
page 333 of the Basic Dimensions Tutorial.

With XBRL, it would be easy to determine the sum of all of the genres for the year 2003. However,
if you wanted to determine the sum of Science Fiction across the periods of 2003, 2002, and 2001
you would use Dimensions and Aggregation.

To determine the sum value of science fiction requires the aggregation of the values for Science
Fiction-2003, Science Fiction-2002, and Science Fiction 1000. XBRL alone does not allow users
to sum values across dimensions.

Movie sales Analysis
2003 2002 2001
Sales by Genre 32,038 35,805 32,465
Breakdown by Genre
Science Fiction 20,181 18,150 15,275 53,606
Wester 2,433 1,973 1,823
Classic 6,675 6,514 5,752
Other 2,749 9,168 9,615
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Movie sales Analysis

Grand Total 32,038 35,805 32,465

Advanced Hypercube Example

The Movie Inventory is a decent start. The next step is to create a hypercube that measures Movie
Sales by Genre and by Rating.

Note: These features are demonstrated in “Lesson Four: Creating a Hypercube Taxonomy” on
page 333 of the Basic Dimensions Tutorial.

Goals for Movie Inventory include:
e Determine which type of movies sell better.

e Determine which movies sell poorly.

A basic hypercube created from these goals might look like the example below. This example
uses the Genre and Rating breakdown from previous examples. In addition, it uses a third
dimension of period to further see how sales change from year to year.

Movie Sales Analysis
2003 2002 2001
Sales, by Genre, by Ratings 32,038 35,805 32,465
Breakdown by Genre
Science Fictiont 20,181 18,150 15,275
Western 2,433 1,973 1,823
Classic 6,675 6,514 5,752
Other 2,749 9.168 9,615
Grand Total 32,038 35,805 32,465
Breakdown by Rating
G 10,214 12,649 10,137
PG 11,901 10,374 10,396
R 5,639 4,371 3,210
Other 4,284 8,411 8,722
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Movie Sales Analysis

Grand Total 32,038 35,805 32,465

From this example, we can determine that Science Fiction movies outsell all of the other movie
genres. In addition, movies rated G or PG outsell other ratings. Inversely, Westerns seem to sell
poorly so users might decide to buy less of them in the future.

Notice that the Grand Totals for the Genre and the Rating breakdowns are the same year by year.
This is because the information being measured is the same in both dimensions, but the way
that it is being quantified differs. XBRL Dimensions 1.0 is what enables you to manipulate this
information into suitable formats while XBRL Aggregation1.0 is what enables you to create
summable values across dimensions.

Dimensions Validation

Validating Dimensions and Aggregation Files

The process for validating Dimensions and Aggregation is the same process for validating
taxonomies and for validating instance documents; however, dimensions and aggregation
validation requires another set of validation error messages than the standard XBRL file. Users
can find these errors here:

e “XBRL Taxonomy Designer Dimension Validation Errors” on page 196

e “XBRL Taxonomy Designer Instance Dimension Validation Errors” on page 198

See Also

“Reading a Calculation Trace” on page 151

XBRL Taxonomy Designer Dimension Validation Errors

The namespace xbrldte is defined as http: //xbrl.org/2005/xbrldt/errors.

Table 84 XBRL Taxonomy Designer Dimension Validation Errors

Taxonomy Error Meaning Reference

[Dim Err, 1] xbrldte:HypercubeElementisNotAbstractError Hypercube element must be abstract 2.2

[Dim Err, 2] xbrldte:HypercubeDimensionSourceError The source of the hypercube-dimension arc is notthe | 2.2.2.1
correct type.

[Dim Err, 3] xbrldte:HypercubeDimensionTargetError The target of the hypercube-dimension arc is not the | 2.2.2.1
correct type.

[Dim Err, 4] xbrldte:HasHypercubeSourceError The source of an all, notAll arc is not the correct type. | 2.3.1.1
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Taxonomy Error Meaning Reference

[Dim Err, 5] xbrldte:HasHypercubeTargetError The target of an all, notAll arc is not the correct type. | 2.3.1.1

[Dim Err, 6] The all, notAll arc does not contain an 23.11

xbrldte:HasHypercubeMissingContextElementAttributeError xbrldt:contextElement attribute.

[Dim Err, 7] xbrldte:TargetRoleNotResolvedError The URI content of a xbrldt:targetRole attribute cannot | 2.4.3
be resolved using a roleRef to a roleType.

[Dim Err, 8] xbrldte:DRSUndirectedCycleError Within a Dimensional Relationship Set there mustnot | 2.4.3
be undirected cycles not allowed by the arc
declaration.

[Dim Err, 9] xbrldte:DRSDirectedCycleError Within a Dimensional Relationship Set there mustnot | 2.4.3
be directed cycles not allowed by the arc declaration.

[Dim Err, 10] xbrldte:DimensionElementisNotAbstractError Dimension elements must be abstract 2.5

[Dim Err, 11] xbrldte:TypedDomainRefError The xbrldt:typedDomainRef attribute is displayed on | 2.5.2.1.1
an element declaration that is not a dimension
declaration.

[Dim Err, 12] xbridte:TypedDimensionError The xbrldt:typedDomainRef attribute does not locate | 2.5.2.1.1
a typed dimension.

[Dim Err, 13] xbrldte:TypedDimensionURIError The xbrldt:typedDomainRef attribute contains an 25.2.1.1
invalid URI or does not contain a fragment identifier

[Dim Err, 14] xbridte:DimensionDomainSourceError The source of a dimension-domain arc is not the 25.3.11
correct type.

[Dim Err, 15] xbridte:DimensionDomainTargetError The target of a dimension-domain arc is not the 2.5.3.11
correct type.

[Dim Err, 16] xbrldte:PrimaryltemPolymorphismError A cycle exist, the primary item cannot be a member | 2.5.3.1.1
of the domain of any of its dimensions 25321

[Dim Err, 17] xbridte:DomainMemberSourceError The source of a domain-member arc is not the correct | 2.5.3.2.1
type.

[Dim Err, 18] xbrldte:DomainMemberTargetError The target of a domain-member arc is not the correct | 2.5.3.2.1
type.

[Dim Err, 19] xbrldte:NoStandardLabelError The dimensional element does not contain a 2.7.11
standard label in any language.

[Dim Err, 20] xbrldte:DimensionDefaultSourceError The source of a dimension-default arc is not an 2.8.1.1
explicit dimension declaration

[Dim Err, 21] xbrldte:DimensionDefaultTargetError The target of a dimension-default arc is not a domain | 2.8.1.1
member declaration

[Dim Err, 22] xbridte:TooManyDefaultMembersError The dimension has two or more members in its 28.1.1

domain that MAY play the role of the default member.
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XBRL Taxonomy Designer Instance Dimension Validation

Errors

The namespace xbrldie is defined as http: //xbrl.org/2005/xbrldi/errors.

Table 85 XBRL Taxonomy Designer Instance Dimension Validation Errors

Instance Error Meaning Reference

[Ins Err, 1] xbridie:DefaultValueUsedInlnstanceError Default values of dimension must not be reported in 2.8.1.2
instances.

[Ins Err, 2] xbridie:PrimaryltemDimensionallylnvalidError The primary item contains invalid hypercubes in all base sets | 3.1.1

[Ins Err, 3] xbridie:RepeatedDimensionininstanceError It is not allowed to report a value for the same dimension 3.1.4.2
more then once.

[Ins Err, 4] xbridie:TypedMemberNotTypedDimensionError The xbridi:typedMember element does not refer to a typed 3.1.4.4.2
dimension.

[Ins Err, 5] xbridie:ExplicitMemberNotExplicitDimensionError | The xbrldi:ExplicitMember element does not refer to an explicit | 3.1.4.5.2
dimension.

[Ins Err, 6] xbrldie:ExplicitMemberUndefinedQNameError The QName value of the xbrldi:explicitMember element is not | 3.1.4.5.3

an element defined in the taxonomy schema.
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Formulas

In This Chapter

What are XBRL Formulas?

Formula is the XBRL term for business rules. Business rules are the practices, processes, and
polices of an organization expressed semantically so that XBRL can manage, or analyze the
organization's data according to these rules. These statements define or constrain some aspect
of the business which is intended to assert business structure, or to control or influence the
behavior of the business.

Types of business rules might be:
e Definitions such as "Assets = Liabilities + Equity"

e Calculations such as "Total Property, Plant and Equipment = Land + Buildings + Fixtures
+ IT Equipment + Other"

e Process oriented such as "If property, plant, and equipment exists; then a property, plant
and equipment policy must exist and property, plant and equipment disclosures must exist."

e Instructions or documentation such as "Cash flow types must be operating, financing, or
investing."

Business rules are important because they are extraordinarily useful for financial reporting; some
of the benefits of XBRL business rules are:

e Rather than paying programmers to update rules (which is expensive and time consuming),
business users who actually understand the rules can update them, saving time and money.

e Ratherthan having programmers create validation for each thing they wish to validate (called
one-to-one programmatic validation) a business rules engine can be used to do validation
(many-to-many rules-based validation).

If the business rules are also agreed upon, then they can become an accepted global standard
format. Therefore, you can exchange the rules with others. For example, a business might use
the business rules to explain the data it is collecting, determine which data needs to be collected,
validate the data before it is submitted, and decide which data collection forms should be used
by the type or quality of entity submitting data.
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All this promotes an understanding of business policies and procedures, facilitates consistent
decision making, forces order to rules and policies because they are clearly expressed; all with
increased flexibility because of the separation of the processing logic from the rules, the ability
of the business users to control the processing logic easily without understanding programming.

Disclosure Management Formula and Function Syntax

This section explains how to use formula and function syntax.

Create a Simple Formula

» To create a simple formula:
1 Create a taxonomy.
2 Select the Taxonomy Property window and change the namespace prefix to ci-br.

3 Change the namespace identifier to http: / /www.example.com/ci-businessrules.

M amespaceFrefis ci-br
M amespac http: //www_example.comAci-buzinesziules
Prifile Leneral

4  Select File, and then Save As.
5 Enter CIBusinessRules.xsd.

6 Create a reference taxonomy through the Reference Taxonomies property grid using the Basic Calculation

taxonomy.
=] g |l i malen
Hoame
[rescriphion
Hastroscs puascc Py b
N amespacel denther hittye o wwew. example. com

Froffe General

: ¢ Hane
Referenced] smonames  [Collechon - emply]
Linkbases [Collection - 7)

Relmenced Taxonomies - ci-be

NamespacePic ciba
Herrecpaceld hlip: £ fwww example. comder-bu
Frofie General

. Mame

Redeiercadl s [Collection - amply)

Lirdchoynes [Collection - 7]

RedprercePut [Collection - empiy] —
Extra=ML
Exdra-MLApph

| x|
1B Taronomy 5 aving
FieFath Co\Documents and 5 ettngs\Ft
SaveStategy | Mormal
SaveRefesnc Falze
B Uland Envisonmand
Showl angueag| en E niglizh
ShowdabeRol Standard Label
DedmdTyps  Shiing
Add | Hotes [Collection - empty)

e Bl Decinloie I Rluc
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The Reference Taxonomies property grid now shows:

Referenced T axonomies - ci-br

B Taxonomy Informaton -
Mame
Dezcription _
MamezpacePrefis ci-br

Mamezpacel dentifier .http:waw.example.c:um!-::i-busnessrules

HEMYE | | Profile General =

%l 2 L Elomo

7  Select Turn off, then View and then Namespace Prefix so that when you edit concepts you are not
editing the namespace prefix.

w Prasentation
Caculation

Expand

Refeesh

8 Select File, and then Save and close the taxonomy.

9 Open ci-businessrulestaxonomy and notice that BasicCalculation taxonomy is now a referenced
taxonomy to your ci-businessrules taxonomy.

Tawonomy schema floca Pl Pahy, 'Web Addess, o Flemote Sorvar)

[ "Documents ared Seregathd wsiengs My Documenin, T empot s crbtres e s _&J
Check for. T mandesttie [ native e fomat Eriabie edtng

Lirkbased thal st chéched vall be lnsded. Sooe Hels] rol Bourd vl b hughilghisd i ied

cl

[ ke [ Lekbasn Fite [ Frcte Moverspinc s beriten [ FullPath / Hae ' Erubls ding
e |
Pkt |
S

il | k|

Ferlerorced Lsoromies and sohemas [Foee crécked will be loaded. filsjc] nol found vl be highighed in red]

| Pt | Hortoipinen dtratn e J P | Conpoctin I Eratie ecting

= hitp & e L Bt comu P attemie B L aloulstion LA Poogan FlesUBmarmeUBmatn . mpost

T evsmauceny W belaton mvmw Fix T mrwmgy O Loadt
¥ ML vabdate T FRTA valdahe = ™ wismings ™ Faonbosd.

| ¥BRL Verson 21
Slahur

Epax:

uwul
__Pekas |
| I __;J-ﬁl
o ]
_Cwed |

f

Note: If you want to use colors to distinguish between the reference taxonomy
(BasicCalculation) and your taxonomy cibusinessrules, select Tools, and then
Options and move colors of your choice. Save the taxonomy and reload it.
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Now let’s edit some elements and create elements where we can store formulas.
10 Right-click the element Property, Plant and Equipment to edit and add the word (View).
This separates the concepts from the “containers” that we create to store formulas.
T e
= Presertation View

=} Estended Link: [Dedau Link]
. E—

Land
Bualdrg

Furrdune and Fodues

Compuites Equipment

(L]

Total Froperdy, Plart and Egupment

11 Now add the element “BusinessRules as a concept at the same level as Property, Plant and Equipment

(View).

ci-br IFIﬂlntnhuﬂ'

El- Presentation Yiew

=1 Extended Link [Dedaudt Link)
= Propesty, Plant ard E qupeent [View)

Land
Buiding
Furrdiure and Fodures
Comipuber Equipment
Oithust
Total Propety. Flant and Equipment

R

12 Add a concept under Business Rules and call it Land > Other.
ﬁhlhﬂmﬂmﬂ'
= Prazentation View
= Exterdad Lind [Default Link)
=]~ Propetty, Flant and Equiprent [View)
Land
Buldeng
Futriture and Fisures
Computer Equipment
Ot
Total Propesty. Plant ard Equspmert
- Bugineszs Rules

13 Set the data type to Boolean.

| Name [ DataType [ bstr. [ Subr

Bulding Morsetary Falze whik
BusnessRules Shing False whrk
ComputesE quapmient Moretary Falze whik
FusritureF iduses Maretary Falze whk
Land Monetar Falze whrk
l—n i Boolean |_-
18 —
FropeyPlantE quipment Monetary
T ot #PopedtvElartE ouoment
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14 Select “Land > Other” concept in the presentation view.
15 Select Business Rules and change Abstract to True.

16 Select Formula and then choose [...] from the element property grid.

References [Collection - empty]

SelectedF‘arentLing BuszinessHules

i
":-‘EB' "jlﬂl}(“ﬁluﬂud Forivds vl
i

17 Select ci:Land from the presentation relationship view, and then drag it to the formula editor.
= Presentation Yiew
[=1- Extended Link (Default Link)
=l Property, Plant and Equipment

Butfing

Furniture and Fixbures

Compubar Equiprent

Other

Total Property, Plant and Equipment

MyBusinessRules

18 Enter>.

19 Select ci:Other from the presentation relationship view, and then drag it to the formula editor.

Enter new formula |
VB[ 7| AX]

ciLard > h.

L]

v
20 Select X_ to validate the formula.
If the formula is valid, this message is displayed in the messages window.

Line | Tvpe I Message ID | Message
1 Info FChlkile Formula has no errors: ci:Land > Other Compiled as: cisLand > ci:Other

If the formula is invalid, an error is displayed.

Line | Type | Message ID | Message
1 Info ‘alidating Formula syntax and semantics :ciiland > Cthe Compiled as: ciiLand > UnknownTerm:Othe
2 Errce FrErrFrblams The name, Gthe, is not an implemented function, nor is it an unqualified slement name of a loaded taxonomy

21 Select [x] to close the formula editor.
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22 Select the element property window and note the formula expression.

Farmula @ cizLand = Other _,I

23 Select the Taxonomy Property window, then Linkbases, and then [...].
Linkbases (Collection - 7} J

24 From the FormulaType list, select formula linkbase; note..

The default is Disclosure Management (for the Disclosure Management propriety format),
this can be changed to XBRL 1.0 (for the XBRL international formula 1.0 specification).

Linkbases businessrules |

- Tasnonormny. busnessiues _!.IEE Lenklraze . _]
[ Schama Fils [HewT sencmy wd] FomulaType UBmatrix -
[ Lasbead [Mew T asanoms dabed servd] Docammantson  Formula Links, all
Fiahsterioe [Hew] axonoms-eleancs wm] | Flelame HewT axonomy-lormula. cml

=3 Extended Link [Defo Link) Rreadlin Falte

) e g T e g e | Coneection LinkbaseRef
[Collachon - 1) 1

Note the formula linkbase that is added; note the expression that is detailed and the element
that the formula is associated with.

= Tauianiaingt bistnecssndes
31 Schema File [MewT asonomy, ssd)
¥ Lok (N e saonosy-label ]
Fiedmerize Mo T soeorddrgeolisancs |
= Fomubs [HewT axonomp-fomubs. smi]
= Endewwded Lk (Dalmlt Link]
[Colecton - 1]

25 Select Tools, and then XBRL Validation to verify that the taxonomy is XBRL valid
26 Select [x], then File, then Save, and then CIBusinessRules.xsd.

Create an instance document for the extended taxonomy and validate the business rules by
using the Tools Taxonomy Generate Business Rules menu choice.

All elements

Wabdatle Tasonomy

Risnaming Wizsd
Flatten Tawonoemy
Febud Tuple Defraton
HBAL Mapper:

Option. .. Creted

Elenent spall checker !

Eleenent Label iename

Linkbase Tidkar
Rieation Order Renumbed

Tastoromy Tides

FERAL V2o V21 Taxoromy Corverer

27 Enter in a name for the instance document ciBusinessRulesInstance.

For example, select All Element in checked extended links, and for Menetary amount, select
$100.

A value of $100 is entered into the instance for each concept. Since there are five concepts,
the total should be $500 and be reported in the instance document.
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28 Select Start and then Close.

Sample XBHL Instance Document Generaton

Sawve o |cBusinessAudesdnetance

What
Al slements n
‘o

Monekary amount

f100 "'l

Estendad Links 1o vadals
B Cisl s Link

£1.000 -

LaL]

£1.000,000

£1,000
§1.000.000 —1

W10 000 x

Presentation

A selsched
flfroe Tk

st | Close Lg

Validate the instance document and the business rule. Change some values so the validation
triggers some errors.

29 To do this, close the taxonomy and open the instance document that you created.

30 Run the business rule validation from the menu toolbar.

31 For land, enter a value to less than $100 and run the validation again.

An XBRL element can have the attribute substitution group containing one of these default
values: xbrl:item, or xbrl:tuple; or it may also substitute for another element of the same type.

Table 86 Background Information

Term

Definition

Concept

Concepts are defined in two equivalent ways. In a syntactic sense, a concept is an XML Schema element definition, defining
the element to be in the item element substitution group or in the tuple element substitution group. At a semantic level, a
concept is a definition of kind of fact that can be reported about the activities or nature of a business activity.

Item

An item is an element in the substitution group for the XBRL item element. It contains the value of the simple fact and a
reference to the context (and unit for numeric items) needed to correctly interpret that fact. When items occur as children of a
tuple, they must also be interpreted in light of the other items and tuples that are children of the same tuple. There are numeric
items and non-numeric items, with numeric items being required to document their measurement accuracy and units of
measurement.

Tuple

A tuple is an element in the substitution group for the XBRL tuple element. Tuples are used to bind together the parts of a
compound fact. Those constituent parts are themselves, facts but they must be interpreted in light of each-other. For example,
the name, age and compensation of a director of a company must be grouped together to be correctly understood.

Sample screenshots

Substitute for xbrl:Item because the element is a distinct item reported instance document.

Prefix: I Label & I Mame I Daka Type I Abskrack I Subskitubion Group I

Nty v Item v Item Monetary False xbrlizitem
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Substitute for xbrl:Tuple because the tuple groups together other items.

Prefix I Label ;’: Mame I Daka Tvpe I Abstrack I Substitution Group I
neEw My Tuple My Tuple Tuple xbrliskuple

Substitute for another element of the same type; if they are not the same type, an error occurs.
This technique enables you to substitute for elements of the same type, and enables you to restrict
the original concepts definition.

Prefiz | Label ™ | Mame | Data Twpe | Abstract | Substitution Group |
new My Iken My Iken Maonekary: False whirlisikerm
new Another,..  Anotherl...  Monekary False e sy Teem

Formula Collection Editor

i
VIR F| A
|
Table 87 Formula Entry Form Controls

Form Control | Description

ﬁ\g,c Checks the syntax of the formula, displaying any parser messages in the message collection, and displays the decompiled
—_— formula as it would be saved in a formula linkbase.
|&| Allows the entry of a named relative context.

sﬁ; Allows the entry of a named absolute context

5{ Allows standard functions to be selected from a menu instead of remembering and typing them.

Formula The formula itself is entered into the text box area. Element names can be dragged (from the relationships tree or elements

list view) and dropped into the text box, or you can enter values into the text box.

in instance documents.

For example “ci:TotalAssets = ci:TotalLiabilitiesAndEquity“ indicates that total assets must equal total liabilities plus equity

The formula syntax is similar to Microsoft Excel syntax for formulas. Table 88 lists examples of
formula expressions.

Table 88 Example Formula Expressions

Formula Description

ci:ElementA = ci:ElementB Boolean result true if ElementA equals ElementB
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Formula Description

ci:ElementA > ci:ElementA[-P1Y]

context

Boolean result true if ElementA is greater than the corresponding element of the previous year's

ci:ElementA < 100000

Boolean result true if ElementA is less than 100000

ci:ElementA + ci:ElementB

Addition result of the same type as the two terms, in same unit and context as terms.

Create an XBRL instance

>

0 ~N OO O b W DN -

10
11

12
13

14
15
16

To create an XBRL Instance

Select File, then New, and then Instance.

Select File, then Load, and then Taxonomy.

Enter MyBusinessRules.xsd and click OK.
Select the Instance property window.

Select Entity, and then Add.

In the Identifer field, enter “=SAMP.

For Schema, enter http://www.samplecompany.com/.

Select OK.

Label
| cderifvet SAMP
S cheme w.samplecomapany. com

Select Units, and then Add.

Select ID, and then units-monetary.

Select MeasureSimpleTerm, then iso4217:USD, and then OK.

Label

Descrphon

unit-monetary
Type Simplel)nt

MeasureSimpleT esm isod217:USD

Select Context, and then Add.

For ID, enter context-2006.

CortextVz | Colloction Editor

comirt J0E Properter
Lkt
Dt rgutate.
cordid -A0E
Erdiy
et
Rl L

Select Entity, and then select the SAMP entity.
Select Period, and then * to create a context.

Select Type, then Instant, enter a date, and then OK.
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http://www.samplecompany.com/

17
18
19
20

21
22
23
24

Select the fact value grid.

Select the element field, and then ci:Land.

Select context , then context-2006 , then D, and then enter INF.

Select unit, then units-monetary, and then set the value to 1.

Sequence/ |S|  Element | Contest [P [D|  Unk  |Is | Value |Effectiva Valus |
1 1 cicland conbext-2006 0 unit-monetary 11
z 2 cizBudding cortext-2006 0 wnit-monetary 1t

% 3 chrComputerEquip. . conbaxt-2006 o E-mm&tw L1
4 4 ci-FurnitureFidtures  conbext-2006 i morestary 11

k5 S chOther conbext-2006 0 wnit-moretary 11

AZE-C

Select & validate business rules, or alternatively Tools, and then validate instance document.
Select full validation audit trail.

Select Show formula trace.

Select Run Validation.
Instance ¥alidation and Report Options =
I
gg;smmrm  Select Extended L s toVaidate | cleared |
L Vabdation & Foemulas Diatadt Link
™ FRIS vakdation 8

[ Taxonomy validation
¥ Business Rules Instance Doc. e (reale an instance with formua resuts

Show Messages:
¥ Enoe T Wamngs Sherw the formls sl tral

Display in resubs repost Show the formula trace

[ Compute missing fact vakes /
™ Keap compited fact valuss ‘ﬁ/ Poncar with L

¥ Showe full validation audt trad

I~ ‘Shaw drmersars et »r‘/ ) .

¥ Show formada race / Trace dispiaying the formuln execution trace

¥ Show results a3 HTML

™ Dizplay results in =ML Wabrdakion repod e
™ Show element names resuts of the Tornmuda

[Extended Link Conteat it =]

= = i A =i [ =
Sava vaidation report 1. [T \Docurnents and Setings\Adifristator\Deskibp\Formulssnew_vakdaiion bl B
Save caloulalion lrace i |C\Documents and 5 elings\Administrator\Diesi¥bp! Fommulashnew_calctrsce bml _BJE
Instance Document: [C\Documents and Setlings\Adminisirated\Deskiop\F cemulss\new_bizRule sl .EIE!I

i o |

With HTML rendering is selected this report is generated and displayed.
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Line Label %ll B t; ¥a1ug;§aur|:e \Message Formula Trace

1| Anos
2 Context coptert-2008[at 2006-02-01 for SAMP]
3 (e wnit)
| |Farmular cirLand > civCrthar
|Elemurt: citLand[at 2006-02-01 for SAMP]
|Execute! push I (uniteunic-
| menataryprecision=1HF)

businessrulesiMyBusinessRules (cizland > |Resuly Liunltsunit-menetsry, pracisien=1HF)

4 False [formula

citOther) |Elemart civOther{ar 2006-02-01 for SAMP]
|Exncucel = I {unit=unic-
| mometary precigion=IHF)
Concept formuls Expression |Rasuly Falze
|Walus Exprasgions ciiland » cizChgr

ciLand and ctOther were reported with the same fact
vadse 1, and theretors the formuls evaiusted as false

Note that reported fact value for ci:Land is not greater than the reported fact value for
ci:Other and therefore the Boolean result is false. Note also the formula was evaluated for
each context that was defined. In this example only one context was defined. If there were
additional contexts, the formula would have been evaluated multiple times.

25 Select the reported fact value ci:Land, and then change the value to 10.

26 Validate the instance document again.

e

. I — I .
Line Label W B| I:' |?a|uai§nurte;ldessage Formula Trace
T - L L i

2 |Context context-2006[at 2006-02-01 for SAMP]

3 |(no unit)

Element: ci:Land[at 2006-02-01 far SAME]
Execute: push 1 0(unit=unit-
monstary.pracision=IHF)

Rasult: 10{unit=unit-monatary,pracision=ENF)
Element: citOther{at 2006-02-01 for SAMP]
Execute: > ![unit=unit=
menstaryprecision=IHF)

|
e T | vl Result: Trus
— Tup CiLend s #EﬁL —— ther Walue Expression: ciiLand » citOther

‘ | | | | Farmula: ciiland = cl: Other

businessmales:MyBusinessRules (chland >

cieOther) Trus Eanwla

Formula Linkbase

XBRL Taxonomy Designer creates a proprietary XBRL-based linkbase that is similar to the labels
or references linkbases currently specified in by XBRL 2.1. An instance document or taxonomy
refers to a formulas linkbase using the standard XBRL “linkbaseRef” element with a XLink:role
attribute value. See the XBRL Specification section 4.3 which explains the linkbaseRef element.

Formulas are contained in the Disclosure Management proprietary formulaLink extended link.
The pattern for the formula linkbase followed matches that defined in the XBRL specification.
The formulaLink extended links may contain locators, arcs, and resources. Formula information
is contained in a formula resource. Relative context (period offset specifications) and absolute
context (period, entity, and other filtering criteria) are also contained in the formulaLink
resources.

The formulalink Element

The formulaLink element is an extended link. Its generic syntax is documented in the XBRL
specification . It contains relationships between concepts and formulas and the business rules
associated with the concepts. The XML Schema constraints for the formulaLink element are:

<schema targetNamespace="http://www.oracle.com/2004/XLink/xbrllinkbase/formula"
xmlns:xl="http://www.xbrl.org/2003/XLink" xmlns:flink="http://www.oracle.com/2004/XLink/
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xbrllinkbase/formula" xmlns:link="http://www.xbrl.org/2003/1linkbase"
xmlns:XLink="http://www.w3.0rg/1999/XLink"
xmlns="http://www.w3.0rg/2001/XMLSchema" elementFormDefault="qualified">
<import namespace="http://www.xbrl.org/2003/linkbase" schemalocation="http://
www.xbrl.org/2003/xbrl-linkbase-2003-12-31.xsd" />

<import namespace="http://www.xbrl.org/2003/XLink" schemalLocation="http://www.xbrl.org/
2003/x1-2003-12-31.xsd" />

<import namespace="http://www.w3.0rg/1999/XLink" schemal.ocation="http://www.xbrl.org/
2003 /XLink-2003-12-31.xsd" />

<element name="formulaLink" substitutionGroup="x1l:extended">
<annotation>

<documentation>

formula extended link element definition

</documentation>

</annotation>

<complexType>

<complexContent>

<extension base="flink:formulaExtendedType">

<choice minOccurs="0" maxOccurs="unbounded">

<element ref="flink:absoluteContext"/>

<element ref="flink:relativeContext"/>

</choice>

</extension>

</complexContent>

</complexType>
</element>
<complexType name="formulaExtendedType">

<complexContent>

<restriction base="x1:extendedType">

<choice minOccurs="0" maxOccurs="unbounded">

<element ref="xl:title"/>

<element ref="link:documentation"/>

<element ref="flink:loc"/>

<element ref="flink:formulaArc"/>

<element ref="flink:formula"/>

</choice>

</restriction>

</complexContent>

</complexType>

The formula Element

The formula element is an Xlink resource that uses the standard xml:lang attribute to specify
the language used, and an optional classification of the formula purpose using a role attribute.

The XML Schema constraints for the formula element are:

<element name="formula" substitutionGroup="xl:resource">
<annotation>

<documentation>

Definition of the formula resource element.
</documentation>

</annotation>

<complexType mixed="true">

<complexContent mixed="true">

<extension base="xl:resourceType">
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<sequence>
<any namespace="http://www.w3.0rg/1999/xhtml"
processContents="skip" minOccurs="0" maxOccurs="unbounded" />
</sequence>

<attribute name="select" type="string" form="unqualified"/>
</extension>

</complexContent>

</complexType>

</element>

These are example formula resource elements:

<formula XLink:type="resource” XLink:role="http://www.oracle.com/2003/role/formula”
XLink:label="ci_LandDepreciates_formula” select="ci:Land < ci:Land[-P1Y]” />

The xml:lang attribute

All formula resources must contain an xml:lang attribute identifying the language used for the
content of the formula. The value of the xml:lang attribute must conform to XML rules.

The formulaArc Element

The XML Schema constraints on formulaArc elements are shown below:

<element name="formulaArc" type="xl:arcType" substitutionGroup="xl:arc">
<annotation>

<documentation>

Concrete arc for use in formula extended links.

</documentation>

</annotation>

</element>

This arc role value is for use on a formulaArc from a concept locator (“loc” element) to a formula
element. It indicates that the formula conveys human-readable information about the concept.

The formulaArc elements cannot describe cyclic relationships between concepts because they
are only relate concepts to formula resources, not other concepts. For this reason, no restrictions
on cyclic formulaArc networks are prescribed.

<loc XLink:type="locator” XLink:href="ifrs-ci-2—3-10-15.xsd#currentAssets”
XLink:label="B" />

<formulaArc XLink:type="arc” XLink:from="B” XLink:to="A” XLink:arcrole=" http://

www . Ubmatrix.com/2003/arcrole/concept-formula” />

<formula XLink:type="resource” XLink:label="A” XLink:role="http://www.UBmatrix.com/2003/
role/formula”

xml : lang=»en» select=»ci:Land < ci:Land[-P1lY]» />

The xml:lang attribute

All formula resources must contain an xml:lang attribute identifying the language used for the
content of the formula. The value of the xml:lang attribute must conform to XML rules. (For
now this defaults to the “showLanguage” taxonomy property and is not user-settable.)
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The Select Attribute

The formula element has a “select” attribute which is a string. The value of the “select” attribute
is an Excel-style formula expression. Every variable which is displayed in the “select” attribute
string must match a taxonomy element. (These elements are expressed as fact values within
XBRL instance documents.)

A relative context expression or relative context name maybe be in “[ ]” following the element,
or an absolute context where a “$” character precedes the element name (per Excel convention).
Constants and formulas also follow the Excel grammar. Tuple results follow array expressions
of the excel grammar.

The data type of the Excel formula expression must match the data type of the content of the
schema element for which it is a resource. If the schema element is a tuple, then the formula
expression evaluates to an Excel formula array result corresponding to the tuple element values.

(Note that a leading “=” character is used by Excel to identify that the contents of a spreadsheet
cellarea formula, justasaleading apostrophe indicates a character string is provided. Theleading
“=”1is not part of the formula grammar or expression. It is optional, and ignored if it is the very
first character.)

Example Explanation
“Hello, World!” or ‘Hello, World!” The string Hello, World! A select without any variables is valid. Notice how the string is
quoted.

Abc:assets = (abc:liabilities + abc:equity) A Boolean valued Excel formula expression using three variables. No context is specified in
the formula (though there may be contexts on calculation arcs to the formula), so as shown
this formula pertains to all occurrences of these element items, at once to all contexts, of
an instance document.

abc:netincome / A monetary or decimal valued Excel formula expression using two element items. The usual
abc:commonSharesQutstanding Excel arithmetic operators are preserved (“/” instead of Xpath “div”).
Formulas

The grammar of a formula is as follows:

Formula ::= [“="] <a combination of element item references, formula references, operators,

functions, numbers and other primitives.> (The leading “=" is allowed but not required, for

«__»

compatibility with Excel’s use of a “=” to indicate a cell has a formula, instead of a character
string or other.)

Formulas can refer to element items from an instance documents.

ElementItemReference ::= [taxonomyPrefix:]elementName[“[“absoluteContext |
relativeContext | relativeContextExpression”]”]

A taxonomyPrefix is required when the taxonomy prefix is not the default namespace of the
element item (which is the usual case). A prefix provided is that of the taxonomy, not that of an
instance document, and at execution time the taxonomy prefix is correctly translated, by
namespace identifier matching, to the instance’s xmlns-specified namespace prefixes.
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Formulas can refer to results of other formulas in the current document by the taxonomy
prefixed name of the element which has that formula. The formula is an IDREF in the namespace
of the taxonomy, not the instance document. (More T.B.D. for formula references to formula
results.)

For business rules, formulas generally belong to extension taxonomy elements, producing fact
values to be saved in an instance document. Generally their elements do not participate in
calculation linkbase relations. These formulas are executed after any calculation roll-up
computation of missing values (if requested). The order of the formula execution is determined
by a dependency analysis and an attempt to recycle if needed to produce results where cross-
context terms preclude static dependency analysis.

For data validation, where the use of a formula is appropriate instead of matching a roll-up
weighted sum to an instance value, a formula can be provided. In this case, the calculation tree
provides a definite execution order to determine the generation of weighted-sum intermediate
values, which may be accessed as terms of the formula by their element names. Formulas used
for data validation are matched to the instance values found in source data and matching errors
are indicated in the calculation trace report. Formulas of numeric elements participating in
calculation relations are executed during the calculation roll-up processing. Calculation of fact
values of elements unrelated on the calculation tree are ordered by dependency analysis and re-
cycled if needed to utilize results from other formulas.

In the future a formula may refer to an external formula or element item reference, of another
instance document, by the Excel workbook syntax, “[“ href “]” before element item reference
within that other instance document. An example of such a reference might be “[http://
myco.com/mylnstDoc.xml]abc:def[-P1Y]” for the element def, in prefixed namespace abc, of
instance document myInstDoc.xml, by Web site http://myco.com, offset so that any context
receiving this data obtains it from the previous year’s context in the source.

Terms of expressions contain element item references styled to Excel’s RC style. An element
name has any needed “context” in square brackets. However, Excel style also permits square
bracketed terms in front of an element item reference, where it means the external origin of an
instance document (file).

Tuples are expressed as array results. Arrays are enclosed in curly brackets.For example,
“{“ multiple results “}” places these multiple results in an array which can be assigned to element
items within a tuple. BNF

BNF for the formula expression is:

<expression> ::= <term> [<addop> <term>]*

<term> ::= <factor> [ <mulop> <factor> |*

<factor> ::= <number> | (<expression>) | <cellRef> | <function>
<function> ::= <functionName> ([expression [, expression]*])
Built-in operators

The operators BNF is:

Operator ::= ComparisonOperator | ArithmaticOperator | ConcatinationOperator |
OtherOperator
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ComparisonOperator ::= “<="| “>="| “<” | “>7 | 7“<>” | “=” (also “=>" allowed for “>=",
and “=<” for “<="

ArithmaticOperator := “+7 | “-“| “*” | “/” | “%” | “A”

ConcatinationOperator ::= “&”

OtherOperator ::= ”“,” (union — combining references) | “[ ... ]” (relative-reference)
Operator preference for order of evaluation of multiple operators in one formula is:
, Union

Negation

% Percentage

A Exponentiation

or / Multiplication or Division

+ or — Addition or Subtraction

& Text Concatenation Operator

= <> <= >= <> Comparison Operators

Arithmetic operators perform basic mathematical operations such as addition, subtraction, or
multiplication; combine numbers; and produce numeric results:

Table 89 Arithmetic Operators

Arithmetic Operator Meaning Example
+ (plus sign) Addition 3+3

- (minus sign) Subtraction 3-1

: Negation -1

* (asterisk) Multiplication 3*3

/ (forward slash) Division 3/3

% (percent sign) Percent 20%

A (caret) Exponentiation 312

Comparison operators compare two values and then produce the Boolean value TRUE or FALSE.

Table 90 Comparison Operators

Comparison Operator Meaning Example
= (equal sign) Equal to A1=B1
> (greater than sign) Greater than A1>B1
< (less than sign) Less than Al1<B1
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Comparison Operator Meaning Example
>= (greater than or equal to sign) Greater than or equal to A1>=B1
<= (less than or equal to sign) Less than or equal to Al<=B1
<> (not equal to sign) Not equal to A1<>B1

The string operator “&” combines one or more string values to produce one string result:

Table 91  String Operator

Text Operator Meaning Example
& (ampersand) | Connects, or concatenates, two values to produce one continuous text “Disc” & “closure” produces “Disclosure”.
value.

Reference operators combine ranges of cells for calculations. Note Microsoft Excel reference
operators are only useful for spreadsheet cells (the range, “:” and intersection “ “) and are not
included here.

«,»

Table 92 Reference Operators

Reference Operator | Meaning Example

, (comma) The Union operator combines multiple referencesinto | name, address, phone
one reference (here, suitable to be contents of an
array expression assigned to a tuple).

[ (relative reference) | The Relative Reference operator designates a relative
context expression, or a name of an absolute or relative
context resource to apply to this element.

Operator Precedence

The operator precedence allows you to code familiar expressions without parentheses, for
example, use 3 + 4 * 5 to produces the result 23 (customary) instead of 35 (not usual). All
expression parsing is left to right given precedence considerations. If operators have the same
precedence, they are handled in lexical order, for example, left to right. The calculation trace of
Callisto’s instance document validation feature enables you to see how the terms are parsed and
ordered for execution.

Table 93 Operator Precedence

Precedence | Operators

Highest Infix operators, ‘-* (negate), ‘%’ (percent)

Exponentiation: ‘N

Multiply, divide: ‘*’, ‘/’

Add, subtract: ‘+', -
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Precedence

Operators

Concatenate: ‘&’

Comparison; >=", ‘<=" >’ ‘<’

Equality: ‘=", ‘<>’
Xor
And
Or
Lowest Union, parentheses, function terms: ‘(‘, *,’, )’

The operand conversion allows you to mix unlike operands in formula execution. Unlike
operands are “coerced” into the more general of the two. For example adding an integer and a
double floating number is handled by converting the integer to double floating and then adding
both in double floating form. During the formula execution of fact values, the decimals or
precision aspects, and units, of each numeric fact are maintained. The precision of a result
becomes the least of operand pairs.

In general, strings containing numbers in arithmetic expressions convert the number to floating
point. Booleans are converted to zero or one (false or true) if mixed in arithmetic expression

terms.

Date-time expressions may be compared to each other, but do not convert into arithmetic units
(one must use a function to extract arithmetic-suitable days, hours, etc, from a date-time field).

Table 94 Logical Functions

Number of Input

Name Parameters Description Syntax
Logical
functions
If 3 Ifthe firstargument, as a Boolean, istrue, | If(condition, value_if_true, value_if_false) condition is
returns the second argument (any type), | the value to test.
otherwise it return the third argument . ) ) . .
(any tylpe)l . rd areu value_if_true is the value that is returned if condition
' evaluates to TRUE.
value_if_false is the value that is return if condition
evaluates to FALSE
TRUE 0 The Boolean true result TRUE
FALSE 0 The Boolean false result FALSE
Nothing 0
Quit 0 This result is the equivalent of a formula | Quit, Quit()

failing to fire, it returns no result.
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Name

Number of Input
Parameters

Description

Syntax

Choose

1, <1 or more>

The Choose function returns a value from
a list of values based on a given position.

Choose ( position, valuel, value2, ... value_n ) position
is position number in the list of values to return.

valuel, value2, ... value_n is a list A value can be any
one of these: a number, a conceptname, a formula/
function, or a text value.

Table 95 String Functions

Number of
Input
Name Parameters Description Syntax
Len 1 The Len function returns the length of the Len(<text or Value>)
specified string. (in, or converted to, string
type).
Left 2 The Left function enables you to extract a Left( text, number_of_characters )
substring from a string, starting from the left- . . . .
g g g text is the string that you wish to extract from (string
most character. . .
conceptname, function that returns a string)
number_of_characters indicates the number of
characters that you wish to extract starting from the left-
most character.
Right 2 The Right function extracts a substring from | Right( text, number_of_characters )
a string starting from the right-most . . . .
charac%er g g text is the string that you wish to extract from (string
' conceptname, function that returns a string)
number_of_characters indicates the number of
characters that you wish to extract starting from the right-
most character.
Concatenate | 2 The Concatenate function enables you to concatenate(string1, string2)
join two strings together. It is similar to “&”.
Mid 3 The Mid function extracts a substring from a | Mid( text, start_position, number_of_characters )
string (starting at any position). . . .

g g ye ) text is the string that you wish to extract from.
start_position indicates the position in the string from
where you begin extracting. The first position in the string
is 1.
number_of_characters indicates the number of
characters that you wish to extract

Trim 1 The Trim function returns a text value with Trim( text )
the leading and trailing spaces removed. . ) .
g gsp text is the text value to remove the leading and trailing
spaces from.
Replace 3ord
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Number of
Input
Name Parameters Description Syntax
Substitute 3ord The Substitute function replaces a set of Substitute( text, old_text, new_text, nth_appearance )
characters with another. . - . _—
textis the original string to use to perform the substitution.
old_text is the characters to replace.
new_text is the characters to replace old_text with.
nth_appearance is optional. It is the nth appearance of
old_text that you wish to replace. | f this parameter is
omitted, then every occurrence of old_text is replaced
with new_text
Char 1 The Char function returns the character Char(ascii_code)
based on the NUMBER code.
Search 2 The Search function returns the location of | Search(text1, text2)
a substring in a string. The search is NOT . ) .
case-sensitive. text1 is the substring to search for in text2.
text2 is the string to search.
Exact 2 The Exact function compares two strings and | Exact( text1, text2
returns TRUE if the values match. Otherwise,
. text1 and text2 are the values to compare.
it returns FALSE.
The Exact function is case-sensitive
Upper 1 The Upper function converts all letters in the | Upper(text1)
specified string to uppercase. If there are
characters in the string that are not letters,
they are unaffected by this function.
Lower 1 The Lower function converts all letters in the | Lower(text1)
specified string to lowercase. If there are
characters in the string that are not letters,
they are unaffected by this function.
Proper 1 The Proper function sets the first character | Proper(text1)
in each word to uppercase and the rest to
lowercase.
Value 1 The Value function converts a text value that | Value(text1)
represen number to a number.
presents a nu 10 a numbe text1 is the string that represents number

Table 96 Math Functions

Number of Input

Name Parameters Description Syntax

Abs 1 The Abs function returns the absolute value ofthe | Abs(number1)
argument.

Ceiling 1 The Ceiling function returns a number rounded up | Ceiling(numberl)

Floor 1 The Floor function returns a number rounded Floor(number1)

down
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Number of Input

Name Parameters Description Syntax
Round 1 The Round function rounds to nearest integer Round(number1)
RoundDown | 1 same as Floor
Roundup 1 Same as Ceiling
Truncate 1 truncates the number Truncate(decimalnumberl)
Trunc 1 same as Truncate
Int 1 Converts the input to a string. And also truncates | Int(‘1234") = 1234
if required.
Sum <1 or more> Adds all numbers together. Sum(ni, n2, n3, ..... Nn)
SumSquares | <1 or more> Adds all squares of the numbers together SumSquares(ni, n2, n3, ..... Nn)
Sqrt 1 Returns the Square root of the argument with Sqgrt(number)
(base 2).
Min 2 Returns the minimum of the two numbers. Min(numberl, number2) returns numberl if
numberl < number2
Max 2 Returns the maximum of the two numbers. Max(numberl, number2) returns number1 if
numberl > number2
Sign 1 Returns -1 if the number is negative, else returns | Sign(numberl)
1.
Power 2 The Power function returns the result of a number | Power( number, power )
faised to a given power. number is a base number.
power is the exponent used to raise the base
number to.
Avg <1 or more> The Avg Functions returns the avg of the numbers | Avg(nl, n2,n3, ..... Nn)
provided as arguments
Rational 1

Table 97 Datetime Functions

Number of
Input
Name Parameters Description Syntax
DateTime 0 Returns the current date-time (for example,
“Now”), as a dateTime
DateNow 0 Returns the date portion of current date-time,
as a dateTime.
TimeNow 0 Returns the time-of-day portion of current

date-time, as a duration.
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Number of

Input
Name Parameters Description Syntax
DateOf 1 Returns the date portion of the date-time type
argument, as a dateTime.
YearOf 1 returns the time-of-day portion of date-time
argument, as a duration.
MonthOf 1 returns the year portion of the date-time type
argument, as an integer.
DayOf 1 returns the month portion of the date-time type
argument, as an integer.
IsEndOfMonth | 1 returns the day portion of the date-time type
argument.
HourOf 1 returns true if date-time type argument is last
day of month.
MinuteOf 1 returns the hour portion of the date-time type
argument.
TimeOf 1 returns the minute portion of the date-time
type argument.
Offset 2 returns the date-time of the first argument
(date-time) offset by the second argument
(duration).
DateToString | 2 returns the string formatted date as specified | DateToString(Date, DateFormat)
by the second argument (C# date format)
For example:
DateToString(Context.Period.EndDate, ‘yyyyMMDD’)
DateValue 1 returns the serial number of a date.
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Name

Number of
Input
Parameters

Description Syntax

Date

3

returns the date Date(year, month, day )
year is a number that is between one and four digits.

If the year is between 0 and 1899, the year value is
added to 1900 to determine the year.

If the year is between 1900 and 9999, the Date
function uses the year value as the year.

If the year is greater than 9999, the Date function
returns the #NUM! error.

month is a number representing the month value. If
the month value is greater than 12, the Date function
adds that number of months to the first month of the
year specified in the year parameter.

day is a number representing the day value. If the
day value is greater than the number of days in the
month specified, the Date function add that number
of days to the first day in the month specified in the
month parameter.

Day

returns the day of the month (a number from | Day(date_value )

1 1) given lue.
t031) given a date value date_value is a valid date.

Month

The Month function returns the month (a Month(date_value)

number from 1 to 12) given a date value.
)g date_value is a valid date.

Year

The Year function returns a four-digit year (a Year( date_value )

number from 1900 to 9999) given a date date_value is a valid date.

value.
Table 98 Trigonometric Functions
Name Number of Input Parameters Description Syntax
Acos 1 returns the angle whose trig argument is specified
Asin 1 returns the angle whose trig argument is specified
Atan 1 returns the angle whose trig argument is specified
Atan2 2 returns the angle whose trig argument is specified
Sin, Cos, Tan | 1 returns the trig function based on the radians angle argument.
Cosh 1 returns the hyperbolic trig function of the argument
Degrees 1 returns the radians argument converted to degrees (arg * 180 /)
Ln 1 returns the logarithm, natural log, or base 10 logarithm of the argument
Log 1 returns the logarithm, natural log, or base 10 logarithm of the argument
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Name Number of Input Parameters Description Syntax

Log10 1 returns the logarithm, natural log, or base 10 logarithm of the argument

Pi 0 the maximum resolution of (3.14...).

Radians 1 returns the radians value of the degrees argument (arg * / 180).

Tanh 1 returns the hyperbolic trig function of the argument

Table 99 Pre-binding Functions
Number of Input

Name Parameters Description Syntax

Exists 1 returns True/False based on the pre-binding value of the instance | Exists(prefix:<conceptname>)
document fact for the current context. Returns True when the Fact
value is nil only if the Nilable attribute is set true

ExistsNonNil 1 eturns True/False based on the pre-binding value of the instance
document fact for the current context. Returns True only if the Fact
has a reported value regardless of the XBRL Nilable attribute

ExistsNonEmpty | 1 returns True/False based on the pre-binding value of the instance | ExistsNonEmpty (TotalAssets)
document fact for the current context. Returns True only if the Fact
has a reported value and is non empty

IsNil 1

ExistingOf <1 or more> returns the first found value in the list of arguments. If no ExistingOf(TotalAssets, ‘0’)
arguments bind the function returns no value and the expression
fails to bind

Table 100 Context Functions
Number of Input
Name Parameters Description Syntax
Context.Period.Type 0 the current context’s type (for example, “Instant”), as a

string.

Context.Period.StartDate, 0

the current context’s start and end dates (or instant date),

Context.Period.EndDate as a date-time type.

Absolute

Context Resources (Filters)

Absolute contexts define constraints that allow an expression term, and the formula result, to
be restricted to certain contexts. (This is currently adapted from a May 2002 V2.1 proposal.)
Only a formula linkbase MAY contain elements to define absolute contexts. An absoluteContext
element contains one sub-element for each of the types of constraints that can be expressed:
entity, segment, scenario and period. If a sub-element does not appear in an absoluteContext,
then the calculation is not constrained to match any value regarding that aspect of its context.
An empty or missing absolute context means that the calculationArc can be applied across all
contexts having any entity, any period, and any scenario.
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<element name="absoluteContext">
<complexType>
<sequence>

<element name="periodConstraint" minOccurs="0" maxOccurs="unbounded">

<complexType>
<sequence>

<element name="instantConstraint" minOccurs="0"

<complexType>

maxOccurs="unbounded" >

<attribute name="year" type="string" form="unqualified"/>

<attribute name="month" type="string"

form="unqualified"/>

<attribute name="day" type="string" form="unqualified"/>

</complexType>
</element>
</sequence>
</complexType>
</element>
</sequence>

<attribute name="id" type="string" form="unqualified"/>

<attribute ref="XLink:title" use="optional"/>
<attribute ref="XLink:type" use="optional"/>

</complexType>
</element>

An Excel-style expression term utilizes an absolute context filter by placing its name in square

brackets following the qName of the element. If a term with such a filter can’t find a value in the

fact values of the instance, relative to an execution context of the formula’s owning taxonomy

element, then that context of the formula does not execute, as if it were Nil or absent.

Table 101  Absolute Context Examples

Example

Matches

<absoluteContext id="after2003">
<periodConstraint>

<startDateConstraint minimum="2003-01-01"/>

</periodConstraint>
</absoluteContext>

Any context with a startDate on or after 1st January
2003.

<absoluteContext id="payday">
<periodConstraint>
<instantConstraint day="15 30"/>
</periodConstraint>
</absoluteContext>

Any context describing an instant falling on the 15th
or 30th of any month.

<absoluteContext id="any-year">
<periodConstraint>
<durationConstraint year="1"/>
</periodConstraint>
</absoluteContext>

Any context with a period whose start date and end
date differ by one year.
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Example Matches

<absoluteContext id="calendar-year"> Any context with a period whose start date and end
<periodConstraint> date differs by one year and starts on 1 January and
<startDateConstraint monthDay="01-01"/> ends 31 December of that year.

<durationConstraint offset="P1Y"/>
<endDateConstraint monthDay="12-31"/>
</periodConstraint>
</absoluteContext>

<absoluteContext id="birth"> Any context in which the state of New Mexico is the
<entityConstraint> entity and the date is the 19th or 20th of October
<identifier scheme="http://www.state.us">NM</ 1998.

identifier>

</entityConstraint>

<periodConstraint>

<instantConstraint day="19 20" month="10"
yvear="1998"/>

</periodConstraint>

</absoluteContext>

<absoluteContext> Matches contexts in which the scenario element
<scenarioConstraint><my:budget/></ contains a "budget" element.

scenarioConstraint>

</absoluteContext>

An entityConstraint is used to restrict calculations to apply only to facts pertaining to a entity
or entities. Multiple identifiers mean that multiple entities MAY match. Absence of an
entityConstraint element means that all entities match.

Any number of segmentConstraint elements can be used to further restrict applicability of the
arc. Multiple segment constraints means that either MAY match. Absence of the
segmentConstraint element means that all segments match.

A scenarioConstraint element restricts applicability of the arc to contexts with scenario elements.
Any empty portion is taken to match any segment.

A periodConstraint element restricts applicability of an arc to contexts whose periods match
features. Any empty portion of the periodConstraint is taken to match any period. When
multiple elements appear, a context MAY match any or all of them.

The periodConstraint sub-elements contain attributes that allow individual parts of the date to
be constrained, and allow minimum and maximum date values to be set. Except for the
maximum and minimum attributes, the attributes allow multiple values to be specified as a
whitespace-separated list of numbers.

Table 102 More Absolute Context Examples

Example Matches

<absoluteContext id="monthStart"> Any context that is the beginning of a month.
<periodConstraint>
<instantConstraint day="01"/>
</periodConstraint>
</absoluteContext>

224 Formulas



Example Matches

<absoluteContext id="thirteenMonths"> The period of 13 months starting 22 October
<periodConstraint> 1962.

<startDateConstraint day="22" year="1962" month="10"/>
<endDateConstraint day="22" year="1963" month="11"/>
</periodConstraint>

</absoluteContext>

<absoluteContext id="afterPublicLaunchOfXBRL"> Any period starting on or after 6th April 2000.
<periodConstraint>

<startDateConstraint minimum="2000-04-06"/>
</periodConstraint>

</absoluteContext>

<absoluteContext id="endOfFiscalQuarter"> Any instant falling at the end of any fiscal
<periodConstraint> quarter.

<instantConstraint monthDay="03-31 06-30 09-30 12-31"/>
</periodConstraint>

</absoluteContext>

<absoluteContext id="idesOfMarch2lstCentury"> The Ides of March that occurred in the current
<periodConstraint> millennium, so far.
<instantConstraint
yearMonth="2001-03 2002-03 2003-03" day="15"/>
</periodConstraint>

</absoluteContext>

Relative Context Expressions (Offsets)

Relative context expressions are an in-line term constant to express a relationship between the
current execution context of a formula and a term’s appropriate context (for example, to get a
term from a prior year period), without use of a Relative Context Resource. A relative context
expression offsets a term context after application of any (possibly multiple) absolute and relative
context resources. A forever period is unaffected, an instant period is offset, as are both start and
end dates of a duration period. The format of the relative context expression is to place it in
square brackets separate from any square brackets containing absolute and relative context
expressions. Regardless of order, absolute and relative context expressions perform filtering and
relating first, and the expression is applied last.

[ (relative Relative Reference operator, which designates a ci:Land[-P1Y] is the value of the ci:Land fact of the preceeding-year's
reference) ] relative context expression. context

Relative Reference (Cross-context) Expressions

There are cross-context expressions of three types: (1) relative period-offset expressions, (2)
named relative context resource, and (3) named absolute context resource.

An excel-syntax relative reference expression is in square brackets following the prefixed element
name.
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Relative period-offset expressions use the Xbrl/Xml period expression. The expression ci:Land|-
P1Y] means that the formula executes if the ci-prefixed Land-named element has a fact value
one year earlier than the formula’s execution context, and utilizes the previous year’s value for
this expression term.
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In this example, the formula executes for each context where ci:Land exists in the current period
and in another like context one year earlier. If both values are not present, the formula is not
“executed” and no value or test results.

Relative period-offset expressions based on an end-of-month instant date yield an end-of-month
relative offset date. January 31 offset +P1M produces February 28 (or 29 in a leap year).
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Named relative context resources are entered, reviewed, and selected by a formula editor panel;
they allow specification of start-date, end-date, and instant-date offset, based on the start or end
of an interval period. Named relative context resources can be entered once and used many times
in the formulas of a given formula linkbase. They are stored in the formula linkbase.

Named absolute context resources are also entered, reviewed, and selected by a formula editor
panel. An absolute context resource is a filter (hence the “funnel” icon). It provides constraints

on entity, period, scenario, and tuple, and in the V2.0 version also unit, precision, decimals, and
CWA.
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Variables and Constants

Every variable and constant comes from an instance document. This allows for the chaining
together of formula computations into a series.

Multiple layers of intermediate variables can be provided in the business rules (extension
taxonomy) situation by incorporating one (or more) extension taxonomies. The outermost
extension taxonomy has its formula-result fact values saved in an instance document file.
Intermediate extension taxonomies can be provided as fact values collections for common sub-
expressions, for constant data such as ranges and factors, and other purposes as useful to the
analyst.

Constants assume their most natural form. Thus 1 or 1001 are integers, 1.0 or 1.001e3 are double
precision floating point, and Rational(“33 1/3”) is a rational number (assumable by a
fractionItemType fact value of 100/3 or assignable to any other fact value as double precision
floating point value 33.333333). “abc” and “123” are character strings.

Values Returned

Formulas produce a result which is assigned to the formula’s XBRL taxonomy element fact
values. The reason for this is (1) for the business analysis case, extension taxonomy formulas, to
allow an XBRL instance document to be created as a result of calculation a formula, and (2) for
the data validation case, to allow formula produced fact values to be compared to instance
document fact values for source data validation. Some values returned may be “true” of “false”
to indicate if a formula passes or fails, or even descriptive character strings. Or, values can be
returned and instance documents created. Or, values can be computed and inserted in an
instance document. Formulas can be used to achieve each of these results. These features allow
for the chaining together of a series of instance documents.

Formula Examples and Use Cases

Table 103 provides a summary of formula examples and use cases which explain how formulas
can be used.
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Table 103 Formula Examples and Use Cases

Contents of Select Attribute

Explanation

ci:Land + ci:Building

The value returned is the value of “ci:Land” plus “ci:Building”.

Ci:Land * .80

The taxonomy element “ci:Land” times .80

ci:Land >= ci:Land[-P1Y]

The taxonomy element “ci:Land” value of the current period is greater than or equal to the value
of “ci:Land” for the prior period.

If((ci:Land + ci:Building) > ((ci:Furniture
+ ci:Fixtures) * .8), ‘Approved’, ‘Denied’)”

If the value of “ci:Land” plus “ci:Building” is greater than 80% of the value of “ci:Furniture” plus
“ci:Fixtures”, then the character string value returned is “Approved”. Otherwise, the value
returned is “Denied”.

Ci:PropertyDiameter / Pi

The value returned is the element “ci: PropertyDiameter” divided by the constant “Pi” (3.14....

)-

(ci:Land > 100000) And (ci:Building >
100000)

The value of “ci:Land” must be greater than 100000 AND the value of “ci:Building” must be
greater than 100000, or the value of False is returned.

(ci:Land > 50000) Or (ci:Building >
50000)

The value of “ci:Land” must be greater than 50000 OR the value of “ci:Building” must be greater
than 50000.

Ci:Land + ci:Building +
ci:FurnitureFixtures +
ci:ComputerEquipment + ci:Other

The value returned is the total of “ci:Land” plus “ci:Building” plus “ci:FurnitureFixtures” plus
“ci:ComputerEquipment” plus “ci:Other”. This works much like a weighted roll up of subordinate
fact values of elements in a calculation linkbase tree structure.

Ci:Land[-P1Y] + ci:LandChanges
[ForPeriod]

The value returned is the value of “ci:Land” with a context of one year less than the current
context plus “ci:LandChanges” with a context, which is provided in the formula, less one day.

Ci:Land[-P1Y] + ci:LandChanges
[ForPeriod] = ci:Land

The value returned is True if the value of “ci:Land” in the prior period plus the value of
“ci:LandChanges” for the context beginning one day after the -P1Y context equals the value of
“ci:Land” for the current context.

Formula Execution

Here is a summary of the formula processing model. Formulas execute:

e Case 1— In an instance’s own taxonomy, for validation of data or generation of fact values
not in source data. Generally provided by the producer of data, in the source taxonomy.
Example: movement analysis development of closing balance on accounts, as instant period
context, from opening balance, as instant period context, plus changes during year as

duration contexts.

e (Case 2— In an analytical taxonomy, for analysis of a subject instance (data and taxonomy)
to produce derived data in the form of instances containing only the derived data. Generally
provided by the consumer of data, in an extension taxonomy for analysis and evaluation of
a producer’s data. Example: checking a balance sheet for liquidity ratio changes over recent
periods, and for minimum liquidity ratio.

In Case 1, the execution model for calculation validation checks calculation linkbase roll-up
weighted sums against data appearing in an instance document. Where formulas are provided

and values appear in the instance document, the formula result and instance document data are
checked in the same way a roll-up weighted sum is compared to the instance data. For example,
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a computed closing balance checks against any closing balance in instance data, and calculation
trace reports mismatches as errors.

In Case 2, every formula which “fires” results in an fact value for an element in the analytical
taxonomy. These fact values are saved as an instance document currently called a business rules
results file.

When Do Formulas Execute?

In case 1, they execute when their element would be rolled-up if on the calculation linkbase tree.
If the element owning the formula has no relationships, and is at the root level on the calculation
tree, it executes last, after calculation roll ups finished.

In case 2, they execute last, separately from any calculation tree roll ups in the subject instance
being analyzed.

What Does It Mean for a Formula to “Fire”?

A formula executes when its element would be found in walking the calculation tree (or at root
to the tree). It executes by trying to produce a result for every context in the fact value set. For
each context it tries to get each term (element reference) according to whether that term is in
the same context as the formula is executing or offset by relative context or filtered by absolute
context.

If a formula finds all of its terms for a given context, it is said to have “fired”. The calculation
trace clearly shows each formula in each context attempting to gather its data and trying to
complete, and when it gives up if a term it requires lacks a corresponding fact value.

A relative context is an offset for getting a term (and if property grids restored, also an offset for
the result context). The relative context can grab a duration term for an instant context result
and vice versa (for example, movement analysis example). If the formula is producing an instant
context result, and the relative context has start and/or end terms, the term offset by that relative
context provides a relative context fact value.

Conversely a duration context formula result can obtain an instant context fact value by basing
the instant property of the relative context on the start or end of the period, plus date offset.
Offsets can be positive or negative, and each term can likewise be positive or negative.

For example, for a result context of 12/31/02, the relative context to grab data from duration
context 1/1/02 — 12/31/02 requires a start offset of minus one year (back to 12/31/01) and plus
one day (forward to 1/1/02). Month end dates go back or forward to their respective month end
dates. 2/28/01 plus one month is 3/31/01. 3/31/04 back 1 month is 2/29/04. Any other date
(month start, month middle) just counts months, so there is no clean way to go from the middle
date of February to middle date of March without complex coding.

An absolute context is a filter for getting a term from another context. For example to grab a
term from a subsidiary entity and use it in a formula whose result context is the parent entity.

The formula expression for trivial contexts uses the XML duration notation, for example, P1Y
means 1 year forward, -P1Y means 1 year backward, and from Dec 31 to Jan 1 would be—P1Y-1D.
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The formula expression for nontrivial relative contexts is to use the GUI menu collection editor
to select or create such a context. These relative contexts (and following absolute contexts) which
are entered to the GUI are saved as resources in the formula linkbase. Their names are local to
the formulalinkbase (though at one time the names were supposed to be taxonomy, not linkbase,
specific).

The GUI enters a relative context when the cursor is positioned after a prefixed element name,
and pressing the relative context button (looks like an old fashioned desk calendar with page
leaves for date). You can scroll through contexts, or enter a relative context (star button), or
delete unneeded contexts (brush-stroke x button). Pressing the check-mark button closes this
collection editor and places the name, after parentheses, where the formula text cursor was.

The GUI enters an absolute context in the same manner, using the absolute context button (a
funnel, depicting filtering out data). It behaves in the same manner.

Relative Context Resources (Offsets)

Relative contexts express a relationship between the current execution context of a formula and
a term’s appropriate context (for example, to get a term from a prior year period), or to offset
the result of a formula from the current formula context to another (such as to establish the
opening balance for next period). A relative context uses a context as a base and produces a
matching context. The formula linkbase MAY contain resources that define relative contexts.
The content of the relativeContext element are sub-elements that express functions of the sub-
elements and attributes of the item context. Any missing element or attribute is copied from the
base context. Therefore, an empty relativeContext means that there are no differences between
the base context and the output context; the two must share s-equal contexts.

<element name="relativeContext">

<complexType>

<sequence>

<element name="periodOffset" minOccurs="0" maxOccurs="unbounded">
<complexType>

<sequence>

<element name="instantOffset" minOccurs="0" maxOccurs="unbounded">
<complexType>

<attribute name="base" type="string" form="unqualified"/>
<attribute name="offset" type="string" form="unqualified"/>
</complexType>

</element>

</sequence>

</complexType>

</element>

</sequence>

<attribute name="id" type="string" form="unqualified"/>
<attribute ref="XLink:title" use="optional"/>

<attribute ref="XLink:type" use="optional"/>

</complexType>

</element>

An Excel-style expression term utilizes a relative context by placing its name in square brackets
following the qName of the element, and optionally comma-separated from any preceding
absolute context (filter). The relative context of the term is an offset to the context of the
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formula’s owning taxonomy element. If there is no source data for a term’s relative context, then
that context of the taxonomy element’s formula does not execute (as if it were Nil or absent).

A formula offsets its result fact value by a relative context by placing the relative context resource
id in the relative context of the property grid for the calculation arc to its parent calculation
element.

Table 104 Examples of Relative Contexts

Context Description
<relativeContext id="same"/> An empty relative context means that the output context is s-equal to that of
the input.
<relativeContext id="period-end"> Given an input item’s context, this produces a matching context that is s-equal
<periodOffset> in all respects except that its period is the instant that marks the end of the
<instantOffset base="end"/> input period.
</periodOffset>

</relativeContext>

<relativeContext id="period-start"> Given an input item’s context, this produces a matching context that is s-equal

<periodOffset> in all respects except that its period is the instant that marks the start of the
<instantOffset base="start"/> input period.
</periodOffset>

</relativeContext>

<relativeContext id="prior-year- Produces that matching context which is s-equal in all respect except that its
end"> period is an instant whose year is 1 less than the endDate of the input period.
<periodOffset>
<instantOffset base="end" offset="-
Ply" />
</periodOffset>
</relativeContext>

<relativeContext id="next-year"> The output context has a period that starts on the day before the input period
<periodOffset> ends, and ends one year later.
<startDateOffset base="end"
offset="-P1D" />
<endDateOffset base="end"
year="P1D" />
</periodOffset>
</relativeContext>

The content of the periodOffset element in relativeContext is similar to the element content of
the period element in contexts. The sub-elements of period contain attributes that allow
individual parts of the relative period to be offset from portions of the base period. The sub-
elements of relativeContextinclude are relativePeriod, instantOffset, startDateOffset, and
endDateOffset.

The elements relativelnstant, endDateOffset, and startDateOffset appearing in relativeContext
contain an optional attribute offset whose content is a duration that specifies a relative period,
and an optional attribute base that specifies whether the period is relative to the start or end of
the input context. The offset attribute defaults to the zero length duration POD.

A context with the period forever matches any output context. The base, relativeStartDate,
endDateOffset and instantOffset elements are all ignored in that case.
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Creating a Business Rule Using the Properties Grid

In the steps above, we used the Properties Grid to work with a property of the taxonomy called
the Referenced Taxonomies property.

Now we use the Properties Grid to work with a property associated with one element within the
taxonomy .

» To do this:
1  Select File, then Open, and then Taxonomy.
2 Within the Open Taxonomy window, select the Open icon to open the local taxonomy directory.

3 In the Open XBRL Taxonomy pop-up window, select the Basic Calculation taxonomy and click Open.

ﬂ
Lok, inc iC:'\ngram Files'.
| Categary | Name | Namespace Prefix | Date | File Pall =

S amples Caleulation | 2004-06-19

2  Sample Complex Concept ci 2004-06-13 Pattem:

3 Samples Complex Concept Mulliple Penods ci 2004-06-19 Patterm:

4 Samplas Complex Concept with Tatals ci 2004-08-19 Patterms:

5  Samplez Different Levels ci 20040619 Patterr—]
& Samples Finite Murmber of Values ci 2004-06-19 Pattem:

7 Samples Grand Total Subtotals Calculation ci 20040618 Pattem:

8  Samples M agter Detail i 2004-06-19 Patterm:

9  Samples Movements Analysis ci 2004-06-19 Patterm:
10 Samples Multiple Calculations ci 20040819 Paltem: «
4| v

Fie name: IPattﬂns-EDﬂi-DE-‘lﬁkﬂasicta!culatimnsd

i}

Cancel |E

4 Click OK to load the taxonomy and close the Open Taxonomy window.

5 Inthe Relationships View pane (Presentation), click to expand the elements under Property, Plant, and
Equipment.

ci {Presentation} |

=- Presentatiun Wi
=k E?c:tenl:led Link {Presentation, all})
perty, Plant and Equipment:

i Building

Furniture and Fixtures
Camputer Equipment
- Other

Land

Total Property, Plant and Equiprment

6  Click to select the element Property, Plant, and Equipment.

We now add a business rule associated with this element. This rule checks the formula
associated with this element to give a True or False response.

7 At the bottom of the Properties Grid (with the element selected), click the Element tab to display
element properties in the grid.
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ﬁ Taonony - Qe @ Element T:n;w |
IIN5: PRES VIEw: PRES

8 Select the Formulas property from the Elements Property Grid.

An ellipsis button is displayed in the associated field.

Element - ci
Bl Element Information |

MamespacePrefix  ci

MName PropertyPlantEquipme
Labels Property, Plant and Eq
DataType {Abstract)

PetindTyvpe Instant
Diocurmentakion
References {Collection - emply)

.
Parents (Collection - empty) |.;
Children (Collection - 6)

B utility Information

Flag False

Readonly False

DatelastChanged | 2004-07-15T12:22:34

ElementID ci_PropertyPlantEquip

appinfoxML

9 Click the button.

Enter new fgnula - FurnitureFixtures

ny|@| ? ﬁ | }(_HStandard Farmula Ll

10 From the Relationships View pane, left-click the element Land from within the taxonomy tree and hold
the left mouse button down while you drag it into the Enter new formula window.

11 Release the mouse button to drop the Land element into the formulas form.
12 Enter > (greater than symbol) into the formula.
13 Next, drag and drop the element Other from the Relationships View pane.

Your formula should look like this:
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- LI

nyl@%?l ﬁ. i b HStandard Formula

ciLand » ciOther

14 Click Check Formula to validate the formula.
15 Click the X in the upper right hand corner to close the Enter new formula window.
16 Select Property, Plant, and Equipment.

Note that there is a formula in the Element Properties Grid, indicating that a business rule
is associated with this element.

17 Click Save and then Close.

Creating Formulas with XBRL Taxonomy Designer

Formulas (or Business Rules) can be expressed using the Disclosure Management propriety
formula format, and saved in the propriety format or the XBRL international formula 1.0
specification format. The XBRL 1.0 formula specification is currently published as a candidate
recommendation (February 1, 2006) and is still a work in progress. Each formula format is
implemented as a resource within a dedicated linkbase that is similar to other XBRL linkbases.

To read more on the XBRL formula 1.0 specification go to this URL: http://www.xbrl.org/
SpecRequirements/

Formulas are associated with a taxonomy concept and allow a user to test the validity of data
reported in an instance for one concept or other concepts, or for one element relative to another
element, and other such calculations.

Formulas are stored in formula linkbase:

MNare  *

o} BasicCalculation, xsd

o} BasicCalculation_Rules,xsd

n BasicCalculation_Fules-Forrmula, <l
2 BasicCalculation_Rules-label, xml
@ BasicCalculation_Rules-presentation, xml
2] BasicCalculation-calculation. xml

] BasicCalculation-instance. xml
2 BasicCaloulation-labed
% BasicCalculation-presentation, xrl
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The XBRL Taxonomy Designer tutorials are divided into these sections.

e “Basic XBRL Taxonomy Designer Tutorial” on page 238 covers the basics of using XBRL
Taxonomy Designer. This includes taxonomy basics, elements, relationships, reference
taxonomies, and instance documents.

e “Formulas Tutorial: Creating Simple Formulas to Validate Data” on page 348 covers the
basics of using formulas with XBRL Taxonomy Designer.

e “Dimensions Tutorial” on page 327 covers the basics of dimensions and using dimensions
with XBRL Taxonomy Designer.

e “Mapping Tutorial” on page 284 the basics of learning to mapping. Mapping enables you
to map from a non-xbrl source to an XBRL document and then convert that information
into XBRL.

e “Importing Tutorial” on page 269 explains how to import and export data with XBRL
Taxonomy Designer to create taxonomies and instance documents.

Before You Begin

This section provides definitions of some basic XBRL Taxonomy Designer terminology, as well
as screen shots of XBRL Taxonomy Designer two main editor screens and their components.
Take a moment to review the terms and use this section for reference as needed.
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Table 105 Basic XBRL and XBRL Taxonomy Designer Terminology

Term Description

Taxonomy An XBRL taxonomy is a collection of elements, linkbases, role definitions, reference part definitions, and data type
definitions. It incorporates referenced taxonomies, which contain all these parts also, as well as reference XML
schemas (type definitions, other definitions).

Linkbases Linkbases contain extended links and — depending on linkbase type — relationships, labels, formulas, or references.

Element Each term or text entry for building a taxonomy can be viewed as one element. The Elements List pane shows

elements in a dictionary style.

Extended Links

A taxonomy is a collection of extended links which contains arcs (relationships) between one element in a DTS and
anotherelementin a DTS, or a resource (label, formula, reference). Each relationship view (presentation, calculation,
definition) has a minimum of one extended link, or it may contain any number of extended links. These extended
links contain relationships between elements. Extended links are independent networks of relationships.

DTS (Discoverable
Taxonomy Set)

The DTS is a collection of all of the taxonomies and linkbases.

Multiple Taxonomy
DTS

A 'loaded taxonomy may reference other taxonomies explicitly through import constructs in its .xsd file or implicitly
by finding references to roles, linkbase locs, or reference part definitions. Referenced taxonomies are loaded as
identified and discovered, and form a DTS. The DTS is represented as a tree, viewable and editable as the Referenced
Taxonomies Collection of the opened (base) taxonomy.

Relationship View

In XBRL Taxonomy Designer, the Relationships View pane shows a tree view of links or relationships between
elements. There are three types of relationship views in XBRL Taxonomy Designer: Presentation, Calculation, and
Definition.

Introduction to the Tutorials

These tutorials are designed to introduce you to the key steps in using XBRL by using XBRL
Taxonomy Designer taxonomy developer and instance document tool.

It is important that users take time to go through these tutorials in the order they are presented,
because data entered often builds on previous steps. The example files referenced are included
with your installation of XBRL Taxonomy Designer, or on CD provided for the course; directions
on how to locate these are given within the tutorials.

Sample Files

Below is a list of sample files used in the tutorials:

Table 106 Sample Files Used in the Tutorials

File Name Extension Type
Basic Calculation xsd Schema
SampleCompany-Taxonomy xsd Schema
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File Name Extension Type

COREP taxonomy xsd Schema

_import_all_taxonomies

XBRL Taxonomy Designer includes these sample XBRL files for educational purposes in the
samples/xbrl folder:

e acme

e FLIPA

e [FRS-GP (International Financial Reporting Standard - General Purpose)
e Dpatterns

e usgaap

File Extensions

During these tutorials, you work with three types of files—XBRL schemas, XML linkbases and
XBRL instance documents. The file extensions for each are:

Table 107 File Extensions

Extension | File Type

xsd XBRL Schema

xml An XBRL linkbase or XBRL instance document. Note that linkbases often include a name for the type of linkbase, for example,
ca-gaap-pfs-presentation, ca-gaap-pfs-label. Instance documents can have a .xm1 or .xbr1 file extension.

xbrl Instance document

Launching XBRL Taxonomy Designer

To begin, launch XBRL Taxonomy Designer.

» To launch XBRL Taxonomy Designer, click Start, then All Programs, and then Disclosure
Management XBRL Taxonomy Designer.

(This assumes the product was installed in the default location.) The XBRL Taxonomy Designer
application opens.

Note: Menu choices differ for creating and editing taxonomies versus creating and editing
instance documents.

Shortcuts

Table 108 lists the general shortcut keys for XBRL Taxonomy Designer.
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Table 108 General Shortcut Keys

Shortcut Key | Description

F1 Opens the XBRL Taxonomy Designer Online Help menu.
Ctri+Z Undoes the last action taken by XBRL Taxonomy Designer.
Ctri+l Inserts a sibling element.

Ctrl+N Inserts a child element

Ctri+E Edit the selected cell

Ctri+X Cut elements and relationships

Ctrl+D Delete elements and relationships.

Ctrl+P Open the print dialog box.

Ctrl+S Save or Save As the document.

Ctrl+0 View the Options menu.

ALT+F4 Exit XBRL Taxonomy Designer

Basic XBRL Taxonomy Designer Tutorial

The basic XBRL Taxonomy Designer tutorial is divided into these sections:

e “Taxonomy Basics” on page 238 teaches about the opening, editing, creation, and editing
of taxonomies.

e “Elements Basics” on page 249covers how to create and edit elements within a taxonomy.

e “Relationships Basics” on page 257shows how concepts relate to each other and how to
create and edit these relationships.

e “Reference Taxonomy Basics” on page 261 reviews how to view, load, and remove a
reference taxonomy.

e “Instance Documents Basics” on page 266 covers the opening, creation, and editing of
instance documents.

Taxonomy Basics

This tutorial walks you through the basics of using the XBRL Taxonomy Designer Taxonomy
Editor.

e “Lesson One: Opening a Taxonomy” on page 239 teaches how to open a taxonomy in XBRL
Taxonomy Designer.

e “Lesson Two: Creating a Taxonomy” on page 243 explores how to create a taxonomy.
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e “Lesson Three: Taxonomy Identification and Description” on page 244 explains how to
create namespaces for taxonomies.

e “Lesson Four: Saving a Taxonomy” on page 245 teaches how to save a taxonomy.

e “Lesson Five: Validating a Taxonomy” on page 247 teaches how to validate a taxonomy.

e “Lesson Six: Printing a Taxonomy” on page 247 covers printing a taxonomy.

Lesson One: Opening a Taxonomy

» To open a taxonomy from your local system:
1
The Open an XBRL Taxonomy window is displayed.

From within the Taxonomy Editor, select File, then New, and then Taxonomy, or use the drop-down icons.
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i| |
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Frafw | Hameupsce |dentfer | File # Pty | Comgmaition

1 | 2]
T

FF ML vaidote [ FRTA vadute
MERL:

Shatur

Fin T assonomey Or Loact
I Fiondoad

'5"‘--1-' o

b

12l

r..

[ Enable sding
Chack &0 I

_Fubead |
=

-

I
_ b |

&

Three icons in the top right of the window enable you to open taxonomies.

=515

"}
° enables you to browse to any accessible location on your computer and select the

appropriate taxonomy file.

° enables you to access taxonomies that are stored in a Taxonomy Directory in a

user-defined Web location.

° IE] enables you to access taxonomies that are stored in a local Taxonomy Directory.

2  Click the on the icon to open the Select an XBRL taxonomy browse window and navigate to the

location of a taxonomy file.
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For this example, navigate to the folder in which the XBRL Taxonomy Designer application
was installed, and open the Samples folder. For a typical default installation of XBRL
Taxonomy Designer follow the file path:

C:/Programs Files/Disclosure Management/sclosure Management XBRL Taxonomy Designer,
XBRL Professional Studio (version)/ Samples,/ Tutorial/Sample Company

3 Locate the samp_taxonomy .xsd file from the folder.

sElecl an XBHL | azonosy

Lokt | (3 Sample Company ] « B

My Alecanl
Diocuments

Dresklop

»

My Diocumeniy

Fila puame: | sammp_tasonomy xad =l [ Open
Flesoltpe  [#BRL T axonomy [ wed) =] Cancel

S

4 Double-click the samp_ taxonomy . xsd file or select it and click Open.

The browse window closes. Linkbase information for the taxonomy displays in the Open
Taxonomy window. Before you load the load taxonomy you may select Enable Editing . In
this case do not. After the taxonomy is loaded you turn on editing using the File menu.

5 Click OK at the bottom of the window to load the selected taxonomy and close the Open Taxonomy
window.

The Taxonomy Editor screen is displayed with the selected taxonomy loaded.
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6 Select View, and then Expand to see the complete presentation view of the taxonomy.

7  Select File, and then Close to close this taxonomy.

» To open a taxonomy from local taxonomy directory:

1

2

v Prezentation
Calculation
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[Emaupgs
v Labels
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= Pressntation View
= Extendiad Link [Dhefault Link]
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Total Cmend Agsats

=] Foossd gy

From the XBRL Taxonomy Designer main screen, select File, then Open, and then Taxonomy.

The Open Taxonomy window is displayed.

Click .

The local Taxonomy Directory opens in another window, listing the taxonomy files stored

within it.
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Note: Taxonomy Directories are XML files that display pertinent and descriptive
information about the taxonomies listed. The URL in the Look in field can be changed
so that any Taxonomy Directory using the prescribed format can be accessed. For
more on Taxonomy Directories, see the section Taxonomy Directories in the
Taxonomy Builder chapter of this guide.

3 Select the Basic Calculation file, and click Open.

The Select an XBRL taxonomy window closes and Linkbase information for the taxonomy
displays in the Open Taxonomy window.

4  Click OK at the bottom of the window to load the taxonomy from the Internet into the XBRL Taxonomy
Designer application.

Do not close the taxonomy because we use it in the next step.

The Open Taxonomy window closes and the Taxonomy Editor screen is displayed, ready
for edit.
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You completed Taxonomy Basics Lesson One. Proceed to “Lesson Two: Creating a Taxonomy”
on page 243.

Lesson Two: Creating a Taxonomy

» To create a taxonomy:
1 In the Taxonomy Editor, select File, then New, and then Taxonomy.
A blank Taxonomy Editor screen is displayed.

Because we did not close the previous taxonomy, it now is displayed as an additional tab at
the top of the Relationships Tree View pane, allowing you to work with the taxonomies
simultaneously.

File Edt View Tools “Window Help
ILIe= D"*lh@|-"ﬁ” 5 ?‘i"’gﬂ-lparenttnthdd j

ci [Presentation] n_EH{F‘re:xr_entahmll

= F'_resentatiu:un Wi

For the purposes of this tutorial, let’s close the first taxonomy for now. To do this:
2  Click the first tab to select ci(Presentation).

3 Select File, and then Close.
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Keep the taxonomy open for now; save it in the next section.

Before you save the taxonomy, we must complete a few steps in the next lesson. Creating a
taxonomy provides us with a blank taxonomy document and we must provide some additional
identification for this taxonomy besides its file name.

You completed Taxonomy Basics Lesson Two. Proceed to “Lesson Three: Taxonomy
Identification and Description” on page 244.

Lesson Three: Taxonomy Identification and Description
We must provide the identification and descriptive information for the taxonomy in the

taxonomy properties grid, on the upper right hand side of the XBRL Taxonomy Designer screen.

» To enter the descriptive information:

1 Optional: Enter a name.

T axonomy - ifrz-gp

B Taxonomy Informabon

International Financial Reporting Standards Gener

Dezcrption Thiz Taxonomy i1z intended to allow Proht-Onented
M amezpacePrefix ifrs-gp
M amezpaceldentifier http: /fxbrliasb. org/intffrfifrs /gp/2005-01-15

The name which, if provided, is stored in the local taxonomy directory, to provide a user-
friendly name for the taxonomy.
For example: International Financial Reporting Standards General Purpose (IFRS-GP)

2  Optional: Enter a description.

The description if provided, is stored in the taxonomy native file and local taxonomy
directory, to provide a user-friendly description of the taxonomy

For example: This Taxonomy is intended to allow Profit-Oriented entities to prepare XBRL-
based interim and annual financial statements according to IFRS. This includes, but is not
limited to, consolidated publicly listed entities, parent entity financial statements, and non-
consolidated entities.

3 Enter the namespace prefix.

The required namespace prefix is used to distinguish base and reference taxonomies. Use
all lowercase letters.

For example: ifrs-gp
4  Enter the namespace identifier.

The required namespace identifier, also known as the target namespace, uniquely identifies
this taxonomy. By convention this is a phantom URL (that is, no Web location need exist,
but the character string must be the same wherever this taxonomy is referenced).

For example: http://xbrl.iasb.org/int/fr/ifrs/gp/2005-05-15
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You completed Taxonomy Basics Lesson Three. Proceed to “Lesson Four: Saving a Taxonomy”
on page 245.

Lesson Four: Saving a Taxonomy

» To save a taxonomy:

1
2

Enter a namespace prefix and namespace identifier (see Lesson Three).

Select File, and then Save.

Save an XBRl. Taxonomy

D

ty Recent
Documents

=
E
Dezkiop

iy Documents

ty Computer
My Metwark
Places

Save in; | =) Moviezales

- « @ E-

&t genre

ﬂ!\i hypercube
«;ﬂ- movie_sales
{a& rating

<& xbrldi-2005
<& xbrldt-2005
&1 xbrldta-2005

File name:

Save az type:

rru:r-.-'ie zales|

|><BF|L T asanomy [ «ed]

|
|

Save |
Cancel )

In the Save dialog box, change the file name to MyTaxonomy . xsd.

Click Save.

Select File, and then Close to close your taxonomy.

To confirm that your taxonomy saved as directed:

Select File, then Open, and then Taxonomy.

Click .

The Select an XBRL Taxonomy window is displayed.
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Select an XBRL Taxonomy

Laok in: | I us-gaap-ci-2002-10-15

H

int-ar-2002-10-15,xsd
int-ged-2002-10-15, %sd

My Taxonomy, xs
usfr-ge-2002-10-15,%sd
usfr-mr-2002-10-15. %sd
usfr-namda-2002-10-15, xsd
usfr-pt-2002-10-15, %sd

usfr-sec-cerk-2002-10-15,xsd
Us-gaap-ci-2002-10-15, xsd

8 Select File, and then Close.

» To prepare for the next section of the tutorial:

1  Select the SampleCompany-Taxonomy . xsd using this path and click Open.

C:/Programs Files/Disclosure Management/Disclosure Management XBRLTaxonomy Designer/
(version)/ Samples/ifrs-gp/ SampleCompany-Taxonomy .xsd

XBRL Professional Studio

2 In the Open Taxonomy window, click OK to load the taxonomy.

Note the number of linkbases that are checked and loaded. More discussion follows about
the types of linkbases. Also note the referenced linkbase in the second window.

Taemromy schema [Local Fis Path, Wb Addiess, or Flemols Server)

|- \Program: Fiss\UBmabm® LBmatrie Automator, WEIRL Prodessional Studic B 40T \sampes ' dis-gp'S ampleC ompary T asonomy srd
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You completed Taxonomy Basics Lesson Four. Proceed to “Lesson Five: Validatinga Taxonomy”
on page 247.
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Lesson Five: Validating a Taxonomy

Note: If you did not load the SampleCompany-Taxonomy .xsd file, do so.

» To validate a taxonomy:
1 Select Tools, and then Validate Taxonomy.

The Taxonomy Validator window is displayed. XML Schema Validation and XBRL
Validation is selected by default. You can select and/or deselect as appropriate. We use the
default settings.

2  Click Run Validation.

When complete, the status and details of the validation are listed in the Messages pane on
the bottom of the screen. If an error with a concept is shown, double-click it and the concept
in question are highlighted in yellow.

R [Ypm— = Count 8553
Predix | Label [ Name [DataType | Absti.. | Substiution.. | Balance | Peiiod Type | Nilable [ 1a]
. forrmila forrmuts ArweType False  sbilciem Instant Falze
flird loc loc Enor T ype Fatze sebuli e Irgtan Falze I
fliec031 NegRC Heg RC Boolean Fatze wbuli e Iristant T e I
fiec031 Heg RCA Heg RCA Boolean Fatre | sbicitem Inshari Trae 1.
4] | s
oo« N
[ Line | Type | Message D | Message |
7 Info XMLAevel vaidation of inkbase call-iepon031-2005-06-30-v18-ef sl succeeded =
g Info WVabdating Inkbase call-repait(31-2005-06-30-v16-6c.uml
9 Irfo S Ldevel validabion of nkbase call-iepcatl31-2005-06-30-w18-ec_sml succeeded
10 Eirce L} . . .
" e wValidating linkbase call-report031-2005-06-30-v18-ec.xml|
12 Etree tENE ad=ubAli Element named Tormula has unespecied subsiuborlioup alinbule W resource

E lement named fommads has missing hos (alko FRTA 221

For detailed information on taxonomy validation, see “Validating Taxonomies” on page
51.

You completed Taxonomy Basics Lesson Five. Proceed to “Lesson Six: Printing a Taxonomy”
on page 247.

Lesson Six: Printing a Taxonomy

» To print a taxonomy:
1 Open the SampleCompany-Taxonomy . xsd.
2  Select File, and then select Print.

The Taxonomy Print Options window is displayed. Note the View to print option and the
number of ways a taxonomy can be printed. Also note Show check boxes on the right side,
including formulas.
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Outputs include print to a printer or a XML file. XML file output can be later converted to
any type of file, for example, PDF. This can be exchanged with other people collaboratively
developing the taxonomy or it can be used for documentation purposes.

v
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||
e
-
"
r
]
._1
-
|
b

3 Click Preview at the bottom of the window.

The Print Preview window is displayed allowing you to see a printable report of the
taxonomy. For this taxonomy there are over 100 pages of documentation.
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4  Click Close to close the Print Preview window and return to the Taxonomy Editor screen.

You completed Taxonomy Basics Lesson Five and the Taxonomy Basics Tutorial.

Elements Basics

This tutorial walks you through the basics of elements. An XBRL element is a fact or piece of

information described by an XBRL taxonomy. For example, an element with the name “Total
NonlInterestIncome” is the USFR-FST taxonomy’s XBRL element name for the financial
statement disclosure fact for “Total Noninterest Income”.

“Lesson One: Working with the Elements List” on page 249 teaches how to use the elements
list.

“Lesson Two: Editing Element Properties Using the Properties Grid” on page 254 explains
how to edit an element using the Properties Grid.

“Lesson Three: Editing Elements Attributes” on page 256 covers edited attributes of an
element.

“Lesson Four: Moving Elements in a Taxonomy” on page 256 explains how to move
elements inside of a taxonomy.

“Lesson Five: Searching for Elements” on page 256 explains how to search through the
elements.

“Lesson Six: Deleting Elements in a Taxonomy” on page 257 covers how to delete an
element.

Lesson One: Working with the Elements List

Before we start to create your first taxonomy, you must know a few basics.

When you are creating a XBRL taxonomy, consider these questions. Note that this is an iterative
process.

What are you trying to model in the taxonomy?
o Concepts on a financial disclosure?
o Concepts in a piece of accounting literature?

If youwant to do a disclosure, such as the balance sheet, collect many samples for the industry
of choice.

Put all titles of the concepts into a spreadsheet, one company per column, and use one row
for each common concept. If many companies share a concept (even if the title changes
slightly), then that concept should be in your taxonomy.

If you are working on a piece of the literature, read it carefully and copy out all nouns and
noun phrases. The nouns or noun phrases that are defined or explained by the statement
are the ones you want in your taxonomy.
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e These approaches give you the list of elements in your taxonomy, then you can enter and
assign attributes like balance attribute and period type. These can be entered in the XBRL
Taxonomy Designer tool or in an Excel spreadsheet and imported in a batch process.

e Next create a sample instance document (automatically generate it with XBRL Taxonomy
Designer) to validate your ideas. Then start adding labels, references, and other linkbases.

e There is a limited list of how financial information is commonly presented. The Patterns
training in this course shows how to create the most common ones identified.

e Asmore public taxonomies reach recommendation stage from XBRL International you will
likely create a taxonomy to extend them.

There are number of short cut (Ctrl) key functions that can be used when working with elements.

Table 109 Shortcut Keys for Working with Elements

Shortcut Key | Description

Ctri+| Inserts a sibling element.

Ctrl+N Inserts a child element

Ctrl+E Edits the selected cell

Ctri+X Cuts elements and relationships
Ctrl+D Deletes elements and relationships.

Adding Elements

There are a number of ways to add elements to a taxonomy. We’ll use every method in this
exercise and you can choose which you prefer. A more advanced method for a large number of
elements is to create a list in Microsoft Excel and import them. We do this later in the course.

» To add an element using the shortcut menu:
1 Using what we've learned so far, create a taxonomy in the Taxonomy Editor.

2  Save the taxonomy with the name in this format:
YYYY-MM-DD-MyOrganization-Taxonomy .xsd

3 Replace the date characters with the current date and MyOrganization with the name of your
organization.

Note: Save your taxonomy often.
4  Enter the namespace prefix and ID for this taxonomy.

For example “dc” as the prefix for Dow Chemical and an ID like: http://
www.DowChemical.com/FinRep/FixedAssets

5 In the Relationships pane, insert a child element like Property, Plant and Equipment by right-clicking
on Extended Link (Default Link).
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To edit the element name, enter the label of the element and press Enter.

To add an element using the edit menu:

In the Relationships pane, select Property, Plant and Equipment.

Select Edit, and then Add Child.
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To create an element using the toolbar method:

In the Relationships pane, select an element.

=
=
(=]

On the Taxonomy Editor toolbar, click the Add Sibling icon.
File Edt “iew Tool: “Window Help

[0~ = 'lh@|@-‘*§ ? E‘; P4 ""5:, = IP‘arenttnEhild

new [Presentatim]|

|4

|Inserl siblina elemenl|

Note that you more toolbar choices are available; for example: insert child, move element
up or down, prohibit and undo.

Name the element (your choice from the list).

To create elements using shortcut keys:

Select any element and press Ctrl+N.
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A child element is created.
2 Select another element and press Ctrl+l.

A sibling element is created.

» To add an element using the Elements List (located just below the Relationships pane).

1 From anywhere in the Elements list, right-click and select New Element.
|

a » IN&M: ;I| Coard 4
& B B ushcr Sy Falze kel dmin Irsitani T Falos JG-02-211 154753
dc  Land Lard —_— - sibvicitem Irwtand Tous Faloe SO06-02-21T 150 56
do Pioperty, Fland and Equapement | PropestFlantE guy Copw CilsC wbeliribam Iritkasnd T ] AT 155

Hew Element

Dielete Element

Sk [

The New Element Form window is displayed for completion.

New clement form _________________F|
B Elemant Informaton &
MameipacePreim  de
Maene MHewE lemend
) [T Mo Eloment o |
B Datal vpe String
Abahiacl Falsa
SubstitutonGioup | whelizitem
FenodT ype Imztamnt
Millable True
Fead
B Documentation
Redeiances [Collection - empty]
Fourrsda
Parent: [Collection - empty] Ll
Chidren [Collection - empty] _ﬂ
(1 shate =}
Mewsement | Close |  Discand "L

2 Add a label, if appropriate.
3 When finished, click Close.
The element is added to the Elements list.

4 To form a relationship for the element, drag the element from the Elements list to the appropriate
location on the relationship tree.
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5 Release the left-click button to drop the element and form the relationship.

6 Enter all elements in the list using the method of your choice.

Element Attributes

Some attributes for each element must be updated. Table 110 describes the attributes in the
Element list.

Table 110 Element Attributes

Attribute Description

Prefix Namespace prefix of the taxonomy. This is set up when you create your taxonomy. See the section in this tutorial on
(Namespace Taxonomy Identification and Description.

Prefix)

Name Name of the element. Elements can be Auto-Named, by automatically assigning element names based on labels. For

example — CashAndCashEquivalents.

Though this property can be edited, if automatic naming options are active for the element’s taxonomy, any changes
to the element’s default label (for taxonomy’s shown language and shown role) are reflected by automatic generation
of a name.

Labels Collection of labels of the element. The default label is shown here. For example — Cash and Cash Equivalents for the
English label and the “Standard” label role.

An ellipsis button activates the Labels Collection Editor.

Alternatively, a plus box expands the labels collection in the property grid for direct editing of labels, and for alternative
entry of labels. If a label’s text is entered and role chosen, and a subsequent label is appropriate, double-click the
plus/minus expansion box of the Add new property.
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Attribute

Description

Data Type

Data type of the selected element. For example, Monetary. Changing the data type redisplays the property grid with
only applicable properties for that data type.

Data types include:
Decimal
Integer
Monetary
Shares- stock

String- pure text

°
°

°

°

°

e Boolean
e URI

e Dates
o Token
°

Tuple

Abstract

This is a True or False selection. True is used for those elements that are containers like Assets with no fact value, a
reportable value associated with it. All other elements with values are children of these elements.

Substitution
Group

The substitution group attribute is defined on every element. By default, it must be an item or a tuple. It can also hold
the value of other elements, which are derived from items or tuples.

An item is the default substitution group for a concept that is reported in an instance document with a value.

A tuple is used to group of items in an instance document.

Balance Type

Balance Type is a property of monetary elements. Options allowed for Balance Type: Unspecified (blank), Debit, and
Credit. Selecting Debit or Credit reflects the most common state for an element, for example, a revenue concept is
often a debit balance.

Period Type Period type is a required value for all but tuple elements in V2.1 taxonomies. The value for period type can be “Instant”
or “Duration”. Instant is most often used for balance sheet type elements and duration for profit and loss.

Nillable Nillable is an optional attribute which can be assigned to non-abstract elements. The value of nillable is set to “False”
and may be changed to “True” to indicate that in instance documents the element may appear with an attribute
nil="true” and empty content.

Flag

Date Last The exact date and time is tagged when an element was last changed. This is useful for version control.

Changed

You completed Elements Basics Lesson One. Proceed to “Lesson Two: Editing Element
Properties Using the Properties Grid” on page 254.

Lesson Two: Editing Element Properties Using the Properties Grid

» To edit an element property:

1 Select an element from the Relationships Pane or the Element List.

For this example, select Child Element A from the Elements List. (If this element no longer
exists in your taxonomy, select any element.)
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3 Select Label as the property to edit.

An ellipsis button is displayed in the associated field.

E Element Information

MamespacePrefix new

Marme ChildElement
Labels Child Element & !
DataType String

PetindType Instant

O~ g 5= X5 -

4  Click

The Referenced Taxonomies — new window is displayed.

Labels - Child Element A e k|
Label | Rale Mame |Lang | Title |
3 Child Elemert & Standard Label &n

£
Child Element &,

5 In the Label column, select Child Element A.

6  Enter a label and click X to close the window.

Note how the label for the element has changed in the Relationships pane, the Elements List and

the Element Properties grid.

You completed Elements Basics Lesson Two. Proceed to “Lesson Three: Editing Elements

Attributes” on page 256.
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Lesson Three: Editing Elements Attributes

» To edit the attribute of an element in the Element List:

1 Inthe Element List, right-click a cell and select Edit Cell.
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2 Using the copy of the screen above, edit the Data Type, Abstract, Balance, Period Type, and Nillable
attributes for a few elements.

3 Make your edits and click Enter.

4  Select File, then Save, and then Close.

You completed Elements Basics Lesson Three. Proceed to “Lesson Four: Moving Elements in a
Taxonomy” on page 256.

Lesson Four: Moving Elements in a Taxonomy

» To move elements within the Relationships pane:
1 Select an element in the taxonomy tree view.
2 Press and hold the left mouse button.

Notice how the cursor changes as you move over elements of the taxonomy tree. Also note
how the status bar at the bottom of the screen describes the action which would be performed
if the left mouse button were released at that point.

3 Release the left-click button to move the element.

To move elements from within the Elements List into the Relationships pane:
Select an element in the Element List.

Press and hold the left-click button and drag the element to the Relationships pane.

OJI\.)I—‘Y

Drop (release the left-click button) the element within the taxonomy tree.

You completed Elements Basics Lesson Four. “Lesson Five: Searching for Elements” on page
256.

Lesson Five: Searching for Elements

The Elements List view can be filtered or searched. This becomes helpful when you are working
with taxonomies with thousands of elements. The element list view has several filter and search
options to help you locate elements.
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» To search for elements, use one method:

e In the Element List pane, click the drop-down arrow associated with the Find and Show
Elements icon to display the list of find and show choices.

You can choose criteria to Filter the dictionary view of the taxonomy elements.

e Use the ALL Elements drop-down menu to search for elements.

You completed Elements Basics Lesson Five. Proceed to “Lesson Six: Deleting Elements in a
Taxonomy” on page 257.

Lesson Six: Deleting Elements in a Taxonomy

To delete elements in a taxonomy:
Load the SampleCompany-Taxonomy.xsd file and enable editing.

Select the upper most taxonomy element of the tree branch (below the Extended Link).

OJMI—\V

Right-click and select Delete.
Three options are provided:

e Element—Deleting an element deletes the element from the dictionary (Element List
Pane), its labels, references, formulas, and all relationships to and from that element.

e Relationship—Deleting a relationship deletes only the selected relationship.

e Subtree—Deleting a subtree displays a submenu which enables you to specify deleting
the subtree and all relationships and elements, or delete only the relationships. If the
element has no subtree, this option is not available.

Element Chrl+D |
R.elationship

Elements and Relationships
Relationships Cnly

You completed the Element Basics Tutorial.

Relationships Basics

This tutorial walks you through the basics of relationships between elements.
e “Lesson One: Working with Relationships” on page 258

e “Lesson Two: Changing the Relationship View” on page 258

e “Lesson Three: Adding Views to the Relationships pane” on page 259

e “Lesson Four: Removing a View from the Relationships Pane” on page 260
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Lesson One: Working with Relationships

Many times you want to view two portions of a taxonomy simultaneously. Or, you may want
to view the same taxonomy elements using different perspectives, such as Presentation and
Calculation. In XBRL Taxonomy Designer, you can add and change relationship views and
perspectives using the Relationships pane.

In the Relationships pane of the Taxonomy Editor, the perspective of the displayed view is noted
on the taxonomy tab at the top of the pane.

us-gaap-ci {Presentation)

[=]- Presentation View
=8 Extended Link (Default Link)
El-US GAAP - Commercial and Industrial
- Document and Entity Infarmation
-- Incame Statement
- Balance Sheet
-- Stakement of Stockholder's Equity

Taxonomies can be viewed from three perspectives or views— Presentation, Calculation, and
Definition.

You completed Relationships Basics Lesson One. Proceed to “Lesson Two: Changing the
Relationship View” on page 258.

Lesson Two: Changing the Relationship View

» To change the taxonomy view:

1 Load the EU bank capital adequacy taxonomy COREP taxonomy by loading the file
_import_all_taxonomies in the Taxonomy Editor screen.

2  Right-click in the Relationships pane.

A shortcut menu is displayed.

3 Select View.
Shiom r Calculation

Definition

Three perspectives are listed. A checkmark indicates the views currently displayed.
4 Select a view that is not selected.

For this example, select Calculation. Note how the perspective of the taxonomy changes in
the Relationships pane.

5  Click to expand the Extended Link for the Calculation view of the taxonomy.

You completed Relationships Basics Lesson Two. Proceed to “Lesson Three: Adding Views to
the Relationships pane” on page 259.
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Lesson Three: Adding Views to the Relationships pane

» To view the taxonomy from two or three perspectives simultaneously:
1 Right-click in the Relationships pane.

2 From the shortcut menu, select Show, and then Add Another Relationships pane.

Note that in this submenu, no checkmarks are associated with the displayed perspectives. This
is because when you add multiple views, you may want to add multiple views of the same
perspective.

For this example, select Presentation.

Wigi 2 i
Show vl add Ancther Relationships Pane m
Edit Label i Remove Relationships Pane Calculation
2 i
S E v Sync ko Other Panes Diefinition
Add Child Chrl+M :
ale Lttt Ifatol e v Element List

A second pane is created and displays in Presentation view. Notice that two relationship views
are now visible.

» To add another view using the View menu:

1 Select View, and then Show.

Preserkation
RN
w Dedindtion
o Labels
Elerepnt Mo
Hamespace Prefoes
« (Probibdted Relstionahgs
Add Another Relsbonshios Pane v
Remnoryve Relsbonships Fans |

Eupard
o Sync bo Other Pares
Colapss

Rafresh o Elamert List

Charge Relatiorshps Oriedl alaon
Thargs Elarnant Lisk Orisntation

Auditionrl Tabbed Wirekow
Auddition sl Daockable Flosting Wirdow
v MEtLapis

Note that the menu options are similar to those in the shortcut menu.

2 Select Add Another Relationships Pane, and then Definition.

Three views are now displayed in the Relationships pane.
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You completed Relationships Basics Lesson Three. Proceed to “Lesson Four: Removing a View
from the Relationships Pane” on page 260.

Lesson Four: Removing a View from the Relationships Pane

» To remove a view from the Relationships pane:
1 Select the view to remove by clicking anywhere within it.

Note that the active view is indicated on the bottom of the Taxonomy Editor screen on the
far right of the status bar.

2 Use the View menu or the shortcut menu to select Show, and then Remove Relationships Pane.

Using the Sync Feature

When working with a taxonomy, you may want to examine elements of that taxonomy from

multiple perspectives (multiple views) simultaneously. Instead of scrolling through each view
to find the element, you can use the XBRL Taxonomy Designer sync feature to automate this
process.

» To view data using multiple views:

1 Make sure you have at least two views of the taxonomy in the Relationships pane.
2 Select a view by clicking it.

3 Use the shortcut menu or the View menu to open the Show menu.

4

In the Show menu, select Sync to Other Panes.
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5 Repeat step 2 through step 4 for all views.

6  From the Elements List (subjacent to the Relationships pane), scroll to locate any element, and then
click to select it.

Note how all Relationship views refresh to display the selected element within their view.
7 Click an element (branch) in one of the Relationship views.

If that element exists in the other views, the other views sync up to present the selected
element as well.

Disabling the Sync Feature

» To disable the syncing feature:

1 In the Relationship view, right-click and select Show, and then select Sync to Other Panes to deselect
it.

Note that selecting elements in the Relationship view no longer affects the other views.

2  Select File, and then Close to close the taxonomy.

Reference Taxonomy Basics

This tutorial walks you through the basics of reference taxonomies.
e “Lesson One: Referenced Taxonomies” on page 261

e “Lesson Two: Viewing Referenced Taxonomies” on page 262

e “Lesson Three: Removing a Referenced Taxonomy” on page 263
e “Lesson Four: Exchanging Taxonomy Information” on page 264

e “Lesson Five: Creating a Calculation View (Linkbase)” on page 266

Lesson One: Referenced Taxonomies

XBRL Taxonomy Designer provides full support for working with an unlimited depth of
referenced taxonomies. Referenced taxonomies are often public or standard private taxonomies
that can be used by another taxonomy that extends the structure and resources provided. The
taxonomy using the referenced taxonomy is often called an “extended taxonomy.” A referenced
taxonomy is often called a base taxonomy. By extending a base taxonomy a company can leverage
thousands of hours of collaborative work and the value of using a standard.

An extended taxonomy may reference a number of other taxonomies. The extended taxonomy
combined with its referenced taxonomies is referred to as the DTS.

» To edit a taxonomy property:
1 Create a taxonomy and add a namespace prefix and ID.

2 Add a referenced taxonomy to this taxonomy: Select the Referenced Taxonomies property.
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An ellipsis button is displayed in the associated field.

O~ - a5 % Mg -

Click

In the Referenced Taxonomies - New window, click Add.

Select Referenced Taxonomies.

The Open Taxonomy window is displayed.

Use what you've learned to select and load a referenced taxonomy.

The namespace prefix in the tree below reflects the namespace prefix you just entered and
the namespace prefix of the referenced taxonomy you loaded.

Note that the referenced taxonomy is now shown in the tree view pane of the Referenced
Taxonomies.

Click the X to close the window.

In the Taxonomy Properties grid, the Referenced Taxonomy property indicates that there
is one referenced taxonomy in the collection.

Select File, and then Save.

Click the X in the upper right of the Relationships View pane to close the taxonomy.

You completed Reference taxonomy Lesson One. Proceed to “Lesson Two: Viewing Referenced

Taxonomies” on page 262.

Lesson Two: Viewing Referenced Taxonomies

» To view a large taxonomy with multiple reference taxonomies:

1

From the XBRL Taxonomy Designer main screen, select File, then Open, and then Taxonomy.

The Open Taxonomy window is displayed.

Click the on the Open icon to open the Select an XBRL taxonomy browse window.

Navigate to and select to open the SampleCompany-Taxonomy . xsdfile fromthe Samples folder.

The browse window closes. All taxonomies that are referenced by the IFRS-GP taxonomy
are listed in the lower part of the screen.

Click OK at the bottom of the window to load the selected taxonomy and close the Open Taxonomy
window.

The Taxonomy Editor screen is displayed with the selected taxonomy loaded. Referenced
taxonomies are color-coded. The authoring of reference taxonomy scenarios brings up some
more complex issues of dealing with XBRL. Most of these issues are automatically handled
by the application, enabling you to design taxonomies instead of coding XML/XBRL.
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About Editing Referenced Taxonomies

To edit elements or the structure of taxonomies that are being referenced by the base taxonomy
that is being edited, there are two choices:

e Ifoneisan extender (consumer) of the referenced (standard) taxonomy, to which you have
no change rights, the editor of the base taxonomy may change the structure of referenced
taxonomies by prohibiting relationships between their elements in the referenced
taxonomies and patch them with relations that are defined as part of the namespace of the
top-level taxonomy.

e Ifoneisthe producer (author) of the referencing and referenced taxonomies, then checking
the Enable editing check box to the right of the referenced taxonomies within the Open
Taxonomy window enables direct editing of referenced taxonomies (instead of prohibiting
relationships and overriding labels).

For the case in which one is the consumer of a standard taxonomy by an extending taxonomy,
prohibit arcs block the referenced taxonomy’s relationship arcs to prohibit the traversal of a
relationship in referenced (standard) taxonomies. Prohibition conceptually puts a “do not
traverse” sign on prohibited relationship arcs. The author is free to define a relationship between
the elements in the edited top level taxonomy. Prohibited arcs show on the tree view with their
labels in a strike-out font. An example of such prohibited arcs is automatically created when a
user moves an element of one of the referenced taxonomies to another place on the relationship
tree. You cannot move the element to any relationship view tree.

For example, assume that the author wants to move a subtree in the “Document and Entity
Information” section. The Web site entry needs to be moved under the entity contact
information. This is not the top-level taxonomy and you cannot change anything in this
taxonomy, only prohibit the old link and create a link.

It is now clearly indicated that the Entity Web Site element is made a child of the Entity Contact
element. The strikethrough on the Entity Web Site element indicates that this relationship is
now prohibited and not traversed. XBRL relationship arcs for prohibition of the original and
traversal of the relationship are generated by XBRL Taxonomy Designer.

You completed Reference Taxonomy Lesson Two. Proceed to “Lesson Two: Viewing Referenced
Taxonomies” on page 262

Lesson Three: Removing a Referenced Taxonomy

» To remove a referenced taxonomy from the base:

1 With the base taxonomy loaded in the Taxonomy Editor, ensure that the Taxonomy tab is selected at
the bottom of the Properties Grid pane.

2  Select the Referenced Taxonomies property.

An ellipsis button is displayed in the associated field.

O - - g 2= F ¥ 5 -

3 Click
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The Referenced Taxonomies window is displayed.
4 In the left tree view pane, select the referenced taxonomy you wish to remove.
This activates the Remove button.

5 Click Remove.

The referenced taxonomy is removed from the base taxonomy. The Referenced Taxonomy
window refreshes to show this.

Lesson Four: Exchanging Taxonomy Information

A taxonomy, its elements, relationships, labels, references, and formulas, can be exported for
use with other tools and software. XBRL Taxonomy Designer supports export to Excel 2003 (or
newer), Access, Databases, XML and CSV files. You can also import from Word.

For detailed information regarding importing and exporting taxonomies in XBRL Taxonomy
Designer, see Chapter 5, “Importing and Exporting.”

Exporting Taxonomy Information

Start by taking a taxonomy in XBRL Taxonomy Designer and exporting it to create an Excel file.

» To export a file to Excel:
1 With the Basic Calculation taxonomy loaded in the Taxonomy Editor, select File, and then Export.

The Export window is displayed.
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2 In the Export format field, select Excel.
3 In the File name field, enter a file name or browse to select a file to replace.
4 In the Export Type field, select Taxonomy - General Export.

Keep the defaults for the rest of the Export window options.
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Click Preview to view the data to be exported.

Click Start to export the data to Excel.

Minimize the XBRL Taxonomy Designer application and open the export file you created.
Notice it contains your taxonomy information.

Make at least one minor edit to this data.

Save and close the export file.

Re-Importing Taxonomy Information

To re-import the data you just edited, we must load the exported taxonomy in your Taxonomy
Editor in XBRL Taxonomy Designer.

>
1

3
4

To re-import taxonomy information:
Maximize the XBRL Taxonomy Designer application.
Within the Taxonomy Editor, select File, and then Import.

The Taxonomy Import window is displayed.

o
— Imiport Opbions
Import source [Hs;m!u 3 I¥ Correcterrors onimport [~ Save design
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Select Excel as the import source.
In the File name field, select the file that you just exported and edited.
A preview of the imported data is provided with a field name mapping.

Fields input need not necessarily match taxonomy fields in the XBRL Taxonomy Designer
memory model, but if they do then they are automatically mapped to the internal field
names. This flexibility enables using data sources with different field or column names,
different languages, and many accommodations.
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5  Click Apply and select Yes or No to the question.
6 Click Start to re-import the data with the file updates.

You completed Reference Taxonomy Lesson Four. Proceed to “Lesson Five: Creating a
Calculation View (Linkbase)” on page 266.

Lesson Five: Creating a Calculation View (Linkbase)

Calculations provide one of the important benefits of XBRL—the ability to provide a consistent
way of arithmetically validating data. They are effective in expressing relationships between
financial reporting concepts and useful in ensuring accuracy of instance document data. XBRL
calculations can handle only simple addition and subtraction and only with one context (point
in time.) Calculations sometimes produce results that inconsistent from what is expected.

The use of business rules or formulas provides an additional tool to validate data (introduced
later).

For this exercise, use the taxonomy you created earlier for fixed assets.

» To create a calculation view:
1 Load your taxonomy that had a filename format of YYYY-MM-DD-MyOrganization-Taxonomy.xsd.
Expand the view of the presentation view.

2

3 Use Show Another Relationship Pane to view the calculation view.

4  If the taxonomy loaded has a calculation linkbase, delete the relationships, not the elements.
5

Drag the Total Property, Plant and Equipment concept to the calculation view and when the color turns
pink drop it.

Note that you drag the total concept to the calculation view as the parent and the other
concepts rolls up to it.

6 Do the same with the other elements only make them children of the Total Property, Plant and Equipment
concept.

7 Save the file and validate it later.

You completed the Reference Taxonomy Tutorial.

Instance Documents Basics

This tutorial walks you through the basics of instance documents.
e “Lesson One: Creating Instance Documents” on page 267

e “Lesson Two: Validating Instance Documents” on page 268
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Lesson One: Creating Instance Documents

A taxonomy becomes fruitful when it yields an instance document. The Sample instance
document generator will automatically generate a template of an instance document, which can
then be loaded into the instance document editor, validated, printed, formatted, The creation
of instance documents utilizes a taxonomy and imports, edits, or keys in instance contexts, units,
and values. Typically the design of the taxonomy will have been completed but some minor
updates may be needed as the instance document is developed. XBRL Taxonomy Designer
provides a convenient means to access and modify the taxonomy while authoring instance
documents.

» To generate a sample instance document.

1 For this example, load the SampleCompany-Taxonomy taxonomy into the Taxonomy Editor.
This file location is in the i frs-gp folder:

2  Select a part of the taxonomy from which to generate a sample instance document.

This could be a balance sheet subtree, or an entire Extended Link. For this example the
following Balance Sheet subtreeis selected.

3 On the Tools menu, select Sample instance generator.
The Sample XBRL Instance Document Generator window is displayed.
4 Specify a Save as file to generate the instance document.
5 In the What section choose Selected subtree.
In this example, our sample instance document is a subtree.
Select the Monetary Amount drop down menu and select $100.
Click Start to generate an instance document.

Review the instance document by selecting File, then Open, and then Instance Document.

© 00 ~N o

Use the Open Instance Document window to browse and locate your newly-created instance document
xml file. Double-click on the file, or select and click Open.

10 Click OK in the Open window to load the instance document.

11 Check the fact values and other collections. You may also examine the instance document by opening
it with Internet Explorer, in raw XML form.

» To create an instance document:
1  On the File menu, select New Instance.

A blank Instance Document Editor screen is displayed. The top pane is a tree view of the
instance, the bottom is a data grid of the fact values, and the right side has the instance
properties grid.

2  Load the taxonomy by selecting the File menu and selecting Load a Taxonomy.

The Open Taxonomy window is displayed.
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10
11

12

13

For this example, select the BasicCalculation.xsd taxonomy. After loading, the taxonomy
an additional pane is added to the screen —the Taxonomy Finder Element pane —
displaying the taxonomy on the lower right of the screen.

We are now ready to enter fact values for the instance document. This is done in the Fact
Values Data grid. As they are entered, contexts, entities, periods, and units are also entered
using choice lists and collection editors.

Click on the first blank line of the Fact Values Data grid.
A drop-down button is displayed.
Click to expand the drop-down list and select the element, Land. It populates the Element Name column.

Note that this field has an incremental-search capability. As you start to type the prefix part
of the name, the drop-down scrolls to that element and the whole prefix first matching is
highlighted in the field. You can right-arrow past the colon and start typing the initial
characters of the name.

Click the Tab key to move to the Context column or click within the field.
Select Add/Choose.

The Contexts window is displayed.

Click the New button for a new record.

You can click on the entity and period fields to enter them (by a chooser-editor which allows
using an existing or new entry).

When done, click the Okay Save button.

Now this fact value has the newly-entered context. Also, the context value will be in the
combo box drop-down list for the next record.

The next column (needed for numeric entries, such as for Land value) is Unit. Select the collection editor
and choose USD (U.S. Dollars) as its measure.

In the Value column, enter any number (123,000, for example).

Try another line, but if you wish to re-use the context and unit, they can be selected from the initial drop-
down lists instead of activating the chooser-editor for the collection.

Save your instance document file by selecting File a Save or File a Save as.

The result of entering the fact values is displayed in the Instance tree view pane where each
entered fact value will be displayed in the view order. To change the view order:

Click on the View, then Tree order, and then select an order to view the instance fact values.

Lesson Two: Validating Instance Documents

After you create an instance document, receive a file containing an instance document, or import
instance data from another application, you can make sure there are no errors in the documents
you create or receive by performing a validation. The data in the instance document is validated
to ensure it “foots and cross-castes” relative to the calculation links expressed in a taxonomy.
For example, if Total Property and Equipment must equal Land plus Building plus Fixtures

within a context, then the instance document is tested to ensure these values are accurate.
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Importing Tutorial

This section explains how to import XBRL Taxonomies and Instance Documents.

Importing Tutorial Overview

These lessons teach you about Importing data to create XBRL Taxonomies and Instance
Documents:

e “Lesson One: Importing to Create a Taxonomy” on page 269 teaches how to import data
from a Microsoft Excel spreadsheet to create a taxonomy.

e “Lesson Two: Importing to Create an Instance” on page 273 explains how to import data
from a Microsoft Excel spreadsheet to create a taxonomy.

Lesson One: Importing to Create a Taxonomy

» To create a taxonomy:
1 Create a taxonomy.
Next, we must define the Namespaces of the taxonomy

2 In the Taxonomy Property Grid, set the NamespacePrefix to samp and Namespaceldentifier to http://
www.example.com/samp.

3 Select File, and then Save As to save the taxonomy.

Note: For ease of use, we recommend that you save the taxonomy in the samples folder as
Sample Taxonomy.

4 Select File As File, then Close to close the taxonomy.

This file is used in later lessons, so keep track of where you save it.

» To import indented labels to automatically create linkbases:
1 Begin the taxonomy import by selecting File, and then Import.
This opens the Import Taxonomy window.

We want to import data from a Microsoft Excel document so we must set XBRL Taxonomy
Designer to accept a Microsoft Excel document.

2 From import source, select Excel.

3 In the File name field, click Browse to browse to samples/Tutorial/Sample Company folder
and select the sample-balancesheet .x1s file.
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The sample company spreadsheet contains the labels for the concepts that we wish to import
into our taxonomy. We generate the XBRL taxonomy data (schema, presentation, and
calculations) expressed in this source by importing these labels. To start, we import the
XBRL taxonomy elements using the import type "Elements". Note that we also generate

elements from labels as labels were used in the source. See “Taxonomy Import Overview”

on page 153.

Abstract concept due to the fact that there is no value in the same row. Datatype will be set to string.

Abstracts are normally ussd in the presentation as titls\grouping other elsmsnts, in
this case they are titles used within the financial report.

L Monetary concept due to the value being reparted in the same row. This concept is

not considersd an abstract since there is 3 value reparted and thersfors will appear

inthe XBRL instacne document,

~—— ‘ithen completing & taxonomy import when we import & concept with & name/label that includes
the term "Tatal” then we assume that the menetary concepts that are at indented deeper than the

current concept are involved in a calculation with totaling concept.

In this case the calculations that are created are:

Total Cheeking / Savings
|--=Checking/Savings
|-->Checking

|-->Saving

In this case we will generate the following presentation:

Assets

1 Dec 31,03
2 [nsSETS ||
3| current Assets
4 Checking/Savings
o || checking 441835
B TSavings 1436842
7 Total Checking/Savings —| 1295207
8 ‘Accounts Receivable I
i Accourts Recsivable 76,32045
10 Total i 5,32045
a1 Other Current Assets
12 Tools & Euipment 5,000 00
El Invertory Asset 2352264
14 Retainage 2461 80
15 Undepositedt Funds 695234
16 Total Other Current Assets 67 96678
17 Total Current Assets 159,239.30
16| Fixed Assets
19 Trucks
20 Original Cost 3385281
2 Depreciation -8,000.00
22 Total Trucks 3085291
23| Total Fixed Assets 3085291
24 | TOTAL ASSETS 190,092.21

|--> Current Assets
|--> Checking/Savings

|--> Checking

|--> Savings
|--= Total Checking/Savings

4 From Sheet, select Balance Sheet.

This tells XBRL Taxonomy Designer that you are importing elements from a balance
sheet.See “Taxonomy Import Overview” on page 153.
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The Import Field to Taxonomy Field mapping grid has no entries, so nothing is recognized
(based on column headings) for mapping. We must tell XBRL Taxonomy Designer how we
want it to map information from sample-balancesheet .x1s to the taxonomy.

Click the drop-down button in Import Field A’s Taxonomy Field column, and then select Label.

This sets XBRL Taxonomy Designer to define how to identify elements in a taxonomy when
imported data is intended to update elements. In this case the key field specifies whether to
match on Name, Label, and so on. See “Taxonomy Import Overview” on page 153.

There are indented labels in columns A to F (6 columns). XBRL Taxonomy Designer uses
the indentation nesting to establish presentation relationships working down the indent
level, and calculation relationships based on the word total appearing in some cell legends.

These two example financial reports are expressed in a Microsoft Excel spreadsheet. One
report is expressed with an indented structure across multiple columns which indicate levels
of indentation. The flat structure in the second example has no indentation and therefore
we cannot infer the XBRL calculation and presentation relationships as can be done with
the indented structure.

Click the next drop-down button and select Indented key.

This sets XBRL Taxonomy Designer to look for indented information. This needs to be done
because sample-balancesheet.xls has indented the data and XBRL Taxonomy Designer does
not know to look for the indented data until notified. See “Taxonomy Import Overview”
on page 153
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7  Click Start.
Line | Type | Message ID | Message
1 Info Import to SAMP compleked: 1 errors, 0 warnings
z Info Rows read: 57, skipped: 1, imported: S&
3 Info Check for duplicates will be based on: Label
4 Info Mo elements in taxonomy, all elements will be newly added From Excel
5 Errar ExImpEltMaLabel Row 55 indented label not Found, row ignored

The message pane should look like the above example. The messages report that 57 rows
were read and 56 were imported. As you might recall from Step 6, the Row Header is set to
1. This skips the first row as all of the information on row 1 is header information. XBRL
Taxonomy Designer reads each row starting with row 2. It stops on row 57, because that is
the last row of information. XBRL Taxonomy Designer continues to try to find information
with row 58, but finds no information and so reports that as the error seen above.

8 Display Presentation and Calculation Relationships Views Relationships Views side by side.

This can be done by selecting View, then Show, then Add Another Relationship Pane and
then selecting Calculation. Look in the Elements List pane to verify that monetary elements
are monetary and presentation abstract elements are abstract.

Next, we must validate the taxonomy.

9 Select Tools, and then Validate Taxonomy.
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Taxonomy Yalidation £

- Tawonomy Y alidation options

[ ML schema walidation <ML schema-defined syntax)
[ ®BRL walidation [<BRL item, tuple, and linkbaze semantics]
[ Fihancial Feparting Taxonomy Architecture [FRTA] walidation [}3

Show walidation meszages:

I Erors

I “Warnings

Save taxonomy walidation repart in:

||::'\F'ru:ugram Filez\UBmatnxsUBrmatrix Autarnator, <BRL Prafessional Studio B.403%zamples n Q‘

10 Select XML schema validation and then XBRL validation.

These features set XBRL Taxonomy Designer to validate the taxonomy to make sure that
the XML and XBRL are valid.

11 Click Run Validation.

Line 1 Type | Message ID | Message i
g Info #ML-level validation of linkbase MewTaxonomy-calculation.xml succeeded
] Info walidating Taxonomy {new) on XBRL-level...
10 Info ¥BRL-level @ Checking Cycles. ..

Taxoriomsy || . ¥BRL validation completed : O errars, O warnings
iz Info Taxanamy validation repart written ta Ci\Program Files\UBmatri=\UBmatrix Aukomatar, XBRL Pral ..
£ | b

If you followed the directions correctly, you should receive the result as above.

You completed Importing Lesson One. Proceed to “Lesson Two: Importing to Create an

Instance” on page 273.
Lesson Two: Importing to Create an Instance
To import an instance document:

) o

1 Create an instance document.

2  Select File, then Load, and then Taxonomy and click the icon in the Open Taxonomy window.
3

Select the newly-created Sample Taxonomy file from Lesson One, and then click Open.
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Open an XBRL taxonomy

Taxonomy schema (Local File Path, Web Addiess, or Remote Server]:

‘C:\ngram Filesh EJ ﬁ_] ﬁ_]

Check for; | manifestfile | nativefile format [ Enable editing
Linkbazes that are checked will be loaded, those filelz] not found will be highlighted in red:

Fale ] Linkbase File ] Role Mamespace |dentifier ] Full Path / Mame I Enahle editing
Label Links Sample Taxonomg-lab...  http: /v <bilorg/2003/roledlabellinkb...  C:A\Program Filesh

Presentation Links Sample Taxzonomy-pre...  http: A sbrl. arg/2003/role/presentatio..  C:\Program Filesh w
Calculation Links Sample Tasonomy-cal..  httpeddwesbil org/20030le/calculation... C:\Program Filesh Reload

Q + [

< | >
Referenced taxonomies and schemas [those checked will be loaded, file(z] not found will be highlighted in red]:
Prefix ] Wamespace |dentifier ] File # Path ] Composition [~ Enable editing
Clear Al
Fieload
< TN
[ T axonomy Validation: Show Y alidation Messages: Fix Taxonomy On Load:
I #ML validate [ FRTA validate I Eroe T Wamings I Fix onload...
#BRL: Wersion 2.1
Status:
Cancel

Errar:

4  Click OK in the Open Taxonomy window to load the taxonomy and close the window.

Because the instance data is labeled with Sample Taxonomy labels and we are directly
matching, we import without mapping. The next step is to create a context that we can map
data into.

5  Ensure that the Instance tab is active in the Instance Property Grid (“Instance Document Propetties
Grid” on page 121).

[ — [E—— L wahs
1B [ RelseFaty B | +

1.1 { Mol slaba Pty Corest- 2000 ok Do

1.2 | cihiareh slshardheg oot 200 LL

L3 aTypeRalsbonetn Contact-Z00 a5c P graicant ook

B | amwsdenetidbedaty S

14 i DN T e g taon Conkgd- 300 e

.I..i- [ er TypmTraraston Cond et X000 ek ey

(KB | oo TraresanPracragFok:y oot 200 ot

Y | m— ot Tranestan Contect-Z000  Unds-Moretary (00000

e . e e = — ol i rirtr B o Y

s | DTG T ans-mon Conkgd- 300 [T

15 e T ypen Frarviacbion Cord et X000 weeicF Lo

|.§.\_ | 0 L ekt P PRy Lonigact-F00G Lot

T ) — o Rencunk T araaction Corfet-2000  Unds-Monetery | S00000

o T e i Nt bt M e RS

1k crlsrgRonT armaction Corkeat-2000 s For offie baiding

s e Typa Tramachor Cordet 00 wicf Loasd

Hob { i TrarnsachonPrngFoky Conigat-B0E Miarket

b L — erAenourd Tranethon Corfect-2000  Unds-Morstary | pO0000

6 Select the Contexts property in the Instance Property Grid and click the ellipsis (...) collection editor
button.
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Context¥21 Collection Editor

Members: Pr

[l

Add Remove

oK | Cancel 1
21

7  Click Add in the lower left of the collection editor.

Context¥21 Collection Editor

context-1 Properties:
Label
Drezcription
18] context-1

Scenario

Label
Identifying label for the context.

Add Remove

DKQJ Cancel 14

8 Click Entity and then select the pull-down menu.

Entities X

4] =] » [ x|
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This is the Entity collection editor (see “Using Entities” on page 131).

9 Click * to add an entity.

Entities £
Label
| dentifier entity-1
Scheme

SegmentDimen: [Collection - empty]
SegmentL

Label :%

|dentifying label for the entity.

G %] 4t RaIRES

10 Change the identifier name to SAMP.

11 Add a scheme http://www.example.com/samp and then click the check button to accept the changes.

Entities [x]
Label
| dentifier SAMP
Scheme hittp: v, example. comzampl
SegmentDimen: [Collection - empty]
Segmentz=L

Scﬁeme

The namespace LRI of the identifier token scheme,
providing a framewaork for referencing naming aut ...

*| x| (it =1 x|

12 Click Period and then select the pull-down menu.

This is the Period collection editor.
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F;EI‘iDE |E

4] =1 b x|

13 Click New Period (*).

ﬁeriua- @
Type -
Label
Type
Select the type of interval or instant of time
(4] | 4] ||V x|

14 Select Instant from Type.
15 Select an At date of December 31, 2003 from the calendar.
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Type Instant

Label %
R 1273172003

At
Enter an instant date

#] x| «ftzozan B

16 Click Accept (4) to save and exit the Period pop-up window.

17 Click OK to exit the ContextV21 Collection Editor.

Context¥21 Collection Editor

tembers: context-1 Properties:
1] context-1

Label

+
Drezcription
lJ D context-1
Entity SAMP

I o 2003-12-31 =

Scenario

Period
Period of this context
Add Remove

oK I: | Cancel ‘
2 |

18 Before beginning the next step, click inside the Instance View pane to ensure the correct menus and
toolbar buttons are activated.

19 Select File, and then Import.

20 Browse to the sample-balancesheet .x1s file.
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Instance Impaort
~ Import Options
Import source !E#cel :_I % Conect erors on import [~ Save design
’ - W Validate before impart
File: name ]E:\Program Filesh, E v e Beade E E ity cel I_
Impart type Contests: entity, period, scenarnia H Key field I ;" ;I
Sheet Balance Sheet __V_!
Import Field Instance Field
A | 8 |e D a &
b2 |ASSETS B
3 Current Aszets ! C
4 Checking/Saving D
5 Checking E
[ Savings F
7 Total Checking/s Dec 3103 =
g Accounts Redeiw
] Acounts
10 Total &ccounts R
| 11 | Other Current Az
| 12 Tools & Eq »
| v
Load Dlezign | Apply | Start | Cloge

4

Previously, we imported relationships. Now, we're going to import fact values to populate
your instance document.

21 Change the Import Type to Fact-Values.

Instance Import

¥ Comect emors on import
v ‘alidate before impart

¥ Fow header [1_:5 E

[~ Save design

nitity cell I

field |

Import Field

ec 3103

|

Instance Field

Lo

~Import Options
Impart source iExcel :_I
File name ]C:\F’rogram Files®, ﬂ
Import type iFact-vaIues: items, tuples :_I
Sheet iBaIance Shest _'_!
& |g |z | o -

® AESETS

3 Current Assets Sl

4 Checking/Saving

5 Checking

E Savings

7 Total Checking/S

] Apeounts Receiy

] AsCOUnts

n Total Accounts R
| 1 | Other Current A5
_12— Tools & Eq w
4| ’
Load Dezign |

Apply

Start

| Cloze

22 In the field mapping section on the left side of the window, click row A and select Element Label.

23 Click the + sign to expand.
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Instance Impork

Import Dptions
Impart source IEHCE| L] ¥ Corect erors on import [ Save design
: - v Validate before impart
File: name |E:\Program Filesh, ﬂ R e ’G Entity cell l—
Impart type |Fact values: ikems, tuples L] ey field 1A L” L]
Sheet |Balance Sheet _v_I
Import Field Instance Field
| & B i D 4| B Element Label j
» |assETs - ) ' LangSaource ¥Yalue selection
3 Current Assets Latghalue en
4 Checkings5aving RoleSource VYalue zelection
5 Checking Riolet alue Standard Label
[ Savings B
7 Tatal Checking/s G
: Agoounts Receiv 8]
] | Acounts E
m | Total Accounts R F
1 Other Current &z Dec 3103
12| Tools & Eq »
J e
Load Dlezign Apply Start Cloge I Jf‘

24 In the Dec 31 03 row, select Value.
25 Click the + sign to expand the rows.
26 For ContextValue, select at 2003-12-31.

B a Element Label
LangSourze Yalue selection
Lang/alie en
RoleSource Yalue zelection
Foletf alue Standard Label

B
C
D
: 5
|k
B Cec 3103 VYalue
Period zelection
at 2003-12-31 |

The sample file is indented so we must ensure that XBRL Taxonomy Designer is set for this.

27 With Key Field mapped to A, click the drop-down button in the adjacent field and select Indented
Keys.
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Instance Import 5]

Import Dptions
Impart source IEHCE| L] ¥ Corect erors on import [ Save design
: - v Validate before impart
File: name |E:\Program Filesh, @ R e ’G Entity cell l—
Import type |Fact-values. itemns. tuples L] ey field ,—_H < |
Sheet |Balance Sheet _v_I
Import Field Instance Field
| A B i i} al B a4 Element Label
» |assETs - ) ' LangSaource ¥Yalue selection
3 Current Assets Latghalue en
4 Checkings5aving RoleSource VYalue zelection
5 Checking Riolet alue Standard Label
6 Savings B
7 Tatal Checking/s G
: Agoounts Receiv 8]
] | Acounts E
m | Total Accounts R F
11 Other Current Az El Dec 3103 Value
2 | Taols & Ef w ContextSource Period selection
il Ll_‘ Cortextvalue at 2003-12-31
Load Dlezign Apply I Start ‘ Cloge I Jf‘

28 Click Start to import and close the Instance Import window.

In the Instance Properties Grid in the Instance Document Editor, the Fact Values property
should show 39 entries in the collection. The Fact Values List pane should contain 39 entries
with contexts, but without units.

29 Open the Unit Collections editor.

ES

Encoding utf-8

Mamespaces {Collection - 1)

Conkexts {Collection - 1}

Factialues {Collection - 39)

{Collection - empty)

Entities {Collection - 1)

Periods {Collection - 1)

SCenarios {Collection - empty)
Fooknokes {Collection - empty)
Cateqories {Collection - empky) Ll

30 Click Add.

Importing Tutorial 281



Unit Collection Editor

Members:
N
L]
Add Remove

unit-1 Properties:
Label
Drezcription
D
Type

MeazureSimpleT e

Label

R

Identifying label for the unit.

0K

Cancel |

A

31 For the ID value, enter units-monetary.

Label 1204 217:U5D
Dezcrption 1z04217:USD
D nit-2

Type pleUrnit

MeazureSimpleT erm

iz0d217:USD

32 Select the MeasurementSimpleTerm field, and then select is04217:USD.

33 Click OK.

34 Click in the top row of the Unit column, and select is04217:USD.

35 Right-click the Unit column header and select Fill, and then Down to populate the Unit column with the
units-monetary value.

Sequence /
> 1
2

o len | &

4
s
6 samp:TotalChecki...
I
9
1

Sou Element

sampiChecking
samp:Savings

samp:AccountsRec ...
samp:Totalfccoun ...

11 samp:ToolsEquip...

Contexk

contesxt-1
context-1
context-1
conkext-1
conkext-1
contesxt-1

PO Unit
isod2171S0
iso4217050
iso4217150
iso4217U50
iso4[§?USD
isod2 17150

Isil
Fa..
Fa..
Fa..
Fa...
Fa..
Fa..

Walue

-1416.35 (1,416.35)
14366.42 14,368.42
12952,07 12,952.07
7832045 78,320.45
FE3Z0.45 78,320,45
5000 5,000

Effective Value | Co |Foak|
Fa..
Fa..
Fau
Fa..
Fa..
Fa..

(n...
(n..
tn...
n...
(n..

n..

-

.|

36 In the D (Decimals) column (if this column is not displayed, right-click anywhere within the factValues
window and select Show, then Detail Columns), enter a 2 in the first row.

37 Validate the instance document by selecting Tools, and then Validate Instance Document.
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nstance Yalidation and Report Options

¥ »ML Schema validation Select Extended Links to Yalidate clear all
¥ *BRL Yalidation & Formulas Default Link

[~ FRIS walidation

[~ Taxonomy validation
[” Business Rules Instance Doc. %
Show Meszages:

v f [~ Warnings

Dizplay in results report:

Compute mizsing fact values
Keep computed fact values
Show full walidation audit trail

Show formula trace
Show results as HTML
Display results in kL
Show element names

B S

Calculation results display order:
|EHtended Link-Comtext-Lnit j

Save validation report in: |C:‘\Program Files\UBmatriztUBrmatrix Automatar, *BRL Professional Studio 5,403 n E‘I
Save calculation trace in: |C:‘\Program Files\UBmatriztUBrmatrix Automatar, *BRL Professional Studio 5,403 n E‘I

Run Validation | Cancel |

38 Click XML and XBRL validation as shown above.
39 Click Run Validation.

A calculation trace validation is displayed in another window. If you followed the directions,

it should show no errors as below.

-~
Line Label W B | D-P ¥alue |Source Message Formula Trace .
1| Default Link [http://vvrw.nbrl.org,/ 2003/ vole/link]
2 Context mntex‘(—l[atlzl]l]3-12'3l for SAMP]
3 isod2 17:U5D
4 TOTAL ASSETS 0Dz 190,092.21 both [1]4
5 Total Current Assets i D2 |159,239.30 both Ok
& Total Checking/Savings 1 oz 12,§52.DT baoth o134
7 Checking 1| oz | (1416.35 |inst
g Savings 1 Cz 14,368.42 |inst
2| Total Accounts Receivable 1 D2 | 78,320,435 beth [a134
10 Acc;aunts Recei-.'a.ble 1 D2 | 78,320.45 inst
11 Total Other Current Assets 1| |p2 | 67,986.78|beth o4
12 Tools & Equipment 1 Lz 5,000,00 |inst
132 Inventory Asset 1 D2 23,522.64 |inst
14 Retair‘\age 1 D2 2,451,280 |inst
15 Undepozited Funds i D2z 26,982,234 inst
16 Total Fited Assets 1 Dz 30,852.91 | both oK
17 Total Trucks 1 D2 | 20,852.91 both Ok
13 Original Cost 1 oz 39,852.é1 inst
19- Depreciation 1| |p=2 (9,000.00) inst
20 TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 0Dz 190,092.21 both [1]4
21 Total Lishilities 1 Dz 43,552,653 | both Ok
22. Total Current Liabilities i Dz -39,779.42 both K
23-_ Total Accounts Payable 1| b2 31,36;1.38 both Ok D
24 Accounts Payable 1 o2 31,364,38 |inst
25 Total Credit Cards 1 Dz 141,02 beth [a134
2& Totél Company Credit Card | 1 o2 .?D.DD both 3134
27 Dept #1 1 Dz 45,00 |inst v
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40 Click the X in the upper right of the window to close the report.

41 Select File, and then Save As File.

42 Save the instance document as sampleID.xml.

43 Select File, and then Close to close the instance document.

You completed Importing Lesson Two and the Importing Tutorial.

Mapping Tutorial

This tutorial walks you through the process of mapping. Each of these tutorials tackles a mapping
problem. Mapping enables you to map from a non-xbrl source to an XBRL document and then

convert that information into XBRL.

“Mapping Lesson One” on page 285—Map a company-specific taxonomy to a Microsoft
Excel Balance Sheet and generate an XBRL instance document

In this lesson, we create a taxonomy based on (column indented) tabular input of an balance
sheet that is contained within an Microsoft Excel document. Using the taxonomy import
feature, we build our XBRL taxonomy by importing the financial concepts and the labels
used for the names of those concepts. The calculations that occur within the balance sheet
are imported during that importing process.

Note: Importing from Microsoft Excel does not import the Excel formulas into XBRL
formulas or calculations.

After the XBRL taxonomy is built, we create the XBRL instance document which contains
the reported values. We establish the context of the values being reported, for example the
year in which they are being reported and for which entity/company. We establish the unit
and precision of the values that we are reporting.

Finally, we validate the instance document against the calculations that we built in the
taxonomy and determine if the values reported are correct.

“Mapping Lesson Two” on page 303—Map between different taxonomies and generate an
migrate an XBRL instance document.

In this lesson we map the company-specific SampleCompany . xsd taxonomy created in
Mapping Lesson One to the standardized USGAAP taxonomy. Both taxonomies are
included in /samples/xbrl/usgaap and /samples/tutorial /mapping. Note that
GAAP stands for Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

Generally this approach is used to map between different taxonomies or taxonomy versions.
This enables you to use the mapping to convert instance documents that were created against
another taxonomy or version of a taxonomy. Next, we build a mapping file between the
Sample Company taxonomy and the corresponding US-GAAP. This lesson utilizes the
XBRL Mapper feature and maps the elements by dragging from the US-GAAP taxonomy
calculation tree and dropping onto the calculation view of the Sample Company.
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After the Sample Taxonomy is mapped to the USGAAP, we create a XBRL instance

document by converting the XBRL instance generated in lesson one which was built against
SampleCompany.xsd. Then we create an instance document built upon USGAAP, but using
the values expressed in the sample company excel source file included in /samples/tutorial/

mapping.
e “Mapping Lesson Three” on page 318—Map directly from a balance sheet to a standardized
taxonomy such as USGAAP

In this lesson, we map the sample-balancesheet.xls file directly to US-GAAP
instead of to the Sample Taxonomy, using the drag-and-drop technique to map from the
US GAAP to the Balance Sheet. Subsequently, we convert an instance document from the
Sample Taxonomy to US-GAAP Taxonomy and validate it.

The files generated from the Mapping Lessons are included in the Samples folder for your
review. You may find these files under /Samples/Tutorial/Mapping/.

XBRL concepts introduced in this tutorial are explained in greater detail in the XBRL
specification. Taxonomy and instance authoring relation sections are detailed further in this
online help in the relevant sections. It is recommended that users possess a basic familiarity with
XBRL terminology and this product, as it helps understand some of the general mapping tutorial.
As such, it is advised that users review the “Basic XBRL Taxonomy Designer Tutorial” on page
238 before attempting the Mapping tutorial.

Basic Mapping Concepts

This section provides an overview of how mapping works from within XBRL Taxonomy
Designer. These components are needed for mapping:

e An XBRL taxonomy that contains the concepts of the instance document.
e The source data (currently in a table obtained by query or in a source instance document).

e A mapping specification which explains to the computer how to filter and relate the source
data into XBRL taxonomy concepts, contextRefs, unitRefs, decimal and scale factors.

e An audit trail which shows the flow of data from the source to the target XBRL instance
document.

e Exception reports that help you debug the mapping.

This section walks you through the basic import and mapping capabilities of XBRL Taxonomy
Designer by using three Mapping Examples.

Mapping Lesson One

In this lesson, we create a taxonomy based on (column indented) tabular input of a Balance
Sheet that is contained within an Microsoft Excel document. Using the taxonomy import feature
we build our XBRL taxonomy, by importing the financial concepts, and the labels used for the
names of those concepts. The calculations that occur within the balance sheet are imported
during that importing process.
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Note: Importing from Microsoft Excel does not import or translate the Excel formulas into
XBRL formulas or calculations.

This lesson requires the file sample-balancesheet.xls, which is available in this folder: samples
\tutorial\mapping\sample Company.

Completed files created from this lesson can be found at samples\tutorial \mapping
\Mappingl\.

When working with a locked taxonomy such as the USGAAP, XBRL Taxonomy Designer locks
the taxonomy from being altered. For information on removing this lock, see “Enabling Editing”
on page 25.

» To create a taxonomy:
1 Create a taxonomy.

2 In the Taxonomy Property Grid, set the NamespacePrefix to samp and Namespaceldentifier to http://
www.example.com/samp.

The namespace identifier uniquely identifies the schema document and the elements that
belong under the namespace. The namespace prefix is the alias which refers to the identifier.

3 Select File, then Save As to save the taxonomy as Sample Taxonomy.

4 Select File As File, then Close to close the taxonomy. to close the taxonomy.

Note: For ease of use, it is recommended that you save all files for this lesson in samples
\tutorial\mapping\Sample Company\WorkBook folder to keep track of the file
for use in future lessons. The Workbook folder has added to the mapping folder to
provide a place to save documents without overwriting the sample files.

In the following procedure, we are going to import labels from a sample Microsoft Excel
document into the Sample Taxonomy. We are creating a taxonomy based upon the excel file
and the labels that are expressed for financial concepts in the excel file. Concepts and labels are
created as a result of this import.

» To import indented labels to automatically create linkbases:
1 Begin the taxonomy import by selecting File, then Import.
This opens the Import Taxonomy window.

We want to import data from a Microsoft Excel document so we must set XBRL Taxonomy
Designer to accept a Microsoft Excel document.

2  From import source, select Excel.

3 In the File name field, click Browse to navigate and select the sample-balancesheet.xl1s file.

Note: In a typical installation, the path is C: \Program Files\Oracle\Disclosure
Management\XBRL Taxonomy Designer\samples\Tutorial\Mapping
\Sample Company\.
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Configuaicn oplions Source Optiors
L | Impedt scusce:  (Exced |
achiy | -l L A T =
= : Impce Yype Elsiierts >
¥ Soucs has AowHesds 1 4 Sheat [Batorca Shet ~]
It Sevce Fiekd Mg to Tasororty Fiekd [ A [ [ [ [3 F -]
A [ [assems
] Currend Agrets
C Cracking/Saving
D Ghacking ar
E Swngs 14
F | Total Chackingss [
||| o e
oz ey m
Total Accounis R 7
e Cotent s
Teuts & Equpma 50
Irvandony Afist el
Fstanage 4
¥ Comect eimces on import Undigosied Fun £
Total Dt Cuar &7
Tersl Ctrate g 5
Fooed Aarats
[ Tuwbe =
L] a
Load Design | [ Saveimpoit design confizeation [?g ores =
I s
——

The sample company spreadsheet contains the labels for the concepts that we wish to import
into our taxonomy. We generate the XBRL taxonomy data (schema, presentation, and
calculations) expressed in this source by importing these labels. To start, we import the
XBRL taxonomy elements using the import type Elements.

Note that elements from labels are also generated as labels were used in the source.

Dec 31,03

BSSETS
Current Assets

Abstract concept due to the fact that there is no value in the same row, Datatype will be set to string.

Abstracts are normally used in the presentation as titlehgrouping other elements, in
this case they are titles used within the financial report.

Checking/Savings
Checking

-1.416.35 I— Monetary concept due to the value being reported in the same row. This concept is

Savings
Total Checking/Savings ——|_

Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Total Accounts Receivable
Other Current Assets
Tools & Equipment
Invertory Asset
Retainage
Undeposited Funds
Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Fixed Assets
Trucks
Criginal Cost
Deprecistion
Total Trucks
Total Fixed Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

not considered an abstract since there is a walue reported and therefore will appear
in the XBRL instacne document.

14,368 .42
1295207
B “ = when completing a taxonomy import when we import a concept with a name/label that includes
78,320.45

the term "Total" then we assume that the monetary concepts that are at indented deeper than the
current concept are involved in a calculation with totaling concept,

23,522 64 . .
In this case the calculations that are created are:

2461 80
36 952 34 Total Checking / Savings
- |-->Checking/Savings
67 956 75 |-->Checking
159,239.30 |--=Saving
39,852.91 In this case we will generate the following presentation:
-3,000.00 Assets
30,852.91 |--= Current Assets
E— |--= Checking/Savings
| 30,85281 |--» Checking
190,092.21 |--> Savings

--= Total Checking/Savings

From Sheet, select Balance Sheet.

This calibrates XBRL Taxonomy Designer to import elements from a balance sheet.
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Taxonony Inport 3]

Canfiguration oplion: Source Options
Key fiskd [,q j Import source: ]Em| j
Match by | = Fie name |C:\Program Files\ E{
Irpart lupe 1|Elemenls l]
W Source hasRowHeader 1 =2
I Shest |Blance Sheet -
Import Source Field Map to Taxonomy Field n [ | g [ E F I)J
B R | abel =l P AsSETS
B Curtent Assets
C Checking/Saving
D Chacking RE
E Savings 14
F Total Chucking/s 1’
Dec 3103 Bocounts Feceis
Asounts Receiy 78
Total Secounts R T8
Oifer Current S5
Tools & Equipme st
Inventony Ssset 23
Retsinage 24
[V Cotrect emors on import Undaposited Fun w
Total Dehes Cunt B7
Tatzd Cunent &5 15
Fined Sssets =)
Tiinkw
Load Design | | Saveimport design configuration ] _I—'
Apply | Claze |
4

The Import Field to Taxonomy Field mapping grid has no entries, so nothing is recognized
(based on column headings) for mapping. XBRL Taxonomy Designer must be configured
so that it maps information from sample-balancesheet.x1s to the taxonomy.

5  Click the drop-down in the Taxonomy Field column opposite of the Import Field A.
6  Select Label from the list.

This calibrates XBRL Taxonomy Designer to define how to identify elements in a taxonomy
when imported data is intended to update elements. In this case the key field specifies
whether to match on Name, Label, and so on.

There are indented labels in columns A to F (6 columns). XBRL Taxonomy Designer uses
the indentation nesting to establish presentation relationships working down the indent
level, and calculation relationships based on the word Total appearing in some cell legends.

Unlike the example used in lesson one the example balance sheet below does not use column
indention. As a result, the XBRL Taxonomy Designer taxonomy import feature can not
establish calculation and presentation relationships.

The example below has the same information, but it is presented with indentation. Using
this indentation, XBRL Taxonomy Designer can infer the XBRL calculation and presentation
relationships from the Excel document.

Using the indented structure in the above example to signify relationships between concepts,
XBRL Taxonomy Designer interpret the data and converts it into this tree.

7  Click the drop-down to the right of Key Field and select Indented key.
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This sets XBRL Taxonomy Designer to look for indented information. The reason this is
done is that sample-balancesheet.xls has indented the data and XBRL Taxonomy Designer
does not know to look for the indented data until notified.

Taxonony Inport 3]

Canfiguration options Source Options
Kegp fiskd [,q j Import source: ]—Em| :I
Fi ! F o
Matchby: [inderied keye <] ie name |C:\Program Files' !{
= Importype  [Elements |
v Source haz Row Header |1 -
= | Shest |Bafance Sheet |
|mpsoet Source Field Map 1o Taworomy Field A B e D E F [ |
B obel = b assErs
LangSouce Value selection Current Assels
Lang alus en Checking/Saving
RoleSouce Value selection Chacking RE
RoleValze Standard Label Savings 14
B Total Checking/s (3
C Bocounts Reoeiv
D Ascounts Feseiv 73
E Total Secounts R T8
F Dibet Current s
Diec 31 03 Tools & Equipme S0
Invventoy Asset 23
Retuinage 24
[¥ Ciotrect emars on impont Undaposited Fun 3%
Total Dehes Cunt B7
Tatad Cunent &5 15
Fined Sssets
% ——l Tisinkw jl
Load Design I Save impont design configuration
feph | Cese |
i

8 Click Apply.
9 Click Close.

The message pane reports that 57 rows were read and 56 were imported. As you might recall
from Step 6, the Row Header is set to 1. Because of this, XBRL Taxonomy Designer reads
each row starting with row 2. XBRL Taxonomy Designer stops on row 57, because that is
the last row with information.

10 Display Presentation and Calculation Relationships Views Relationships Views side by side by selecting
View, then Show, then Add Another Relationship Pane, and then selecting Calculation.

Next, we must validate the taxonomy.

11 Select Tools, then Validate Taxonomy.
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Taxonomy Yalidation [

- T awonomy W alidation options

[ %ML schema walidation (<ML schema-defined syntax)
[ ®BRL walidation [EFL item. tuple, and linkbase semantics)
[ Financial Reporting Taxonomy Architecture [FRTA] validation %

Show validation messages;
v al
I “Warnings
Save taxonomy validation repart in;
|E:'\F'r|:|gram FilezhUBmatrixh B matris Automator, %BRL Profeszional Studio B.4034samples E| Q‘|

| o]

12 Select XML schema validation and XBRL validation.

These features set XBRL Taxonomy Designer to validate the taxonomy to make sure that it

is XML and XBRL valid.
13 Click Run Validation.
Line 1 Type | Meszage ID | Message 2
g Infa AML-level walidation of linkbase MewTaxononmy-calculation, xml succeeded
9 Info Yalidating Taxonomy (new) on XERL-evel. ..
10 Info ®BRL-level : Checking Cycles...

Info Taxonomy [new XML, *BRL validation completed @ O errars, O warnings
1z Info Taxonomy wvalidation report written ko C:\Program Files\Bmatrix\UBmatrix Automator, XBRL Prol o
| } )

If you followed the directions correctly, you should receive the result as above.

In the following procedure, we are going create an XBRL instance report by importing the
reported values from the Microsoft Excel source document.

) To create an instance document
1 Select File, then New, and then Instance to create an instance document.

2  Select File, then Load, then Taxonomy, and then click the icon in the Open Taxonomy window.

XBRL instance documents require an accompanying XBRL taxonomy so that the report can
be validated against the schema defined for the financial report. In this case, we are going
to reference the Sample Taxonomy .xsd created in previous steps.

3 Select the newly-created Sample Taxonomy .xsd file and click Open.
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Open an XBRL taxonomy

Taxonomy zchema [Local File Path, ‘web Address. or Bemate Server]:

||::'~.F'r0glam Filesh EJ:&J@_I

Check for [ marifestfle [ native file format I Enable editing
Linkbazes that are checked will be loaded, thoze file[z] not found will be highlighted in red:

Role J Linkbase File I Role Mamespace [dentifier 1 Full Fath / Mame | Enable editing
Label Links Sample Taxonomy-lab...  hittp:/Ase bl org /2003 r0leabellinkb...  C:\Proagram Files',

Prezentation Links Sample Tasonomy-pre...  hittp:/Awe bl org/20030le/presentatio..  C:5\Program Files', w
Calculation Links Sample Tasonomp-cal..  kttpd Ae sbrl org /2003 raledcaleulation.. C:\Program Filesh Fieload

N —

4 >
Feferenced takonomies and zchemas [those checked will be loaded, file(z) not found will be highlighted in red):
Prefix | MNamespace |dentifier File / Path Composition [~ Enable editing
Clear all
Reload
< & v o
T axonomy Y alidation; Show Validation Mezzages; Fix Taxonomy On Load:
[ WML validate | FRTA validate M E I “amings I Fixonload..
*BRAL: Version 2.1
Status:
B Cancel
ror;

4  Click OK in the Open Taxonomy window to load the taxonomy and close the window.

Because the instance data is labeled with Sample Taxonomy labels and we are directly
matching, we import without mapping.

There are values reported in the source document under the title Dec 31, 03. This is
considered the contextual label. To this context, we add additional contextual information
(such as entity being reported, period reported for) to articulate what the contextual
meaning is for the label.
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AlBIC|DIE] F [ |
1 [Dec 31, 03
2 |ASSETS
3 Current Assets The financial details that are reported
4 Checking!Savings for a particular entity/cormpany in a
5 Checking A HE3S given periad of time is considered the
_Ei P 14I3I38 e context of the information reported in
s AVINLES — the %BRL instance document,
7 Total Checking/Savings 1295207
a Accounts Receivable The context label in this example is
. "Dec 31, 03" for the entity "SaMP",
—9 Becoants RECEWE&?IE  daEEENEE for the period December 31, 03; all
10 Total Accounts Receivable 78,.592045 of the concepts with a reported value
11 Other Current Assets with be linked to this context,
12 |Tools & Equipment 5,000.00
13 Irventory Asset 23,522 54
14 Fetainage 2,461 80
1_ Undeposited Funds 3695234
16 Total Other Current Assets 67 965.75
17| Total Current Assets 159,239.30
18 Fixed Assets
S Trucks
20 Original Cast 39,552 91
21 Deprecistion -9,000.00
22 Total Trucks 30,552.91
23 Total Fixed Assets 30,552.91
24 |”TOTAL ASSETS 190,092.21

» To establish a context:
1 Click the Instance field to ensure that the Instance tab is active in the Instance Property Grid.

2 Inthe Instance Property Grid, click the Contexts property and then click the ellipsis (...).

Context¥21 Collection Editor,

bdembers: Froperties:
+

il

Add Remove
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3 In the lower left of the collection editor, click Add.

Context¥21 Collection Editor,

bdembers: contexst-1 Properties:
et T
Dezcription
[n] context-1
Ertity
Perniod
Scenano

Label
Identifying label for the contesxt.

Add Remove

DKM Caricel I//q

4  Click Entity and then select the drop-down menu.

Entities

Al 4] =l > x|

This opens the Entity collection editor.

5 Click * to add an entity.
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Ei}

Entities

Label

| dentifier entity-1

Schemne

SegmentDimen: [Collection - empty]
SegmenttL

Label :%

|dentifying label far the entity.

G %] ity =1 b x|

6 Change the identifier name to SAMP.

7 Addhttp://www.example.com/samp to the Scheme field.

8 Click Accept (4) to accept the changes.

Entities X
Label
| dentifier SAMP
Scheme hittp: v, example. comsampl
SegrmentDirmen: [Collection - empty]
Segrent=tL

Ecﬁeme

The namespace UR| of the identifier token scheme,
providing a framewark, far referencing naming aut .

¥ x| (priiy ~I»[vix

9 Click Period and then select the drop-down menu.

This opens the Period collection editor.
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F;EI“iDE - |E

# x| 4 | vl x]
10 Click New Period (*) at the bottom of the dialog box.
ﬁeriua- . ]

Type -
Label

Type

Select the type of interval or instant of time

[+ | 4] ||V x|

11 From Type, select Instant.

12 Select a date of December 31, 2003 from the calendar.
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Type Instant

Label %

R 12/31/2003 ~
At
Enter an instant date
#] x| «ftzozan B

13 Click Accept (4) to save and exit the Period pop-up window.
14 Click OK to exit the ContextV21 Collection Editor.

Context¥21 Collection Editor

embers: cantext-1 Properties:
Label

ﬂ Dezcription
1

1D context-1
Entity SAMP

TR o 20031231 ~

Scenario

-Periud
Period af thiz context

Add Remove

’ﬂ Cancel !él

15 Click inside the Instance View pane to ensure the correct menus and toolbar buttons are activated.

16 Select File, and then Import.

17 Browse to the sample-balancesheet .xls file.
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Instance Import (%

— Import Ophions
Import zource IEHCE| ;I v Comect emors on import [ Save design
. - v ‘alidate before impart
File narne lE:'xF'ru:ugram Files*, E IV EoaivFeace: E Effitaeel I_
[mpart type IEn:nnte:-:ts. entity, period, scenario _;l Kep field | _r" _*I
Sheet IBaIanu:e Sheet ;I
Import Field Instance Field
A | E | C o - i
[ ASSETS B
3 Current Assats L C
4 Checking/Sawing ]
5 Checking E
E Sawvings F
7 Total Checking/s Dec 31 03 |
g Agcounts Receiy
k] Accounts
10 Tatal Accounts B
1 Other Current &=
12 Tools & Eq w
y | o

Load Deszign | Apply Start Cloze |
A

Previously, we imported relationships. Now, we're going to import fact values to populate
your instance document.

18 Change the Import Type to Fact-Values.
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Instance Import E]

[~ Import Ophions

Import zource 1E:-:n::e| LJ I¥ Correct emars on import [~ Save design

: - v ‘alidate before impart
File narne | C:\Program Files' E"{ el ﬁ—a Effitaeel Ii
Impaork bpe 1Fan::t walues: items, tuples LJ E i-‘*‘- L” LJ
Shest 1Balanu:e Sheet :_1 l[:%u

Im_pl:nrt Field Instance Field
e IC & o | [ =]

B2 | ASSETS B

3 Current Assets C

4 Checking/Sawing ]

3| Checking E

E | Savings F

T Total Checking!s Dec 3103

g Agcounts Receiy

k] | Ancounts

1o Tatal Accounts B

1| Other Current &=

12 Tools & Eq w

y o

Load Design| Apply ‘ Start ‘ Cloze “M

19 In the field mapping section on the left side of the window, click row A and select Element Label, and
then click the + sign to expand.

Instance Import

[~ Import Options
Import source jE:-:u:eI LJ W Correct erars on impart [ Save design
_ : v validate befare import
File name ]I::HF'n:ugram Filesh, _@I e ﬁ‘a E ntity el Ii
Impart bppe 1Fau:t values: items, tuples LJ Key field i-"-"- L” LJ
Sheet 1Ealar‘u:e Cheet ‘ﬂ
Irmpart Field Inztance Field
| & B fig o | B Element Label LJ
% | m33ETS I il ' LangSource Yalue selection
-3. Current Assats Lang"v"alue en
4 Checking/ Saving RoleSource ¥alue zelection
5 Checking Rolevalue Standard Label
E Sawvings B
7 Tatal Checking/$ E
g Ancounts Receiv ]
3 | Ancounts E
_1IZI i Total Accounts B F:
11| Other Current &= Dec 3103
12 Tools & Eq
T Wit
Load Design | Apply Start Cloze ‘ "ﬂ
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20 Inthe Dec 31 03 row, select Value, and then click the + sign to expand the rows.

21 For ContextValue, select at 2003-12-31.

=i
LangSourze
Langifalie
RoleSource
Rale\falue

O mm o m

B Dec 31 032

ContextSource

Contextyalue

Element Lahel
Yalue zelection

en

Yalue zelection
Standard Label

R

Yalue

Period selection

at 2003-12-31 |

The sample file is indented so we must ensure that XBRL Taxonomy Designer is calibrated

for this.

22 With Key Field mapped to A, click the drop-down list in the adjacent field and select Indented Keys.

Instance Import @

Irmpart Options

Impaort zource I Excel

-] W
_J v

File name |E:'xF'ru:ugram Files'

Impart type | Fact-values: items, tuples -

j Key field |&

arrect errors on impork | Save design

E
Yalidate before impart
R

[
@ ¥ Fow header IG E ntity cell |

Sheet iEaIance Shest -
Irmpart Field
A E ) o a| |E &
b2 ASSETS ' ' ' LangSource
3 Current &ssets Lang/ alue
4 Checking/Sanwving RoleSource
2 Checking R olet alue
E Sawvings ]
7 Tatal Checkingds 5
g Accounts Receiy ]
9 Accounts E
10 Tatal Accounts R F
1 Other Current &= B Dec 3103
12 Tools & Eq w» ConbextS ource
4 | Ll_‘ Cortesty alus
Load Dezign | Apply

ﬂ ndented keys

Instance Field
Element Label
Yalue selection
en
Yalue selection
Standard Label

Yalue
Period zelection
at 2003-12-31

Start Cloze

23 Click Start to import and close the Instance Import window.

In Instance Properties Grid, the Fact Values property should show 39 entries in the
collection. The Fact Values List pane should contain 39 entries with contexts.

Now that we populated the instance document with fact values, we must create units and

decimals for those fact values.

Mapping Tutorial 299



» To add units and decimals to the instance:

1 Open the Unit Collections editor.

Encoding
MNamespaces
Conkexts
Factvalues

utf-8

{Collection - 1)
{Collection - 1}
{Collection - 39)

(Collection - empty) .

Entities
Periods
Scenarios
Footnotes
Cakeqoties

2 Click Add.

{Collection - 1}
{Collection - 1}

{Collection - empty)
{Collection - empty)
{Collection - empty) LI

Unit Collection Editor.

tdembers:

Add

FRemove

R+ |

&1

unit-1 Properties:
Label
Dezcriphion

10
Type

unit-1
SimpleUmt

MeazureSimpleT erm

Label

s

Identifving label for the unit.

118

Cancel I

A

3 Inthe ID value field, enter units-monetary.

Label
Dezcription
D

Type
MeazureSimpleT erm

Click OK.

~N o o &

monetary value.

iz0d217:U5D
iz0d4217:U5D
nit-2
plelnit
iz0d4217:U5D

Click MeasurementSimpleTerm field to select it and select is04217:USD.

Click the top row of the Unit column to activate a drop-down list, and then select iso4217:USD.

Right-click Unit column header and select Fill, then Down to populate the Unit column with the units-
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Sequence /| Sou Element Conkext ([P | D Init Isnil Yalue Effective Value | Co Fook i‘
1 |4 samp:Checking context-1 iso42171J30 Fa... -1416,35 (1,416.35) Fa.. (n...

é 5 samp:Savings conkext-1 is04217U50 Fa... 14365.42 14,565.42 Fa... (n...

3 6 samp:TotalChecki... context-1 iso42171J30 Fa... 12952,07 12,952.07 Fa.. (n...

4 I sampiAccountsRec ... conkext-1 is04217U50 Fa.. 78320.45 78,320.45 Fa.. (n.

5 = samp:Totaldccoun ... conkext-1 isu4%?LISD Fa.. 78320.45 7a3,320,45 Fa.. {n...

= 111 samp:ToolEquip...  conbext-1 isn4217USD Fa.. 5000 5,000 Fa.. in.. %]

8 In the D (Decimals) column (if this column is not displayed, right-click anywhere within the factValues
window and select Show, then Detail Columns), enter a 2 in the first row.

This configures XBRL Taxonomy Designer to allow decimals up to two integers, which is
standard when dealing with money.

9 Select Fill, then Down to populate the D column with the value of 2.

» To validate the instance document:

1 Select Tools, and then Validate Instance Document.

Instance Yalidation and Report Options

W ¥ML Schema validation Select Extended Links to Validate clear all
v =BRL Yalidation & Formulas Default Link

[ FRIS walidation
[ Taxonommy validation
[ Business Rules Instance Doc, %

Show Meszages:

I T [ “warnings

Display in results report;

Compute mizzing fact values
K.eep computed fact values
Show full walidation audit trail

171

Show formula trace
Show resultz az HTML
Digplay results in kL
Show element names

B M A

Calculation results dizplay order:
|E:-:tenu:|eu:| Link-Contest-Unit j

Save validation report i |7\ Program Files\UBmatrish B matrix Automator, 2BRL Professional Studio 6.4034s n| 1‘1
Save calculation trace in: |I::"'.F'r|:|gram Filezs B matrix\UEmatrix Automator, #BRL Professzional Studio 6.4034: n| 1‘1

Run % alidation | Cancel |

2  Select XML and XBRL validation.
3 Click Run Validation.
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A calculation trace validation is displayed in another window. If you followed the directions,
it should show no errors as below.

Line Label W B D-P ¥alue Source Message Formula Trace
1 | Pefaalt Link [hittp:/ vrverw.xbd.org /2003 role/link ]
2 Context context-Y[at 2003-12-31 for SAMP ]
3 isod217:UsD
4 TOTAL ASSETS o2z 190,092.21 both OK
5 Total Current Assets 1 2 159,239.20 |both (8] 4
& Total CheckingfSavings 1 oz 12,952,07 |both (8.4
7 Checking 1 D2 | [1,416.25) inst
g Savings 1 Lz 14,368.42 |inst
el Total Accounts Receivable 1 2 | 78,320.45 |both (8] 4
10 Accounts Receivable 1 2 | 78,320.45 |inst
11 Total Other Current Assets 1 2 | 67,966,758 |both (84
12 Taoolz & Equipment 1 Lz 5,000.,00 inst
13 Inventory Asset 1 Cz 23,922.64 |inst
14 Retainage 1 Cz 2,461,880 inst
15 Undeposited Funds 1 D2 | 36,9282.34 inst
18 Total Fived Assets 1 2 | 20,852.91 |both [8].4
17 Total Trucks 1 2 | 20,852.91 |both (8] 4
1g Original Cost 1 Cz 39,852.91 |inst
19 Depreciation 1 02 | (9,000,001 inst
20 TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY o2z 190,092.21 both OK
21 Total Liabilities 1 Cz 48,282,632 both Lol 4
22 Total Current Liabilities 1 2 | 29,779.42 |both (8.4
23 Total Accounts Pavable 1 D2 | 21,364,328 both Ok
24 Accounts Payable 1 D2 | 31,264.38 |inst
25 Total Credit Cards 1 Dz 141,02 both a4
26 Total Company Credit Card| 1 Dz 70,00 both Ok
27 Crept #1 1 Cz 45,00 |inst

4 Click the X in the upper right of the window to close the report.

» To save an instance document:
1 Select File, and then Save As File.

2  Save the instance document as sampleID.xml.

Note: For ease of use, it is reccommended that you save all files for this lesson in samples
\tutorial\mapping\Sample Company\WorkBook folder to keep track of the file
for use in future lessons. The Workbook folder has added to the mapping folder to
provide a place to save documents without overwriting the sample files.

3 Select File, and then Close to close.
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Mapping Lesson Two

In this lesson we map the company-specific SampleCompany . xsd taxonomy created in
Mapping Lesson One to the standardized USGAAP taxonomy. Both taxonomies are included
in /samples/xbrl/usgaap and /samples/tutorial /mapping. Note that GAAP stands for
"Generally Accepted Accounting Principles".

Generally this approach is used to map between taxonomies or taxonomy versions. This enables
you to use the mapping to convert instance documents that were created against another
taxonomy or version of a taxonomy. Next, we build a mapping file between the Sample Company
taxonomy and the corresponding US-GAAP. This lesson utilizes the XBRL Mapper feature and
maps the elements by dragging from the US-GAAP taxonomy calculation tree and dropping
onto the calculation view of the Sample Company.

After the Sample Taxonomy is mapped to the USGAAP, we create a XBRL instance document
by converting the XBRL instance generated in lesson one which was built against
SampleCompany.xsd. Then we create an instance document built upon USGAAP, but using the
values expressed in the sample company excel source file.

Note: Completed files created from this lesson can be found at samples\tutorial\mapping
\Mapping2\.

When working with a locked taxonomy such as the USGAAP, XBRL Taxonomy Designer locks
the taxonomy from being altered. For information on removing this lock, see “Enabling Editing”
on page 25.

Before you start, make sure all taxonomies and instance documents from the previous lesson
are closed.

» To map the sample taxonomy to US-GAAP taxonomy:
1 Open the latest US GAAP-Commerical and Industrial taxonomy.

The fastest method is to use the open a taxonomy using the Web option. Alternatively, you
couple browse to the location where the XBRL Taxonomy Designer files were unzipped and
select the us-gaap-ci-2005-02-28.xsd file.
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Select an XBRL. Taxonomy

Look ir;

‘_-
g
i
Server

.

8

ty Computer

JE Samples at UBMatrix Server

2

whrldt

M ame | Prefix ] Tupe | Date Modifiec
Ea International Financial Reporting Standards, [ . us-gaap-ci wad 2005-05-15
- Commercial and Industnal uz-gaap-ci wad 2005-02-23
115 GAAP - Banking and 5 avings Inztitutions uz-gaap-baszi wad 2005-02-28
15 GAAP - Inzurance Entities Lz-gaap-ing wad 2005-02-28
15 GAAP - [vestment M anagement T axonomy Liz-gaap-im wad 2005-02-28
15 GAAP - Brokers and Dealers in Secunties Tax...  uz-gaap-bd wad 2005-02-28
115 GAAP - Pengions and Other Postretirement Be... uz-gaap-popb wed 2005-02-23
115 Financial Reparting - SEC Certifications Lzfr-zecoert wad 2005-02-28
Ea 115 Financial Reporting - Management Report wzfr-rr wad 2005-02-23
|15 Financial Reporting - Accountants Report uzfr-ar wad 2005-02-23
I15 Financial Reporting - Managements' Discuzsio..  usfr-mda wad 2005-02-28
Dirmenzions 1.0 - sbridi-2005.xsd wbrldi wzd 2005-12-31
Dirmenzions 1.0 - xbridt-2005.xsd xzxd 2005-12-31

& | *
File name: |htt|:|:a"a"www.:-:l:url.Drga"usa"fra"gaapa"cia"2DDE-DE-EBJus-gaap-ci- j Open | -
Filez of type: ]KBHL T azonomy [ sed] _‘v_]

Cancel g

We now map the Sample Company taxonomy to the US GAAP taxonomy. Because we are
mapping monetary concepts, it is easier to change the view of the taxonomy to the calculation
view. These are occasions where you must map a taxonomy using Presentation, Calculation,

Definition, and Element list views. In this case, it is simpler to deal with only the calculation
relationship view which only displays the concepts which are involved in a calculation in
the Balance sheet.

2  Change to the calculation view by right-clicking in the Relationships View pane and selecting View, and
then Calculation.

us-gaap-ci (Presentation) |

=] Presantation Wiew

Extemdad Lirk -::E-r.a.r;.-n warit of Financial Postion - l::::l

Extendad Link (Statemant of Stockholders’ Equity - CI)

Extendded Link (Income Statement - CI) ] - Firosentation
Extended Link (Statement of Cash Flows - Indirect Method - ¢ Show ; m
Extended Link (Statement of Cash Flows - Diect Method - CT : Definition

3 Open the XBRL Mapper by selecting Tools, and then XBRL Mapper.
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3

ABRL Mapper
[~ Mapper Setup

|mport source

. ¥ | Map file name ] H] ﬂ
File name | ﬂ
&

Sheet I

|t Cancel

¥y

4 From Import Source, select XBRL Taxonomy.

The Import Source indicates the source of the import data or original taxonomy to be
mapped. See “XBRL Mapper” on page 170.

5 In the Taxonomy field, click the icon to open the Open Taxonomy window.
6 Select the Sample Taxonomy.xsd file that was created in Lesson One.

This enables us to map the Sample Taxonomy.xsd to the US GAAP-Commerical and
Industrial taxonomy.
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XBRL Mapper E]

Mapper Setup
Import source |><EF|L T amanonny LJ Map file name | Hlﬂ
T axaononmy |E:'xF'r|:|gram Files' Mapping type |Fh:uw b key Ll
Selsction IPresentatiDn wiew - Default Link LJ F.ey column |F'"3ﬁ='“3'2| Name Ll
[ Tranzpose rows/columns B
e apee T A miRR 6 gl s IiH3mees e e El %

H_ 1 samp A55ETS http ey enample coméamp AE5ETS

2 {2 samp Current Assats http ey enample coméamp Current&ssats

3 |3 samp Checkings/Sawings http ey enample coméamp Checking $awings

4 4 samp Checking http ey enample coméamp Checking

5 |3 samp Savings http ey enample coméamp Sawings

E E samp Tatal CheckingsSawvings http ey enample coméamp Taotal Checking Savings

T :T samp Agcounts Receivable http ey enample coméamp Accounts Receivable

g E samp Agcounts Receivable http ey enample coméamp Accounts Receivable Cr

k] _.EI samp Tatal Accounts Receivable http ey enample coméamp TotalAccounts Receival

10 10 samp Other Current Assats http ey enample coméamp Other Current&ssats

" 1 samp Taols & Equipment http ey enample coméamp Towols Equipment -
< of

‘ Cancel

¥y

The values that are expressed in the source document, sample taxonomy . xsd, are monetary
values. The Calculation View contains all of the monetary concepts. We must change to the
Calculation View to map from the US GAAP to the Sample Taxonomy.

XBRL Mapper A
—Mapper Setup
Impart source [wpRL T = | -
Swanamy Map file name =
Taxonamy IC:\F‘rogram Filesgh =l Mapping type | Fow by key *
I3 i z : : 1 :
[ Selection ICaIcuIatlon wiew - Default Link, i ~ | Key colurmn IP'Ef"‘Ed Mame ﬂ
[ Transpoze ol " [T Key calumns fill dovs
Se | Names | Label | Namespace Identifier | Name | Data Type &
Ll 1 =amp TOTALASSETS httpifensne edample comésamp TOTALASSETS hdonetary
2 2 samp  Total Current Assets http:ifensny edample . comésamp Total Currentéssets bdonetary
3 3 samp  Total Checkings/S$avings http:ifensny edample . comésamp Total Checking $avings bdonetary |
4 4 samp  Checking hittp:ifessiy eHdample comésEmp Checking bdonetary
5 5 'samp  Sawings hittp:ifessiy eHdample comésEmp Savings bdonetary
E E samp  Total Accounts Receivable httpifessns edample comésamp Total &ccounts Receivable hdonetary
7 7 samp  Accounts Receivable httpifessns edample comésamp £ecounts Receivable Copy hdonetary
g 8 samp  Total Other Current Assets http:ifensny edample comésamp Total Dther Currentéssets hdonetary
k] 9 samp Tools & Equipment http:ifensny edample . comésamp ToolsEquipment bdonetary
10 10 samp  Inwentory Asset httpeffeneny eHample comdsmp Inwentorn s e bedanetary
11 11 zamp  Retainage hittp:ffessny eHdample comésEmp Retainage banetary -
4 »
\ et | Cancel |
( £

Mapping options include:

N
N

\

% Concepts involved in the Sample Company calculation linkbase,

Taxonomy source

| Which taxonomy view are we using
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e Rowby key—EFEach row or record in the source data pertains to one taxonomy concept.
Mapping is by key value (such as account number or label). For taxonomy mapping this
is the prefixed name.

e Row by row number—Same as above, but row or record is mapped by row ordinal
position.

e Cell by row key and column name—Each cell may be mapped to a different concept,
recognized by row key and column header. Groups data in repeating row groups. Allows
future data to contain more rows or columns without regenerating mapping. Pertains
to data where adjacent columns are different elements, such as cash flow schedules.

e Cell by cell reference—Same as above, but each cell identified by reference, such as A3
or C9.

In this case, we mapped row by key because we wanted to map the concept and then its
row. The reason for this is that we want to stated on which row the concept exists. Now,
when we generate the instance, the fact value also resides on the same row.

7 Inthe Selection field, select Calculation view - Default Link.
See “XBRL Mapper” on page 170.
8 In the Map file name field, click .

Save as XML mapping file @

Save it | (=) Mew Falder j il EEE
- Q Sample Taxonomy-calculation
L\.ﬁ 2 Sarmnple Taxonomy-label
My R ecent #| Sample Taxonomy-presentation
Documents
T
Deszktop

)

by Documents

by Cormputer
g
My Metwark.  File name: |SampIeMapping j \i]
Places
Save az type: |><ML File [*.wml] _."_'J m

Now we must create an XML mapping output file. This file contains the mapping
information used by XBRL Taxonomy Designer.

9 In the File name field, enter SampleMapping and click Save.
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XBRL Mapper E]

Mapper Setup
Impart source IXEHL T awoncnny LJ M ap file name 1h-'lappingE'xSampleh-‘lapping.:-cml HIE
T axonarmy |E:'anu:uments and Settingshjazon. andrew’, tapping type lHDw b ke _:J
Selection IPresentatiDn wiew - Default Link LJ F.ey column leEﬁHEd Name _:J
[ Tranzpose rows/columns [}
Sequence Mamespace Frefi Label Mamespace Identifier | Mamea e
H_ 1 samp AE5ETS http: ey enample coméamp AE5ETS
2 2z samp Current &ssats http: ey enample coméamp Current&ssats
3 3 samp Checkings/Sawings http: ey enample coméamp Checking Sawings
4 4 samp Checking http: ey enample coméamp Checking
5 5 samp Savings http: ey enample coméamp Sawvings
E E samp Tatal Checking!Sawings http: ey enample coméamp Tatal Checking Savings
7 7 samp Agcounts Receivable http: ey enample coméamp Accounts Receivable
g o samp Agcounts Receivable http: ey enample coméamp Accounts Receivable Cr
k| |9 samp Tatal Accounts Receivable http: ey enample coméamp TatalAccounts Receival
1o 14 samp Other Current Assats http: ey enample coméamp Other Current&ssats
1 1 samp Taols & Equipment http: ey enample coméamp Tools Equipment -
1 3
et ‘ Cancel ‘ A

10 Click Next at the bottom of the XBRL Mapper dialog to load the data into the Taxonomy Editor and close

the window.
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us—gaap-ci {Calculation} 4 b ox
= Calculation Yiew

+|- Extended Link {5Statement of Financial Position)

+ Extended Link {Income Stakement)

+ Extended Link {(Cash Flow From Operations - Indirect Method)

+ Extended Link {Cash Flaw Fram Operations - Direct Method)

+ Extended Link {Statement of Cash Flows)

+ Extended Link {(Maotes to the Financial Statements)

+ Extended Link {Alternate Calculation Rall-ups)

+ Extended Link {Statement of Stockholders' Equity)

+ Extended Link {Takal Stockhaolders' Equity Calculation)

L. Extended Link (Default Link)
% X |F'.II elements L” Counk: 1,503
Prefix | Label / Mame ] Data Type ] Abstr... | Substitutio, ., ] Bala
usfr-phe Accounting Policies AccountingPolicies Skring False whirlisibem 3
usfr-pke Accounts and Mokes Receivable, Met AccountshotesReceivableMet  Monetary False whrlizibem Deb
usfr-pte Accounts and Mokes Receivable, Met AccountshotesReceivableM...  String True xbrlisitem
usfr-phe Accounts Payvable AccountsPayable Maonekary False xhrlizitern Crei
usfr-phe Accounts Payable AccountsPayabledbstract Skring True whrlisikem
usfr-phe Accounts Payable - Other OtherdccountsPayvable Maonekary: Falze whrliitern Cret
usfr-pke Accounts Pavable - Related Parties AccountsPavableRelatedPa...  Monetary False wbrliibem Cre
£ | ¥

11

The US-GAAP taxonomy is displayed in the Relationships View pane and the Sample
Taxonomy is displayed in the Mapper Grid. Now we can map elements by dragging from
the US-GAAP taxonomy calculation tree and dropping onto the calculation view of the
Sample Taxonomy. Each time we do this, we are mapping a link from one taxonomy to
another. When a link is created, the field of that context turns pink.

We want to adjust the sizes and positions of the Relationships View pane and the Mapper
Grid for ease of the drag-and-drop process.

Note: If you have trouble making changes, it might be because XBRL Taxonomy Designer
has set the US-GAAP as a read only taxonomy. To fix this, see “Enabling Editing” on
page 25.

Open the Mapping Properties Window by right-clicking the Mapping Grid and selecting Show, and then
Show Mapping Properties.
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Source - Sample Tarowmy siod [Calculaion view - Defauk Link]

Mamespace ldentifier

http ey eiample comsamp
http ey enample comsamp
http ey enample comsamp
http ey enample comsamp
http ey enample comsamp
http ey enample comsamp
http ey enample comsamp
http ey enample comsamp
http ey enample comsamp
http ey enample comsamp
http ey enample comsamp
http ey enample comsamp

Shiow Mapper Conkrol mple coméEmp

¥ Show Mapping Properties mple .comé&mp

Seq Sequence Mamespace Frefi Label
M 1 Famp TOTAL AS5ETS
2 2 samp Current &ssets
3 3 samp Taotal Current &ssets
4 4 samp Checking/Savings
] ] samp Taotal CheckingsSawings
E E samp Checking
7 7 samp Sawings
i | samp Accounts Feceivable
3 |4 Z3AMD Total Aeeounts Receivabla
0|10 g Close ivable
1 n :  Save Eszats
1z 12 :  Save hs... Irrent Assets
1313 Shaow
14 |14 £ Print
15|13 £ Prink Preview >
18 |18 3 R - funds
i 17 ®  Refresh
12 |18 E Reorder izats
oW i validate
20 |20 E
21 21 samp Original Cost
22 22 samp Depreciation
‘ |

k T ERample comsETR

tEp Ay edample comsame
http ey enample comsamp
http ey enample comsamp
http ey enample comsamp
http ey enample comsamp
http ey enample comsamp
http ey enample comsamp

12 Define the context ref to use when mapping: enter samp in the Instant field.

Mame -
TOTALASSET
Current&ssets
Total Current&
Checking Sawi
Taotal Checking
Checking
Sawvings
Agcounts Reo

Total&ecounts—
Agcounts Reo
Other Currents
Total Other Cur
Tiwal=s Equipme
Inventory e
Fetainage
UndepasitedF
Fined&ssets
TotalFinedfs:
Trucks
TotalTrucks
Qriginal Caost
Depreciation -

[

This may need to be changed several times if there are multiple kinds of context involved,
but in this example or lesson there is only one.

Note: The current window is incorrect and lists Context Instant and will be correct in the

next build.

310 Tutorials



Mapping Property Settings E]

Contest  Duration |
Irstant 112-31-2003
_[if I:ularjk iz contest specified upon
Urit: — Monetary | nire-monetary
Fure |units-pure]
Stock |units-stock
Cec:  Monetay |0 MNan-ronetary |0
Scale:  Dehbititems |1 Giberitarms 1
Credit iterms |1
Change All ‘ Mew Default ‘ Cancel ‘
|
13 Define the units of measurement to use for each

mapping: select units-monetary.

Each time you drag a drop to create a mapping then this property is used.

14

15
Stockholders’ Equity in the US-GAAP Calculation

Continue to expand until you find the Accounts Payable element as in the figure below.

Click Change All to change the settings of all of the mappings.

Click the extended link, Statement of Financial Position, then the + sign to expand Liabilities and

View pane.
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File Edit View Tools Window Help

OD-=- 5d

{Sﬂ - |Summati0n to lkem Summed Lj

ey (Presentation)  us-gaap-ci {Calculation) | 4 | x || ¥BRL Mapper - SampleMapping.xml ax
i ~ror-Sale - Current Pl Source - Sample Tasonomy sced[Calculation view - Default Link]
(1} Assets of Discontinued Operations - Current 3 15 | Sequence Mamespace Frefi| Label Namespace [dentifier Na &
(13 Other Assets - Current s [ samp Undeposited Funds hittp s example. comésmp Une
- (1) Assets - Noncurrent 17 |17 samp Fined Assets hittp st example comismp Fie
[=1- Liahbilities and Stockholders' Equity 12 |12 zamp Total Fixed Assets hitp s example. comismp Tht:
- Liabilities H‘“"‘M,‘ 12 |18 zamp Trucks hitp s example. comismp Thu
- Liabilities - Currert 20 zamp Total Trucks hitp s example. comismp Tht:
[=- Accounts Payable and Accessd Expenses 21 zamp Original Cost hitp s example. comismp ric
B§ Accounts Payable A 22 |22 samp Depreciation hitp :fieney etample comésmp Clep
i (1) Bank Overdrafts Mapping:hete 2en 23 |23 sam TOTALLIABILITIES & EQUITY  http s example comimmp T
USGAAP and sample P 1] P
{13 Accounts Payable - Trade company specific 24 |24 amp Lizbilities hitp s example. comismp Lat
(1) Accounts Payable - Other taxonomy 25 |25 =a Total Liabilitie= hittp st example comismp ThE
% (1) Accrued Expenses 26 |z samp Current Liabilities hittp st example comismp Gur
- (1) Amounts Due To Related Parkies - Current 27 |er samp Total Current Liabilities hittp st example comismp ThE
(13 Billings in Excess of Cosk bz jas samp Accounts Payable hitp st example comésmp He
(1) Deferred Income Tax Liabilities - Current 29 29 Samp Total Accounts Payable hitp :ffwe example comésEmp Tht:
[#- (1) Customer Advances and Deposits - Current 30 |30 zamp Accounts Payable hitp s example. comismp Ao
(13 Accrued Taxes b I zamp Credit Cards hitp s example. comismp Ore
(1) Income Taxes Payable 32 a2 samp Total Credit Cards hittp it example comismp ThE
(1) Deferred)iUnearned) Revenue - Current fock k] zamp Company Credit Card hitp s example. comismp Qor
(- (1) Debt and Capital Lease Obligations - Current 34 |34 samp Total Company Credit Card hittp it example comismp ThE
(1) Derivative Liabilities - Short-Term 35 |35 zamp Dept #1 hitp s example. comismp Clef
e Es 35 |36 samp Dept #2 hitp e example comésamp Hep—.
(13 Llabl|ltle.5 o.F. F)lscontlnued Operations - Current 37|37 T wiample comésamp Qal
: (13 Other Liabilities - Current b ’ displaying the concepts involved in wiample comésamp gth
[#- {1} Liabilities - Moncurrent 39 |39 calculations, wample comésmp Tht:
i+ (17 Commitments and Contingencies 40 f40 R — oo 1 ve HAMple comismp Fay
#-(1) Stackhelders' Equity USGAAR Taxonomy : M4 samp Sales Tau Papable Kittp i esamiple comismp Sl
—|- Extended Link ({Income Statement) Displaying the calculations view 42 g A terng-TFermrbesbilit P b o o
[#- Basic Earnings Per Share 143 Samo Total Lona Term Liabilities hito feany eHamole comésEmo ot T
[#- Diluted Earnings Per Share “T r .
- Met Income Applicable to Common Stockholders =
[#- Extended Link {Cash Flow From Operations - Indirect Method) ZBRLMopping: By
#1. Ewkanded |ink (mach Flow Frarm Oineeations - Direck Mathodi i | Elemant Filter Status Label Comment =
[ 3 i) bl orafiyziiicog -
Sﬁ ~ a4l elements j] Count: 1,503 | |4 | 4
T INS: CaLC YIEW: CALC

16 Left-click and hold on the Accounts Payable element in the US-GAAP taxonomy and drag it into the
Mapper Grid until the + sign on the mouse curser is in the AccountsPayable row in the Sample Taxonomy.

17 Release the mouse button to drop it and establish the mapping relationship between the two elements.
After the mapping relationship is established the row is highlighted in pink.

Use this drag and drop technique to establish all of the mapping relationships indicated in
the table below. We recommend that you complete the mapping manually initially; however
the mapping files for this mappinglesson are included in the Samp1es folder for your review.
If you wish to skip this step, you can load the mapping information using the XBRL Mapper.

Note that the elements are given in PRE-FIX: NAME format. You can use the column sorting
feature to sort by Name column in the Elements List pane and in the Mapper Grid to easily
locate the elements; remember to check that the elements you select contain the correct
prefix. You can even drag from the Elements List rather than the Relationships View pane,
if you find that easier.

In the table below, note that you may need to map the same US GAAP element to multiple
Sample Taxonomy elements.

Table 111  Mapping US GAAP Elements to Sample Taxonomy Elements

US-GAAP-CI Taxonomy SAMPLE TAXONOMY

PRE-FIX: NAME format COLUMN: NAME format
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US-GAAP-CI Taxonomy

SAMPLE TAXONOMY

usfr-pte: Accounts Payable

samp:AccountsPayableCopy

samp:CalQilCard

samp:Deptel

samp:Depte2

usfr-pte: AccountsReceivableTradeGross

samp:AccountsReceivableCopy

usfr-pte:AccumulatedComprehensivelncome

samp:Netlncome

usfr-pte:EmployeeRelatedLiabilities

samp:PayrollLiablities

usfr-pte:InventoriesNet

samp:InventoryAsset

usfr-pte:LoansLongTermPortion

samp:VehicleLoan

usfr-pte:MachineryEquipment

samp:ToolsEquipment

usfr-pte:NotesPayableLongTerm

samp:NotePayable

usfr-pte:OtherCurrentAssets

samp:TotalOtherCurrentAssets

samp:Retainage

usfr-pte:OtherCurrentLiabilities

samp:TotalOtherCurrentLiabilities

usfr-pte:OtherEquity

samp:OwnersContribution

samp:OwnersDraw

usfr-pte:RetainedEarnings

samp:RetainedEarnings

usfr-pte:SalesTaxPayable

samp:SalesTaxPayable

usfr-pte:UnrestrictedCash

samp:Checking

samp:Savings

samp:UndepositedFunds

usfr-pte:Vehicles

samp:Depreciation

samp:OriginalCost

18 When finished, save the mapping file by right-clicking in the mapper grid and selecting Save.

19 Right-click again and select Close to close the Mapper Grid.

This saves the mapping links to the mapping file.
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Note: For ease of use, it is recommended that you save all files for this lesson in samples
\tutorial\mapping\Sample Company\WorkBook folder to keep track of the file
for use in future lessons. The Workbook folder has added to the mapping folder to
provide a place to save documents without overwriting the sample files.

20 Select File, and then Close to close the US GAAP taxonomy.

Now that we mapped the US GAAP to the Sample Taxonomy file, we can convert an instance
document to the US GAAP using the previous data. The sample company taxonomy reposts
values for concepts that the USGAAP has but uses different concepts and labels. This lesson
shows how you can convert the data for USGAAP and create a mapping between the USGAAP
and the sample company taxonomy so someone else can examine how you got to the final
nstance.

» To convert the instance document to US-GAAP taxonomy:
1 Select File, then New, and then Instance.

2  Select File, then Load, and then Taxonomy.

3 Open the latest US GAAP-Commercial and Industrial taxonomy.

The fastestmethod is to use the open a taxonomy using the Web option. Alternatively, you
couple browse to the location that the XBRL Taxonomy Designer files were unzipped and
select the us-gaap-ci-2005-02-28.xsd file. For a typical default installation of the
product, the file path would be: C:\Oracle\Tutorials\US GAAP 2.1 Taxonomy\

4  Select File, then Load, then Mapping, and then From File.
This loads the mapping XML file produced in Step 3.
5 Select SampleMapping.xml.

6 Verify that mappings are loaded by checking that there are entries in the Mapping Info collection in the
Instance Properties grid.
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10

Mamespaces {Collection - 4) ;I
Contexts {Collection - emply)
Factvalues {Collection - empty)
Inits (Collection - empty)
Enkities (Collection - empty)
Perinds (Collection - empty)
Scenatios (Collection - empty)
Fooknakes (Collection - empty)
Categories {Collection - emply)
E MappingInfao {Collection - 34)
FilePath C:'Program Files" UBmatrix' UBmatri
Tvpe RowBykKey
kKevColurmn Prefined Mame
kKevColumnFillCowmwn False
GroupskartkevPattern
GroupRepeatPeriod
Mappings {Collection - 34)
Presentations {Collection - emply)
DocheclarationssML Il
-

Screenshot of the mapping file properties loaded into an instance
docurnent prior to completing an import,

Now we import the instance document created in Example 1 that was based on the
Sample Taxonomy .xsd file. Before beginningthe import, make sure that the Instance View
pane is selected (active) to ensure the correct menus and toolbar buttons are activated.

Select File, and then Import.
Select Import Source as XBRL Instance Document.
Click Browse and select the sampleID.xbrl file that you created in Lesson One.

Click OK to select and close the window.
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Instance Import 5]

~ Import Options
Import source !XEHL Ihstance Dacument :_I % Conect erors on import [~ Save design
’ W Validate before impart
File: name ]E:\Program Filez' IE [ hade IT-:E E ity cel I_
Impart type Contests: entity, period, scenarnia H Key field I ;" ;I
Shest Contexts __V_!
Import Field Instance Field
Context |0 | Conteut Label | Context Descripti Entity 1D Contest 1D Context |D
M |eontent-1 saMP Contest Label Context Label
% Cortest Description | Context Description
Entity D Entity ID
Entity Scherme Entity Scheme
Entity Segment Entity Segment
Period Type Period Type
Date Start Date Start
Date End Date End
Scenario Scenario .LI
4 3
Load Dlezign | Apply | Start | Cloge |j

We first import contexts and units, and then map the fact values.

11 Select Import Type Contexts, which auto-selects the contexts of the original instance document, and
then click Apply.

The Context collection should indicate members.

Instance Import ]
~ Import Options
Import source !XEHL Ihstance Dacument :_I % Conect erors on import [~ Save design
’ - W Validate before impart
File: name ]E:\Program Filez' E”" [ hade IT-:E E ity cel I_
Impart type Contests: entity, period, scenarnia :_I Key field I ;" ;I
Sheet Contexts __V_!
Import Field Instance Field
Context |0 | Conteut Label | Context Descripti Entity 1D Contest 1D Context |D
M content-1 samP Context Label Context Label
% Cortest Description | Context Description
Entity D Entity ID
Entity Scherme Entity Scheme
Entity Segment Entity Segment
Period Type Period Type
Date Start Date Start
Date End Date End
Scenario Scenario .LI
4 3
Load Dlezign | Apply I Start | Cloge |
A

12 Select Import type Units, which auto-selects the units of the original instance document, and then click
Apply.
13 Select Import Type Fact Values, and then click Apply.

There should be fact values according to those original instance taxonomy facts which had
mapping specifications.

14 Click Start to start the import and close the Instance Import window.
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15 Select Tools, and then Validate Instance Document.

IV ¥ML Schema validation

v *BRL Yalidation & Formulas
[~ FRIS walidation

[ Tasonormy walidation

[ Buginess Rules Instance Doc.

Show Messages:
¥ f [ “warnings

Digplay in results report:

Campute mizzing fact values
Keep computed Fact walues
Show full walidation audit trail

Show farmula trace
Show results az HTML
Dizplay results in kL
Show element names

B

Calculation resultz display order:
|E>:tended Link-Cortext-Unit j

nstance Yalidation and Report Options

Select Extended Links to Walidate clear all
Staterment of Financial Position

Income Statement

Caszh Flow from Operations - Indirect Method
Cash Flow from Operations - Direct Method
Statement of Cash Flows

Mates to the Financial Statements

Alternate Calculation Roll-ups

Statement of Stockholders' Equity

Tatal Stockholders' Equity Caloulation
Default Link

Save validation report in: |C:\Documents and Settingshjazon. andrewDesktoph TutonialsyM apping 24 samplel) S n 1‘]

Save calculation trace in: |C:\Documents and Settingshjazon. andrewDesktoph TutonialsyM apping 24 samplel) S n 1‘]

| Run Yalidation | Cancel |

16 Select XML, XBRL validation, and the Compute Missing Fact Values option.

17 Click Run Validation.

The simple taxonomy does not contain every item listed in the US GAAP taxonomy, and
this option calibrates XBRL Taxonomy Designer to calculate the missing values.

The example validation below has no errors. To see a mapping validation error, see

“Troubleshooting Mapping Errors” on page 177.
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Line Label

2 Context samp[at 2003-12-21 for sampco]

3 units-monetary
4 usfr-pte:Assets

=] usfr-pte: Assets - Current

& usfr-pteiCash, Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments
7 usfr-pte: Cash and Cash Equi-.'aients
2 usfr-pte: Cash - Unrestricted
el usfr-pteiReceivables, Met
10 usfr-pte: Accounts and Motes Receivable, Met
11 usfr-pte: Accounts Receiuabie Tracie, Mat
1.2 usfr-pte: &ccounts Receivable Trade, Gross
13 usfr-pte: Inventories, Met
14 usfr-pte: Other Azsets - Current
15 usfr-pte: Azsets - Moncurrent
16 usfr-pte! Property, Plant and Equipment, Met
17 usfr-pte: Property, Plant and Equipment, Gross
18 usfr-pte:Machinery and Equiprnent
19 us-fr-pte:\.-'ehicles

20 usfr-pte:Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
24 usfr-pte: Liabilities

22 usfe-pte: Lizbilities - Current

23 usfr-pte: Accounts Payable am:i F\ccrueci Expanses
24 usfr-pte:Accounts Pavable

25 usfr-pte:Accrued Expenses

25 usfr-pte:Employes Related Liabilities

27 us-fr-pte:Sales Tax Pavable

18 Select File, and then Save As and save this instance document as sampleUSGAAP-ID.xbrl.

Note: For ease of use, it is recommended that you save all files for this lesson in samples
\tutorial\mapping\Sample Company\WorkBook folder to keep track of the file
for use in future lessons. The Workbook folder has added to the mapping folder to
provide a place to save documents without overwriting the sample files.

W B D-P Yalue Source Message Formula Trace

—-

[P P P PV IO T S G R P S R T

R R SR IO R T

19 Select File, and then Close to close the instance document.

You completed Mapping Lesson Two. Proceed to “Mapping Lesson Three” on page 318.

Mapping Lesson Three

We use the sample-balancesheet .x1s file, but map it directly to US-GAAP instead of to the
Sample Taxonomy. Subsequently, we convert an instance document from the Sample Taxonomy

to US-GAAP Taxonomy.

Note: Completed files created from this lesson can be found at samples\tutorial\mapping

\Mapping3\.

Olo|aaa|lo|o|P 00|00 |0 |0|0iD|o |00 |o|(o|jo|g)|Q

oo

oo
Co
Lo
Lo
Lo
Co
Do
Do
Do
Do
Do
Do
Do
Do
Do
oo

Do
Do
Do
Do
Do
Do
Do

258,059
222,206
49,934
49,934
49,934
78,320
78,320
78,320
78,320
23,923
T0.4239
33,833
35,853
35,8532
2,000
20,8532
196,856
57156
48,053
34,207
31,505
3302
3,302
4,972

1 Statement of Financial Position [htp:/vwwvrnbd.org/us/ fr/Ir/role /StatementFinancialPosition]

comp
camp
comp
comp
inst
comp
comp
comp
inst
inst
inst
comp
comp
comp
inst
inst
comp
comp
comp
comp
inst
comp
inst

inst
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When working with a locked taxonomy such as the USGAAP, XBRL Taxonomy Designer locks
the taxonomy from being altered. For information on removing this lock, see “Enabling Editing”
on page 25.

» To map the balance sheet to the US GAAP taxonomy:
1 Open the latest US GAAP-Commerical and Industrial taxonomy.

The fastest method is to use the open a taxonomy using the Web option. Alternatively, you
couple browse to the location where the XBRL Taxonomy Designer files were unzipped and
select the us-gaap-ci-2005-02-28.xsd file.

2 Select Tools, and then XBRL Mapper.

XBRL Mapper E]

~ Mapper Setup
HCE ¥ | Map file name | E]g!
File name | _EF:I
=l

Sheet I

Impart zource

Cancel

»

3 In the XBRL Mapper window, select Excel as the Import source.

4 In the File name field, click Browse to navigate to the Sample folder, and then select the sample-
balancesheet .xls file.

After the sample-balancesheet.xls file selected, the Sheet field defaults to Balance Sheet.
5 In the Mapping file name field, click Save.

6 In the File Name field, enter SampleMapping? .xml, and then click Save to save and close the
window.
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XBRL Mapper E]

Mapper Setup
Impart source IEHCE| LJ tap file name ||::"-.F'r|:-gram Filesh
File: name |E:"~F'ru:ugram Files' E”i tapping type |Fh:uw b kep -
Sheet IEaIance Sheet LJ Key column | Ll
Row Header G [ Transpose rows/columng [=5
| & E C u] Y
B2 ASSETS
3 Current Assets
4 Checking!Sawvings
5 Checking
E Sawings
T Tatal CheckingsSavings
o % Accounts Receivable
| | Accounts Receivable
1o Total Accounts Receivable
1| Other Current Assets
12 Tools & Equipment -
1 3
‘ Cancel

¥y

7 In the Mapping type field, select Row by key.

Note how the financial concepts are reported within the sample company balance sheet in
the example above. They use column indentation, and therefore to ensure that our mapping
contains the path from the top level concept to the concept being mapped we enter the
columns to be mapped. In other words, the columns A through F are used to search for the
concepts that we are mapping to. Specifically for these sample company charts of accounts,
a sub-account may only be unique within its nesting structure in a parent account (for
example, frequent use of accounts called “Cash” or “Other”). For this reason, we specify all
of A through F as the pattern matching keys.

8 Inthe Key column field, select A then hold the Ctrl key down while clicking on the drop-down arrow and
selecting B, then C, then D, E, and F.

They use plus signs to separate them generating a composite key matching specification.
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ABRL Mapper

3]
[~ Mapper Setup
Impart source 1EHCE| _T_] tap file name 1|::"-.F'ru:-gram Filesh H
File: name jE:'xF'ru:ugram Filess' ﬂ tapping type IHDW b kep -
Shest 1Ealar'n::e Cheet 4 AL :__]
Row Header G [T Transpoze rows/columng
4 B
B2 ASSETS .
3 Current Assats I—D 03 IF
. | Dec
4 CheckingsS=mwin ArE+C+0+E
5 ChecEng
E Sawings
7 Tatal CheckingsSavings
g Accounts Receivable
k] | Accounts Receivable
1o Taotal Accounts Receivable
1 Other Current Assets
12 Tools & Equipment -
4 bk
M et ‘ Cancel ‘ A
9 Select the Key columns fill down box.
This causes each indented column to “fill” from above to eliminate potential ambiguities if
sub-accounts are named the same.
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XBRL Mapper £

[~ Mapper Setup

Impart source ;E:-:.:el _:_] Map file name 1|::"-.F'ru:-gram Filesh, IS [
File: name iE:'xF'ru:ugram Files' ﬂ tapping type iFh:uw b kep -
Sheet ;EEI'EII"ICE Sheet ___T_] K_E_Irl column 1-":"-+B+I:+D +E+F ..I.j
Row Header E [T Transpoze rows/columng v Eey columng fill down '
N
_ |a B L bg (o =
k2 AEEETS
3 Current Assets
Checking!Sawvings
Checking
; Sawings
?_I Tatal CheckingsSavings
_E_I Accounts Receivable
__S_I Accounts Receivable
1o I Total Accounts Receivable
1 I Other Current Assets
1z _I Tools & Equipment -
1 3
M et Cancel ] A

10 Click Next.

File Edit View Tools Window Help

O - | ad|

#4 v& + |Parent to Chid

us-gaap-ci (Presentation} |

[=I Presentation Yiew

Extended Link {Income Statement)
Extended Link {Cash Flow from Operations - Indirect Method)
Extended Link {Cash Flow from Operations - Direct Method)
Extended Link {Statement of Cash Flows)

Extended Link {Statement of Stockholders' Equity’)

Extended Link {MNotes to the Financial Statements)

[#- Extended Link (Tuple Content Models - Common Terms)

. Extended Link {Default Link)

Current Aszets
Checking/Savings

Tatal Checking/Savings
Secounts Receivable

Total Accounts Receivat
Other Current Assets

Total Other Current Asse

8 - [al element ;

e i elements _1.” Count: 1,503 Total Current Assets

Prefix ] Label £ Mame ] Data Type i Fired Assets

usfr-pte Accounting Policies AccountingPolicies String = Trucks

usfr-pte Accounts and Motes Receivable, Met AccountshotesReceivableflet  Monetary s

usfr-pte Accounts and Motes Receivable, het AccountshiotesReceivableM...  String

usfr-pte Accounts Payable AccountsPayable Manetary 22 i Total Trucks

usfr-pte Accounts Payable AccountsPayableabstract String | Total Fined Assats 5
usfr-pte Accounts Payable - Other OtheraccountsPayable Monetary =t

usfr-pte Accounts Payable - Related Parties AccountsPayableRelatedPa,.,  Monetary 4 j i 1
el ! | R

ferotes ax | [Filter | Status | Label

Line | Twpe Message ID Message

1 Info bxLdFinMoErr Taxonomy {us-gaap-ci), read-only, loading completed, no errors or

2 Info bxLdFinMoErr Referenced Taxonomy {usfr-ptr), read-only, loading completed, nc

3 Info bxLdFintoErr Referenced Taxonomy {usfr-pte), read-only, loading completed, no

4 Info bxLdFinMoErr Referenced Taxonomy (ref), read-only, loading completed, no errc g

2 | )% E Taxonory - Us-gaap-ci | Extended link - us-gaa... ¥BRL Mapper - sample... |—

'58 rows, ¥ columns read from Balance Sheet

 INs: PRES | VIEW:PRES
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The Mapping Grid is displayed on the right. Again, it might be convenient to resize the
mapping components for ease of use.

Next we use the drag-and-drop technique to map from the US GAAP to the Balance Sheet.
Again, simply drag a taxonomy element from the Relationships View pane or the Elements

List onto the Mapping Grid; a mapping entry is created in the lower-right portion of the

screen.

To drag-and-Drop XBRL mapping:

As in Lesson Two, use the drag and drop technique to establish all of the mapping relationships indicated

in Table 112.

Table 112 Mapping Relationships

US-GAAP-CI Taxonomy

Balance Sheet Excel File

PRE-FIX: NAME format

COLUMN: NAME

usfr-pte: Accounts Payable

D Accounts Payable

E CalQil Card

F Deptl

F Dept2

usfr-pte: AccountsReceivableTradeGross

D Accounts Receivable

usfr-pte:AccumulatedComprehensivelncome

C Net Income

usfr-pte:EmployeeRelatedLiabilities

E Payroll Liabilities

usfr-pte:InventoriesNet

D Inventory Asset

usfr-pte:LoansLongTermPortion

D Vehicle Loan

usfr-pte:MachineryEquipment

D Tools & Equipment

usfr-pet:NotesPayableLongTerm

D Note Payable

usfr-pte:OtherCurrentAssets

C Other Current Assets

D Retainage

usfr-pte:OtherCurrentLiabilities

D Other Current Liabilities

usfr-pte:OtherEquity

D Owners’ Contribution

D Owners’ Draw

usfr-pte:RetainedEarnings

C Retained Earnings

usfr-pte:SalesTaxPayable

E Sales Tax Payable
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US-GAAP-CI Taxonomy Balance Sheet Excel File

usfr-pte:UnrestrictedCash D Checking

D Savings

D Undeposited Funds

usfr-pte:Vehicles D Depreciation

D Original Cost

The Filter column represents the Key column pattern for the taxonomy element, context,

unit, scale, and so on, of this mapping.

2 Save the mapping file by right-clicking anywhere in the Mapping Grid and clicking Save.

3 To close the mapping grid without closing the taxonomy, right-click in the Mapping Grid and click

Close.

4 Select File, and then Close to close the taxonomy.

Note: For ease of use, we recommend that you save all files for this lesson in Samples/

WorkBook folder so that you can keep track of it and use it for later lessons.

ID-&- @ =M 5 . N"i-!-Pmm'l:lid' |

us-gasg-cl (Prexentation) | 1o | SR Maer « rockCantisbaceng il 2|
~ Ebended bk (Statement of Prancisl Fostion - G} o | | Sesiim - sk abi (it 1] |
= T gerrerd of FEanCis POt a (] [= b -
- K REHTE H
- Asgats 3 Curriid Auawe
Cesh Equrvsbents and 5 4 Creibig it
3 ¢ 5 Chaske
Urrestrcted Cash . -
rif Eepe e r Tl [Ritbrip et
] Sagecardn Racabouble
- . Aniiing s s uble
L Totwl A tiaridn Fecassuin m
n Dttt Tumrenk Arrsa
1 Teste § gy
] brantony Mo
*. L H FeHwrng
4| ¥ % Alrpbauagid el Froedi
{3 Pt Oula Comard St
. R TT— =15 k4 Tamd iarand Agts
] Fsiell i il
Pt | L i 1 Trucka
| eakred Ganlms) o Pk o e e
| i aabred Gan Lo on Parietsbia T n | [
o e ot
| ki) LN ot o B n Torad Fisd freals
| i o Prodiing 52 24 TOTALAEEETE
R R W S CEESAT e [ |
< > |
{w B Elamars Fioa | Sran Labal  Conmarns | Comies [
S S e — | uthpi: UnramretediCaih werlhachnges Leaded 0 rErad
e lhes [WewspD  [Wewsos  |° i remiedtuch sedommnn Loaded RS
1 ":: "’":“*‘E" ;:‘“‘“’"r‘:""’"“ it CarhCarhEqan et e Tordl Chashivs  Loanted D s amirata
by wrenced Ticonce A e e P S Ve g
urhpt AoocurisPacarable Tt aulppal diourg  Losded 0 ora ey
iy I S weaTooh § Eqa Lowded D et rrerating
&l 3 Bt e (i@ teert s ) 881 Magoes - il Castetlapong ol
1ﬁm.?m.mmm1 iHE5: FRES MEW: PRES

The next step is to create an instance document.
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) To create an instance document:
1  Select File, then New, and then Instance.
2  Use what you learned so far to load the USGAAP taxonomy.

The fastest method is to use the open a taxonomy using the Web option. Alternatively,
browse to the location that the XBRL Taxonomy Designer files were unzipped and select
the us-gaap-ci-2005-02-28.xsd file. For a typical default installation of the product,
the file path would be: C: \UBmatrix\Tutorials\US GAAP 2.1 Taxonomy\ .

3 Load the above-produced mapping file, which should be named SampleMapping?2 .xml.

Notice that for the MappingInfo property in the Instance Property grid, the number of
entries reflects the mappings done in Step 2 above.

As in Lesson One: step five, we need a unit before we can import the data.
4 Enteriso4217:USD for units-monetary to correspond with the unit selections in the mapping grid before.
Next we need a Context, so we can import the data.
Follow the directions from Lesson One: Step four.
Select File, and then Import.

Select Excel as the Import Source and for File name select the sample-balancesheet .x1s file.

0 ~N o O

Using what you learned in Lesson One: Step four, make these changes:
e Import type is Fact-values

e Import Field A is the mapping key (select Mapping Key from the Instance Field drop-
down list.)

e Inthe Dec 3103 row, select Value for Instance Field column. Click the + sign to expand
the rows and select the period entered when establishing the context

9 Click Start.

You should have 14 fact values in an instance document from an Excel spreadsheet.

Insktance
FilePath |
Base
®brlversion ¥ersion 2.1
showlanguage en English
Readonly False
Mamespaces (Collection - 7}
Contexts {Collection - 1)
Fackyalues {Collection - 14) _EI
Units {Collection - 1)
Fact¥alues

FactWalues used by this instance document,

i @ Instance @ Contexks |

10 Click the ellipsis (shown in the figure above) to open the editor and view the Fact Values.
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fact¥alues - {New)

Seq Elernent | Contest | Urit | Walue
o1 uzfr-pt UnrestrictedCazh context-1  unitz-monetan 43534
. usfr-phAccountzReceivableTrade | contexst-1 | units-manetarn Fa3z0
3 Lizfr-pt: M achineyE quipment context-1  unitz-monetan A000
4 Lzfr-pk |l nventoriest et context-1 | unitz-rmonetan 23523
5 uzfr-pkOtherCurrentbzset = context-1 | unitz-monetary 2462
E uzfr-pkiehicles context-1 | unitz-monetary 30853
7 uzfr-phaccountzPapable context-1 | unite-monetary 141
o usfr-ptEmplovesRelatedLiabilities contest-1 | units-manetarny J302
q Lzfr-pt:SalesT asFPavable context-1  unitz-monetan 4972
10 Lzfr-pt:MotezPayableLong T erm context-1  unitz-monetan 3441
11 Lzfr-ptLoansLongT ermPaortion context-1  unitz-monetan ABEZ
12 Lizfr-pk: OtherE quiky context-1 | unitz-rmonetan 29000
13 uzfr-pt:RetainedE arnings context-1 | unitz-monetary Fa200
14 uzhr-ptAccumulatedComprehensi context-1 | unitz-monetary 32500
#*:

11 Select Tools, and then Validate Instance Document.

Instance ¥alidation and Report Options

W ¥ML Schema validation Select Extended Links to ' alidate clear all
v HBAL V'E.'Iidefti':'n & Formulas Statement of Financial Position
||: ?E:Lsunvnar:jaxfjir;atinn Income Statement
e e Cazh Flow from Operations - Indirect Method
Cazh Flow fram Operations - Direct kMethod

Show Messages: Statement of Cazh Flows
3 f [ ‘warnings Maotes to the Financial Statements
Display in results repart: Alternate Calculation Roll-ups
v Campute missing fact values Statement of Stockholders' Equity
[~ FKeep computed fact values Total Stockholders' Equity Calculation
[v Show full validation audit trai Default Link,
v Show forrmula trace
v Show results az HTML
[ Display results in <ML %
[ Show element names

Calculation results dizplay order:
|E:-:tenu:|eu:| Lirk -Conbest-Lnit ﬂ

Save validation report i |E:'\D|:u:uments and Settingzjazon. andrewiDeskiophTutonalsMapping2hzamplelS H| i‘i
Save calculation trace in: |E:'\D|:u:uments and Settingzjazon. andrewiDeskiophTutonalsMapping2hzamplelS H| i‘i

Run % alidation | Cancel |

12 Select XML, XBRL validation and the Compute Missing Fact Values option.
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The simple taxonomy does not contain every item listed in the US GAAP taxonomy, and

this option calibrates XBRL Taxonomy Designer to calculate the missing values.

13 Click Run Validation.

Line
1
2
3

3

W - W

el
12
13
14
15
16
17
12
19

21
22
23
24
25
25
27

Label

Statement of Financial Position [http:/ S vevwrvenbr.org/us/ fr/Ir/role / StatementFinancialPosition ]

Context samp[at 2003-12-31 for sampco]
units-monetary

4 usfr-pte:Assets

usfr-pte: Assets - Current
usfr-pteiCash, Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments
usfr-pte: Cash and Cash Equi-.'aients
usfr-pte: Cash - Unrestricted
usfr-pte:Receivables, Mat
usfr-pte: Accounts and Motes Receivable, Met
usfr-pte: Accounts Receiuabie Tracie, Mat
usfr-pte: &ccounts Receivable Trade, Gross
usfr-pte: Inventories, Met
usfe-pte: Other Azsets - Current
usfr-pte: Azsets - Moncurrent
usfr-pte! Property, Plant and Equipment, Met
usfr-pte: Property, Plant and Equipment, Gross
usfr-pte:Machinery and Equiprnent
us-fr-pte:\.-'ehicles
usfr-pte:Liabiliies and Stockholders” Equity
usfr-pte: Liabilities
usfe-pte: Lizbilities - Current
usfr-pte: Accounts Payable am:i F\ccrueci Expanses
usfr-pte:Accounts Payabls
usfr-pte:Accrued Expensas
usfr-pte:Employes Related Liabilities

usfr-pte:Sales Tax Pavable

14 Save this instance as sampleid2 .xbrl.

W |B D-P ¥Yalue Source Message Formula Trace

FR [ A S (S PO U I O S S IO T S

Olo|aaa|lo|o|? 00D |0 |0|0iD |0 |0|0|0|0|(g|o|g)|B

R R SR O S T e

oo
Lo
Co
Lo
Lo
Do
Do
Do
Do
Do
Do
Do
Do
Do
Do
Do
oo
Do
Do
Do
Do
Do
Do
Do

238,059
222,208
49,934
49,934
49,934
78,320
TE.320
78,320
78,320
23,923
T0.429
35,8532
35,853
35,8532
2,000
30,853
196,856
57156
48,053
34,207
31,505
3,302
3,302
4,972

comp
comp
comp
comp
inst
comp
comp
comp
inst
inst
inst
comp
comp
comp
inst
inst
comp
comp
comp
comp
inst
comp
inst

inst

Note: For ease of use, it is recommended that you save all files for this lesson in samples
\tutorial\mapping\Sample Company\WorkBook folder to keep track of the file
for use in future lessons. The Workbook folder has added to the mapping folder to

provide a place to save documents without overwriting the sample files.

You completed Mapping Lesson Three and the Mapping Tutorial.

Dimensions Tutorial

This tutorial and series of lessons walk you through the fundamental creation steps for a
dimensional taxonomy using XBRL Taxonomy Designer.

For the purposes of this tutorial, we divided the dimensional taxonomy into six taxonomies, one
of which combines all schemas into a dimensional taxonomy. This division is intended to help
you learn the concepts into simple building steps. It is feasible to create the same dimensional

taxonomy as one taxonomy.

Dimensions Tutorial
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Disclaimer: These dimensional taxonomies tutorials for dimension and dimensions aggregation
is based upon the www.xbrl.org candidate recommendation (CR3) dated 3/30/2006. Because
this is a recommendation there will be future changes in the specification and therefore it is
important to verify which specification your taxonomies are built against.

The sample files reference in this tutorial can be found in the samples folder under Dimensions.

Lessons in this tutorial include:

“Lesson One: Creating Domain-Member Taxonomies” on page 328 teaches you how to use
a taxonomy to define a dimension using outlining the domain-members of that dimension.

“Lesson Two: Creating a Dimension Taxonomy” on page 331 teaches you how to create a
dimension taxonomy.

“Lesson Three: Creating a Primary Item Taxonomy” on page 332 teaches you how to use a
taxonomy to define a primary item.

“Lesson Four: Creating a Hypercube Taxonomy” on page 333 teaches you how to use a
taxonomy to define a hypercube.

“Lesson Five: Generating an XBRL Instance Document with Dimensions” on page 335
teaches you how to use the context editor to insert values into an instance document. This
lesson is designed to teach users how the instance editor works. Advanced users use the
Instance Document Context Import Mapping function.

“Lesson Six: Creating XBRL Instance Documents with Dimensional Contexts” on page
342 shows you how to use the Import option to populate instance documents with data.

“Lesson Seven: Creating a Multi-Hypercube Taxonomy with a Restricted Hypercube” on
page 345 shows how to generate a multiple hypercube taxonomy and how to restrict one
of them.

Lesson One: Creating Domain-Member Taxonomies

The domain-member taxonomy defines a set of explicit members that can be used to describe

the dimension.

Movie Sales Analysis Primary Item "Movie Sales"

Sales, by Genre, by Rating

Breakdown by Genre Dimensian

Soience Fiction

Westarn Cormain Members

Classic

other

Breakdown by Rating

=

]

&

Other

328 Tutorials



The first step of modelling dimensional data begins with identifying the building blocks of the
dimensional taxonomy. Begin with the primary item (the item to be measured), and then identify
the dimensions, and then the domain members (elements explicitly used to describe the
dimension in a standardized way). The primary item for the above example is Movie Sales and
the dimensions are Genre and Rating. The domain members for Movie Genres are Science
Fiction, Westerns, Classics, Other.

Using the steps below create the movie genre dimension Domain-Members taxonomy; repeat
the same steps to create the Region dimensions domain member taxonomy. Completed files
created from this lesson can be found at \samples\tutorial\dimensions.

» To create a domain-member taxonomy:
1 Create a Taxonomy.
2  Enter the unique namespace ldentifier as http://www.example.com/genre_domainmembers.
3 Enter the unique Prefix Genre-domainmembers.
4 Add a reference to the xbrldt .xsd schema by selecting File, then Add, then Reference Taxonomy.
5 Use the Web location button to select xbr1dt-2005.xsd.
This schema contains the dimensional taxonomy syntax.

6 Change the Relationship View from Presentation to Definition View and set the arc role filter to
(domain-members).

7 Create a domain-members extended link by right-clicking on the Definition View and selecting Add
Extended Link.

8 Click the * button to add an extended link role.

Add/Choose Extended Link Roles

domain-members
Type extendedLink
Drefinitian

LRI http: / fweww_example com/new/ij
LRI20

|lzed0nT ypes [Collection - 1]

Name
The dizplay name for this role.

ﬂ ﬂ ﬂ daomain-members ﬂﬂ _\_d ﬂ

9 Enterthe name domain-members and a URI21 for the extended link and click the check mark button.

10 Select the taxonomy properties tabbed window and set the default data type to: Monetary for each
domain-member element.
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Create the domain members with the data type Monetary so that it matches the data type
of the primary item being measured; however this is just a convention and is not mandatory.

11 Add these child elements of Genre: Science Fiction, Western, Classic, and Other.

Note: If your arc role filter is set to show all arc roles each time you drag an element to be
a child of the domain members, you are prompted to select an arc role for the
relationship being created. As these elements are domain members of the Movie
Genre dimension, select the xbrldt:domain-member arc role.

Select an Arc Role

General to Special
Ezzence to Aliaz

Similar Tuples

Requires Element

wbrldt: hwpercube-dimenzion
wbrldt: dimenzsion-damain
wbrldt: domain-merber
whrldt: all

wbrldt: natdl

wbrldt: dimenzion-default

12 Change the Period type of the Movie Genre and the domain member elements to Duration so it matches
the period by which these elements are expected to be reported as.

13 To construct the dimension calculations using the dimension-aggregation arc role, load the dimension-
aggregation schema by selecting File, then Load, then Referenced Taxonomy, and then browse to
samples\tutorial\dimensions\xbrldta-2005.xsd.

14 Change the Relationship View from Definition View (show all arc-roles) to Presentation View.
15 Right-click the Product element and select Copy, then subtree, and then relationships only.

16 Change the Relationship View from Presentation relationship view to the Calculation relationship view
and set the arc role filter to dimension-aggregation.

17 Right-click the Calculation View and paste the Movie Genre relationship tree into the Calculation
View.

18 Select Aggregation for the Arc Role.
19 Save this taxonomy as Genre_DomainMember .xsd.

This completes the creation of the Movie Genre Domain-Member taxonomy
Genre_DomainMember .xsd.

20 Forthe purposes of the next lesson, repeat the steps above to create a Rating Domain-Member taxonomy
Rating_ DomainMember .xsd with the domain members G, PG, R, and other.

After you created these domain-member taxonomies, proceed to “Lesson Two: Creating a
Dimension Taxonomy” on page 331.
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Lesson Two: Creating a Dimension Taxonomy

During the last lesson, we identified two dimensions and created the domain-members
taxonomies for those dimensions. The next step is to create the dimension taxonomies. Files
created from this lesson can be found at \samples\tutorial\dimensions.

Movie Sales Analysis Primary Item "Movie Sales"

Sales, by Genre, by Rating

B kd by Genre Dimensian
Soienoe Fiction
Westarn Cormain Members
Classic
Other

Breakdown by Rating
&5
B
=
Other

» To create a dimension taxonomy:
1 Create a Taxonomy.

2  Enter the unique namespace Identifier http://www.example.com/genre_dimension and Prefix
genre_dimension.

3 Add a reference to the xbrldt . xsd schema by selecting File, then Add, and then Reference
Taxonomy.

4 Click Web location and select xbr1dt-2005.xsd.
This schema contains the dimensional taxonomy syntax.

5 Add a reference to the Genre domain members taxonomy to the Genre dimension taxonomy by selecting
File, then Add, then Reference Taxonomy, and then select genre_domainmembers . xsd that was
created during Lesson One.

6  Change the arc role relationships view from Presentation to the Definition View.
7  Set the arc role filter to Show all arc-roles.
8 Create an extended link named genre_dimension.
9 Create the dimension element named dimension-item.
10 Change the element properties of dimension-item to these:
e Abstract: True
e Substitution group: dimension-item
e Period: Duration

This defines the dimension as valid and defines it is measuring the primary item over a
set period of time.
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11 Drag the dimension-item element from the element list to the genre-dimension extended link.

12 Drag the Movie Genre element from the element list to be a child of dimension-item element in the
presentation view.

13 Select the Movie Genre element and select dimensions-domain as the arc-role.

This arc role defines the connection between the dimension and its domain which contains
the domain members elements that describe the dimension.

14 Select the element Movie Genre, then select the element property window, and then select
parentlink.

15 Change useable to True.
16 Change the TargetRole to domain-dimensions.
17 Save this taxonomy as Genre_dimension.xsd.

This completes the creation of the Movie Genre Genre_dimension.xsd dimension
taxonomy.

18 For the purposes of the next lesson, repeat these same steps to complete the Rating
Rating_dimension.xsd dimension taxonomy.

After you completed the Dimension taxonomies in Lesson Two, proceed to “Lesson Three:
Creating a Primary Item Taxonomy” on page 332.

Lesson Three: Creating a Primary Item Taxonomy

The next step is to create the primary item taxonomy (which contains the element used to report
the values). Completed files created from this lesson can be found at samples\tutorial

\dimensions.

Movie Sales Analysis Primary Item "Movie Sales"

%ales, by Genre, by Rating

led e Dirmension
Soience Fiction
Western Domain Members
Classic
Cther

Breakdown by Rating
&
e
&
Other

» To create a Primary Item taxonomy:

1 Create a Taxonomy.
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2  Enter the unique namespace Identifier http://www.example.com/Primaryitem and Prefix
Primaryitem.

3 Select the default data type to: monetary.

4 Add an element named Movie Sales and set these attributes:
e Period type: Duration
e Datatype: Monetary

5 Save this taxonomy as MovieSales_primary item.xsd.

You completed the creation of the Primary Items taxonomy for Lesson Three. Proceed to “Lesson
Four: Creating a Hypercube Taxonomy” on page 333.

Lesson Four: Creating a Hypercube Taxonomy

The final step in creating the dimensional taxonomy is to create the hypercube taxonomy which
references all taxonomies created from lesson one through to lesson three. The hypercube
taxonomy defines the hypercubes and the dimensions that are effective.

Note: Completed files created from this lesson can be found at samples\tutorial
\dimensions.

» To create a hypercube taxonomy:
1 Create a Taxonomy.
2  Enter a unique namespace |dentifier http://www.example.com/Hypercube and Prefix Hypercube.

3 Add a reference to the xbrldt . xsd schema by selecting File, then Add, and then Reference
Taxonomy.

4 Click the Web location button and select xbr1dt-2005.xsd.
This schema contains the dimensional taxonomy syntax.

The purpose of this taxonomy is to construct the hypercube connecting it to the effective
dimensions. The primary item is connected to its dimensions using the hypercubes.

Select File, then Add, then Reference Taxonomy, and then Genre_Dimension.
Select File, then Add, then Reference Taxonomy, and then Rating_Dimension.
Select File, then Add, then Reference Taxonomy, and then MovieSales_primary_ item.xsd.

Change the arc role relationship view from Presentation to Definition View.

© 00 ~N o o

Ensure that you arc role filter is set to show all arc-roles, as you may have noticed that several arc roles
are in use within the definition relationship view to construct a dimensional taxonomy.

10 To create the hypercube, select the Definition View, right-click, and then select Add an extended link.

11 Click the * button to create an extended link role.
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12
13
14

15

16
17
18

19

20
21

22
23

Add/Choose Extended Link Roles

Mame hypercube
Type extendedLink
Drefirition %
com/hypercube/role/hypercube| |
RIZ0
zed0nT ypes [Collection - 1]

URI21

IIRI of thiz role n <BRL 2.1.

#| | 4[frperte ~1»|vix

Change the Name to hypercube.
Change the URI21 to http://www.example.com/role/Hypercube.
When you are finished, click the check mark button.

The next step is to create the relationship between the Primary Item and its associated
hypercubes.

Drag the element Movie Sales to the extended link hypercube.

Next we must define the dimensions that are related to the hypercubes.
Create the element named hypercube-item.

Drag the element hypercube-item to Movie Sales.

Right-click, then select Change, and then set Arc Role to hypercube-dimensions for the relationship
between the hypercube and the primary item.

Change the element properties of hypercube-item to these:

e Abstract: True

e Substitution group: hypercube-item

e Period Type: Duration

Select the hypercube-item element, and then the element property window.
Select the selected parentlink, and then change summable to true.

Setting the hypercube and dimensions to summable means that the values reported total
the primary item.

Right-click and select change, then arc role, and then all.

Change the TargetRole to Hypercube.
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MamespacePrefix new
Mame Hypercube_item
Labels Hypercube_item
DataType String
Abstract True
SubstitubionGroup sbrlizitem
PetindType Duration
Diocurmentation
B References {Collection - emply)
Formula
B selectedParentLink Movie_Sales
Role all
TargetRole hypercube
Surmmable True
Order 1
Prohibited False
Required False

Priarity 1]

Parents (Collection - 1)

Children {Collection - emply) b
]

Flag False
24 Drag genre-dimension and rating-dimension from the element list to be a child of hypercube-item.
25 Change the targetrole for these relationships to match their select dimension.

For example, the targetrole of genre-dimension should be the dimension-item from genre-
dimension.

26 Save this taxonomy as hypercube . xsd.

You completed Dimensions Lesson Four. Proceed to “Lesson Five: Generating an XBRL Instance
Document with Dimensions” on page 335.

Lesson Five: Generating an XBRL Instance Document with
Dimensions

After you create a dimensional taxonomy, the next step is to generate an XBRL instance
document that uses the dimensional taxonomy and its concepts.

Note: Completed files created from this lesson can be found at \samples\tutorial

\dimensions.
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» To create an Dimensional XBRL instance document using dimensions:

1 Select File, then New, and then XBRL instance document.

2  Select File, then Add, and then reference taxonomy, and then select the schema for instance documents

xbrldi-2006.xsd.

The syntax within this schema defines how we should construct our instance with

dimensions.

3 Select File, then Add, then reference taxonomy, and then select hypercube . xsd (created in Lesson

Four).

Now for each primary item called movie sales reported in the XBRL instance, a context must
be constructed that contains the dimensions, and explicit domain members to identify which

row from the table is being reported.

Mowie Sales Analysis L\Em
| 2003 2002 2002
Sales, by Genre, by Rating 32,038 35,805 32,465
Breakdown by Genre
| Science Fiction Fact Value 20,1581 18,150 15,275
Western 2,433 1,973 1,523
Classic 6,675 6,514 5,752
| Other 2,749 9,165 9,615
Grand Total 32,03 35,505 32 465

Genre dimension

Soience Fiction daormain member

Select Context, and then Add.

Set the Identifier as Movie Sales Example.

o ~N oo o B

mark button.

Reported primary item value for
the science fiction genre for all
rated movies,

The hypercube was built with the ‘all’
constructor therefare we must repart
each primary itermn with both
dimensions within the 'scenaria’ far
each context defined.

Enter the label for the context using the ID field: D-2003-genres-scienceficton.

Select Entity, then the ellipses, and then click the * button to create an entity.

Set the entities scheme as http:/ /www.example.com/movie_store_example, and then click the check

9 Select Periods, then the ellipses, and then click the * button to create a period.

10 Set the period type for this context to: Duration.

11 Set start date for the period to 1-1-2003 and end date to 12-31-2003.

12 Select Scenarios, then the ellipses, and then select Dimensions.
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Ei}

Scenario

Dimensgians [Collection - 2]
S cenanioriL

X
Label

|dentifying label for the circumstances of associated fact
values.

| x|« =l p|v x|

13 Set the type to Explicit as we explicitly define the dimension and its containing domain members for
each scenario.

14 Select the hypercube:AllGenres for the DimensionElementName.

15 Select the Genre:ScienceFiction for the MemberElementName.

Dimension Collection Editor

Dimenzion: hypercube:AllGenres genre:ScienceFiction Properties:

Tupe Explicit
DimengionElementt ame hypercube:AllGenres |
Gl LR EN TS genre: ScienceFiction L}
Title

< | s MemberElementM ame

= Element name far the dimension walue.

Add Remove
oK | Cancel ‘

16 To add a second dimensions, select hypercube:AllRatings for the DimensionElementName and
ratings:MovieMatings for MemberElementName.
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Dimension Collection Editor

tembers: Dimenzion: hypercube:AllR atings ratings:MovieR atings Properties:
0] Dimension: hypercube:dllGenres genreScie 4 Tupe Explicit Lf
Ji YpErc i 0 DimenszionElementt ame hypercube:AllR atings
+ MernberElementharme  ratings:MovieR atings
Title
¢ | > Type
== : z Select the type of dimensional member
Add Remove
oK | Cancel ‘

17 Click OK, and then click the check mark button to accept the changes.
18 Click OK.
19 From Element, select primaryitem:Movie_Sales.

20 From Context, select d-2003-genres-sciencefiction, and then enter the value 20181.

Unit Collection Editor

tembers: U-konetary Properties:
i} Ll-Monetary +  Label
Drezcription
LJ [n] U-Monetary
Type SimpleUnit

MeasureSimplaT erm 1504217:U5D

Label
Identifying label for the unit.

Add

oK | Cancel ‘
A

21 Click the Units ellipsis to use the Unit Collection Editor to create a unit titled U-Monetary with the
MeasureSimpleTerm value of is04217:USD
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Instance - {New)

9 b =

= (Mew)
=|- Elerment: primaryitern:Movie_Sales
—|- Period: from 2003-01-01 ko 2003-12-31

Item 1: primaryitem:Movie_Sales D-2003-gerires-scienceficton

Sequence Element
b1 primaryitem:Movie_Sales

*

5

Context
D-2003-genres-sci ..

Yalue

You entered in your first fact value for the instance document. This fact value is the value

highlighted in yellow below.

The fact value entered in Step 15 represents the figure highlighted below.

22 Repeat Steps 6 to 13 for each additional fact value.

After you entered the fact values, you must create an element for each of the yearly totals.

23 Create a context named D-2003-allgenre-allratings.

24 Select the Entity ellipsis to use the Entity Collection Editor to accept the entity movie store.

25 Select the Periods ellipsis to use the Periods Collection Editor to select duration of 1-1-2003 to

12-31-2003.

26 Select the Scenarios ellipsis to use Scenarios Collection Editor to add a dimensions scenario.

Dimension Collection Editor

Members:

Dimenzion: Properties:

+ Tupe Explicit
DimenzionElementt ame
LJ MernberE lementh ame
Title

Type
Select the type of dimensional member
Add Femove

0K

=

Cancel |

]

27 Add a dimension: Select the hypercube:AllGenres for the Dimension Element Name, and then select

the Genre:MovieGenre for the Member Element Name.
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28 Add a second dimension; Select hypercube:AllRatings for the Dimension Element Name and
ratings:MovieMatings for Member Element Name.

Dimension Collection Editor

tembers: Dimenzion: hypercube:AllGenres genre:MovieGenre Properties:
1 hyperc gehire: oS Type - .éx.plic.i.l - LJ
1| Dimension: hypercube:AlR atings ratings:Ma DimensionE lementiame hypercube:AllGenres
MemberElementlame  genre:MovieGenre
Title

< | ? Type
== : z Select the type of dimensional member
Add Remove

oK | Cancel

A

29 Click OK, and then click the check mark button to accept the changes.
30 Click OK.

31 Repeat steps 17-24 for the years 2002 and 2001.

32 Ensure that you selected the instance menu and toolbar.

33 To validate the instance document, select Tools, and then Validate Instance Document.
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Instance Yalidation and Report Options

¥ ML Schema validation

¥ ®EFRL Validation & Formulas
[ FRIS walidation

[ Taxonomy validation

[ Business Fules Instance Doc,

Show Meszages:

¥ Emor [ Warnings

Display in results report;
[~ Compute missing fact valuess
[ FKeep computed fact values
¥ Show full validation audit trai
¥ Show dimensions audit trail
[ Show formula ace
¥ Show results as HTML
[ Dizplay results in <ML
[ Show element names

Calculation results dizplay order:
|E:-:tenu:|eu:| Link-Contest-Unit j

Select Extended Links to Validate
Drefault Link,

hypercube

primaryconcepts
domain-memberz

clear all

Save validation repart i |I::"'.D|:n:ument$ and Settingz'jazon. andrewiDeskiopih oviesales\zales_instance.x ,EJE!{

Save calculation trace in: |I::"'.D|:n:ument$ and Settingz'jazon. andrewiDeskiopih oviesales\zales_instance.x ,EJE!{

Cancel ‘

| Ry Validation ]
o

34 Check the XBRL Validation box and the Show dimensions audit trail box.

35 Click Run Validation.

See “Reading a Calculation Trace” on page 151.
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Line Label W B D-P|¥alue Source Message
1 |Dimensions period from 2001-01-01 to 2001-12-31 for moviestore Scenario-9

2 U-Monetary

3 hypercube:all genres/ /genre:Movie Genre

4 primaryitem:Movie_Sales|..., hypercube:all ratings/ /ratings:Movie Ratings] DO | 32,465 both 0K
5 primaryitern: Mavie_Sales[..., hypercube: all ratings/fratings: G] 1 DO (10,137 |inst

[ primaryitern:Movie_Sales[..., hyparcuba:all ratings/fratings: PG] 1 Do 10,296 inst

7 primaryitern: Mavie_Sales[..., hypercube: all ratings/fratings: k] 1 DO | 2210/ inst

] primaryitern: Mavie_Sales[..., hypercube: all ratings/fratings: Others] 1 Do | B722|inst

9 hypercube:all ratings/ /ratings:Movie Ratings

10 primaryitem:Movie_Sales[..., hypercube:all genres/ /genre :Movie Genre] DO | 32,465 both 0K

primaryitern: Mavie_Sales[..., hypercube: all genresffqenre:Science

11 1 Do 15,2735 inst

Fiction]
12 primaryitern: Mavie_Sales[..., hypercube: all genres/fgenre: Westernsz] 1 oo 1,823 linst
13 primaryitern: Mavie_Salez[..., hypercube:all genresffgenre; Classics] 1 D0 | 5.752|inst
14 primaryitern: Mavie_Sales[..., hypercube: all genres/fqenre: Others] 1 D0 | 9,615 inst

15 Dimensions petiod from 2002-01-01 to 2002-12-31 for moviestore Scenatio-9
16 U-Monetary

17 |hypercube:all genres/ /genre:Movie Genre

18 primaryitem:Movie_Sales[..., hypercube:all ratings/ /ratings:Movie Ratings] DO | 35805 both 0K

19 primaryitern: Mavie_Sales[..., hypercube: all ratings/fratings: G] 1 D0 12,649 inst

20 primaryitern: Mavie_Sales[..., hypercube: all ratings/fratings: P 3] 1 D0 10,374 |inst

21 primaryitern: Mavie_Sales[..., hypercube: all ratings/fratings: k] 1 Do | 4,371 |inst

22 primaryitern: Movie_Sales[..., hypercube: all ratingsffratings: Others] 1 oo 2,411 |inst

23 hypercube:all ratings/ ‘ratings :Movie Ratings %

24 primaryitem:Movie_Sales[..., hypercube:all genres/ /genre:Movie Genre] DO | 35805 both 0K

primaryitern: Mavie_Sales[..., hypercube: all genresffqenre:Science
Firtianl

23 1 Lo 18,130 inst

You completed Dimensions Lesson Five. Proceed to “Lesson Six: Creating XBRL Instance
Documents with Dimensional Contexts” on page 342.

Lesson Six: Creating XBRL Instance Documents with
Dimensional Contexts

Entering in the data for an instance document can be time consuming and impractical. The
XBRL Taxonomy Designer Import option enables you to populate instance documents with
data.

Note: Completed files created from this lesson can be found at samples\tutorial
\dimensions.

» To use the Import function to import dimensional data:
1 Create an instance document.

2 Load the reference taxonomy file xbr1di-2006.xsd.
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Load the Hypercube taxonomy created in Lesson Three.

Use the Browse option to browse to Movie_Sales.xsl.

This is a Microsoft Excel file with all of the data from the example entered.

4 Select File, and then Import.
5
Taxnonomy Impork

~ Impart Optiohz
Impart zource

I Ewcel

&

¥ Comect emrors on import

File name IE:HDncuments and Settingshjazon. andrew’, E I+ Fow header E
Impart type IEIements __v] Key field | ;I I ;I
Sheet | Sheett ~
Irpart Field T aronary Field
n=ditype | n=:href ! id | nslidenti &« SCHEI‘nE_ e
[ zimple . Adimensionsfoo nz2:explhcittd ember
simple hypercube xsd A nzd:type
D-2003-genres-s  hdowvie Stc nizdhref3
D-2002genres-c classics nizd:title
D-2003genres-c classics nzl:startD ate
D-2001-genres-s  Mowie Ste msl:endD ate
D-2003-genres-  westerns nz2:explhcittd emberd
D-2002-genres-s  hdovie Stc nizd:typeh
D-2002-genres- westerns nizd href
D-2001-genres- westerns resdbitle? %
D-2001-genres classics T nsbMovie_Sales
1 ! I 4 contestP ef Ll-:
Load Deszign | [ Save design Apply Start | Cloze

6

8

Click Apply.

For Import Type, select units and click Apply.

For Import Type, select facts and click Apply.

Click Start.
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Flo Edi View Tools ‘window Help
D-=- R &0 = > BQ

tance - sl ot ance? | O T Y
=i sales_nstanced e False A
= Emmerd: primaryitem:Hovie_Sales | Encoding utl-8

* Perod: from 2001-01-01 to 3001-12-31 amespaces (Collection - T)

+ Poviod; from J000-01-01 bo D0B3-12-31 Cortets (Collection - 20)

# Period: from 2002-01-01 ta 2002-12:31 Factvakms {Collection - 2T)

% [Perid! from 2001-01-01 bo 2001-12-31 Uik (Collection - 1)

i Period: from 20030101 to 2003-12.4 Enihies {Coection - 4)

* Penod; from Z002-01-01 bo J002-12-31 Paiiods (Collection - 3)

& Period; from 2000-01-01 to 20031231

+ [Penod; from 2002-01-01 to 2002-12-31 (Callection - 3

% Pesiod! from 2001-01-01 b5 2001-12-31 o e -

5 Pariod: From 2000-01-01 b 20021231 | Categeies {Collection - empty) =

= [Pewid] from 20010-01-01 to 2001-12-31 - Scenaris.

3| Pawiad: friom 2002-01-01 ts 2002-12-31 b used by this L

Seqamce [ Sou Elamant Cortmst [P |D

[ ] 13 primaryhem:des . 0-2000-9.. 0 U-Monstary F LT
2 M primarytem:Mow | D-2000-g 0 U-Momstary F bk R R
3 35 primarylem:Mo . D-2000-g. 0 U-Monstary F_ 1973 1,503
% 36 primacybemMed., D-2001-g 0 LMonetary F 1823 1,822
5 37 primaryRemMes . D-2000- 0 LHManstary F e 20,18
L] 3B primacykemides . D-20003-5 0 UHMonstary F BbTS 6,475
T 9 primaryitemMed . D-2008-9 0 L-Monetery F 18150 18,150
] A0 primarybem:Mes . [-2000+ 0 U-Monetary F 10214 10,214
] 41 primaryem®ed., D-2000- 0 LeMonstary F 11901 11,501
10 42 primarybem:=Ses | D-2000 0 UMoretwy F 1249 12,449

[

W RW W

A w

Uk WM Ve  BfeciveVak o Foo| 4|

' hypercube Taconomy Element Firder (Defiriton) o8 =

il
i
f!

Irstance cales_nstanced was XML, XBRL validated no ermors, no wamngs
Taconomy | whridl {bridi- 2005, oud) Referanced Taxonomees: (rone )

§333%

XERL Instance Valdetion of C:\Documents and Settingsijason sndrew|DeskiopiMoviesdes!

Tapoonomy: hyparoube (yperoube od) Referenced Taconomies: +-beidt +-chridts +-pr
Irstance valdabion raport saved to C:iDocuments and Sebtingson, andres (DeskiopiMo:

3 _ﬂu\ #uan :a”"""" Ia sl Ta Ehﬂuﬁ

INS: DEF

VIEW. DEF

10 Select the XBRL Validation box and the Show dimensions audit trail box.

11 Click Run Validation.

See “Reading a Calculation Trace” on page 151.

344 Tutorials



Line

2
3

]

&
7
=]

-

11

12
13
14

16
17

19
20
21
22

23

23

Label
1 |Dimensions period from 2001-01-01 to 2001-12-31 for moviestore Scenario-9
U-Monetary

hypercube:all genres/ /genre:Movie Genre

4 primaryitem:Movie_Sales|..., hypercube:all ratings/ /ratings:Movie Ratings]

primaryitern: Mavie_Sales[..., hypercube: all ratings/fratings: G]
primaryitern:Movie_Sales[..., hyparcuba:all ratings/fratings: PG]
primaryitern: Mavie_Sales[..., hypercube: all ratings/fratings: k]

primaryitern: Mavie_Sales[..., hypercube: all ratings/fratings: Others]

|hypercube:all ratings//ratings:Movie Ratings
primaryiten:Movie_5Sales[..., hypercube:all genres/ /genre:Movie Genre ]

primaryitern: Mavie_Sales[..., hypercube: all genresffqenre:Science
Fiction]

primaryitern: Mavie_Sales[..., hypercube: all genres/fgenre: Westernsz]
primaryitern: Mavie_Salez[..., hypercube:all genresffgenre; Classics]

primaryitern: Mavie_Sales[..., hypercube: all genres/fqenre: Others]

15 Dimensions petiod from 2002-01-01 to 2002-12-31 for moviestore Scenatio-9

U-tMonetary

hypercube:all genres/genre:Movie Genre

18 primaryitem:Movie_Sales[..., hypercube:all ratings/ /ratings:Movie Ratings]

primaryitern: Mavie_Sales[..., hypercube: all ratings/fratings: G]
primaryitern: Mavie_Sales[..., hypercube: all ratings/fratings: P 3]
primaryitern: Mavie_Sales[..., hypercube: all ratings/fratings: k]

primaryitern: Movie_Sales[..., hypercube: all ratingsffratings: Others]

|hypercube:all ratings//ratings:Movie Ratings

24 primaryitem:Movie_Sales[..., hypercube:all genres/ /genre :Movie Genre]

primaryitern: Mavie_Sales[..., hypercube: all genresffqenre:Science
Firtianl

W B D-P

[P R T

1
1
1
1
b3

oo
Lo
oo
Lo
Lo

Lo

Lo
Lo
Lo

oo

Lo
Lo
Lo
oo

Lo

¥Yalue

32,4965
10,137
10,296

3,210
8,722

32,465
13,273

1,823
9,792
2,613

33,805
12,649
10,374

4,371
2,411

33,803

18,130

Source Message

both
inst
inst
inst

inst

both
inst
inst
inst

inst

both
inst
inst
inst

inst

both

inst

0K

0K

0K

0K

You completed Dimensions Lesson Six. Proceed to “Lesson Seven: Creating a Multi-Hypercube
Taxonomy with a Restricted Hypercube” on page 345.

Lesson Seven: Creating a Multi-Hypercube Taxonomy with a
Restricted Hypercube

Now that you've created a complex hypercube, you want to go a step further. What if you decide

to restrict certain elements from your video store? For example, you noted that Movies with the
Category Rating Other do not sell as well as other movies. Further, some of these movies are not
suitable for adults and you wish to restrict these movies.

Note: Completed files created from this lesson can be found at samples\tutorial

\dimensions.

» To

create a restricted hypercube taxonomy:

1 Open the taxonomy Hypercube from Lesson Four.
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2  Save the Taxonomy as hypercube_restrict.xsd.

We are going to modify elements from the hypercube taxonomy to create a restricted,
multihypercube example.

3 Switch to Definition View with all of the roles shown.
4 Add an Extended Link called Hypercube_restricted.
5  Alter the URI to hypercube_restricted.

Add/Choose Extended Link Roles

Mame Resztricted hypercube

Type extendedLink

Drefinitian

IR http: /fwww_example. com/hypercube/frolefhypercube_restncted
RIZ0
IlzedOnTy,

[Collection - 1) ~

UszedD r-l.T ppes
Types Uzed On

>y x

6 Click the check mark button to save this extended link.

7  Add a child element named Restricted Hypercube to the Hypercube_restricted extended link.
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New element form

M amespacePrefix hypercube
Mame RestrictedHypercube
Labelz Restricted Hypercube
CiataT ype String
Abztract Falze
SubstitutionGraup xhridt: hypercubeltem j
PeriodT ype Duration
Millable True
Fined
D acurentation
References [Collection - empty]
Forrnula
Farents [Collection - empty]
Children [Collection - empty]
=

Flag Falze

i

Suhstitutiunﬁm.p
The zubstitution group for this element. %

Mew element Cloze | Dizcard L
P

This is the second hypercube in this example that restricts one of the dimensions.
8  Change the Substitution Group to xbrldt: hypercube-item.
9 Change the Abstract value to True.

10 Drag Restricted Hypercube from the Element list to be a child of hypercube-restricted.
11 Drag the Move Ratings element from the Element List to be a child of the Restricted Hypercube.

12 Select hypercube-dimension as the arcrole.

Note: You can also drag elements with ALT pressed (drag-link icon) from a neighboring
tree view branch (like the other hypercube).

13 Drag the Ratings-Other element from the element list and make it a child of Movie Ratings.

14 Select the Dimension-Domain for the arcrole.

15 Drag the Restricted Hypercube to be a child of Movie Sales under the hypercube extended link.
16 Select xbrldt: not allfor the Arc-role.

17 Validate the taxonomy to ensure that everything works properly and then save the taxonomy.
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Formulas Tutorial: Creating Simple Formulas to
Validate Data

This tutorial teaches users about Formulas, XBRL, and XBRL Taxonomy Designer.

While a few formulas may be created using the Oracle Hyperion Disclosure Management XBRL
Taxonomy Designer drag and drop formula builder with concepts in a presentation view, it can
be limited to one formula per concept. To overcome this we create an extension taxonomy to
create containers for a formula or ratio.

Note: Business rules are one of the most valuable features of XBRL. The ability to validate data
and develop ratios for analytics is extremely valuable. Companies can run formulas against
their financial reports before submission to regulators and also run private formulas they
generated to validate internal policies or create analytical ratios. An advanced course in
business rule generation is available

» To create a simple formula to validate data:

1 Create a taxonomy.

2 In the Taxonomy Property window, change the namespace prefix to ci-br.

3 Change the namespace identifier to http://www.example.com/ci-businessrules.
4 Select File, then Save As, and then enter CTBusinessRules.xsd.
5

Create a reference taxonomy through the Reference Taxonomies property grid using the Basic Calculation
taxonomy.

The Reference Taxonomies property grid now shows.

6  Select Turn Off, then View, and then Namespace Prefix to toggle it off so that when you edit concepts
you are not editing the namespace prefix.

7  Select File, then Save, and then close the taxonomy,

8 Open ci-businessrules taxonomy and notice that BasicCalculation taxonomy is now a referenced
taxonomy to your ci-businessrules taxonomy.

Note: If you want to use colors to distinguish between the reference taxonomy
(BasicCalculation) and your taxonomy cibusinessrules, select Tools, and then
Options and move colors of your choice. Save the taxonomy and reload it.

Now let’s edit some elements and create elements where we can store formulas.
9 Right-click the element Property, Plant and Equipment to edit and add the word (View).

This separates the concepts from the containers we create to store formulas.
10 Add the element BusinessRules as a concept at the same level as Property, Plant and Equipment (View)
11 Add a concept under Business Rules and call it Land > Other.

12 Set the data type to Boolean.
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| Name | DataType | Abstr.. | Sub:

Bualding Mowsztari F alze whik
BusinessAules String Falze whrk
CompuitesE quapment Moretary Falze whik
FusrateF idiges Moretary Falze whirk
Land Moretar Falze work

N ;... =] -
Ot #la

PropertyPlantE quipment
T atalFropertvFlantE quioment

13 Select Land > Other in the presentation view.
14 Select Business Rules and change Abstract to True.

15 Select Formula, and then select [...] from the element property grid.

Enter new formala - MyBusinessRules i ﬂ

';;-‘E&jil & }{Hﬁqmu Forrtuds v|

16 Select ci:Land from the presentation relationship view, drag it to the formula editor.
Enter new o
gl
ciLand

17 Enter>.

18 Select ci:Other from the presentation relationship view, drag it to the formula editor.

" !

v Elil_f_}’ K"Stm_dald Fomula _:]

citLand > Other

19 Select to validate the formula.
If the formula is valid, a message is displayed in the messages window
If the formula is invalid an error is displayed

20 Select [x] to close the formula editor

21 Select the element property window and note the formula expression,
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22
23

24
25

26
27
28

29

30
31
32

k

Formula cizLand > Other _I

In the Taxonomy Property window, select Linkbases, and then [...].
Select the formula linkbase and note the FormulaType property.

The default is Disclosure Management (for the Oracle Hyperion Disclosure Management
propriety format), this can be changed to XBRL 1.0 (for the XBRL international formula
1.0 specification).

Note the formula linkbase that is added; note the expression that is detailed and the element
that the formula is associated with.

Select Tools, and then XBRL Validation to verify that the taxonomy is XBRL valid.
Select [x], select File, then Save, and enter CTBusinessRules.xsd.

Let’s create an instance document for our extended taxonomy and validate the business
rules. We can do this quickly by using the Tools Taxonomy Generate Business Rules option.

Enter a name for the instance document; for example, ciBusinessRuleslinstance.
Select All elements in the selected extended links.
For the Monetary amount, select $100.

A value of $100 is entered into the instance for each concept. Because there are 5 concepts
the total should be $500 and be reported in the instance document.

Click Start and Close.

Now let’s validate the instance document and the business rule, but before we do let’s change
some values so the validation triggers some errors.

Close the taxonomy and open the instance document you just created.
Run the business rule validation from the menu toolbar.
Change values for land to less than $100 and run validation again.

An XBRL element can contain the attribute substitution group containing one of these
default values— xbrl:item, or xbrl:tuple; or it may also substitute for another element of the
same type.

e Concept—Concepts are defined in two equivalent ways. In a syntactic sense, a concept
is an XML Schema element definition, defining the element to be in the item element
substitution group or in the tuple element substitution group. At a semantic level, a
concept is a definition of kind of fact that can be reported about the activities or nature
of a business activity.

e Item—An item is an element in the substitution group for the XBRL item element. It
contains the value of the simple fact and a reference to the context (and unit for numeric
items) needed to correctly interpret that fact. When items occur as children of a tuple,
they must also be interpreted in light of the other items and tuples that are children of
the same tuple. There are numeric items and non-numeric items, with numeric items
being required to document their measurement accuracy and units of measurement.

e Tuple—A tuple is an element in the substitution group for the XBRL tuple element.
Tuples are used to bind together the parts of a compound fact. Those constituent parts
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are themselves, facts but they must be interpreted in light of each-other. For example,
the name, age and compensation of a director of a company must be grouped together

to be correctly understood.

Sample screenshots

Substitute for xbrl:Item because the element is a distinct item reported instance document

Prefix I Label & I Mame I [akta Type I Abskrack I Subskitubion Group I
= My Ikem My Ikem Monetary False xbrlisitem

Substitute for xbrl:Tuple because the tuple groups together other items

Prefix I Label ,-“: Mame I [aka Type I Ahbskrack I Subskitubion Group I
e My Tuple My Tuple Tuple xbrliskuple

Substitute for another element of the same type, if they are not the same type an error occurs.
This technique enables you to substitute for elements of the same type, and enables you to restrict

the original concepts definition.

Prefix | Label™ | Wame | Data Tvpe | Abstract | Substitution Group |
new My Ikem My Ikem Monekary False xhrlisitem
new Another...  Anotherl...  Monetary False new My Tkem

Formulas Tutorial: Creating Simple Formulas to Validate Data 351
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